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DEDICATION

This book is dedicated to the e of the Big Prairie,
Cremona, Garfield and Water Valley districts.
1880 - Feb. 1979
Without their help this history-anthology could not have
been compiled.

As for man his days are as grass;
As a flower of the field, so he flourisheth.
For the wind passeth over it, and it is gone;
And the place there of shall know it no more,
Psalms 103: 15&16

Title by: Gordon Kamitomo

Cover by: Carol Bellamy

Animal Sketches by: Richard Barnard

Cal Sketch by: Donna Lee Whitlow

Dog Sketch by; Nicole Simpson

Special thanks to Muriel Foster, Jean Eby & Wilfred Blain

FORWARD
By: Alice Whitlow

It has been my pleasure to compile the stories for this
book and without the help of my friends and neighbors 1
could not have accomtrlisbed such a task. Many of these
people spent a greal deal of time writing up the articles
and searching for long forgotten snapshots, It took the com-
munity working together to make this book possible, for no
one alone makes a book.

he material within this book is from the lives of the

Eo e who came from far off countries o settle near our

ttle Red Deer River, where many found life to be most

rewarding. Those pioneers are now gone, but future

nerations have continued to remain here and make their

mes. You, the community, can be proud of the spirit and
friendship that still hoids us here,

You are what the country is all about, and what hap-
Eened many years ago will never be forgotten. You have

ept together a land worth many millions in stories, and
have not lost sight of the happy times, the sad times, and
the joy of helping others.

May we continue to use our thoughts & our energies to
help ourselves and others. Our community is proud to live
*‘Under the Chinook Arch"”.
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PART 1
PEOPLE

H.B. ATKINS AND FAMILY
By Dorothy J. Shand

My father, Henry (Harry) Burns Atkins, was born at
. Yorkshire, England in 1867. Aftex;fraduating from
York College in 1885 his activities centered around football
and athletics, In 1888 he came to the Cochrane area and
established a ranch about 25 miles north which later
became known as the Cremona district. [t was necessary to
travel this far north as other ranchers had control of the
land as far as the area which became known as Bottrel,
and the John McKinnell Ranch was located direcll{ north
and west of Bottrel. To take control of a piece of land at
this time a small remuneration was paid to the govern-
ment.

As the availability of water was of utmost importance,
Dad located his buildings near two excellent Springs which
continued to flow even in the driest years, Poplar trees in
abundance prompted him to name this site “Poplar
Grove’'. He erected an A-fence around his home pasture
and raised Clydesdale horses in the early years, His
mailing address was Mitford, Northwest Territories,
Canada, but later in the 1890's it changed to Cochrane when
the little settiement at Mitford west of Cochrane closed and
Cochrane Post Office opened.

When the government declared the Cremona area open
for homesteading my father filed with them and the SE'4-
30-4-5, where his buildings were located, became his
homestead. He Burdxased three adjoining quarters of land,

Dad's sister, Frances Atkins, also born at Leeds, came to
her brother’s ranch in 18%1. She later married Dan McNeil
and lived on their ranch located north of the present
hamlet of Dog Pound where Dan raised Aberdeen Angus
cattle. Frances experimented with miany new kinds of seeds
and was well known for her flower garden. Uncle Dan

ed away in 1928 at his ranch. “Dantie”, as Mrs. Mc-
eil was affectionately known to her nieces and nephews,
visited in England for a time, and returned to live in
Calgary where she passed away in 1948 al the age of 83
years. Uncle Dan and Dantie are buried in the Carstairs
cemetery. 1 have never known the derivation of the name
Dantie but can well imagine it being an adaptation of Aun-
tie, and its use continued.

Dad's brother, William Atkins, from Leeds also, made
his home on Dad's ranch for a time before embarking on
world-wide expeditions. Uncle Will and his wife, Aunt
Emily, have passed away. Their son, Donald of con-
siderable seli-made wealth, and his wife live in Vancouver,
following his retirement.

Dad’s pioneer life was lonely, fraught with danger and
the endurance of many hardships but tremendously ad-
verturous. The Indians became his friends but not before
he had a few scary encounters. A gun was necessary for
survival and he had placed it above the door for safe
keeping. One evening when Dad was having a lonely meal
of his own baking, the door opened and in slipped some In-
dians. He learned that above the door was not the place for
his gun. Indians did not knock! But those Indians were

friendly and by sign language he discovered they only
wished to share his food and this they did many times,

Caught in & blizzard when riding from Mitford to his land
Dad owed his life o his saddie horse, Its sense of direction
led him safely home. Another time while sitting in his
isolated shack, miles from anyone, he was astonished Lo
hear a woman scream outside. But it was not a * woman,
only & nomadic lynx, perhaps curious about this intruder in
its wild rangeland,

In 1895 Harry Atkins married Miss Jannet (Jessie)
McEachen, sister of Donald McEachen of the Grand Valley
district northwest of Cochrane. Jessie passed away in 1901
leaving two very young daughters, Mamie and Marjorie,
and a new-born son, Henry (Harry) Burns Jr.. Harry’s
sister, Frances, and his Aunt Mamie who came from
England to help, assisted in the care of his children. But
tragedy struck again when Harry’s daughter Mamie
passed away in 1902 from pneumonia, at the age of six
years. She and her mother are buried in the Cochrane
cemetery.

With his children nearing school age, and settlers begin-
ning to arrive, my father began agitating for a school to be
built nearby. A school was built one-half mile from his
buildings and named Atkins in recognition of his pioneering
in the area. T must note here that the school stamp, years
later, was s%elled Adkins due to the peculiarity of making
the letter t by an official of the School Board. It was an
error that should have been corrected but never was.

However, in 1904, Dad, Marjorie and Harry Jr. moved tc
Didsbury where Dad established a business which includeo
Implements, Hay and Grain. The farmers for miles
around, including Cremona, could buy J.I. Case threshing
machines, Case steam Engines, and Cockshutt farm
machinery from him. Dad owned one of the first cars in the
area. He also built the first grain elevator in Didsbury in
1906. And through the years he maintained his land at
Cremona.

1907, Ada Atking riding Chiff.



Dad accumulated many mounted heads of animals and
stuffed birds which he had shot himself. Among them was
a deer head with a perfectly matching set of antlers, a
snarling wolf head, and a lynx head with teeth bared. A
stuffed owl had eyes that were always staring al me when I
was a little girl. In later years my brother Jack donated
two deer heads to the Cremona Hall which was a fitting
place to display them,

In 1907, Harry Atkins married Miss Ada Doak from
Hamilton, Ontario, who was teaching at Rosebud School
near Didsbury. She had come West {o visit a friend , liked
the surroundings and stayed to continue her profession. As
well as caring for Harry Jr. and Marjorie, Harry and Ada
had five children: John, Eric and Rex (identical twins),
Maxwell and Dorothy.

Dad was a Notary Public and Justice of the Peace for 12
vears, He was a member of the Town Council of Didsbury
for 4 years. In 1910 he was elected Mayor of Didsbury and
served in this capacity for two terms. In 1915 Dad was elec-
ted Liberal Member of the Legislative Assembly of Alber-
ta, representing the Constituency of West Didsbury, He was
also a member of the Didsbury Masonic Lodge.

But once more Dad's life was marred by tragedy. Fire
struck the town of Didsbury. In that holocaust my father’s
accounting books and papers were destroyed. Times were
good and he had given much credit to many customers.
Only one man came to him to accept his responsibility to
pay his debt and that gentleman had a large family and his
money was scarce. My father took grain in payment of that
debt when I was old enough to remember. The fire had
taken place several years before T was born, It must have
taken incredible faith and intestinal fortitude to carry on.

1913. H.B. Atkins with 4 of his 5 sons: Back row: Harry Sr., and Jr., Front row:
1tor - Rex and Eric {twins) and Jack.

1914, Front seat | to r - Harry Atkins Sr. and Jr. with dog, Grit (Liberal). Back
seat: | to r - Jack, Marie Chambers ([rlend; Erse, Rex and Marjorie Atkins,

In 1919 Dad returned with his family to his homestead at
Cremona. I, Dorothy, the youngest child, was born two
years later at the Didsbury Hospital. Dad was a member of
the Anglican Church and taught Sunday School at the
Atkins School

My mother played our piano for Christmas concerts held
at the Atkins School. In the late 1820's Dad was in-
strumental in organizing a High School which was held in
the Hall (originally & cheese factory) at Old Cremona
located about two miles southeast of the present village of
Cremona, When the railroad came to Cremona in 1930 the
Cremona townsite was located on Dad’s land (NWy; 3-30-4-
5). My father would not be very ha‘apy with the CPR for
their proposed closure of this railway spur line from
Crossfield to Cremona in 1978,

A few years after the family returned to Cremona Mar-
jorie went to live with her uncle Donald McEachen and his
family in Grand Valley. In 1947 when I was married she
returned to Cremona to live with her brother Jack until she
married Rob Baptie. They lived in Calgary with Rob's
daughter Ethe] and son Bobby, from a previous marriage.
Ethel married Tom Church who is now retired from the
R.C.M.P. Tom, Ethel and their family live in Calgary
where Toem is currently employed, Bob married Peggy
Madill whose father was the American Consul in Calgary.
Bob and Peggy and their children live immediately south-
west of Cochrane. Rob passed away in 1976 and Marjorie

ssed away Jater that same year. They are buried in the

Jochrane cemetery.

Harry Atking Jr. worked in Calgary after 1920. He
married Mary Wakaryk, a Calgary hairdresser formerly
from Wayne, Alberta. From 1920 Harry was an accountant
for Excelsior Collieries al Wayne, In 1941 he was employed
with Drumheller Coal Operators Association and Castle
Collieries. He was a member of Drumbheller Masonic
Lodge, After 1951 he was emploved with McColl Frontenac
0il Co. at Weyburn, Sask. In 1953 Harry retired to Banff
where he passed away that year. Mary resumed hair-
dressing in Banff until she retired. Mary passed away in
1977. She and Harry are buried in Banfl. Their son John
Maxwell is emploved in Calgary and lives there, He
married Margaret Driscoll of Calgary. The have two sons.
Kim who is married and lives in Calgary, and Dan at-
tending school there,

Jack Atkins received most of his schooling in Didsbury.
He lived and worked on the family farm until it was sold
during World Warll, then moved east of Cremona where he
had built on his own land. Jack married Miss Marie Jones
of Cochrane, They moved to Calgary in 1952 where Jack
was employed with the city. They have one daughter, Ada
Marie, who received her B.Ed. at the University of
Calgary. After working at U. of C. she returned to school
attending the U, of British Columbia where she received
her Master of Library Science. She is employed at the U. of
Calgary.

Eric and Rex, sometimes referred to as the gold dust
twins, participated in foot races at Sports Days at Cremona
and surrounding areas. Eric would very often win and
many times they won the three-legged race. They both

layed baseball for Cremona during the era of the Bush
ague which included teams from all the surroundin
districts, These ball games were of a very high calibre a
much enjoyed bgcgaruci;t)anl and observer. Eric and Rex
attended High ool at Old Cremona, worked on the
family farm, and attended Normal School at Calgary
becoming teachers.

Max also attended High School at Old Cremona which he
entered al a very young age. He won an Oratorical Contest
at Cremona while still very young. He spent many happy
hours working with his home-made forge. Max trucked for
various people eventually driving for Dench of Canada out
of Calgary.

Jack, Eric, Rex and Max worked on threshing outfits in
the fall of the year as many of the neighbors did. During
the Depression of the 1930's & herd of milk cows helped to
sustain the family farm. Our cream was shipped to Car-



stairs via the mall man. It graded ‘table cream’ thanks to
excellenl cold spring water which continuously flowed
through the ‘box’ in which the cream can was almost sub-
merged. Horses played a very important role in our lives
with their many uses until tractors and more efficient
machinery began to change the pace of the farmer. Pigs,
chickens, ducks, geese and turkeys all contributed to our
livelihood. Wheat was sen! to the mill to be made into
various products. Hay and grain were grown and used for
feed, as well as for sale, but it was done in a much more
back-breaking method than today,

A large;ifarden and wild fruit in abundance contributed
to & varied diel. During the summer months an alternoon
of fishing in the Little Red Deer River could add more
variety lo the meat which the neighborhood received from
the 'Beef ring’ every Saturday.

Eric, Rex and Max were Commissioned Officers in the
Royal Canadian Air Force and served Overseas durin
World War I1. Eric was invested with the Distinguis
Flying Cross (DFC) which he won during the war “for
completing numerous operations against the enemy in the
course of which he invanab}iy displa yed the utmost fortitude,
courage and devotion to duty”. Rex made an excellent
recovery from a bout with malaria while serving in India.
Max was a Flying Instructor at the Flying School at High
River before going Overseas,

Eric married Dorothy Parker, nee Mayes, from Ontario,
who had been & secrelary. He is reti from his position
with Emergency Measures Organization in Ottawa. They
reside there with the exception of the winter months when
they live in Florida.

Rex married Miss Rita Goodenm‘%h. a registered nurse
from Hamilton, Ontario, where they resided until his
retirement from the Customs Department of the Civil Ser-
vice, They live near Lion's Head, Ontario except during the
winter months when they live in Florida. Their son
Charles, who has a B. Ed. deFree, and their daughter Patti,
who is a registered nurse, live in Burlington, Ontario, a
suburb of Hamilton. Charles teaches High School. Both are
married and Patti has one daughter. Rex and Rita's
younger son James Maxwell passed away accidentally.

Max married Miss Ardell Haga, a stenographer who was
employed at High River Flying School and later in
Calgary. Ardell was raised near Vulcan, Alberta. They
farm northwest of Vulcan and Max is a member of the
Flying Farmers of Alberta. They have three daughters all
rwidin% in Ca . Maxine (Mrs. J, W. de Gama) who
has a B. Ed ree from U. of Alberta and taught in
Calgary before her marriage. Maxine and Jerry have two
sons and a daughter: Diana (Mrs, Howard Parsons) who
has a M.A. from U. of Alberta and worked in Edmonton
and Toronto. She and her husband are employed in
Calgary;, and June, who trained at S.A.LT. is currently
enrolled at U, of Calgary majoring in Sociolofy. Max and
Ardell have one son Gene attending high school at home.

I, Dorothy, attended Atkins school where I won the Ben-

nett medal. In 1939 1 received my high school diploma from
Roosevelt High School in Seattle, Washington, While there 1
stayed with my mother’s sister. During World War II my
brother Jack and | looked after our parents and the farm
at Cremona. [ married George Shand, son of Mr. and Mrs.
L.D. Shand, pioneers of the Bottrel district, where we
farm. We have two sons, John and Brian. John compieted
high school at Westbrook School, graduated from S.A.LT.
and is a certified Petroleum Technologist. He is emploved
by an oil company in Calgary. John married Miss Janice
Caithness, daughter of Mr. and Mrs. Stewarl Caithness of
Calgary. Janice graduated from the Foothills Hospital and
is a Registered nurse, They have three sons, Craig, Travis
and Mark. They live in Cochrane Heights, from where John
commutes to his work.

Brian Is a Professional Engineer after attending the U, of
Calgary where he obtained a B, Sc. degree in Chemical
Engineering. He is employed with a consulting firm in
Calgary. He graduated from Cochrane High School with
honors after Westbrook High School was closed in 1967 and
the students were bussed to Cochrane. Brian married Miss
Madonna Cadegan, daughter of Mr. Donnie Cadegan and
the late Mrs. Helen Cadegan, of Glace Bay, Cape Breton
Island, Nova Scotia. Madonna attended University in Nova
Scotia and the U. of Alberta in Edmonton where she
received & Teaching Certificate. She taught school in
Calgary and is currently employed with an Assurance com-
pany there. She, with her sisters and a brother, have made
guesl appearances singing on the T.V. network. Brian and
Madonna reside in Calgary.

My father, H.B. Atkins passed away at his homestead at
Cremona on September 28, 1941, His name is engraved on
the Oldtimers Plagque in Calgary, My mother passed away
April 28, 1945, Both are laid to rest in the Carstairs
cemetery.

H.B, Atkins store in Didsbury. H.B. Atking ut right

144 Dorothy Atking

HS

H.B. Atkins - cattle and horse brand in 1890 -1.r -



FRITZ BACKSTROM
By Cora and Ed

Fritz Backstrom came to U.S.A. in 1910 at the age of 21
vears, from Petei, Sweden. In 1911 he came lo Jasper,
Alberta and worked on the Grand Trunk Railroad, later
moving to Evansburg on a homestead and worked in the
coal mines there. He met Edith Dolly Seacoy and was
married in July, 1917,

Fritz and Dolly 1917, Wedding picture

One son, John Edward was born in 1920. A second son -
Carl William in 1922 and a daughter - Cora Viola in 1923
Fritz and a neighbor, Mr, Larson, built covered wagons
and moved them and their families from Evansburg to the
Cremona area. Fritz bought land in 1925 in the Cremona
area. A son, David was born in 1936, Fritz farmed in the
Cremona area for 50 years, until retiring to Didsbury in
1971, Mrs. Dolly Backstrom passed away March 2, 1977.
Fritz still resides in his own home at the age of 90 years, 6
months, l]He is still in fairly good health and gets around
quite well.

BILL BAGNALL - Reeve of Mountain
Vi
Re:si‘l'l‘: of this article by special permission from the

editor, Carstairs Community Press. Written by Rosa
Gorrill. 1976,

In his office hangs a citation commending his work
within the United Nations as Deputy Director, displaced
ersons, for Germany and Czechoslovakia. He was also
ocurement Officer for the Byelo-Russian Mission,
Washington, D.C. He saw service with General
Eisenhower's Headquarters in France, and with General
Patton’s Third Army in Germany.

His name is William John Louis Bagnail, affectionately
known throughout the county as “Bill". He has served this
county to the best of his ability, in many capacities, con-
tinuously since 1948. Bill Bagnall was born in Shrewsbury,
England, and moved to Canada in 1926, Just fifteen vears

old at that time, he finished his education in Canada, and
took additional training in Humanities and Liberal Arts at
the University of Maryland.

He served with the Canadian Army Militia and the
Canadian Army Active forces for 17 years, retiring from
the services as Captain Adjutant, He was awarded the
Car‘\jat}ian Forces Decoration and the Queen’s Coronation
Medal.

Mr. Bagnall was first elected to the Municipal District
of Mountain View Council in 1948. The amalgamation with
the Olds School Division occured in 1859; Mr. Bagnall
recalis that four years later a plebiscite was held to find
out if the arrangement was satisfactory. Apparently only 7
people signed oppesing the amalgamation.

Mr. Ba narl has served as Reeve of the Municipal
District and then the County of Mountain View, con-
tinuously since 1951. He has also been chairman of the
school committee since 1961. He has been co-ordinator of
the Mountain View Emergency Measures Organization sin-
ce 1951, and he is the past chairman of the Agricultural
Committee,

“We have extremely knowledgeable and interested
ratepayers, generally speaking’’, he says, as he thinks
back over his years as Reeve. His career has had its ugs
and downs: he recalls one formidable problem being the
building of the Sundre hospital. Council and Reeve Bagnall
felt al that time that the existing two hospitals should be
upgraded rather than a third one built. 230 enraged ladies
who felt otherwise descended en masse on the county of-
fices. Reeve Bagnall comments, “They got their hospital”

When the decision was made to close the Hainstock and
Harmattan schools, citizens took exception. Men and
women moved into the administration building. Mr.
Bagnall had the Mounties standing by. Wondering what to
do, he phoned a lawyer in Calgary. The lawyer said the
best course was to read the Riot Acl. Reeve Bagnall sear-
c¢hed frantically for a copy but could not locate one. Finally
he esca through a side door. The situation defused it-
self, and the schools were closed.

Presented with the Province of Alberta Centennial
Achievement Award in 1967, Mr. Bagnall in many ways
deserves recognition for his years of dedicated service in
most areas of the County’s and the province’s development.
He has been a member of the Board of Governors of the
Red Deer Junior College from its foundation to the
reorganization of the College Boards in 1970. He has been a
member of the Alberta | Trustee's Association from
1968 to date. He has served on many Provincial educational
committees, and is resently serving on the minister's
municiral and school Eoundanes advisory committee.

Bill Bagnall was a “call out officer’” after the war.
Already involved in his county duties, he was camp com-
mandant at Whitehorse in the 1950's for almost a year,
during the northern exercise, ‘“‘Sweet Briar'".

Reeve Bagnall is a member of the Crossfield Lodge No.
48 AF of AM and also the Crossfield Lodge BPOE. He was

resident of the Cremona branch of the Royal Canadian
Eegion. He is also a director of Native Minerals Ltd., and
has served as People's Warden of the Anglican Church of
the Ascension at Crossfield for many years.

He was married in 1836 to Marjorie Louise Haney. The
Bagnalls have three children: two girls and one boy. Since
1846 he has operated a 600 acre farm at Dog Pound. He
says, “‘This is probably the best rural county in Alberta.
We have tried to diligently administer the affairs of the
people as best we can. The County is & crossroads at this
time, with encroachment of urban people. I am sure that
clear heads will prevail, and that the County of Mountain
View will continue to be a good place to be part of."

“Appreciation Night'', Oct. 28, 1977 at Cremona School
was & special evening for Marjorie Bagnall who has taught
there for many years and also served as librarian for
several years. Mr. Jepson, Superintendent of Schools, told
of Mrs. Bagnall's experiences in the early years in one
room rural schools and up to the present time.



Cremona rincig;l), Cliff Sorenson, spoke on behalf of
himseif and school staff, relating Mrs. Bagnall's ac-
tivities at Cremona school, not only in the classrooms and
the library but at the staff meetings.

Brian Whitlow, a former student, spoke of the great in-
fluence she had on the pupils with whom she had
associated. He said much could be learned in her
classroom if the student so desired.

Vair Whitlow and Lynn Whittle reminisced on time
spent in Mrs. Bagnall's classroom. Vair, making a
dramatic entrance, made hilarious replies as Lynn asked
him to recall various events, Vair, then more dignified, dof-
fed his hat, removed his spectacles and he and Lynn
wished their former teacher a healthy, ha retirement.

The Cremona School Teachers’s Chorus, featuring
Albert Stewart as lead singer, and accompanied by Linda
Hogg on piano, presenting a song telling and humorous
story of Mrs. Bagnall's career.

During the eve many excellent numbers were
esented by the Luyendyk family, school pupils and songs
y Vera McKinnon.

Mrs. Bagnall was invited on stage where several
resentations were made; Ken Blain - on behalf of the
illage of Cremona presented a sheafl of red roses, John

Gerlach - on behalf of the A, T.A. presented a wrapped gift,
Bill Denney - on behalf of the C.A.D.E.A. an engraved tray,
her son Jon - on behalf of the family, a giit. Leanne
Dumont was in charge of the guest book which was presen-
ted to Mrs. Bagnall also.

Mrs, Bagnall expressed her thanks and told of her first
years of teaching and expressed the pleasure of having her
family with ber on this occasion, Mr. Bill Bagnall, Jon
from Nelson, B.C.; Bonnie and family from Didsbury; Kim
and family from Chilliwack, B.C. Mrs. Bagnall’s sister and
her husband from Calgary and David, her nephew and wife
also from Calgary. She received a standing ovation and the
audience sang “Auld Lang Syne" accompanied by the
band. Refreshments were then served.

THE BAHM FAMILY
Told by Elsie Wright (Bahm)

My father, Adolph Bahm was born in 1863 in Germany.
He came with his parents to America in 1866 and grew up
on a family homestead near Imlay City, Michigan. In 1884
he married my mother, Augusta, and they lived in
Michigan. Adolph suffered from asthma and needed a
dryer climate and so after the birth of eight children, he
decided to come to Canada to raise his family. He came to
Alberta and bought a homestead, N.W, 148, 20, T. 30, R4,
W 5. (now Calvin Coleman’s}. Mother and family arrived
by train in Carstairs, April 1905. Mother expecting me, her
10th child (3 had previously died). Her eldest daughter,
Vina and her husband, August Nettnay were with them.
They remained in Carstairs until a house could be built on
the homestead. I (Elsie) was born in Carstairs in May 1905.
My sister, Vina's baby was born in Sept. of that same year
but it died and was buried on the homestead. Minnie was
born in Alberta in 1907,

Times were hard and the family had to help with the
work., My Mother never learned to read or write English,
Dad d read English but only learned to sign his name.
We milked cows but never had a separator. We used milk
pans, like a low dishpan, poured the milk in, let it set and
skimmed off the cream, and churned it by hand. The butter
was placed in a butter mold, wrapped-in butter paper and
kept in a special section of the root cellar. Extra butter
was sold for 15* per 1b. Dad 5&} up at 5 a.m. some mornings
to drive to Didsbury to sell butter before the heat of the
day. Mother baked 23 loaves of bread a week. All the
vegetables from the garden were kept in the root house.
The meat was raised on the Iarm.g:; beef and chickens,
We did our own butchering, and o had deer meat, tan-

ned the hides ana maae vests. The clothes were sewn at
home, These were mainly for the women and chiidren. To
buy material for the men was just as expensive as if you
were to buy the clothes. We had no patterns, we just looked
in a catalogue or magazine and found a dress we liked,
bought the material, and tried to copy it out of the book. In
the winter we had only one pair of shoes and none in the
summer. The mitts were hand made and some of them had
sheep’s wool inside of them. The bed sheets and underwear
were made from flour sacks. Tea towels and pi cases
were from sugar bags. Quilts were made from the material
left after a dress or other clothing had been cut. This was
patchwork for the top, the middle was stuffed with carded
sheep wool or cotton batting and the back of the quilt was
flour bags. The sewing was done by hand. Thread was ex-
pensive and hand sewing used less thread. Mother's
dresses were worn just above the ankle and all had long
sleeves, which she rolled up while working.

Big Prairie School was built in 1911 and I started school
with my older brothers and sisters. My first teacher was
Mr, Jarvis in Garde 1. Then Mr. Reid, Mr. Turner, Miss
Greenwood, Miss Spicer, and Miss Pear! Bunker, who
stayed fo a short time at our house until she got a place of
her own. Grade 8 was the highest grade taught. I was first
baptized at 6 yrs. old by a travelling preacher who went
from farm to farm, often a birth was not registered and
this certificate often served both purposes. We went to
church at Big Prairie School with horse and buggy. Some
of our neighbours were Cashmans, Albert Stauffers, Bob
Brackens, Snowdens, and Wilkinsons.

The Depression was a hard time for everyone. A
working man in a saw mill would earn about $30.00 per
month, The lumber was sold for $15.00 per 1,000 board ft., it
would then be hauled eight or 10 miles to the store and the
money that you got was all spent on groceries. A man who
was working as a hired hand on a farm would get about
$20.00 ier month plus his room and board. If the man was
single he would buy clothes or whatever he needed. If the
man was married both he and his wife would work on the
farm. The man out in the field and the wife helped in the
house. Quite often the girls would work as a housemaid for
about $20.00 per month, plus room and board. Tran-

tation was team and buggy or a democrat, or walking.

e people who were unemployed and had nothing to do all
day to rass the time would drop in or go to town. The auc-
tion sales made up a popular form of entertainment, few
geo le came to buy, but came to be amused and pass time.
00l rooms and brokerage offices were all crowded
throughout the ion, seldom did they get customers.
The brokerage offices supplied free newspapers and the
pool rooms had the recreation plus heat. The unemployed
came in such numbers that the glayers often complained to
the manaier in order to get e room to play I. The
ones that lived in walking distance of the city police court
never missed the morning show in the court. Sex crimes
and murder trials naturally got the biggest crowds. The
library, a special home for the homeless and aging, single,
unemployed, some of them spent eight hours a day, six
days a week in its' warm friendly quietness. Some would
read, just sit and look at books magazines until they
fell asleep. The librarians frowned on sleepers and would
occasionally clear them out of the reading room. People on
the farms listened to the crystal radio with earphones, with
this only one person could listen at a time.

In the summer the main sport was baseball. In the win-
ter there would be dances at the shool house. The price for
getting in the dance would be, the men pay 33° and the
women would take something for lunch. The music was
from local talent,

1 married Percy Bouck in March 1925, He died in 1943
and I married Albrt Wright in 1946. We live in Marysville,
B.C. and I have one daughter, Olive, and 3 grandchildren.

Adolph Bahm died October 22, 1937 at age 74 vears,

Augusta Bahm died January 28, 1934 at age 70. Both
are buried in the Big Prairie Cemetery,



Back row: August Netinay, Leo, Fred. Adolph Bahm, lvan Isom, Louise [som
holding Alva, Bessle, Alex. Augusta holding Minnse. Beatrice, Viva Netinay
holding Mahle. Elsse in front. 1912

The children of Adolph and Augusta Bahm:

Augusta Vinna - born July 2, 1885 - married August
Nettnay. (story under Nettnay),

Louis - born April 11, 1887 - died at 2 years of age,

Edward - born 1888
> sOscar Edward - born July 22, 1888, moved back to

SA.

Louise Marie - born July 21, 1891 . She married Ivan
Isom and they moved to the Isom homestead. They had 4
chiidren, Alva, Cecil, Lucille (died), Eunice and Louis. He
became discouraged on the farm and took his family to the
U.S.A. in 1916, Louise died in Centralis, Wash. Sept. 20, 1918
%aiving birth to their fifth child. The baby lived and was

ter adopted out. Ivan returned to the Bahms' in 1918,
myadsf%r a few years and then took the children again to

Leo William - born Oct. 1893 - died Aug. 4, 1918 at Vimy
Ridge, in France in World War 1.

rederick Albert - born April 10, 1896 - died Jan. 2, 1962
in the U.S.A.

Infant Bahm - died Dec. 8, 1897.

Alexander Benjamin - born Jan. 29, 1899 - died Nov. 29,
1927 at age 28 years, Buried in the Big Prairie Cemetery,

Edna - died as a baby.

Bessie Irene - born Sept. 28, 1902 - married Henry Hunt
of the Big Prairie district. He died Oct. 12, 1938. Buried at
the Big Prairie Cemetery. had 6 children; Frances,
Emily, Irene, Jean, James and Robert. James died at 12

Years of age in 1938. Bessie married Alfred Petrie and now
ives in Calgary.

Elsie Beatrice - born May 30, 1905 in Carstairs. (story
previous),

Minnie Marie - born Nov. 4, 1907 - married Earl Smith
in 1944 - she lives in B.C.

Left to right: Elsie Bshm, Grandma Bahm, Grandpa Bahm, Minnie Bahm,
(top of face snd head), Corner of Walter Neltnay's head, Bessie Nettnay
(face), Gordon Coleman, Henry Hunt with white shirt showing, Bessie Hunt
holding Jean Hunt, Standing: Jimmy Hunt, Emily and Francis Hunt, 1930

Augusta and Adolph Bahm 1928

THE GEORGE BALES FAMILY

By Edna Edwards

George and Ruby Bales were married on Feb. 9, of
1927, and lived in the Madden area until moving to the
Cremona district in the spring of 1932. George and Ruby
bought their first one half section of land in the Cremona
area with only 60 acres broke on it, with an old shack to
live in, and there was a well. So that first year George star-
ted to break land, and by that fall he broke 112 acres with
horses. He also broke a lot of land for other pioneers with
his horses, He used all the trees for fire wood.

He built a straw shed to milk his cows in. They
threshed straw over top, and that made it very warm, but
in the fall of 1935 his straw shed burnt to the ground, also
loosing 36 loads of bundles, so they had to build a barn that
same year, which is still standing.

Then in 1438 they decided to build their house, and later
built 2 log sheds and a chicken house.

The first house they built in 1938,



Goorge threshed his orops

Ruby raised a lot of chickens, turkeys, geese, ete, and
they grew large g . They planted a beautiful tree
shelter around the buildings. George raised a lot of horses
and cattle. The couple raised 9 children; 5 boys, Kenneth,
George Jr., Douglas, Jim, Robert and 4 girls - Bendena
{Eilliott), Kathleen (Christensen}, Edna (Edwards), and
Mary (McMillan).

George had always threshed his grain, excepting one
last year it was combined, They milked cows on their farm
until 1969, then retired into the town of Carstairs in the
spring of 1972, They celebrated their 50th Anniversary,

eb. 9, 1977, and are still enjoying their refirement, A
salute to our hard working pioneers!

They raised a set of twins born in 1960, Jim and Edna.

Celebrated their 3th Anniversary. Feb, 4, 1977,

They ratsed 9 children_ Lef to right - Gearge Jr., Bob, Edna, Mary, Ken, Doug,
Jim, Front Row: Kathleen, Mt. and Mew, Bales and Bondena.

JACK BARDGETT SR.

Jack Bardgett Sr. was born at Canmore, Alta. June
8th, 18%. From Canmore his family moved to Invermere,
B.C. then down to Ft. Steele. At that time the big paddle
wheel river boats were in use on the Kootenay River. After
six years they moved to Cranbrook and started the Cran-
brook Dairy. Jack worked for the dairy until 1915, peddling
milk. He got a bonus of 25¢ for each new customer. He
worked for a Transfer Company for a few years, drove a
team and filled box cars with coal, lumber etc.

In 1920 he married Elsie Taylor at her home near Did-
sbury. He worked for a blacksmith for a few years. Then at
the Sash and Door for fifteen years, Ten hour days at 25¢
per hour. They raised four children; Nelson, Mary, Joe,
Eldy. He made up his mind to go farming and decided to
move to Alberta, So in 1939 moved to Carstairs. From there
he looked at different places and found one he liked three
miles north of Cremona. In the spring of 1941 settled there.
They had to clear most of the land as only 35 acres were
broke at that time. In the late fifties Jack bought another

uarter of land from Charlie Bennett. His son, y t
it from him and Jack moved back to Cranbrook for a few
years. In 1972 he came back to the farm at Cremona,
where he lives in his own house and enjoys good health at
the age of 88.

JOE BARDGETT
By Janet Bardgett

Joe came to Alberta with his father in 1941 and has
lived on the farm 3 miles north of Cremona ever since, He
played hockey for over 10 years, Often he rode or walked to
town, helped clean the ice, then played hockey and walked
or rode home afterwards, In the 1940's Cremona was a
bustling town. Joe remembers that you had to get to town
early on Saturday night to find a place to tie your horse.
The stores were open Sat. night. Many of the farmers did
their weekly shopping Sat, night so it was very busy in C.C.
Holbrooks's store. Picture shows were shown in the com-
munity Hall. Afterwards the restaurants would be packed
to overflo . People had to wait in line to get served.

Joe and Cecil Papke rodeo'd together for several years.



Joe competed mostly in the saddle bronc event. They
helped build a rodeo arena on Bellamy’s land down by the
Little Red Deer River. The Cremona Rodeo was held there
from 1949 to 1951. Rain made the road impassable and the
river flooded and washed the road out at the bottom of the
hill. So the arena was moved up beside the main road - just
north of where Mac Bellamy lives now. One rodeo held
there was beseiged with rain. The arena was a sea of mud.
A ro lost his riding boot out in the arena and never
fo it. Joe brought their big team ‘‘Dan and Judy’’, and
g:lled many vehicles out to the gravel road, The last rodeo

Id there showed a grand profit of $8.38, enough for two
cases of beer.

In 1951 on the 9th. of March, Joe married Janet Borton
from Bottrel, south of Cremona. It was a frosty Friday -30
degrees below. The best man froze his ears. Their wedding
was in the Cremona United Church and the wedding dance
in the Community Hall. (27 years later the last section of
the Old Hall was moved out of town on the 9th of March).

Late in 1953 they bought 10 Brahma Cross bulls from
Harry Vold. The next vear the¥nslarted a life long career of
contracting stock fo rodeos. the beginning the horses
were trailed to the rodeos, often 40 miles or more in a day.
Joe Zettel was in partnership on the bucking horses. They
used horses from Joe Allen's herd and advertised as “The
Three Joes'. In order to get the rodeos and cowboys
organized into a circuit to facillitate moving the stock, they
supported the forming of a group called the Foothills
Cowboy Association. Janet was Sect. Treas, of the F.C.A.
from 1965-1972, and also with Cubs for 4 years.

In the years that followed, travelled the stock north to
Rocky Mountain House and Buck Lake, east to Rumsey,
Lousana to Carbon and Rockyford. To Jasper for 11 years,
and always to Dog Pound and Water Valley. Joe Zettel sold
his share to Ormond Coleman. One year a Trail-a-thon was
held from Rumsey to Carbon, a distance of 52 miles. A
dollar to guess the time it would take. The closest time win-
ning it all. That year the trip was made in eight hours and
thirty eight minutes. One year Joe arrived at Carstairs
with 67 head of horses, to find that when the entries closed
there were 67 entries in the bareback event plus another 30
in the saddle bronc event. Thats once when he was glad of
a deluge of rain. The rodeo was postponed, When it was
rescheduled there were less contestants. The most exciting
rodeo we ever put on was at Anchorage, Alaska, Evreerg'
performance was a complete sell out. The peopie cheered,
whistled and clapped each and every contesant. It seemed
to make the animals buck harder and the cowboys more
determined to ride, Meanwhile back at the ranch two even-
ts stand out. The Flood in 1964, In early summer & terrible
storm built up all day. The sky was black and surly until in
late afternoon, the kids just came home from school, it just
opened up and poured rain and hail for nearly 2 hours.
When it was over, the top soil was gone. There was a ditch
washed out across the field, that a man could stand in and
not be seen. The coulee, was changed to a canyon. The
milk cow didn‘'t come when we called her and we feared
that she had drowned. Next morning she was waiting at the
barn door to be milked,

In 1965 our farm was in the path of a tornado. Huge
trees were torn out by the roots and two buildings were
demolished. Mrs. Glen Bullied, her three children and five
of our children were in the house throughout the few
minutes it lasted. No one was hurt, despite the fact that the
windows were shattered and the glass was all over the
floors, The neighbors rallied and cleared the debris and
trees away the next morning. People came for weeks af-
terwards to see the damage.

All our children have attended school at Cremona to
grade twelve, Five have graduated. Kathy, has her
Bachelor of Education degree, taught phys. ed at Didsbury
for two years. She married Dan Corr. Jack is an Electronic
Technician. Works for Sunbeam Co. in Calgary. He's
married and has one daughter, Amy Lee. Bonnie is a
working girl, rides racehorses for Bob Romney part time.
Joey & Nelson are going ranching in northern B.C. by the

Peace River. Janet has just finished school ana will
probably go ranching too. David - 14 yrs. still going to
school and is a great hockey enthusiast,

THE BARLOW FAMILY
By Kate Barlow

We sold our farm at Red Deer Lake and moved to
Cremona in June 1857, where we and our four children;
Richard (8), David (7), Evelyn (4), and Brian (i3 months)
lived for 12 months with Betty's sister and her husband,
Joan and Ear] Nielsen.

Qur family then moved to the house in which Oliver
and Esther McKay are living now. During this time Jack
was employed by Clarence Reid as a farm hand.

We took residence on the farm we had bought in May
from Ed Smith on a chilly Nov. 1st. (10 degrees F'.). While
living on the farm Jack worked driving his brother-in-
law's, Doug Munn's truck as well as helping with con-
struction of the Dog Pound bridge on the Cremona-
Carstairs road, and worked out for the local farmers.

The only conveniences we had then was the telephone
(the crank style). The electricity was installed Dec. 1959,
we did without running water until selling the farm to Tom
Standish. Moving back to Cremona as ieters of the
Cremona Corner Service in May 1972. We sold the Service
Station in Sept. 1975 to Wayne and Arlene Black.

We are presently living in the Mt. View Trailer Park,
for the g:t 61 years. Jack is now the maintenance man
for the Cremona Pioneer Apts, as well he continues being a
farm hand for local farmers from spring-fall.

Betty was news correspondent for the local papers
from 1967-76. She was also a Director of the Cremona Com-
munity Hall for the year of 1971. Volunteered as a teachers-
aid for grade 3 reading the winter of 1976. She is at present
the secretary of the Cremona Ladies Auxillary to the Royal
Canadian Legion and has held this position for the past
three years.

Laft to right: Kate, Brian, David, Evelyn, Jack and Betty

Our fifth child, Kathleen (Kate) was born on a bliz-
zardy day in mid-Jan,, 1959, Our children attended
Cremona High School.

Richard was a cub & scout of Cremona and attended
school there from grades 2-12, at 18 yrs. he graduated in
1967. He lost his life bgegrowning on July 30, of the same
year in the Little Red r River at Water Valley trying to
save his sister Evelyn . The family received a silver medal
on Jan, 6, 1969, The Life of Alberta Award for his bravery.

David was a member of the cub pack in Cremona and
attended school from grade 1-10. After furthering his
education in Calgary, he is now employed in the city as a



Heavy Duty Mechanic. In June 1971, he married a Calgary
girl, Candace Grey and has two children Jeramy - seven
vears old and Heather - 5 years old.

Evelyn was a member of the Explorers and attended
school here from grade 1-11, not being satisfied with cer-
lzin courses, attended and graduated from a school in
Caigary in 1971 In July, two weeks after Donids' wedding
she married a local boy, Allan Myram - she has two
children, Andrew is three and Tony is two years.

Brian attended school in Cremona also, grades 1-8, Is
now employed as a Driller on an oil rig.

Kate attended school from grades 1-12, graduating in
1977 She lived in Calgary for one year and was employed
by A.G.T. as a Long Distance Operator. Now is home and
employed by the Cremona Holel.

MR. AND MRS. BATCHELOR

They moved to Water Valley in the summer of 1949, They
bought a farm from Ed & Sam Quinn. This is present
location of Fenn Farms.

Batchelors lived on this farm for one year, Then sold it
to Paul Kish, After selling the farm they bought seven
acres in the hamlet of Water Valley. This acreage was pur-
chased from a man by the name of G. Gazelly

For a man with a handicap of only one arm Mr. Bat-
chelor was very active. He road his horse every day rain or
shine. He taught a lot of local children to swim at the only
swimming pool we had, the Little Red Deer River north of
Water Valley. Mr. Batchelor ran for counselior once but
was defeated.

Mr. Batchelor passed away at their home in Water
Valley in 1966. Mrs. Batc¢helor sold their place and moved
to Salmon Arm, B.C. with her daughter (as near as we
know she still lives here).

This place has had several owners since Batchelors, it
was first sold to Don and Norma Brown then to Bill and
Gertie Johnson. Johnsons sold this place to CHIf and
Dorothy Gillispie.

WALTER AND RUTH BELLAMY

Walter and Ruth Bellamy came to the Cremona district
in 1931 from the Westcott community, with their family of 5
boys and one girl, to a farm 2% miles north of Cremona,
where he farmed until his death in 1943, He drove the first
school bus, from the Westcoll road to Cremona in 1840, Jim
Camerons' residence is now where he used to ride on horse
back to the council meetings, which he served as councillor
for a number of years, when most of the rcad work was
done with horses.

Walter served on the Elmwood School committee for
several years, Their family consisted of;
Norman - married Mary - had 8 girls and 1 boy - they were
both killed in a car accident in 1967.
Delbert - married Dorothy - had 3 children - both were
killed in a car accident in 1965.
Lloyd - married Olive - had 4 children - lives in Kelowna,

B.C

Avis - deceased in 1963

Harold - married Vi Coleman - 3 boys, Ken, Mac, Rex.
Ralph and Gary were raised by Harold and Vi after
Delbert and Dorothy were killed.

Mac - married Judy Sabin - they have 2 sons, Brian & Jef-
fery.

Harold and Vi farm north of Cremona

Jack - married Carol Ray - have 3 children, Colleen, Dale
and Scott.

Avis (daughter of Delbert and Dorothy) was raised by Jack

and Carol.
Ruth Bellamy died in 1966.

The Bellamy bays st the time of their folks 50th Wedding Anmiversary, John.
William, Walter Clifton, Pierce, Jay

THE BENNETT FAMILY
By Wilfred Blain

Coming to this country in the early 1920's to live on the
east hall of S-'2-334-3-, now owned by Allan Hahn. Their
family was Edith, Ben, George, Katie, Alice (Burnett),
Janice, Lawrence and Florence.

George and his wife Gladys, and two sons lived where
Bill Borton now lives.

Ben, Gertie and daughter Dorothy, lived where Barry
Thomson resides. Dorothy, marrying Slim Moorehouse and
living on the Little Red, two miles west of Cremona. Their
daughter Joan, was born there.

Many a fond memory we have of this wonderful family,
the skating parties, the big dinners with always room for
an extra plate if an unexpected friend or stranger stopped
by, and that big old house, always full of laughter, dances
and a sing song round the old piano with either Alice or
Lawrence skillfully doing the playing .

Many regrets we had when they decided to move back
to Washington, but they left behind many fond memories.

Mr. and Mrs. Beanett



MR. AND MRS. IRA BERGESON
By Belinda Renfert 1063

Mr. and Mrs. Ira Bergeson who recently celebrated
their 60th Wedding Anniversary on Sept. 23, 1963 are old
timers of the Cremona district. They have been in quite a
few places since they were married in 1%03 in Salt Lake
City. Mr. Bergeson, one of 14 children, two girls and 12
boys, is the youngest. He was born in Lewiston, Utah in
1885. March 3. Mrs. Bergeson, one of ten children was born
in Coveville, Utah in 1884 on March 20th.

They moved from U.,S.A. to Blackie, Alberta in 1914
with five children. It was pretty tough going as wagons
were poor. Mr. Bergeson received only $30.00 a month and
fed his family and himself for this. Mrs. Bergeson cooked
and fed six or seven men for 25¢ a meal on the big ranch
where they lived, She also helped in the field at haying
ime and did the cooking chores besides. Her oldest
daughter, did what she could to helr and looked after the
smaller children. They stayed at Blackie until 1918 when
they moved to the Airdrie district where they farmed. They
made several moves after that and finally came to
Cremona in 1937 and started 4 lumber mill. They moved to
town in 1954 where they celebrated their Golden Wedding
Anniversary ten years ago. A number of their old friends
have passed away in these last few years, Mr. and Mrs.
Bergeson are still in very good health and still continue to
do their own work. Their children are scattered around in
numerous places. Four children live in Alberta and the
remaining five live in the U.S.A. Seven of their nine
children were home to be with them on their 60th An-
niversary. Ninety-seven attended a banquet held in the
United Church Hall (friends, relatives, family). A purse
was presented to them by Mr. Reid and Mr. Matt. I'Fewm
proposed a toast to the %rand old couple. As well as
receiving many cards, a telegram was received from Her
Majesty the Queen. Plaques from Premier Manning, Prime
Minister L.B. Pearson, and L{. Governor Percy Page were
greatly appreciated by the couple. A bouguet of beautiful
flowers was received from the grade six Remembrance
Club. This bouquet graced the banquet table. Following the
banquet a dance was held in the Community Hall, which
many of the neighbors attended. Garry Brown presented
them with a purse and Mr. Bergeson then expressed his
thanks to all. Their son and two daughters who attended
the occasion left the following Saturday for their respective
home in the U.S.A. Mr. and Mrs. Bereeson would like to
thank all the wonderful people for their help in making this
big day ible. Thanks also to Molly Thurnbull for the
beautifully decorated cake. A special thank you is extended
to the United Church for the use of the Church Hall. It is
hoped that in another ten years they will be able to
celebrate another anniversary together.

FANNIE AND IRA BERGESON
By The Calgary Herald (1973)

Seventy years ago Sunday, Sept. 23, Fannie Atkinson
married Ira Bergeson in Logan, Utah. That's a long time,
of course, but Mrs. Bergeson says, in this da'i when
marriage break-up seems almost the rule rather an the
exception, she feels “just fine” about spending a biblical
life span with one man. And Mr. Bergeson, despnte failing
health, eagerly quips, “If I had a mouth organ I'd play you
a tune”, The couple, residents of Bow Valley Nursing
Home, will be fi Sunday with an open house from 3 to 6
p.m. at the home of their son, Ken Ber&eson 8340 47th Ave,
N.W. The open house will follow & fam dmnet

“I'm just pleased to have lived th  long”’, says Mrs.
Bergeson, who was 89 last March. “He just worked, and 1
ran the home”’, she said, looking at her husband, who is 88.

“We lived pretty good,” Mr. Bergeson recalls, ‘‘until

10

the hun%l;.y '30's and then we damned near starved to
death.” They farmed in many locations in Utah, Idaho and
Wyoming, until they came to Alberta in 1914, They lived in
Blackie, Airdrie, and Sundre, and Cremona raising sheep.
They also raised 10 children, and now have 29 grand-
children, 32 great grandchildren, and 9 great-great grand-
children. “I did most everything,” Mr, Bergeson said.
“Worked on boilers, the railroad, broke horses and raised
sheep on the desert of I-dee-ho. We didn't ship 'em in them
days. We trailed 'em 400 miles.”” Their income was usually
modest. “I used to hang the washing on the barbed-wire
Mrs Bergeson
will be one of

fence 'cause I didn’t have a clothesline,”
said. But no matter the hard times, Sunday
the happy times for Ira and Fannie Bergeson.

The Bergesons had 10 children:
Verda - married Jack Briggs and lives in Calgary. They
have 2 girls and 1 boy,
Kenneth - lived at the Carter place. (now Lynn Reids), then
later moved to the now Harold Bellamy place. They now
live in Calgary and have 1 girl and 2 boys.
Lawrence - lives in the Mountain View Trailer Court, has 6
children, (story under Lawrence Bergeson)
Alice - was married in Canada, now lives in Wisconsin
Glen - (deceased), died at 4 years at Blackie, Alta,
Mary - is married and lives in Wisconsin
Belinda - married Bob Renfert, had 3 boys. Died at age 53
years al Hoadley, Alta. in July, 1974,
George - born in Airdrie, Alta. lives in Connecticut, U.S.A.
Ada - (Mrs. Page) lives in US.A,
Della - (Mrs. Cole), lives in Chicago.
* Mr. Ira Bergeson passed away Feb, 8, 1974 at age 89,
* Mrs. Bergeson passed away Jan. 23, 1979, aged 93 years,
at The Bethany Care Centre, Caigary.

LAWRENCE AND JEAN BERGESON

Told By Lawrence and Jean Bergeson

Lawrence Bergeson first came to the Blackie and Air-
drie area with his parents and the rest of the family. There
were 10 children, 3 of which were born later in Alberta.

Jean Stevenson was born in Scotland and came on the
boat to Canada, with her parents and family, when she was
13 years old. The boat left Scotland June 24, 1924, They
came to the Vermillion area and later to Airdrie where she
met Lawrence. They were married in April, 1929 in
Calgary, The Bergesons lived at McKinnon Cattle Co. at
Airdrie for 1 winter, then Lawrence worked on the Calgary
Glenmore Dam for 2 years. They built a house in Windsor
Park, which they later sold for $500.00. This included 3 lots.
The Government about this time offered settlers $600.00 to
buy equipment, which consisted of 1 plow, 1 cow, 3 head of
horses and harness, and a Bennett wagon. You picked out
your own land and the Gov't. paid $10.00 per month per



family. The Bergesons had 5
The $600.00 had to be paid
worked for $1.00 day at a lumber camp. In 1837 he
hauled cream to Sundre Creamery and wood for $2.00
per cord to Sundre. They were living west of Sundre at that
time and this was sometimes a two or three day trip,
sta);i;?g overnight at Jeans Father's place. Jean's dad died
in 1937,

In 1938 Jean's brother Steve, and Lawrence had con-
tracts for digging basements and putting sub floors in new
houses, In 1940 they moved to the Big Prairie district - cut-
ting logs and Lawrence operated his own saw mill. In 1943
he bought land from the C.N.E. (now Don Boucks), and
had his saw mill there, and had a few cows. They were
here until 1952 when they came to Cremona and opened a
cafe called “Bergy's Eats"”, Many Cremona people remem-
ber the delicious meals and the crowds that ﬁ red here,
vigiting and eating and waiting for the Sa y night show
to finish. This cafe was open until 1956 when Lawrence sold
and went pipe lining for 6 years. he also drove the school
bus for two years. In 1960 he bought 12 acres on the west
side of the town, (from Jim Whitlow) and made a trailer
court, which he named “The Mountview Trailer Park".
They operated this until 1974, then sold it to their son,
Robert, and retired. Lawrence and Jean still make their
home in the trailer court.

e to share their $10.00.
ck. To do this Lawrence

Lawrence Bergeson sawmill

Lawrence Bergeson drove a chuckwagon in the
Calgary Stampede in the yrs, 1926, 1927, 1928 and 1932, He
was 17 years old when he first drove, The outfit was called
the “‘Bergeson Airdrie Chuckwagon''. The horses he used
were the same horses that he had put the crop in with, then
practiced around the barrels for a few weeks and off to
the stampede. He held the record for 1 year - 1928 with &
time of 1:15 flat. Jim Ross took it the next year. Lawrence
- the driver, Outriders; Ken Bergeson, Wilf Carter, Hank
and Bill Bolander. The first year one of the outriders was
Percy Lund. Wilf Carter spent a great deal of time at Ken's
during the early years, down to New York to make records,
then back to Ken's and did some rodeo work.

Jean Bergeson worked for 17 years for Mrs. Water-
street in her dry goods store. Betty worked at the Credit
Union for 13 years.

Leonard entered a talent contest on C.F.C.N. radio in
the 40's. he played the guitar and sang western songs. The
winner was decided by votes sent in by listeners and
Leonard won, His prize was 6 weeks, (of 30 min.) each
Saturday morning on radio to sing and play guitar. His
mother still has his “Fan Mail".

Lawrence and Jean Bergeson had & children;

Betty - married Norman itlow, a truck driver and lived
3 miles south of Cremona, They had 3 children; Judy -
married - lives at Grand Prairie. Fred lives in Calgary,
Joan lives in Grande Cache,

Leonard - married Marie and farms 5 miles north - east of
Cremona (old Davies place). He is also a welder. They
have l2 children, Vivian and Sheldon attending Cremona
schy

oo
Lester - married Lois Parkhurst - they farm 5 miles north-

"

west of Cremona (old Cummings place). They have 3
children; Bernard - married Donna Rodgers, have 2 girls;
Lloyd married Bev. Johnston, have 2 children; Lorraine
lives in Calgary.

Robert - married Bev Sutherland, own the trailer park in
Cremona, have 4 children. Jeanne - married Tom Umback,
live in Calgary; have 1 child; Larry - deceased, 1975:
Kathy - married Lyle Jacobs, have 2 boys; Shelly - attends
Cremona school

Clifford - deceased, 1956,

Jim - married Myrnie Reid - farm north-east of Cremona
(old Don Dunphy place), have 3 children, Jimmy, Debbie,
Stephen, all attending Cremona School.

R ¥ []

THE BILLO FAMILY

I, Eugene Butler have been asked to write the story of
my folks', the Billo’s in the Cremona district. Eugene and
Leontine Billo with their two children, Robert & Marguerite
came to the Cremona district from Crossfield in 1938,
having purchased one of the Reid places, this was situated
beside the Little Red Deer River and they farmed there
several {Jears. They milked several cows and shipped
cream which was picked up each week, and went into the

try business keeping around 1000 leghorn hens. This

ept them very busy as all their work was done by hand.
Marguerite att school at Atkins for the lower grades
but went to Crossfield to get her school, where she
graduated and became a teacher and taught in the Turner
Valley area - where she married Howard Robinson and
where they still live,

The Billo’s had five other children - Loreis went to St.
Paul and married a girl there. Eugenie married George
Butler of Bottrel, Antoinette married Leonard Dussault of
Carstairs, Germain married Jim Butler of California and
Delphine, a nurse, married Harvey Jinks of Oklahoma, The
Billo's didn't have much time to socialize bul attended the
Catholic Church at Water Valley. They sold the farm and



retired to Clagary in 1950 where they enjoyed their
retirement for several years before moving to St. Paul,
where they lived for a few years until their demise in 1969,
Robert ﬁredecmed them in 1952 at an early age, having
been sick with asthma all his life.

DICK BIRD

I was born in the year 1885 on August 16. My parents
being John Bird born 1850 at Ardleigh Nr. Colchester
Essex, and my Mother Elizabeth Perry of Bardfield,
Essex. At the age of 12 yrs. 1897 after Queen Victoria's
Diamond Jubilee T left Lexden Village school and attended
Culver Street, Colchester, High School, at age 14. In 1901-02
there appeared in the English newspapers advertising of
Homestead Farms and Ranches in Western Canda and also
resettlement in Australia, New Zealand and also Argentina.
At this point both brothers Herb and Percy had returned
home so all four of us Bird sons were helping Dad, and
being a Farm Laborer in land did not look so good to
me by the spring of 1902 1 had decided to try Western
Canada, My mrents were very upset but though they could
prevent me, being underage from leaving home I should go
as soon as the time arrived so they consented, We both had
enough money to pay our passage etc. to North West
Territories Canads. We sailed from Liverpool April 1902.
There was one death and two births during the ;?age. We
arrived in Halifax in 10 or 11 days and had a good trip. We
took the train from there to Calgary.

My brother Percy and I arrived in Calgary, NW.T.
early in May 1902. The second annual bull sale was being
held at that time and we brothers, having being born and
raised on a farm were quite excited to see the ranchers and
cowboys around the grounds at Victoria Park, We were
looking for jobs to work on a farm or ranch to gain ex-
periences. We could take up homesteads for ourselves later
on. After a few days we separated, as it did not look very
favourable thal we should be able to get a job and be
together.

Percy had just left in the morning, when an elderly man
came looking for a man to go out to a ranch on the Hi

River. He was in & great hurry as he had to catch the train
south to DeWinton | left my name and address for Percy,
grabbed my bag and left too. Percy and 1 lost track of each
other for several months but that fall he came and worked
at the next ranch below me on the High River. In 1903, we
decided to look for a place of our own. I had bought a few
horses and a wagon and a camp outfit at the town of High
River. I rode my horse to Calgary to file on a location on
the Big Spring south of the Blackfoot Indian Reservation,
and west of the Buffalo Hills, but it was already taken up,

That night the Cal%ary Hotels were jammed with set-
tlers from the U.S.A. looking for land and a group from
Wisconsin were making a deal with an elderly man named
Mr, Hamilton, who was Post Master at Harmatten, located
on the Dog Pound River, SW. of Olds. He claimed that
there was a big area of open land between the Little Red
and the Fallen Timber Rivers. He had a team and wagon
at the livery barn in Olds, so we took the morning train to
Olds and then drove out to Harmattan and stayed there for
the night and left next morning, going S.W. toward the Lit-
tle Red and crossed at a ranch of Mr. Bob Brown, then
followed on a logging trail. The land did not look very good,
had been badly t and mostly chicken-berries and very
stony. We camped that night and the land at this spol was
much better, Early next morning one of the Wisconsin fold
had gotten up at daybreak and taken his fishing outfit and
was back in time for breakfast with a mess of trout. he
said that we appeared to be about two miles from the river
and the land was very much better between the camp and
the river, We hooked up the horses and drove towards the
river and the land was very much better. We arrived at a
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verdy nice flat with hay on it by the river that Mr. Hamilton
had spoken of. However, there was a log cabin built on i,
butl it appeared to be inhabited. Mr. Hamilton then said
that the James and Otterbine Lumber Mill's hands had
said a man had squatted on the flat after finding that the
land was not yet surveyed. He had abanded the flat and
had taken a homestead east of Harry Atkins place and that
his name was Howell. | returned to Davisburg and got my
team and saddle horse. After bt:zing supplies in Calgary, 1
followed the Edmonton trail north, When east of Didsbury 1
turned west on the trail which crossed the Dog Pound at
the bridge which is now Westcott. From there | was
following the trail to Harry Atkins ranch. I came to & cor-
ner with a new fence, A man was plowing with a walking
plow, breaking the sod. It was Mr. Benson from Dakota,
U.S,A. who had a homestead - the quarter section which
had been Mrs, Jessie Bohannon's for many years since. He
was plowing on the quarter west of this land, now belongs
te George Mcleavy. I arrived at Harry Atkins place that
night and stayed with them. Harry had lost his wife, and he
had brought his aunt from England to keep house and care
for his two small children, Marjory and little Harry. The
next momin&.;ve were just leaving on our saddle horses to
go down to Red Deer River flat when a neighbor rode
in, and it proved to be Joe Howell, so 1 bought his cabin
and he threw in'a'small stack of hay thal was left there,

I moved down and cut poles and fenced a small pasture
for the horses and made a survey of the amount of hay 1
could put up for winter feed. Mr. Atkins told me where the
Post Office was located and on which day the mail came
out from Cochrane. If I came up to his place we could ride
down together. The name was Bradborne, and it was
located at the old Smith Ranch on the Dog Pound. A man
named Mr, Firstbrook from Toronto had bought the Ranch
from Mrs. Smith. She had married Charlie Brown and
moved to his home 3 miles north of Percy's today. First
brook sold out to DeVe-Enns, two lgoung frenchmen, the
next vear and the following year the Post Office was moved
up Creek to Corny Grain and Thompson. All these places
were later included in the Virginia Ranch and are now
owned by Satchwelis. I went back and rounded up my extra
horses on the Gladys Ridge and Percy drove the wagon.
We came through Calgary and up the Simons Valley trail,
through the C.P.R. Ranch, Dan McNeil manager and
before reaching it, were caught in one of the heaviest
cloudbursts | have ever since known. When we reached Mr.
Atkins place, he said he doubted if we could ford the Little
Red due to the heavy rain, Percy and Mr. Atkins went to
Didsbury the next morning and Percy bought a mower,
rake, and necessary supplies, We helped Mr. Atkins for a
few days until it was safe to ford the river and then moved
down and mowed a small flat on the east side of the river
before fording it. The next thing we did was to go down to
James & Otterbines Saw Mill and buy lumber to build a
hayrack. I mowed, and Percy built the rack. We had nice
weather and put up all the hay possible, then cut poles and
fenced the hay stacks. We built a log stable, and a corral to
wean calves and then we returned to Davisburg and {railed
up about 50 head of cattle that we had bought east of
DeWinton, Percy helped me wean the calves. Then he
made @& trip and bought butter from the Foat family.
enough to Jast me until spring. We also had a quarter of
beef from Dan McNeil, and then he left to work at the
same ranch at Davisburg for the winter, 1 had quite an
uneventful winter. It did not prove as lonely as it might
have been. A coal mine had been opened up on the Little
Red and sleighs were coming by going ;Jlﬁ all winter. Foats
and Dick Huber cut logs on the cut-bank opposite the flat
that winter & James and Otterbines log drive, drove them
down with their own next spring. The Huber and Foat
buildings are still standing that were built with that lum-
ber. | had trouble with the river freezing solid at the west
end of the flat in March. The river heaved and broke the
ice loose with a flood and I lost a cow that slipped and
spread on the ice and when spring came I lost several cows
with poison weed. I knew then that we should have bought



local cattle,

The surveyers came along early in May and started to
survey the land for homesteads. One morning they started
to dig the four pits and make a mound between the cabin
and the stable. The surveyor came over and told me that in
all his experience he had never had a survey that had hurt
a squatter so badly. He said, “Young fellow. your buildings
& hay flat are not only in four different quarters, but in
four sections and four townships™. Today this is known as
Bob Reid’s flat. When Percy came up from the south, we
gathered our stock and moved them over to the Charles
Maxon place & Percy gave his cattle to Mr., Maxon on
shares and then returned south to work. I stayed with the
Maxons and helped him put up hay on the open range
around. Mr. Maxon only had a small pasture for a horse
pasture, He milked a few of our cows and shut the calves
up and let the cows come back and suckle them after he
took part of the milk. Mr. Sherman who had come from the
U.S. with the Maxons took up the quarter west of Maxon &
Martin Colwell had taken the quarter south of Shermans.
the quarter south of Maxons had been homesteaded by a
friend of Maxon from Spokane, and when we were about
half done haying Maxon received a letter from a Spokane
friend saying that his family had persuaded him not to
come up to Alberta and that he was going to cancel his en-
try. So I put in claim on it for a homestead and in due time
1 received a notice from Ottawa saying that upon the can-
cellation of the Spokane party's entry I would have 30 da
to file my claim. After we finished haying I left for
south and looked up Percy and asked him whether he
would like to take over the option on the north homestead
as 1 would rather take up horse ranching and I was able to
get back a job working for the E-Ranch.

So Percy took up the homestead where he still lives. 1
stayed with the D. Thorburn Ranch and ran my own bunch
of horses with theirs, I had decided to go back to England
the fall of 1909 and stay the winter as T had not seen my
family since the spring of 1902. I intended (o drive my hor-
se and buggy :J) to Percy's and leave them there until
spring. I arrived at Percy’s before dinner. That night he
took me up to the new Cremona Store. He had started to
call on Mrs. Jackson who kept the Post Office and store.
She had brought her half-sister from Worcester, Mass. in
Sept. that year to help her and keep her company after her
husbands death. This store was two miles east of new
Cremona of today. Lily had built up a good business and
she had living quarters in the back. It was supposed to be
located on Squire Jackson's quarter section but later it was
found to be squarely on the road allowance. There was a
bad coulee in the corner of Squire’s quarter, and the road
had been rerouted around it, and the proper fence line had
never been located. I left to return to"Canada in 1910. Percy
had set his weddincﬁnf’lor the 3rd August. I had been writing
to Violet Wood ing the summer and had become
engaged to her by the time I went to Percy’s and Lily’s

wedding.

Viofet and I were married July 5th, 1911, We had
bought all our furniture from Eatons and it was shipped to
Aldersyde and it being a 15 mile trip each way and baving
to take a wagon it was after dark when I arrived home. We
bought 2 dozen hens from Frank Ward a few days later
Bradshaws our nei rs a mile and a half east brought
us over a pair of plymouth rock hens and a nice Birkshire
sow pig. Also Mr. and Mrs. Wm. Jones gave us a splended
trio of Buff Oupingtons so we soon had eggs to sell, this
bunch of hens were sure wonderful layers. I bought a fine
young cow from Mr. Wark and I bought & big shorthorn
milk cow and calf and a yearling heifer from a family
staying at Jack Dixons. We had lots of milk and cream, but

it sure was bad to milk because of mosquitoes, we had to
smudge every night until the frost killed off. T worked
until dark fencing and working on the stable. 1 had forty
acres of summerfallow to plow and as I was short of work
horses and had to work mares with foals, it was a big job.
It rained so much the ¢ would not ripen. The Federal
Elections were bring { that fall, and we had to go to

Glenview school to vote. Election day was the 21st of Sep-
tember, The Liberals under Sir Wilfred Laurier, who had
been Premier ever since I had arrived in Canada had made
a deal with the U.S.A. government for reciprocity in trade
and most of the west was strong for this, but the Con-
servatives led by Robert Borden were against this and said
that a8 high tarriff was best and no truck or trade with the
Yankees, now the night of Sept. 1911 Alberta and all
western Canada had the worst and deepest snowstorm yet
known 16 to 17" of snow on the level and most of the grain
was still green and lodged flat, The Liberals like the crops
were really snowed under, for the east went solid Con-
servaltive.

I saw the first big parade with the Red River carts,
and the Mayor and all the big shots driving their fancy hor-
ses, and lots of Mexican ranchers and cowboys. Then the
stampede where Tom Three Persons from the Blood Indian
Reserve rode the great black outlaw horse that nobody had
ever been able to ride before. The next day he won the
finals against Clem Gardener by riding Cheyvenne Terror,
another horse that no one else had been able to ride until
then. The roping contests were with full grown Mexican
steers and none of our Canadian boys could keep them
down to hog-tie them but the old Mexican boys, Texas and
Oklahoma cowboys busted them (that is they threw them
as high and as hard as possible), and several steers had
their necks broken and some their horns broken off. They
never allowed big steer roping again.

1914 was the darndest winter as hundreds of pigs were
turned loose and droves of them wandered around all win-
ter. | saw lots of 130 to 140 pound pigs sell for as little as 75¢
per head, there was a terrible lot of hardship with unem-
gl’%ymem in the Western cities. There had been a great
l lsm ianr;eal estate t:nd pe?eplehhad been bll.gling b:ilding
ots on time payments. who were wea’ on August
16th, 1914 were broke a::;o&omands thrown ouz of work, a
month later. It is impossible for even my children to
realize that thousands of e, horses and dollars,
(millions) when unemg;oyed, ilding railroads and this all
stopped within thirty days after the European war started.
The price of farm products from 1929 to 1939 were ex-
tremely low, which were not so hard for folks who were out
of debt, and had no interest to pay on borrowed money. 1
had to pay 8'2% on over $5,000.00 for several years. We had
very light crops until 1932 and then we had a very big
}nheat crop but the wheat got frosted by an early heavy
rost.

We had 5 children. Charlie enlisted in the R.CAAF. in
the spring of 1941. Margaret and Ronnie were married in
August that summer. Edith had joined the C.W.A.C. soon
after Charlie had joined up. After she had taken basic
training in Calgary she was stationed in Edmonton. While
there she met an airman Charlie Garbett and they were
married in 1943. Art and Dorothy were married about the
same time. Marjorie and Cam were married in July of 1948

and Alice and rlie were married in August, so now all
our family were married,
Our Golden Wedding Anniversary was July 5th, 1961, It

was held at Marjorie’s and Cam'’s house in Calgary, For
the first time in many years the whole family were
together. We had a turkey dinner in the basement rumpus
room (all 28 of us). Then in the afternoon many of our
friends from Blackie dropped in. Then on the following Sun-
day we had open house for our friends and neighbours from
Cremona and Bearberry districts. We received many
lovely gifts and took lots of pictures on both days. We had
moved down to Charlie's place in the spring of 1952 into a
small house they had moved into their yard, and have
lived here ever since.

* Dick Bird passed away in his sleep Nov. 23, 1968,
* Violet Birzr::ssed away May 13, 1976,



LIONEL BIRD FAMILY

Master Farmers of 1966
The Didsbury Pioneer, Sept. 14, 1966.

The Lionel Bird family of the Carstairs-Cremona
district are deserving recipients of the Alberta Master
Farm Family Award in 1966, due to their close family ties,
their understanding and application of agricultural prin-
ciples, their neighborliness and interest in community and
National affairs.

The Bird farm program is very simple and very ef-
fective. Eight quarter sections of land are inciuded in the
rotation, each quarter section being treated as one field,
with five quarters in grain and three in grass legume mix-
ture. There has been no summer-fallow on this farm for
over ten years, but the clean heavy crops signify the ef-
fectiveness of the program and the high level of seed and
soil management. Commercial fertilizer is used heavily
and regularly on all land, while the barnyard manure is
used to improve problem areas. Recently cereal crops have
been limited to oats and barley, All of the trash, with ex-
ception of straw that is used for livestock, is worked back
into the soil.

The livestock program consists of the purchase of beef
calves in the autumn. They are wintered on hay prin-
cipality, but a small amount of grain is fed if the hay is
poor. The cattle are pastured the next year until autumn,
then fed heavily for 100 days before market. The seeded
pasture and much of the high quality hay is utilized by this
program which also takes advantage of the non-arable land
and the creek that run through the farm. About 150 two-
year-olds are marketed annually.

The Bird family are always searching for new in-
formation and methods of production. This is noticeable in
their complement of machinery, especially that which is
used for haying. A swather-crimper cuts and windrows the
hay for early baling. An automatic bale stacker is used for
stacking. About 350 tons are given shed storage and the
remainder is put up in the field. Hay is a very important
source of farn; income,

The farming program used by the Bird family has been
developed to operate in one of the most severe hail belts in
the Province. Cropph;? to coarse grains allows damaged
crops to high grain yields, provides a large feed reserve to
take care of disaster years.

Records have been kept on the Bird farm for many

ears. They give a complete picture of operations and have

n used mﬁaledly and extensively to indicate changes
that should made. Mr. and Mrs. Bird come from
Pioneer families in the Cremona area. Mr. Bird, Sr. who
homesteaded on the present farm in 1903, still has his own
home within the homestead. He is keenly interested in
current evenls, agriculture and people. He enjoys
discussing progress, the past, and is conversant on almost
any subject,

The Bird home almost shouts welcome to visitors. This
has been lor,xv% recognized by neighbors and the community
at large. Mr. and Mrs. Bird are leaders in many
organizations. Mr, Bird is tly the 4-H Club leader, a
member of the local School Board, Director of the Rural
Telephone Board, Secre of the Cremona Community
Chest, Chairman of the United Church Board of Stewards
and active in Little League Baseball. Mrs. Bird is
Secretary of the Cremona Home and School, a member of
the Cremona United Church Session and past Cub Leader.
She is also a member of the Jackson Women's Institute of
the United Church Women. The Bird children, Sylvia,
Grant and Lillian, have all been active in Yoqwnﬁol’eoples, 4
H Clubs, athletics and school affairs. Sylvia is 20, is a
Student Nurse at the Foothills Hospital in . Grant,
17, was a winner of the Centennial Student Exchange trip
to Oshawa. He is President of the Cremona High School
Student's Union, While he is interested in Agriculture, he
would like tc complete his education, preferably through
University, before assuming any major responsibilities,
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Lillian, 15, has just completed Grade 9 with high smndingé

A sixth member of the family is & Greek boy who has
been adopted by the Bird family under the Foster Parents
Plan. Anthony Nikoloudakis was welcomed Lo the family in
1960. He has never seen Canada, but corresponds with his
foster parents in English.

The Bird family, has over the years, been a strength
and influence in the community, They are leaders in
Agriculture, Innovators in practices, and an example of the
qualities that signify a true Master Farm Family.

REMINISCENCES OF PERCY BIRD
By Percy Bird

1 was born on August 20th, 1882 at Colchester, England
(which was in olden times the capital of England), - raised
on a farm with three brothers and two sisters, Have always
been fond of all outdoor sports; apprenticed for 4 years to
Carriage Building, but my heart was never in it, so at the
end of the 4 years went back to the farm.

My brother Dick, and I left England for Calgary, April
22, 1802. Dick was 16 years of age. and 1 was 19. We
arrived in Calgary in May. The weather was lovely for a
few days, and then & big snow storm. I remember the Bull
Sale was on, and my brother got a job to go south, and 1
met a man from onton and hired with him. It was a
slow tedious journey as we stopped at nearly every station
- Carstairs and Didsbury were ve'K small at that time. At
Edmonton, snow was waist deep, but the folks were very
kind to me. Work was $5.00 per month for 16 hours per day.
The Saskatchewan River was the highest every known and
the Strathcona was covered with water 2 and 3 feet deep.
Whilst at Edmonton, I saw the hottest day I have every
seen - 113 in the shade and everything was gaspinﬁl and
sweating. The agriculture show was on in July and all the
family went and left me at home. I got mad and quit and
went back to Calgary and got a job as a chore boy on the
Bow at $20.00 per month, We put up all the hay and I had
the chores morning and night, which meant 5 a.m. to about
5 p.m. Whilst there we hayed up on the Bench and one mor-
ning when we left, it was about 90 in the shade. Soon after
noon a cold wind blew in from the north and we had to
come home as we had no warm clothing with us, and
before 12 p.m. it was below zero and two inches of snow,
This was my birthday, Aug. 20th, quite different from
weather in England,

One of the other men in the crew and I quite that job
and we walked the ties to Calgary - never had such tired,
sore feet in all my life. We did not get a job right away, so
my friend and 1 bought a concession at the Calgary
Agricultural Show and Fairgrounds; $30.00 for 3 days, We
bought lumber nails, and tools required and built a 12 x 16
booth, overlapping the roof to keep the rain out and we
bought our supplies in Calgary, soft drinks, fruit, peanuts,
ice cream and lemonade, The latter 1 made with my
mother’s old English recipe. It poured with rain the first
two days, so only business was selling cigars and cigarei-
tes, but the third days was awfully hot and we did a
roaring business, We had to put on extra help and all was
over, profit of $10.00, which did not ieave much for our
work, we had the experience. I forgot to say, when we
arrived in Calgary I got a job turning the handle of a fnn
ting machine at 25 an hour. I forgot if it was for the Alber-
tan or Herald. Also a job at picture show moving
scenery, at 25¢ an hour, those were the days, but Calgary
was small then. After the show in Calgary, 1 got a job with
a stockman near Sarcee Reserve at $20.00 per month, and
whilst there I cleaned out a huge pole shed of manure from
about 400 head of catile which had been in it the winter
before, 1 forked it all on and forked it all off, and he did
whalt I wanted to do - rode the range, but he was the boss.
They were a family of three. Man, wife, and a young



daughter, and they slept together and he advised me to
sign a contract as it was binding. Soon after that, the boss
moved me from his nice new house to an cld house which
they had turned into a chicken house - gave me some old
blankets and quilt, which I had to cover my head, as the
hens roosted over my bed.

However, I rode a lot of the country around the Sarcee
Reserve, as I did east of Edmonton, and east of the C.P.R.
track - - here one could travel all day and never see a
house. Everybody buill on a bank of a coulee in some brush
and near a spring. They used to burn the brush and dig
coal out of the side hill nearly every place I stayed. 1 have
forded Ghost Pine, Three Hills, Rosebud, Big Red, Bow,
Sheep Creek and High River, Dog Pound, Fallen Timber
and the Little Red Deer - rode the country from Pine Lake
to Gleichen, & on the Blackfoot Reserve to Gladys Ridge
on to Okotoks, up to Calgary and the Old Dog Pound Trail.

One of my last jobs was on a haying crew to put up hay
to feed Burns steers. We had six mowers, three rakes and
two sweeps - with two horses on each side of the stack Lo
pull it up. We put up 2,000 tons. This was very interesting
& I liked the work. The last place I worked was on the
mouth of Sheep Creek and High River for a Scotsman. He
had bought a big herd of cattie, but lost an awful lot at
calving lime from the effects of dipping, which was being
tried by the stockmen at that time. Dick and I took out our
first brands at Regina, N'W.T, but when Alberta became a

rovince, we had to register at Edmonton. My original

rand P5 over half diamond RH is still used by Lionel. We
bought a lot of cows and horses. The later we trailed up in
the summer, but the cattle we went south for in the fall and
ran into deep snow coming up the Little Red Deer. We
could only make aboul eight miles & day. The cows legs
were raw, caused by crusted snow and by the time we gol
to our shack on squatted land, called "'Bird Flal", it was
nearly 60 degrees below. It is a wonder we weren't frozen
and all we had was an old fashioned tin stove to cook and
keep warm by, and to thaw out our frozen grub.

We used to get our mail at Bradbourne on the Dog
Pound (about where Satchwells live now) and at the end of
the year got a letter from my old boss at Gladys Ridge
asking me to go down and look after his place for the win-
ter. This 1 did, and left Dick to look after the horses and
cattle. When I came back, Dick took the horses to Gladys
Ridge and 1 gave the cows to Charlie Maxon on shares for
steers to run at $5.00 per year. We had the whole of Big
Prairie to ourselves, bul the grass used to freeze and was
not much good, so I went south and worked around a%ain
till the fall of 1905, when a friend and mysell went to
England. In 1904 | had filed for a homestead at the land of-
fice in Olds, so when I went to England, I got permission to
leave the Homestead if T was back by A 1st. The trip
was terrible rough, and we were late arriving in England
and had to have Christmas dinner on board ship, instead
of at home, but we had a wonderful time for three months.
When I arrived back, 1 came to Didsbury and out to Kan-
sas, (which is Wesltcott now) with a mail man and walked
to Maxons where I boarded 1ill I buill & 12' x 24 shack.
Maxon built it and 1 helped, In 1906, Maxon had hauled the
best logs for our buildings on the flat and Sherman built an
18" x 16" stable to hold a team, saddle horse, and milk cow.
When the house was nearly finished 1 gave a dance for the
neighbors; they all said we had the best floor they were
ever on, It came from Quigley’s mill and was lovely pine
and we really had polished it so it was like glass. I had a
%c})‘od many bachelor parties later on too. My partner,

arlie Paborn, who had gone to England with me and
stayed at my home there, was a great dancer, but as he
was too fond of whiskey, we did not stay partners long, and
I was on my own to clear 160 acres of bush land with an
axe. Later, Gus Sherman used his big team, and mine and
broke ten acres for $5.00 per acre, which I used for growing
green feed for years.

After building the house, 1 was broke, so I went to the
manager of the Union Bank, Didsbury and asked for a loan
of $1,000.00 which he granted me at 8% - usual bank in-
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lerest for years. I spent most of it before I got home. 1
bought cows at $18.00 with a calf at foot. By September, 1
sold Weicker of Didsbury thirty eight head for $1,380.00.
Frank Collicut, 1 remember received them for Burns. I got
my cheque and went and paid the Bank off and applied for
a $2,000.00 loan, which was granted to me later on, and I
went over to Big Prairie and bought a big bunch of cattle
from different ones. Charlie Maxon and I put up hay six
miles east of here and I generally bought good green straw
or greenfeed and hauled one load of hay in the afternoon,
so was kept busy. We fed no grain till years after - only to
the team and saddle horses. The winter following was
the hardest ever known to date. Cattle died by thousands
everywhere, but 1 was lucky and only lost three head, but it
was heartbresking to bear of so many dying. The ther-
mometer was hardly above 60 degrees below for weeks.
Perhaps, that was what saved the cattie and us - no
chinooks - a steady cold, which we more or less got used to,
so many ranchers in those days only put up hay for the
calves and weak cows. I was lucky to have lots of feed and
be able to get to it. The winter before 1905 and 1906 was the
best every know, they said. I was In England for that, but
when T gol here, at the end of March, cattle were shedding
off, and the grass was turning green.

About 1904, Simon Downie of Carstairs, opened a coal
mine west of Cremona, (later taken over by Knowlton Co.
who lost a lot of money on th enterprise). About the same
time, Mr. Drumheller came out to look the Downie Mine
over, but was not interested. He stayed at Maxons and
went to Trimbles where I said I dug coal for the house. He
liked it, went back to the States, and soon after, the
Drumbeller mines were opened and became a great sug-
cess,

In 1905, Alberta became a province, and our first
M.P.’s were Atkins and Hiebert for Didsbury and Fisher
for Cochrane District. About 1906 or 1907, the Rev. Shore
was senl out to Olds, Didsbury, Carstairs and out to Rugby
by the Anglican Church, and we formed the Parish of Si.
James (which included Mr. and Mrs. James Hosegood, Sr.
and myself, mostly) to take in Rugby, Atkins, and Big
Prairie. Shore had a student to help him, and they held ser-
vices at all three points besides the other several places
later, Shore built the church at Didsbury - Rugby loaned
Didsbury what money we had saved to help t a church
for us, but we never did build one, but there was one built
of logs at Big Prairie years later. Rev. Shore went back to
Trinity College to get his B.D. Then during the First World
War we were withou! a minister and after, we held ser-
vices in our house - also Garfield school for all Creeds,
When Anglican Services were started again at Rugby, we
went there and also to Atkins school, The minister from
Olds came to Rugby, and the Rev Currie from Crossfield to
Atkins school. We always had a fair congregation at both
glaces. We used to have such preachers come out, as the

ishop Pinkham, Archdeacon Dewdeny, Canon Webb,
Canen Hogbin, Bishop Ragg, and Archdeacon Axon,

The first bridge over the Pound was at Westcott,
then the one on the Blind Line and later over the Little Red
Deer west of Cremona. Until bridges were built, we used to
ford the Dog Pound at Alex Robertson Sr's, which was
sometimes dangerous, as il was on Crooked Creek here,
and it flooded very often. I helped form the Municipal
district of Beaver Dam, Charlie Maxon and I hauled most
of the lumber for Beaver Dam Municipality.

The first telephone came from Dids to Westcott-
Mutual line. Then & line was built six miles from Carstairs
to Umbach’s corner on the Blind Line. Finally & line to
Cremona was built - one for subscribers and one a private
line. Our telephone was installed in 1913. We had a bad fire,
and If the neighbors had not responsed to the distress call
of five rings, on the phone, we might havelost everything,
They came right away, and formed a bucket brigade (we
had a big tank of water and lots of milk pails to help). We
were very thankful to all who helped extinguish the fire.

The building which the Cubs and Scouts now use in
Cremona is the Old Garfield School. It is fine to have such



good use for the old school where our boys went - my only

et is, that it wasn't kept and turned into a community
hall for this district, Also, very few know that part of the
Red and White store in Cremona was the Old Cremona
Péo% and store which my wife Lillian Jackson started in
1906.

I musin't forget to mention the loss of the Garfield P.O.
and store. The P.0. was discontinued when the Rural Route
came into existance, and the building was struck by
lightening and burned a few years ago, So now Garfield has
no land marks and the name is almost forgotten - but not
by this "Old Bird". On August 3rd, 1910 | married Lillian
Jackson, who was the first postmistress of Cremona. We
have three sons living. John, our eldest lives in Calgary
and is part owner of Bonny Brook Steel in Calgary. Lionel
is farming my original homestead, on which I still live. In
1966 he and his family won the coveted Master Farm
Award for the Province of Alberta. This was a very proud
day for me which you can well imagine. One cannot help
but feel that being the father of a Master Farmer,
somewhere along the line 1 played a part in this achiev-
ment. Douglas, our youngest son has bought the Spillman
farm and he and his son-in-law have an enterprising dairy
farm and raise Angus cattle.

During the years when the boys were growing up we
had many ha times. On Sundays during the summer we
would go and pick up Squire Jackson and have a picnic on
his place, shoot rabbit, or chicken and make a fire and
cook it and eat it, and pick raspberries out of the coulee on
his place. Also, we had a wonderful time. on the Little Red
Deer River on Giili's Flat where big crowds came. We
would all have picnic lunches and sports for the voung
folks, both in the river and on the flat. Ernie Schultz was
always there, as were so many other families from
surrounding country and we always had a good time - no
cars, just democrats, buggies and saddle horses.

It will soon be 66 years since | came to the district and
I have tried to confine my memoirs to this district in the
early days when there were few people and less fences.
Our family has been a very happy one. We have many
worldly goods, but a lot of wonderful friends and
memories. The last two years of Lils' time was spent in the
Hospital, and she passed away on July 20th, 1965, She did
live to celebrate her 85th birthday with her family in the
Hospital. My dear wife spent 59 years in the district, so we
have considered ourselves *‘Old Timers”',

* Mr. Percy Bird died in October 1969, age 87, & his oldest
son, John died at age 58 in Calgary.

AUTOBIOGRAPHY OF MRS. PERCY

BIRD
By Mrs. Percy Bird 1962

I, Lillian Adelaide Maurice, was born in Peterborough,
Ontario, June 20, 1880. My father, Professor Lucien
Maurice, taught French in several schools before going to
Brooklyn, New York where he taught for several months,
but owing to illness, he returned to his home in Paris, ac-
companied by Mother, Lionel, my brother and myself. Af-
ter a few months he died and Mo soon left, came to
Guelph, Ontario with her two children. We lived there until
I was nearly eight, then came to Warren Mass., where |
frew up, went to school and graduated from High School.

n 1901 Mother died leaving me to help my step-father take
care of my four half sisters.

On June 20th, 1905 1 was married to Smith Jackson,
whose brother Squire Jackson, had advised us to come to
Alberta, So on February 14, 1906, on a warm beautiful
Alberta day, we landed in Carstairs. After staying over-
night at a restaurant (which was run by a Mr, Crow, who
later lived in the Cremona district), we left for Squire's
farm. The journey was taken in a wagon driven by Squire.
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There were no cars or easy travelling in those days, but
everything was so new and exciting to me that I never
wanted to return east.

We were not able to get a homestead near Squire’s
farm, so Smith with the help of Hon. Fisher of Cochrane
and friends. was made Postmaster of Cremona in July
1906. Squire wanted lo call it Honley, after their home in
Yorkshire, England but Calgary office thought it would be
too much fike Hanley, Saskatchewan. We then thought of
Cremona, Italy, (where violins were made). Thus
Cremona Post Office, Store, Cheese Faclory and
Blacksmith Shop were started, Squire's first house, a two
roomed shack was built on the south-west corner of the
west quarter, Here my first washing met an awful fate. It
was funny when you think of it. No fences being built,
Henry Kelsey's cows came lookinﬁefor salt and seeing the
nighties, petticoats, etc., started chewing them up. I began
to shout, wave and run (could run in those days). The cows
naturally took off, taking away on their horns the lace
trimmings which they left as ornaments on bushes bet-
ween Kelsey's and Jackson's farms. Too bad there are no
pictures of this scene.

During March and April of thal year the grass was
very dry. One day the men came in calling for the big sugar
s:gs (that were plentiful in those days). There was a fire!
The men, lots of‘men, (don't know how they could gather
s0 soon, but they did) rushed off with wel sacks and
anything they could get their hands on to whip the flames
out. They worked for hours. They were very tired men
when they returned to their homes, but the fire was oul.

By April, the men started to built the store and Post
Office, and Ralph Slipp (father of the Didsbury druggist)
built a shack near the cheese factory, and started making
cheese By July, when the Post Office opened, we moved
down to where the store and Post Office of Old Cremona
stood for many years. The mail was first brought from
Cochrane and Smith collected it at Dog Pound Post Office.
Later the route was changed to Carstairs, twice a week and
a man from Big Prairie took the west mail from Cremona.
Al first the store was small, just groceries that were
needed and then gradually it grew larger. The store
became a meeting place for the farmers who brought their
milk to the cheese factory in large cans. With the milk, the
cans weighed about 200 pounds. were the biggest milk
cans that T had ever seen. The first big hail storm about
the last of August was one of the worst. It dug up
potatoes, stri trees and broke shingles. We hadn't got
the drop siding on and the hail drove into every little
crevice. I had never seen such hail! Next morning, farmers
arriving with milk would pull out a box and say, "“what do
vou think of this?"" He would haul out a big chunk of ice
(hail frozen together) ““Oh that is nothing”, another far-
mers would say, “Look at what I have', They never
seemed discouraged, Those farmers and wives were won-
derful folks,

Our first two Christmases we had great times. We had
invited all the near bachelors, I think there were 18 of us
for dinner. For amusement the men played fiddles, har-
monicas, jews harps and sang. Then they displayed feats of
strength (the old fashioned kind) including the broom con-
tests. T can still see Rod and Colin Macfarqubar doing their
stunts, helped by Jack, Will and Ben McBain and Louis
Steffler. Jack Rattray was always the quiet one, We had
church services in Atkins school. All denominations
went and all helped to make a success of church, school
and soctal gatherings. Our first winter was that terrible
winter of 1906 and 1907 known as the worst in vears. I wore
two pairs of moccasins and a heavy pair of German socks
at one lime to keep my feet warm. Our houses were not the
warm ones we have at present.

Smith died in July 1908. During his illness of many
weeks, 1 will never forget the kindness of our friends who
sat up nights to help me with the nursing and later aided in
every way possible.

I was made Postmistress, Mail Carrier, and Registrar,
My sister Violet came from Massachusetts to help me



(Violet married Dick Bird, Percy's brother in 1911). We
carried on the business. In July, 1910, I sold the store to
Stringer and Will Andison, who later took over the Fisher
store in Cochrane.

Percy Bird and I were married August 3, 1910 at the
home of Mr. and Mrs. Edwin Reid. The wedding breakfast
was held at the home of Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Reid. The
ceremony was performed by Bishop Pinkham, the first
Bishop in Calgary. Mrs. Mork (Mrs. Jess Ray's mother)
played a great part in our wedding, sewing for me and
helping several days at Mrs. Reids. An amusing incident
happened from this wedding. Being I was the Registrar of
Cremona, I reported the wedding, receiving
gngratulations and 25* from Edmonton for my own wed-

ng.

We have lived on this farm ever since and had our
children here. We lost our first son al birth, June 1911, In
1913 we had John and Lionel in 1916. Then we lost our
daughter (twin to Douglas) in 1917. Our three sons grew up,
went to school at Garfield, and Cremona High School. 'l,t
was held in the old cheese factory which had been turned
into a hall and school. Here the students nearly froze to
death in winter and roasted in summer, but with the help of
good teachers, received a fair education, The students did
not have an Auditorium but spent many happy days: the
Rattrays let them use their yard lo play tennis, The noon
hours were a rush to get back on time but it was great fun.
In 1924, Percy took the family (o his home in Clochester,
England, to meet the Bird famil¥. While we were in
England, we saw the Wembley World’s Fair of 1924 along
with many interesting places. However, our hearts were
with the West and we returned, glad to be home in Alberta.

Greal changes have taken place during these many
years and many of our dear friends have died, but we still
remember the early years. Our last happy occasion was on
A?ust 3, 1960 when over 250 guests gathered to help "“The
Old Birds", as we call ourselves, celebrate our Golden
Wedding. The Old Birds at present surrounded by our dear
ones, are happily working in the summer with our gar-
dents, Lil with ber flowers, and Percy with his vegetables,
and living a very happy quiet life.

* Mrs. Bird passed away in July, 1965

Perey and Lillian Bird. Taken in 1960 on their 50th Wedding Anniversary,
August 3.
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LIONEL AND ELMA BIRD

Lionel is the second son of Mr. and Mrs. Percy Bird
and Elma is the fourth child of Mr, and Mrs. Edwin Reid.
They were married at Cremona on July 4th, 1943, They
have 3 children; Sylvia, Grant and Lillian. Sylvia is nur-
sing in Calgary (She spent 3 years nursing in New
Zealand). Lillian is a P ysiotheragist at the Foothills
Hospital; and Grant, who has his BSc in Agriculture is
home farming with his father. He was married to Dorith
Jensen in 1973 and they have 2 sons - John and Bruce,

Elma Bird's (Reid) shower in 1943,

Mrs. Matt Hewitt, Mrs, Sam Ml{ Mrs. George Spence, Mrs. Shante, Mrs
Tyson, Mrs. Rod McLeod, Lila Haley, Mes. Del Warren, Mrs. Randolph, Mrs.
Caswell, Dorothy Atkins, Ethel Reld, Elma Reid, Marion Resd, Mrs. Merrit
Ehrenich, Lily Johnston, Helen Whitlow. Belle McBaln (Stevenson), Joanae Me
Beo, Sarah Schultz, Lillie Huber, Margaret Whitlow, Mrs. Pybus. Sitting:
Hazxel VanHan{ten, Doris Warren, Lorna Van Haaften, Frances McBain, Mary
Wigg, Joan McKay, Doreen Warren

LLOYD AND ROSE BIRKETT

Lloyd and Rose Birkett moved up to the Water Valley
area from Dartique. They had 2 sons. This family only
lived in this area for a short time, but to this day old
timers in the area still call this the Birkett place. This
quarter was straight north of Winchells. A baker from
Calgary, named Sholtz now owns this place.

HISTORY OF EDNA AND LENA

BISHOP
Told by Edna Overby

My mother, Christina McNicol lived on a homestead al
Water Valley. She married my father, George Bishop at
Crossfield in 1909, Mother was 24 year old. Two living
children remain from this union: Edna - born in 1911 at
home, They had a kind Norwegian woman as a midwife as
at that time doctors were scarce and a hospital was non
existanl, Lena - born in 1915 in Kaslo, B.C. hospital. The
family had moved to B.C. when Edna was four months old.

Mr. Bishop worked in the lumber camps and saw mills
and also for a short time in a mine, but he didn't like it, as
it was too damp. They were in B.C. for 11 years, then went
to Idaho. Men were going to work in the Ohio Mateh Co.
and build a spur railroad out to the timber. They stayed
here the summer and then came to Alberta in November to
their Grandfather's farm, eight miles west of Crossfield.
Grandfather had just had an operation for kidney stones
and Grandmother stayed in Calgary with him. There were
three uncles on the farm, that were left with no cook or
housekeeper so Mother came oul and cooked for the boys.
They remained here three years, then Grandpa bought
each Uncle one half section and we went and kept house for
him.

Then times got harder and harder, there was money
for food but none for clothes. We went to Didsbury in order
to earn money to survive. Mother and Edna cleaned
houses, baby sat and helped with whatever would bring in



a bit of money. Edna worked for $1,00 per day. No matter
how hard you worked or how little you did, you still got
$1.00 per day. Edna then worked in the country for farmers
at §5.00 per month. This she considered a step up and was

ood wages. That summer she saved her money and
gought fruit and sugar for her mother. Yard good were 25°
per vard so she took a sewing course and sewed her own
clothes. Edna was here four and one half years then Grand-
father passed away and left Mother '; section south of
Carstairs, This was 1932 or 33 and they lived there 2 or 3
years. One of the Aunt’s and her family wanted to live
there in order to grow more grain for the family so the

Bishop's moved again to another Uncle's place, west of
Carstairs, They stayed here one year, then moved back to
section 19, south of Carstairs. Mother wanted to sell the
place, no pasture for cattle, they had only 15 acres to grow
greenfeed. They sold the land for crop payments as money
was scarce. A farmer from Youngstown bought it. They
worked for several years with the grain and greenfeed and
raised pigs, (to make use of the grain), as the grain was
not a good price. They were here until the spring of 1944
when Edna married Louis Overby. They went to B.C. and
Louis died the end of July. Edna came back and stayed on
with the family. Mother died in Dec. 1944 and Grandmother
in Feb. 1945. She was hale and hearty ‘till her 84th birthday
when her heart failed and she had to stay in bed. They
knew they had to move once again and as George and Mrs,
Bales had been friends of theirs for years. looked over
them and helped when they could, it was Mrs. Bales who
first told them some of Squire Jackson's land might be for
sale. She and Squire got along v:By well, as he did not care
for Edna, butl Mrs. Bales finally persuaded him (o sell,
Squire had been saving the land for some nephews that had

lanned to come from Britain. They never came so Squire
el a corner of the ground go. It was thought to be 20 acres
but later found to be less. They got their belongings
together in 1946 and came out with cattle, rabbits, chickens
and & granary. One cow died while moving. There was no
house so they lived in a cook car. York Shaw Moving Co,
from Calgary was contacted about moving the house from
section 19, It was moved out the day before Lena and Mike
Hickey were married. The house was moved on a truck and
took several hours, the worst place was at the Dog Pound
(Foats), as the road at that time curved around where the
camp facilities are now. Mr. Bales helped gather up some
flat rocks and these were used as a foundation for the
house. There was a problem as to what to line the house up
with, the railroad was crooked as was the road. They
finally decided on a location. They all lived here for a time.
A swinging ladder, made from the teeth of a hay rake was
used for the upstairs where Edna slept. Mike and Lena
so00n had a family and more space was needed. Mr. Gordon
Habermehl had an old house to sell, made of second hand
lumber and they boughtit for $100.00. Mike and Jack
moved it over and Edna moved in. She was here for
several vears. She also had an oil lease on the place, the
Arkansas fuel lease, sold to Canadian Gulf and they in turn
sold it to British American, with the money, Edna had a
few extra dollars to s each year. Four or five years
later John Fry wanted to buy the oil rights for $300.00 but
Edna wanted $500.00. They s:Freed upon $450.00 and she
sold. A week later Mr. Fry said it was a good thing she sold
as it was now, not worth the paper it was written on. No oil
around here. Edna put the money in the bank.

The cabin began to leak and Edna had to look
elsewhere to stay, she ht & small trailer and was here
2 or 3 years, until arthritis began to bother her, as the
trailer was really equipped for summer use only. She
moved back into the house. Carl Eckstrand had a house
and sold it to her, and it was moved out by & man named

s. Mike made a foundation (his first experience at this
sort of work), and they moved in 1964, They saved money
and decided to build on in 1972, as Mike's family now con-
sisted of 5 children. The same carpenter that built the 1st
part 30 years ago, built the addition on later. All were
moved in and together in early Dec, 1972. More work done
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in 1973 and a porch built in 1974. A new well was drilled in
1974. Edna worked house cleaning for Ethel Magoon in
lown (starting about 1973 for 3= years.)

The Hickey children have finished school and left
home, Edna Overby, Lena and Mike Hickey enjoy going to
church and look forward to easier limes

THE BLACKBURN FAMILY
B8y Mayvsel and Ethel

Our family lived in Richland, Kansas. Our oldest
brother, Bob Blackburn got the fever to come to Canada
when he was 16. Dad said he could ge when he was 17 but
our father, Charles Blackburn, died that vear so Bob did
not get away until he was 21.

Bob came ahead to Alberta and bought land, then he
came back for us. We sold out in Kansas and then
mother and we children came to Alberta in the spring of
1912 arriving March 29. The bo'}(‘s were Robert 21, Kent 18,
and Dick 16. The girls were Ethel 14, Alice 11, and Maysel
8. We came by train to Didsbury and it took four days. It
was very hot on the trail and when we arrived, a cold Mar-
ch wind seemed to go right through us, Kent and Ethel
wanted to go back to Kansas that night. From Didsbury we
went by lumber wagon to Westceott, where for a short while
we lived in the C.C. Rinehart house which is still standing
today. Mrs. Rinehart was formerly Mary Herner and her
little brother John would eventually ome Maysel's
hushand. Maysel can remember her first meeting with her
future husband. John was 11 as was Maysel's sister Alice,
The two were playing in the sand box while little Maysel
looked on. What started as a nice game eventually became
# “'sand in the eyes'” contest proving that children have not
changed much,

In September of that year we moved to what is now the
Dunphy place which belonged to Henry Whalen then, In the
spring of 1913 we moved to the post office place at Garfield
and started to go to Garfield school with Joseph Reid our
teacher. In the summer of 1914 we moved to our home

lace. Our brothers built our house, the bottom half out of
ogs and the top half of lumber from the logs they had cut
by themselves. They cut the logs with a crosscuf saw and
then skidded them out with horses. James Ottobine at
Elkton cut the fumber for us at his mill.

That year was the year Bob had an accident at the
mill. He fell in a revolving shaft and everything was strip-
ped off except his socks. He banged his head and he was
unconscious but was not hurt very badly,

We attended the Evangelical Church and the Pastor
was John Finlay. When we lived at Rineharts, we were
handy o a small lake. We often went boat riding. Another
summer sport was mud-hen-egg fights. In winter we skated
there and had snow ball fights. When were were at Gar-
field, we went to band practices and band concerts at the
Garfield school. We would all bring a bit of lunch and have
sur;per and enjoy the music and the fellowship. Mr. Gather-
cole was the band master. Members of his band were Nor-
man Tu , Albert Vogel, Martin and Fred Colwell and
their father Mose, Bob and Kent Blackburn, Lioyd Ray, Art
Waterman, Jack ll{lilcke a?d Carl Russel, In the sumrl?er.
two or three wagonloads of us would go cranberry picking
at Winchel Lake. We would take tents and stay a week. We
worked hard during the day and at night we would sit
a:'ound the camp fire singing, telling stories and speaking
pieces,

We shopped at "'Old Cremona" going by horseback and
by horse and buggy. One day when Ethel and her mother
were coming home by way of the Colwell place and were
crossing the muskeg covered with ice, the horse fell and
couldn't get back up. Ethel unharnessed the horse but it
still could not make it up. Finally with the blanket spread
around the horse, it got on it's feet and they continued on



their way. Ethel was married to Charles Magoon in
February 1917, and Bob married Christine Gardner in June
1917. The latter live in Fallen Timber. After Christine
passed away Bob and Dick went to the Okanagan for about
a vear and worked on the Okanagan boat hauling fruit, Bob
and mother lived on Bob's homestead for awhile and then
sold and went to Oregon, Bob died in 1927 and mother
moved back, passing awm" in 1930. Kent and Dick are
living in Washington and Alice is living with her family in
the Camrose district. Ethel and Alice still reside in the
Cremona district.

* Since this history was compiled Maysel has passed away,
* Ethel Magoon passed away May 19, 1975, at age 77 years
* Charlie Magoon passed away in 1965

WILSON ANDGEORGINA BLAIN
By Pearl and Wilfred Blain

Wilfred and Georgina Blain came west from Watford,
Ontario to High River in March 1905, Their oldesl son Pur-
cell stayed in Ontario for a number of years before coming
out to Alberta, but Robert, Arnold, Flo, Orvilie, Alex, and
Tillie came with their ts, After the terrible winter of
1906 they moved west of Didsbury, one year spent in the
Melvin district where Genevieve was born, and then moved
to Elkton. William, Wilfred and Kitchener were all born at
the farm home at Elkton but William died as a small baby.

Purcell, Robert and Arnold were soldiers overseas in
the 1914-1918 Great War. Wilson and Georgina had a post
office and store for & number of years as well as farming.
Their home was a stoz)ping place for people going to and
from Didshury, from farther west before there were cars,
and they charged no one for a bed, meal, or feed for their
horses. Many people appreciated this hospitality, but many
did not. Georgina was a charter member of the Rugby W.I.
started in 1913.

Wilson passed away at his farm home in his 88th year
in 1948 and Georgina passed away in 1966 at 93 years of
age. Wilfred moved to the NE. 3 S-5, T 31, R4, W5 in 1938
where he lived until 1942 when he moved to SW. 14, S32 T
30, R 4. W 5, and farmed it so his brother Robert and
family could move to Vancouver. Wilired has lived here
since then. In 1945, he married Pearl McMullen from the
Fallen Timber district. They have four children; Sharon
{Mrs. Zaluski), a realtor in Calgary, Merle in Edmenton,
Earl al home, works at the sawmill in Sundre and farms,
Darrell in grade twelve in Cremona High School.

Wilson Blain with Buck and Bright und sulky plow 1900
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Wilsen Blain garden 1906

Working on Biain farm 1027

Orvitle Blain (back) Harvey Hosegood with their tractors moving the house to
the Wilson Blain place Spring 1930

Bill Jenes and Frank Edwards grubing roots (before)



- - : ~y.

Breaking land in 1930 on now Bob Konchuh land. Frank Edwards here
Kerosene used in tractor for fuel. (After grubing roots)

Hay sweep on Blains farm. Robert Lucas - driver, Alex Blain - on stack, Jeff
Cramers - hired man

The Blain's pinto team. Jerry and Mike were well known aroind the distriet
They hauled pigs 1o Didsbury and were one of the first teams to haul grain to
the Cremona elevator. The Blains' had many offers 1o sell this team as they
were in great d d for bread wagans in the cities.

Ralemr Ridge and Moose Min, In background Horses on Blaln ranch at Nitche
Valley.
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Wilson and Georgina Blain's family consisted of 10
children; Purcell; married Ruth Haug from the Bergen
area. They farm sl Bergen and have one son, Leslie.
Robert; married Fern Etscel from Rugby. They live in
Langley, B.C. and have one son, Larry, who also lives in
B.C. Arnold; married Violet Dalton. y have 3 children,
Ethel, Ronald, and June, Arnold passed away in 1977. Flo;
married Jeff Monk (he homesteaded on the Bud Crosby
place) They had 3 girls; Mildred (Mrs. Hosegood), Ellen
(Mrs. Broome), and Doris (Mrs. Angus) Live at White
Rock, B.C. Orville; married Ella Stewart from Didsbury.
They farmed morth of Cremona. sold out when Orville died
in July, 1970, age 71 years, Alex; married May Oliver,
They had 1 son, Donald and 2 girls Vera (Mrs. Nelson, and
Lila (Mrs, Kran). Tillie; married John Herner. Have 1
daughter Vivian (Mrs. Brown), who lives in Calgary.

Wilfred; married Parl McMullen (story elsewhere) Kit-
chener married Eva Foreman and had 2 children.
Everett and Beverly (Mrs. Wilson) who lives in Didsbury,
Kitchener died at age 29 years.

GEORGINA BLAIN - ANECDOTES

OF MY EARLY LIFE
By Georgina Blain 1963

I was born near Watford, Ontario, April, 1873, I can
clearly rembmer many things from my early life there,
such as the “Sugaring offs”. Also I remember weaving
blankets and carpeting on an 8' x 8 loom which is still in
existance, | attended the organizational meeting of the
Salvation Army, | was married to Wilson Blain in the
uniform of the organization. The great granddaughter of
Laura Secord trimmed my wedding bonnet. Doctors ad-
vised my husband, Wilson, to go west for his health. He
worked his way across the Prairies on a harvest excursion
& in the fall of 1905 he rented a farm near High River. 1
arrived in Calgary on March 26, 1906, with our family of
seven, (The oldest boy, Purcell, remained in Ontario with
my parents and came west several years later). The winter
of 190607 was very severe and many cattle perished from
the cold and starved from lack of food. Our cattle pulled
through the winter but we discovered when the snow
melted our land was alkali and the drinking water was not
very good. We moved to Melvin, west of Didsbury, in the
spring of 1907. As it was only a rented farm, we only stayed
a year before moving to Elkton, where we remained per-
ménently. The two bays and “Dad” (Bobbie and Arnold)
built our house the year after We came out. The boys
decided that they wanted a dance, so Mr. Moon, a
close neighbor came and played his violin for 25'. Some of
our close neighbors at that time were Jim Hosegood, Riley
Moon, Charlie Brown, and Bill Hayes, James' and
Autolnes'. The store and post office were owned by Bab
Brown, just east of the present site. Dad broke most of our
land with a horse and ox, and then the yoke oxen. Our dog,
Buster, worked too. He pumped our water by means of a
water wheel. The stationary engine was used to saw wood
and chop grain, I can remember my hushand going around
the country with it to do these jobs,

Highlights of my life seemed to have to include many
teachers, One I particularly remember is Miss Dears, who
taught at Fallen Timber. On the day of her arrival, Purcell
took the wagon and went to town to meet her, He found her
to be dressed in the fashionable hobbled skirt, I guess she
saw that getting into the high wagon would prove quite a
problem. So she politely ed Purcell to turn his back
while she rolled in. Another teacher, who the boys called
“Jolietle" seemed Lo want to k her life a secret. The
Moons' (she boarded there) said stuffed her petticoats
in lge keyhold, & around the door, and hung one over the
window.

When World War I broke out many changes occurred.
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Three of our boys, Arnold, Purcell, and Robert joined the
Army. The went overseas. Here, Purcell, received a medal
for bravery. Now Dad took over the post-office and started
a general store. We did quite a lot of dealing with the In-
dians. Their favorite purchases appeared to be vanilla,
lemon extract and a pain killer. Since we became curious,
we questioned them as to what they were doing with it.
Well, that put a stop to that! The year before the start of
the War, Moon, Mrs. Adams, Mrs. J. Hosegood, Mrs.
Brown and myself formed the Rugby Institute. We were
kept busy after that, T knitted socks, made quilts, and sent
parcels overseas. During the war we used to go back west
of Bergen to Johanson's sawmill to pick raspberries, A
buch of us would take the team and wagon and we would
camp for several days. Miss Bunker was the teacher at this
time. She used to play our oid organ, Riley Moon played
violin, Bill Hayes played the mouth organ, ie Maclean
played the Jews p. and we used to have some great
times. Especially with Bill and Archie step-dancing. It
seemed like half of the events on the ‘Old Days' revolved
around the Indians and their escapades, the Indians had
their camping grounds across from Moon’s. Les Evans now
aowns this land. They would have pow-wows, and dances in
the evenings. Drums were the main musical instrument. |
can remember one time that one of our milk cows had
died. An Indian, named Mark Poucette, (later chief of the
Stonies) happened along as Dad was going to haul it away.
He asked Dad if he could have it for dog food, So they
dressed it out, & he sold this meat to Mr. Herget who ran
the other Elkton store at that time. Yes, Mr. Herget had
been selling it to his customers as fresh meat,

~. - . N v d * "

Berr{! picking in 1917, Left-right: Mrs. Geocge Hogg, Mrs. Wilson Blain, Mrs.
Charlie Brown. Children; Charlie Brown, Gen Blain,

David Poucette, a very good friend of ours, would
always drop in if he was around our part. He was dancing

master for the Stonies at Morley. Our old gramaphone was
a delight to him. He spent much time dancing to it, before
he had his dance, he always made sure that he had a full

stomach. And how that old fellow could stow it away! In
1935, the Stonies had one of their last Sun Dances. David
Poucette invited us to attend. This was a great honor, as
white men usually aren’t allowed to attend. However we
were unable to go.

Dad had a black and white pinto team that he had
raised himself. At that time a pinto work team was quite a
rarity. Every time that David Poucette came, he wanted to
trade some of his squaws for this team. Our boys, young
men by now, he figured, ‘‘need 'em squaw". However, Dad
won out, and David had to find other boys for his
daughters.

Today we think nothing of taking a trip to the coast, or
even farther afield. In the early years a few days of cam-
R;an out at a stampede, or fishing was considered a great

day. When we went fishing at the Big Fishing Hole, we
would take our big stone c and lots of salt. We would
salt our own fish, and fill many a crock. The high spot of



Qne of the first apiary in the districl. Thix hive produced 425 T of honey 1632

Georgina Blain aplarist

the year was a trip to the Sundre Stampede which was
always a two-day show. There was always a lot of visiting
to be caught up on with old friends that we saw only once
or twice a year. The Stampeded started out with an Indian
parade, followed by the Grand Parade. In the afternoon,
rodeo events were staged as well as horse races, Indian
races, and Roman races, and flimsy democrats were used,
were quite a sight. The tongues of the democrats were
coming down and the wheels were always coliapsing. The
day was finished with a greased pig race for the Indians,
the pig being greased with that good old black axel rease,
which is not seen anymore. Talk about fun, well, thaf was!

We used to go to Botrell Stampede with the Bennett
family, Dave McKinnon lives on their old place now. There
was no road going straight through north of Cremona to
Elkton then. We went across the river, at Bennett’s forded
it again at Jim Hagan's (his son Harry lives there now)
and ug through Oakie Strain's homestead and then through
Mrs. Hayes' & Ernie Schultz’ and from there on I was lost
as to which way we were going but I know we finally ended
up at Bottrell and an enjoyable time

Christmas was always a time we looked forward to.
Our good friends Cora and Bill Banting always had their
team and sleigh ready to take us to the concerts. The
schools tried to have them on different nights so we
generally managed to get to Elkton, Rugby, and Fallen
Timber concerts. There were usually a dance after and I'm
sorry o say our hours were not as good as today, as very
often we would find ourselves getting home at 5 or 6 in the
morning. There was always a house gathering, a lot of fun
was had in the thirties, with the Bennetts, Bantings,
MeGregors, Lisamoths, Bacons, Brians and several olhers
of the old neighbors. In the thirties 1 decided to Iry a new
business, since my job of raising my family had been com-
pleted. So, I turned to raising birds and bees. I traded me a
cow for several hives of bees among other things, and my
nephew was generous enough to give me a pair of canaries
They both seemed to multiply and consequently kept me
extremely busy.

Those were my last big business ventures and now I
am content keeping track of my family. It includes nine
surviving children, nineteen grandchildren, thirty-six great
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grandchildren, and one great-great-grandchild.

Looking back now, the past ninety years have been
good even if there were some sad events.
* Georgina Blain passed away - 1966 at 93 years of age,

A LITTLE HISTORY OF THE
BOHANNON FAMILY IN ALBERTA

By Dave Bohannon

My father’s name was Rufus K. Bohannon. My
mother’s name was Rachel T., and I had three brothers;
Frederick C., William K., and Charles R. These besides
myself, David W., were raised in Illinois, U.S.A,

During the summer of 1904, Dad procured a lot of
literature from Canada, telling of the great opportunities
that Western Canada would give, just for the asking. The
principal opportunity at that time was the great stretches
of unettled land that the Government was opening up for
homesteading and the cheap land put on the market by the
C.P.R. and Hudson's Bay Co. The government at that time
would bet you 160 acres against a fee of $10.00 that you
could not live on-it-three years without starving. Well, in
the fall of 1904 Dad came up to look at the promised land in
Alberta from Calgary north to Edmonton. He was so taken
with the climate, mountains, big springs, rich black soil,
heavy vegetation of pea-vine and vetch and the big flocks
of prairie chickens, that he purchased from the C.P.R. See-
tion 33 in Township 29, Range 4, west of the 5th meridian.
This was 18 miles west of Carstairs.

When he came home he told about the country, what he
had done & we were all so enthused that he sold the farm,
all stock, machinery & most of the household effects & we
moved into the little town of Table Grove to await spring
and the move to Canada. In the meantime he bought four
mules and what he thought he would need in the way of
new machinery and household effects,

When spring came, they loaded the settlers effects and
brother Bil]pcame with them to take care of the mules. The
rest of us came by passenger train, landing in Carstairs
about the middle of April, 1905. While waiting for the cars
of settler effects to arrive, Dad hired a livery team and
took us out to our new ranch. The first night we spent with
our new neighbors to be: the Steeles, They told us abhout a
bachelor by the name of Jack McLean who had a shack
and homestead adjoining our land. Dad saw him and made
arrangements to use his place until we could get suitable
buildings put up on our own place.

Mother thought the first trip out was a long hard one as
there were no graded roads, just trails, no bridges across
any of the streams and only one section fenced in the 18
miles, that was the Gentiles Ranch, now owned by the
Owen’s family. One of the first things was to look up
homesteads for Dad, Bill and myself, as land was being
settled on very fast. Dad and Bill filed on homesteads just
across the road south from what is now Mount Hope School
and I filed on the S.W.1y of Section 30, Township 29, Range
3, now owned by Chuck Holbrook. The first summer was a
busy one, hauling lumber and getting buildings put up
before winter, All the lumber was hauled from the Quigley
saw mill located about 12 miles south-west of the Dog
Pound Creek. The price of the lumber was $10.00 per
thousand feet, We got 20 acres ready for crop to be planted
the lf‘(s))llowing spring and a good supply of hay put up in
slacks.

The foundation for the Atkins School was in when we
arrived and it was finished ready for use by the time the
fall session opened. It was also used for all social activities
in the community, It was first used for church activities,
all denominations attending. The families attending most
regularly were the Reids, Spences, Watls and ourselves.
When the winter came it was dances. Our district had
many grown girls, the Crowes, Tysons, McVickers and



Kel . Everything was lively and always a big jolly
crowd. Hauling supplies from Carstairs was quite a chore.
Dad did most of this, When he was with a load he always
took two days to make the trip. Usually a neighbor would
go along with another team so that if they got stuck, which
was quite often, lheg could help each other. As J remem-
ber, one of the bad spots was the old Charley Stewart
place, now owned by Sam Fulton. It was vacant land at
that time and many a cracked double-tree was left there.
Dad always carried an extra one.

While we were on the ranch the only way you could
market hogs was to kill and dress them and take them to
Calgary. Cattle were held until they were four years old to
market, They were then fattened on grass or hay. Thal fir-
st summer Dad bought a number of horses. At that time I
thought 1 could ride most anything. I picked out one which
I thought would make a good saddle horse. She piled me
three times going a half mile and I had hold of all the
leather T could reach, Later she became quite tame and
used to lie down with Kate Stevenson when she got too
heavy. The winter of 190506 was very mild. The first store
in the district was opened by Buster Brown in the spring of
1906 and was located on the N.W. gquarter of Section 34,
Township 29, Range 4 and now owned by the Earle family.
During the summer of 1906 the Big Prairie country was
swept by a terrible bush and grass fire with the result that
many settiers lost all they possessed. Also the same year,
during late August a severe hail storm swept the district.
Hail was piled up two {eet deep on the north side of barns.
All crop that was not cut was pounded into the ground. Qur
twenty acres of crop was cut on the green side and in the
stook so did not suffer extensively.

Brother Fred and family settled a few miles east of
Airdrie. During the first two years Dad had bought quite a
lot of stock, Then the terrible winter of 1906 and 1907 struck
with early deep snow and unusual temperature, down to §0
below zere. Our loss of livestock was around 10%, which for
the conditions was very fortunate. By now Dad had, had
enough of sunny Alberta as a ranching country and sold the
ranch with stock, machinery and household effects to a Mr
John Stevenson of Wisconsin. Dad and Bill sold their
homesteads to the Borton's and we moved to Calgary.
Charlie attended public school and I, Sleepy Hollow High
School, located in the City Hall bloek.

Bill married Jessie Cowman and settled in the Garfield
District, We staved in Calgary for two years, then moved
to Portland, Oregon. Times were very hard. In the spring
of 1910, I returned from Oregon, sold my homestead to
Mike Hickey Sr. Fred sold his farm and we moved lo
Township 26, Range 2, West of the 4th meridian, filing on
five sections of land from the family by buying South
African Script. This land was near what is now known as
Acadia Valley. The family in Oregon joined us in the fall.

1 believe the coldest I ever experienced was the first
day of June 1810, when we were enroute to our new home,
and got caught in a bad snowstorm. After battling the
storm for some five hours, with only summer clothing, we
reached & ranch and they took us in until the storm was
over. The storm lasted about twenty hours and put some 2
feet of snow on the level. At that time there was just one
shack on our route between Hand Hills and the Saskat-
chewan border, a distance of 90 miles. Our nearest post of-
fice was Kinderley, Sask., 65 miles away, but by fall the
C.N. Railway had extended its line to Alsask, Sask. 18
miles away, We had our mail changed and did most of our
trading at Alsask for a number of years. The il boom at
Calgary ended in 1914 and we had to times for several
years. Our land was broken with oxen, horses and tractors.
Most of the early vears were fairly good. An exception was
1916 when an early August frost completely ruined what
had been a bountiful prospect. In 1918 Charlie enlisted in
the army and trained in Regina. In 1919 we had a big crop
of flax. On the 9th of October it was covered with 2 feet of
snow which did not melt until the following spring. In the
fall of 1919 the price of flax was $5.50 per bushel, The
following spring only $3.00. Our loss was on 500 acres.
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In 1920 1

There followed several years of very tight monfgé
re was a

married Pear] Cowman. Durin% the early 20's
radical change in the method of cultivating and harvesting
in our district. In the early years plowing was the standard
method of preparing summerfallow. It was slow and costly.
Dad and brother Charlie were the first in our district to use
the cultivator exclusively to prepare the summerfallow.
They used 14 horses on a 10 foot cultivator.

In 1928 came the combine. I got one of the first off a
carload arriving in Acadia Valle‘y"i‘el‘g was a pretly crude
machine, compared to the streamli units of today, but it
did the job. Dad passes away in 1924, The next big event
was the financial crisis that started in 1929 when wheat was
1.83 per bushel F.0.B. Fort William. By the fali of 1932 it
was worth 19 per bushel at our elevator, Brother Charlie
and family had a dispersal sale, quit farming and moved to
Victoria B.C, The same year, 1932, Pearl’s father, Mr. Fred
Cowman passed away. In the settling of his estate she was
left a farm & good sized herd of Purebred Registered
Herefords, In the fall of 1933 we shipped all our stock, most
of our household efiects and all horse drawn machinery to
Carstairs and started improving Pearl's new place, which
was mostly bush, and began raising Polled Herefords. The
same year the great drought started and lasted five years.
We operated both places until 1943 and we sold the Acadia
Valley farm. To hold the soil during the dry years we used
a Iwo bottomn lister after the crop was seeded, making
furrows 5 rods apart to catch the drifting soil. When har-
vesting we would wire a 4 x 6 to the end of the combine
table to make a mark to tell us where we had gone the time
before. We could generally collect & $100 worth of grain a
day. The seed was never recovered from millions of acres.
Land value dropped from $35.00 per acre to $1.00 per acre
if you were lucky enough to find a buyer. Cattle sold at 1' a
pound, Anyone wanting & hired man could apply to the
Government who would supply you with one and give you &
bonus of $10.00 per month to keep him,

In 1936 1 opened & Glaubers Salt Mine at Oyen, Alta.,
with the approval of the Alberta Government and operated
it uintil the start of the secnd World War, when we could not
obtain sacks to bag the salt. It was known as “Social Credit
Salt”. Brother Bill passed away in 1940 and his son Wilfred
took over the management of the farm. In clearing the land
we had a big cat with cutter blade and pusher to pile the
brush and a breaker to do the plowing. In 1943 Pearl got a
few head of pedigree mink for a hobby. One of them would

«follow her all around the place. Fred with wife and mother

moved to Calgary and rented their farm. In 1952 mother
passed away at the age of 98, Fred passed away in 1954, In
1954 we had the honour of selling the highest priced Polled
Hereford bull ever consigned o the Calgary Spring Bull
Sale and the record still stands. In the summer of 1958 we
sold the ranch to Mr. Ted Hunt and that fall held a disper-
sal sale at the Exhibition Grounds, Calgary. and sold the
cattle. The success of the sale was made possible by our
good neighbors giving of their time, helping us get cattle in
presentable condition for the sale, In the s of 1959 we
moved to Calgary and retired. We consi that Alberta
has treated us very well.

BOHANNON

Following the death of his father, William Kenkade
Bohannon, Wilfred, his only son, took over for his Mother -
continuing to farm the land and building up their
Registered Purebred Polled Hereford herd. In 1951 he
bought the highest priced Hereford bull ever sold at
Calgary up to that date for $5000.00, built a8 new home, and
in December of the same year married Evehgaia. Spankie,
daughter of Dr. & Mrs. W.E. Spankie, Eye, . Nose and
Throat Specialist of Calgary,

In 1955 Anne Jocelyn, our daughter, was born.

After a lenghty illness Wilfred's Uncle Dave died on



December 7th, 1967: and in 1968 on October 20th his Mother
passed away.

Aunt Pearl continued to live in her owndhtpme mah}i
taining a huge garden - growing, canning an reezing a
her own vegetables until due to ill heaﬁg and now in her
90th vear she entered a nursing home in Calgary,

In the spring of 1973 we had a Purebred Hereford sale-
top end of cows going to Morlunda Farms, West Virginia,
U.8.A., owned by Union Carbide; Clove Creek Farms, New
York State, U.S.A., owned by Franklin Roosevelt Jr., son of
President F.D.R.; and another truck load to Peterborough,
Ontario. The balance of the herd was sold at Olds Auction
Mart, In June Anne graduated from Cremona High Schoo! -
later entering the Southern Alberta Institute of Technology
for a Secretarial Arts Course. We had a farm and land sale
- keeping the quarter on which the house stands where we
continue to enjoy country living.

THE BONHAM FAMILY
By Robert Bonham

The Bonham famil
Bonham, Robert, then
Myrtle, the youngest. The Bonham family moved to the Big
Prairie District in July of 1928 from Calgary. Mr. Bonham
bought the Old Scobie lace, which was the S.E. v, of Sec-
tion 30, Township 30, ﬁange 4, west of the 5th. Which is
about 5 miles north west of Cremona. For a number of
years our post office was at Elkton, then when the town of
Cremona was started we changed to there, We, four
children took our schooling to grade 8 at the Big Prairie
Sgl“ool‘ Mr. Bonham farmed there until his death in March
1934,

.. Robert and David then worked the farm until David
Joined the Army in 1941. He was sent overseas and was in
the Italian and E campaigns. He married in

England and was mustered out of the Army in 1946 and
came home. In 1942 Myrtle Joined the Wrens in Calgary &
was sent east to Nova Scotia. At the wars end she married

Mrs. Ada Bosham, Jean Gillles, Pearl McMullen, Oct 18, 1942

down there, and returned west with her husband in 1947.
Robert and Wallace stayed on the farm during the war.
Mrs. Bonham sold the farm in 1945, She rented a house off
Billie Graham for about a year. Then she and Wallace
moved to Calgary. Robert bought a registered trapline in
the Big Red Deer and James River area of the forest reser-
Ve and trapped for several years. Finally selling that and
going to Calgary too. Mrs, Bonham passed away Nov. 1960
and Wallace passed away in June 1974 at the age of only 53,
David, M_vrtﬁ:a and Robert still live in Calgary at their
respective homes.

An amusing incident | remember when we went (o
school. Dave and | had the Janitor job at school. We had to
€0 a bit early and start the wood burning heater and dust
the desks and etc.; before school started. This particular
morning Dave was starting the stove and T went to the lit-
tle cupboard for a dust rag. The teacher had brought a
sack of rags the day before. So I grabbed a rag and pulled
a;d l;)ut came a pair of women's under bloomers. So I got
the bri j

she demanded that I take them off that instant. So to make
malters worse with fooling around T had forgot to dust her
desk. So I was in her black books for several days.



0)d Bonham barn after roof collapsed.

THE BORTON FAMILY
By Percy Keith Borton

Our father, William John Borton was born in
Teeswater, Bruce County, Ontario. He had at least three
sisters and one brother. His brother Fred, who later
became known as Burton, came west in the 1880's with Pat
Burns, both as horse wranglers. They came as far as Win-
nipeg by C.P.R. but as that was the end of the railway,
they came the rest of the way by covered wagon, etc., they
ranched as neighbors west of Claresholm, Alberta.

One of Dad’s sisters married Wm. Gray and they set-
tled north west of MacLeod, in the early 1800’s. Another
sister married our Mothers brother, Dan Keith. Dad had
three daughters and one son, by his first marriage. His fir-
st wife passed away and he later married our mother,
Catherine Keith, she was also born in Teeswater, Ont., but
was of Scottish decent, There were 11 of us born to the
second marriage. They are listed below. Our Father passed
away in 1915 and Mother in 1930, They are both buried in
the Westbrook cemetery.

Amy Edith - April 30, 188

Ada Gertrude - July 11, 1883,

Mary L. - December 31, 1885

Will - January 31, 1888

Albert John - December 3, 1839

Rachel - January 25, 1801

Robert - July 28, 1892 - Jan, 15, 1979 at &7 yrs. at Harrison
Hot Springs.
Malcolm Harold - June 22, 1894

Henry - April 7, 1896

Foster Graham - October 2, 1897 - March 10, 1972
Catherine Isabelle - January 3, 1900

Arnold - August 19, 1901

Sarah Ann - October 16, 1903

Percy Keith - November 18, 1907

Fred - November 10, 1909

Percy Keith Borton was born November 16, 1907 in
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Airdrie, Alta. He came with his parents to the Bottrel area

in 1911 to the old Borton homestead. He married Eileen

Dunningham, about 1932 and moved to the Water Valley

district. He moved to (picture), lived there until the 40's,

tsh;wen moved to Agassiz, B.C, He retired at Harrison Hot
ings.

0Old log house.

World War 1 broke out in 1914 and Henry and Graham
(Bun) joined in 1915, the 12th C.M.R. and went overseas. In
early 1916 they were fighting in the front lines in France.
On June 23, 1916 at Sanchuary Wood, where thousands of
Canadians were wounded, killed or taken prisoner, Bun
was severely wounded 21 times, one in the head & the rest
in both legs, one badly shattered that left it 22" short.
For this he received $6,00 per month pension, which he
later turned in to the government for $600.00.

Bert Borton joined with the 82nd Batallion early in
1916. Arnold Borton joined the Lord Strathcone Horse
Cavalry near the wars’ end so never went overseas. World
War 11 Fred, the youngest Borton, joined the Calgary
Tanks, June 6, 1940 and saw active service in many coun-
tries. He was discharged December 3, 1945.

Bun Borton lived at Water Valley after the war. He
traveiled about, always with his hair clippers and would
give neighbors free hair cuts. he often stayed at his friends
for a meal and this was his way of paying for it. He often
cut the entire family's hair. When he had a car he
delighted in stopping at soineone’s house (who didn’t have
a vehicle), picking em up & taking them to the Dr,, shop-
ping or visiting. This was his donation to the community
He never married.

AB AND ELLA BORTON

William J. Borton left Teeswater, Bruce County, in 1904
to come to Alberta. In 1906 the rest of the familg arrived
from the east. Albert (Ab) Borton lived on E. '4 8.7, T. 29,
R4, W5. (now Romney's) with his family.

Ella 13mu Hamilton came in 1919 from Ontario to teach
school and taught at Mount Hope and Byron, She met and
married Ab Borton and they lived on his farm, until 1931
when his mother passed away. The Borton's consisted of;
William (Bill) - remained a bachelor and farms 242 miles
north-east of Cremona
Jack - married Thelma (Sammie) Luft in 1850 and they
now farm south-west of Cremona. They have three
children:

Doug - married Yvonne Joseph, they have 2 boys,
Jason and Devin
: ank()oum’e - married Walter Blaszezak, they have 1 boy,

rank.



Marie - attends Cremona School
Janet - married Joe Bardgett, they farm north of Cremona
and have 7 children, Kathy, Bonnie, Jack, Nelson, Joe,
Janet and David.
Ab died in 1932 at the age of 45 years and Ella and the boys
ran the farm until 1950 when she passed away at the age of
63 years.

HISTORY OF LEO BOSCH SR. AND

FAMILY
By Bertha Betts

My Dad, Leo Bosch was born in Odessa, Russia in 1899,
When he was twelve years old he immigrated with his
family to the Burstall, Saskatchewan district Several
years later he came to Beiseker, Alberta, and one year
later married my mother Rosa Silbernagel. They farmed in
the Beiseker area where their first five children were born
(Bertha, Julia, Leo Jr., Peter, and Pijus). In 1931 Dad and
Mom with their family moved to a farm west of Carstairs
which is now the Slobodian place. They farmed here four
years and one more child was born (John). In 1935 they
moved onto the Buster Brown place 2'= miles east of Water
Valley They lived here about two years and a fifth son was
born (Albert). Then Dad bought ten acres located on the
south side of the Water Valley School from Sam Laveque.
As money was very scarce in those days Sam was paid
with a team of horses from choice stock. Dad had raised
horses for several years and had taken & lot of pride in
them. At times he would take the time to braid their tails
and decorate the barness with ribbons, pom poms and
colored rings,

Dad would haul s out east with a team of horses
and wagon. In the fall he would £0 culting grain with a bin-
der for different farmers in the area. he and Mom would
sometimes do the stooking, then when the grain was ready
to thresh he would go with a team and wagon, and still had
their harvest at home to complete after working out, A few
y;aolgse at!ter moving to Water Valley another son was born
( rt).

The family went to school at Water Valley and Mount
Horle. Dad helped build the Catholic Church at Water
Valley. Every Sunday 1 recall all the company we used to
have for dinner, even the Priest always stayed for dinner
as he had to travel back to Carstairs, My Mother was a
wonderful cook and her homemade bread was well remem-

bered by many people who had the opportunity to drop in
for a cui’) of coffee and fresh bread. Times were hard and
Mother used to make her own soap. Our clothes were hand
me downs and made over for the family. We scrubbed
clothes on the wash board for years. We raised chickens,
ducks, cows and pigs, so we managed to have our own
meats, eggs, homemade bulter, homemade sausage, head-
cheese, liverwurst, pickled %ifs feet and our pork was kept
in a salt brine in barrels. We raised all our own garden
vegetables & canned them, as in those days we never had
fridges and deep freezes. 1 remember all the berries us
kids had to pick for preserves for the winter. We didn't

have to walk very far with our buckets, but now
everywhere you go there are no trespassing signs posted so
that ends the berry picking,

The Leo Bosch family 1942, - Back lelt lo right - Dad, Leo Jr., {14), Mom, Ber-
tha (16}, Front; Pius (12), Albert (8), John (11), Robert not barn yet

Feb. 1968. At Banif Carnival on ice. Leo, Bortha, Albert, John and Pigs,



Plus, Robert, John and Dad,

Pius, John, Bertha, Albert, Robert Bosch Children of Leo and Rosa Bosch, Leo
Jv missing - Sept. 1977,

Mother churned butter & sold it at Howard Gazely's store
in Water Valley for 25¢ per pound, Sometimes I took butter
by horse to Cremona to be sold at Rod McLeod's Store that
was on the corner. It also sold for 25° per pound, and the
irip there and back took the biggest part of a day. The
family all worked hard and had to do without a lot of
luxuries but had many happy events despite the hardships.
It was very rewarding in the end.

Dad played for dances at Water Valley, Dartique, Dog
Pound and Madden halls with Guy Gazeley, Gene Winchell,
Fred Hambly and Walter Corbett. They played somewhere
every week, then the band broke up moving o other
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places, Then Dad got his family started and we played
near and far for many years, I remember well all the
house prties. Dad used to play at a different house every
week & moccasin dances on the river at Bituma, ‘‘my
what fun that was''. T recall the dances we used to play at
the Ice Carnival at Banff on the Bow River, Mayor Don
McKay from Calgary used to call the square dances at the
Carmival, That used to be a three day atfair. As years went
on they played more and more, and went further from
home as the vehicles became more modern. They tavelled
as far east as the Saskatchewan border, south to view,
west to Kelowna and north to Westlock. They played most
of the dances on a Friday night at that time as they
weren't allowed o dance after twelve o'clock on Saturday,
their pay was from $30.00 to $70.00 for five or six of them,
and they played from 9 p.m. until 3:30 a.m. and on oc-
casion a collection was taken and paid so we would play
until 4:30 or 5. Many limes the music was donated for bur-
nt out families, Christmas concerts and Red Cross. After
glaying in the district for thirty some years the orchestra

roke up, but Dad kept on playing on his own and getting
assistance from whomever he could. He played until two
years before his death when he was admitted to the Did-
sbury Auxillary. He passed away March 2, 1973 and was
predeceased by Mom on September 18, 1951.

All children are living today except Julia and Peter.
They were deceased in 1922 and 1925. I, Bertha have a
family of four children, all married and ten grandchildren,
Leo Jr. single and living in Red Deer, Pius with four
children, John with three children, two married, Albert
with one child, and Robert with two children.

The original home has since been replaced by a new
home and cabinet shop built by Robert and family.

THE BRIAN FAMILY

By Jimmy Brian

Thomas and Mary Brian, their son Ken and daughter
Gwen, arrived in the Cremona area, in the spring of 1927,
They located on the present farm, north and east of
Cremona. Gwen and Ken took their education at the Elm-
wood School,

Gwen married Andy Thompson in 1904 and they reside
on their farm near Cremona. They have two children Pam
(Mrs. R, Wigmore), and Garry.

In 11 Ken enlisted in the R.C.AF. and served four
vears overseas in England, Ttaly, and N. Africa. In 1945 he
returned to Cremona and started farming, His father

sed away in 1947, In 1946 Ken married E, Jameison
rom Cabri, Sask., they had four children Nelson, Linda,
Stewart and Theresa. Ken was active in sports (hockey,
baseball and curling). he was elevator agent for the Alber-
ta Pacific Grain Co. for 11 years, Mary Brian passed away
in 1964,

Ken and Jimmy built a house in Didsbury in 1974 and
are living there now, Nels and Lynn and family live on the
farm, Stewart is living in Sundre, Linda (Mrs, R. Roberts)
:-1])2(’!3 Theresa (Mrs. J, Wigston) are both residing in Red

T

LOCKI BRIMM

Not to much is known of this man but he apparently
farmed in the Vulcan area, then during the depression he
came to the Water Valley area on a Government Sponsored
plan where as the governmen! paid the unemployed to hire
people. He worked for Ed Laveck and others. During the
war he got a job as quarter master at Banff National Park.
He bought a piece of land from George Day, He later
moved into CaYgary to live with his sister, while there he
passed away.



Locki ai the Quarier Mastsr's cabin,

BILL BROWN
By Bill Brown

I arrived in Didsbury April 12, 1912, came out with Bob
Brown {o Elkton. My brother Stanley, was with me. He
came back to spend Christmas with our folks in England,
he had been out in the Didsbury district since 1907. Well, he
had a homestead on McDougal Coulee across from Joe
Dalton’s place. Well, we batched together there and worked
out and rented Bill Haye's place and Archie McLean's for a
couple of years. Then the first world war came along and
Stanlev and another fellow decided they were going lo
eplist. 1 was threshing with Swingles & when I got home
that is the news I got, so I got busy and had to get busy and
look after eyvorvtming myself. 1 was 19 then. Quite a few
boys from around Elkton and district enlisted. I bought an
accordian from Tommy Potts and in the fall of 1915 1
helped play at my first dances in Elkton school house with
Dan Mcintyre and Andy Metzcar. We played for the Red
Cross after that 1 got to playing at Elkton, Big Prairie,
Melvin and sometimes at Fallen Timber. By that time I
had Kyle Oliver and Lou Bossart (violins), we all played
for a fee and we would get someone like Arthur Shantz to
cord on the organ or Charlie Rawleigh. A good many nights
it would be 10-20 below and 1 used to stay in at Gardiners if
they were goi ﬁnlo Big Prairie. I would leave my horse and
#£o with them. After a while I bought the Mecham place and
farmed the Fisher place, but crops were poor. We did not
know what fertilizer was then, My brother came back from
overseas and b ht back a wife with him. We all lived on
my place for a while and he had a partly finished house on
his place so they fixed it up and went to live there and 1
was alone again.

I staved with it for another 2 vears then I got kind of
fed up so this man Enblad came along and T sold it to him,
lock, stock and barrel. He farmed around 3 years 1 think,
then sold to Thomsen Bros. I worked for Kyle Oliver {or the
rest of the year then I went back to England as my parents
were Eelling quite old, and was back about two months.

Then I got word from Charlie Brown (the old man),
that Kyle Oliver had passed away and would I consider
coming back and belp on the farm, so that is what 1 did,
and thats where 1 worked. After a while I got married and
was there until 1939 when 1 came out here, bought an old
place and fixed it up and I finaily got 42 acres and farmed
and milked cows for another 15 vears, and did quite well.
Then 1 sold it all but 5 acres and about 1 acre across the
road where my house is, where I still live. T just used to
keep a cow and a bunch of young stock and some chickens,
then I got the Model Railway craze and in my spare time I
manage to fill my basement, 25 ft x 36 ft., it took quite a
while. There is over 700 ft. of track, 56 electric switches, 12
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hand switches, 11 engines, 180 cars of all different kinds
and buildings. 1 don't do too much on it now, keep it up in
repairs. I guess I told you my wife passed away August
1966, | was alone again, then my granddaughter and her
husband and family live with me the last 6 years. I still
play in an orchestra, 1 play the drums now, We have been
quite busy on Saturday nights.

Billy Brown, Mrs. Paul, Jack Paul, Mrs. Brown.

Frank Watchorn.

CHARLIE BROWN AND SNOOPY

Mrs. Amy Ellen and her husband, Richard Smith came
from Seven Oakes, England on September 8, 1889 to four
miles west of the present site of Cochrane. She was lady in
waiting for Lady Adela Cochrane. Her job was to help Lady
Cochrane with her 32 button shoes, using a button hook, tie
up her corsets and in general attend to all her needs.
Richard, her husband, polished shoes, kept the saddles,
attended horses ete. for Tom Cochrane. When Richard first
arrived in Calgary at the livery stable some men had a
tame black bear lying down with his paws over his ears. It
seems the men had fed the bear some home brew and the
bear was a bit intoxicated.



The Cochrane's often wenl coyote hunting but onl
saved the tails. He also had a coal mine and a saw mill.
They (oaded the logs on flat cars. They returned to
England & Mother & her husband worked on the Virginia
Ranch & lived in a log house, now on Ike Satchwell land,
The Cochrane Lakes were named as "Dry Lakes” on a
map at that time & Mrs. Smith often drove across them
with the dust flying. She was the first postmistress in Do%
Pound, (then Bradbourne). She picked up the mai
Tuesdays & Fridays.

Mr. Brown came from Edinbourgh, Scotland on July 5,
1895, He had worked al the Waverley Station in Scotland
and retained the name for his ranch, Waverley Polled
Hereford Ranch. Mrs, Smith (now a widow with 3
children), went to Cochrane and ran a hotel for a time and
it was here she me! her second husband, Mr. Brown. He
would ride a horse in from Virginia Ranch where he
worked. They were married November 2, 1904 in Calgary
by Bishop Pinkham. The same day and the same minister
married Norman Luxington and Dave MecDougalls’
daughter. After their marriage they lived at the Virginia
Ranch, until 1904. Mr. Brown came up to the Garfield area,
coming by wagon searching for land. The land was so dry a
wagon wheel would {all in the cracks. The first greon place
he saw was near the Little Red Deer River, and as he had
ranching in mind this was what he was looking for. There
were deer in abundance, grazing in this area (near Elwood
Scotts’ and down the coulee to Rugby). John Manson was
the only white man west of Didsbury around 1890. In early
days mail was dumped off in Carstairs on a seat of an old
shack., Ranchers picked it up and often brought their
neighbors out. Mr. Brown had built a house on his land,
with the help of Harry Hagens' dad, Jim, a stone
foundation was built in 1904. His wife and 3 children (from
the previous marriage), arrived in 1904, The children;
Violet (1890) and Nora (1895). Bert Smith was born at the
Virginia Ranch January 15, 1899. Nora, and Vilot - now in a
nursing home in B.C. These three went to school at Rugby

Charlie Brown's house

Charlie Brown was born December 7, 1907, He attended
school at Rughy and Garfield. Rugby was two miles away
and he rode a horse, sometimes walked and later rode a
bike. The Rugby school was built in the summer of 1906, He
went to Olds college 1925-26.

Mrs. Brown was a midwife and had training in
England. She carried only a small black bag, with a few
essentials. She rode in a buggy or on a horse, Mrs. Clark
Ray often assisted her. She charged $5.00 for the delivery
and sometimes she took care of the mother and baby for 10
days. For this she charged $10.00. Some paid and were very
grateful for her services and from others she never did
collect, Some were born in their home, others in their own
homes. Some of the neighbors she brought into the world

were; Jack Bellamy - born in the Brown house, Buster
Bellamy and his twin (twin and mother died), Harold
Bellamy, Jack Robertsons’ 3 girls, some Goetjens’,
Hosegoods', Viponds, Rosetta Macfarquhar (Moore), Oliver
children. It is possibly easier to list the people in the
community she didn't bring into this world. Danny Russel
was the last baby born in the Brown house.

In the early 20's Mr. Brown had show Clydsdale horses
and took them to Calgary, Edmonton, Toronto Royal and
Chicago International Fairs. They went to Calgary 2 or 3
times per years for supplies, this was a four day trip. They
bought flour, sugar, coal il and the oil was always placed
at the far end of the wagon, not to get on the food. There
were lots of partridge, prairie chicken and as a friend of
Norman Luxingtons' he often came out to shoot game.
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1121-22 - Mr. Brown and Charlle, uaing 2 binders on Berl's quarter

Mr. and Mrs. Brown's wedding picture. 1004.
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1930 first tractor. Browns 22" Red River Special 1630 Harl Parr.

Barn bullt in 1912

Charlie Brown still keeps horses on his farm, He says it
was the horses that bought and built the farm. Cows in the
early days were not worth the hide they were wrapped in;
His father built a barn and always had 6 or 8 horses in the
barn, available for buyers. A horse often brought $200.00 or
$250.00 whereas a cow, perhaps $25.00 and calves $9.00 per
head. A horse was sometimes sold and a quarter of land
could be purchased for the price of one horse. Cows
remained at a low price and after the war the wheat and
horses paid for the farm. Some Clyds. were shipped east,
Charlie was married in the early 4's. They had one girl
born December 22, 1842. His wife went hack to Calgary.
He then had a housekeeper, Lena Sanderson, for 30 years.
She died October 16, 1870. He has lived alone since.

Mrs. Brown died November 9, 1946

Mr. Brown died November 11, 1848 - killed by a car in
Didsbury. Charlie moved out of the old house in 1956,

Charlie Brown now lives alone on his farm with his
dog, Snoopy. He spends about two months of the winter in
Vancouver, still feeds cattle, rents the land and enjoys
helping out and visiting friends

GORDON BRYAM

By Gordon Bryam

As T had lost my home by fire at Elkton area, I had to
find a place to live, so I located & place at Big Prairie in
the fall of 1929, I got a job with Jack Ragan driving truck
hauling the mail to Carstairs and bringing back supplies
for the store at Big Prairie. The store and post office was
run by Mr. Binney. Sometimes I had to use & team of
horses and sleigh as the drifts were too much for a truck.
One year T made eleven trips with the team which took two
days each trip.

In the winter of 1930 and 31, Mr. Ragan (ook on the job
of hauling the surveyers from their camp at old Cremona.
20 I got wound up in that job. We hauled the men out
alang the right of way to work in the morning and back to
camp at night, no roads and through deep snow. Jack
broke the V joint, s0 we got a new one and lay out in the
snow on the prairie, 20 degrees below and put it in. The
survey was supposed o go as far as Mountain House but it
only went as far as Elkton, the steel wenl in the next
summer and to this day 1 bhave only seen one train in
Cremona,

Cremona Village sprang up like magic, one mail
morning as I came into Cremona 1 noticed a blank spot
where the blacksmith shop had been, it had burned down.
As a humorous spot I must warn vou that I turned into a
chicken thief. A man by the name of Arthur Shantz lived
near the Big Prairie store, he had a few chickens, one was
a very large plymouth Rock rooster which was better than
any watch dog, every time a stranger went into or around
his place the old rooster raised cain and would fly into your
face. The evening 1 was at the store when Shantz came
along and knowing that he was not going to leave until Mr.
Binney made Junch, we brought up the subject of his
rooster Shantz vowed that nobody could steal his chickens
because of this rooster, so after he had bragged about his
fool f layout, I decided that I should go home. Mr. Bin-
ney looked at me & 1 looked at him I took off for home
via way of Shantz place. | walked into the barn & the
rooster was hollering his head off so I grabbed him, put a
couple of twists in his neck, took him home with me &
dressed him out. In the morning 1 boiled him a few hours,
then I took a good portion of him & went to the store. Mr
Binney asked “Did you get him?"' We promised to never
tell about this to see how long before Shantz would mention
it but he never did an no static about it, at this time Mr.
Benney was J.P. of the district

In 1932 Duncan Young and | went to Calgary and filed
on homesteads. I filed on the S.E. 14-1-tsp. 30, Range 6, W
of the 5th, later an oil well was started west of me called
the Spindel top. Mr. Percy Wardrop was the steam
engineer but they had a lot of trouble s0 closed it down.ll
cut a lot of poles & dry wood & sold it or traded it for & pi
& butchered it, it cost $5.00 as pigs were 2% psr poun
and steers %4 per pound in Calgary. Feed was hard to get
and everything would freeze back there. Arl Pawson
started up a sawmill s0 this hclﬁed things out a little. In
1935 I sawed a bunch of lumber, the best of it sold for $12.00
a thousand board feet, planed No. 1 - $15.00, but T just about
broke even, then I went with Art as cook at $1.00 per day
You had breakfast at 6:30 a.m. and supper about 6:30 p.m
butﬂl:y the time you did the dishes etc. you had dore a days
WOrk.

In 1838 I went with the Forestry service and got stuck
up on Black rock mountain, 8213 feet ahove sea level as a
lockout man, that was an experience of it's own, it was
unbelieveable, the lightening strikes up there. In 1839 there
were seven fires started in 20 minutes. You had (o carry
your supplies and gas for the stove from timber line abou!
1'= miles. In 1941 1 joined the Army though I have never
seen my name on the honor roll in Cremona, mavbe this
was on account of me stealing that “poster.



JAKE BRYDAN
By Muriel Foster

Jake Bryden lived east of Boltrel, sold out and went
back to Ontario, He worked in a Ford factory while the war
was on, After the war he came wesl again, He lived in dif-
ferent areas, then came to Water Valley. He bought part of
a quarter section east of the church from Jack Dickson.

It is believed Jack Brydan had the first phone in the
Water Valley area. Jack returned to eastern Canada and
he passed away. )

Mr. Batchelor then bought this property. He sold it to
MeDougall. Stan and Audrey Black lived here for some
time. Tt was then sold to Brian Ekman and he in turn sold
it to B, Tayior. It is now being sub divided into the Little
Red Acres.

GLEN AND EVA BULLIED

; Glen Bullied came from Manitoba to Alberta, His wife,
Eva, came from B.C. The Bullied family moved fo the
Water Valley area around the years 1955-56. They first
Jived on the Pete Heidebrecht place, which was owned by
BPave Mc al,

~ After some time here, Glen bought @ mill from Lee
- Salisbury, He gol a timber birth of his own up west and
“also spent some time working for Lee Salisbury. He then
moved south and west of Water Valley on the town line
where he sawed lumber for Spﬁ Lakes Sawmills of
Lochrane. Their children were Laurie, Merrill, LeRoy and

3 :A'If?tér leaving Water Valley they moved to Ross River,

BURKHOLDER-CLARESSA AND THE

LATE ALVIN
Told By Joyce Hale

Slowly they left - a young teenage boy and his father
th a team of horses and a wagor Carrying some precious
ew possessions. The young man, our eidest brother Virgil
xde & horse & herded a few caltle, Accompaning them
the family dog, Rex. We waved good-bye, 1t would be a
e days before we would see them, for the journey was
er 130 miles to the north, to a farm that our father had
grehased, (for a farm is a good place to raise kids),
We were at thal time, a family of 6 children, ages
g from infant to 15 years. A couple of days after our
B had left we were awakened with scrate at the
or, we opened the door and there was Rex.
" It was soon time for us to leave to go to the new place -
pe nearest town was Cremona, & small village north-west
Calgary. Our farm was located across the Big
chool Building a road seemed like fun to us small
jdren, but for our dad and older brother it was hard
jurk, cutting down trees and clearing out stumps. Our first
ear we lived in a converted granary, but at the end of the
sar our dad had & home to move into. Our early recollec-
ms of schoo] in the one roomed school house brings fond
: ries, the pot bellied stove - the teacher trying to keep
grades in order - how did they do it?
~ These were decrrmion vears & times were difficult
w everyone. Our dad found he could not make a living on
s farm and so back to the oil fields of Turner Valley, he
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would go to work for a month at a time. During this time
our mother carried the load of responsibility of managing a
farm and 6 lively children,

Dad continued to look for some business that would let
him make a living at home, and come up with the purchase
of a water well drilling rig. Virgil helped him with this. A
Model A Ford carried them to and from work, but when the
car was parked several little goats climbed up and jumped
up and down, leaving their hoof prints on the top.

At this time my father was able to purchase a ‘4 sec-
tion of land about | mile south of the present location, the
former John Cashman land. There was more land cleared.
This house was very large, but was old and unfurnished.
By this time our family had increased to another boy, We
were now 4 boys and 3 girls,

The war had come and the radio brought results of the
conflict in Europe. Our house was affected, as Virgil joined
the air force. A few months later another baby was born, a
boy. Because Virgil was gone, Dad stayed home to hdg
and because of the new baby, our mother needed help - so
stayed home,

The year of 1944 stands out in all of the Burkholder's
minds. Virgil was stationed in England, Jean and T were
driving or riding horse back to the new high school in
Cremona. A few days after Christmas on the 23th of
December, our dad went to be with the Lord - as a result of
a car ccident. The effect of this incident affected our
family immediately. Friends began working towards
having Virgil brought home, which was accomplished the
following spring. Shortly after his return he met a young
lady, Verla Sanderman, who was working in the hardware
store in Cremona, which was owned by Verla's sister and
husband. A short time later Virgil and Verla were married
and settled on a farm west of Cremona.

1847 | went into nurses training in Victoria, while T
was gone my voungest sister, Ruth met a young man from
Cremona, Reg Johnston and these two fell in love, married
and began to make their home near Cremona, later settling
in Didsbury, where they are now living.

After a lahrse of 10 years there was another wedding, 1
had been to Nigeria and the you:s man I was engaged to
(Bob Hale) became my husband. He was not a local
resident, but was from U.S.A. A year later our other sister,
Jean married a young man who was farming west of
Cremona, Jean and Roy Luyendyk still resides on this farm

The years that followed found our mother selling the farm
and moving to Didsbury, her present home.

Don, who had been many years on the old farm had left
it to become a successful welder and met his wife, Mar-
cella Golden, in Sundre. Their home now is east of Sundre.

Shortly after this Bob married a local girl, Dorothy
Stair, Gerald became a carpenter and travelled hither and
yon, marrying a girl from Calgary, Delsey White.

Wayne still resided (when he was home) with mother
in Didsbury, but after a few years, he too, was married to
‘ak young lady from Cochrane - they now reside east of Sun-
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By this time Virgil and Veria and Bob and Dorothy had
moved north to the Fort St. John area, Gerald remarried to
Linda Aaderman from Cﬁs‘ary a few years later, and they
now reside at Dawson Creek.

Reg and Ruth Johnston are residing in Didsbury at this
time, nol too far from our mother’s. I'm living about 30
miles from Portland, Oregon.

Cremona, as [ saw it last year, has changed little over
the years - as one comes over the hill - there nestled in the
valley, a town - beautiful school - new houses, some new
?]t:ops. a paved highway to Calgary, but the old look is still

ere

I remember Cremona with fond memories, for the
many lessons we learned and for the friends we made. So
many have left this little town, but we do come back to
visit. It is with a mother like ours that we have to say as a
family *'We thank God for you', and those dear friends in
Crem:ga - Thanks - we remember you all with fond
memories,



THE BURRELL FAMILY
By Edith Jerome

The Bowman Burrell family moved to the Bituma
district west of Water Valley in geaptember of 1930. There
were 5 children at that time; ith, Mildred. Bowman
(Bill), Stanley (Stan), & Charles (Chuck), 5 months old,
Doris was born in 1939,

The residence was south of Bituma School and behind
two crossings on the Little Red Deer River, Co ently,
any vehicles attempting the crossings for visits with the
Burrells, often drowned out, and Mr. Burrell or Bob, as he
was known amongst his neighbors, would go and pull them
out of the river with horses or oxen, usually at the crossing
where Ingemar Sunquist lived,

The oxen were ued for farm work as well, as for yvar-
ding out whole trees in the local logging and sawmill
businesses.

.,%\i A AD &

Bob Burrell standing on yoke of oxen, Spol and Jerry, Manty Olson sitting on
Spot. Monty was ““tool push" at the okd “Spindle Top' ol well, drilled of
the old Carte place on Silver Creek, Iater purchased by Harold Borton. Mr.
Burrell wa with a team of horses while building the road to the oll well.
Earnie Sundholm drove the horses, 1534 or 1905,
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Bob had learned to train and use oxen in his early
growing up-days in Nova Scotia and well knew that a good
team of oxen yoked by the head, could pull more than a
team of horses.

Mrs. Burrell, Gladys, passed away in 1943 at Calgary,
Alberta. Bob sold the old home and farm on the river, to
Elmer Foster in 1944, and lived for a time near Bituma
School, where he became ill and was forced to spend the
winter of '46-'47 in hospital. Improved, he returned to the
Bituma district to live with his son, Bowman (Biil) and
wife Delphine White of Carbon, Alta.

Edith was now married to Fred Jerome. Mildred was
married to Jack Brown. Chuck & Stan still lived in the
area loo, but soon began to work farther afield. Doris was
by then living with an aunt and uncle at Mayerthrope, Alta.

In the early 50's, Bob moved north to the Sundre area,
where his sons, Stan and Bill were now located. In 1955 Bob
remarried to “Etta’ a Colorado woman. Chuck was by
sthen married to Norma Freeman of Bently, Alta. and Stan
was married to Shirley Mancell of Calgary, formerly of
Drumheller. Before too man rs, Doris wasmarriea to

vea
Tom Allen, then of Eagle Hill. Mr, Burrell passed away at
Didsbury in 1967.

Back row: Burrell family and Grandma, Gladys, Mildred, Bob, Edith, Mrs.
Burrell's mother - grandma Bailey. Front Row: Stan, Bill, Chuck. 1936

Stan Burrell, Dan Cassity, Allan Oborne.



Stsit's avction - charcosl drawing by Edith Jerome

Mildred died in 1966 in Kimberly, B.C. where she and
Jack ranched, Stan was killed at his home at Sundre, in
1970 in the crash of his small plane. Edith’s husband, Fred,
died in 1970 also, in Red Deer, Alta. Chuck and family and
Edith now resdie in the Yukon, where Stan had opened up a
new hunting territory in the Mackenzie Mtns. in 1465.

HERB BURRESS

Herb and Emma Burress came from Craigmyle, Alta.
and moved in Oct. of 1936 to the S.W. 14-30, Twp. 30, R4,
W-5, and farmed there until Feb, 1946, when they retired to
Calgary and are now residing in Bow Valley Senior Citizens
Lodge.

WRITING FROM JIM BURTON

Jim left his home in Saskatchewan and headed out to
Alberta on horseback at the age of 15. He arrived at Car-
stairs & worked for Guy Sundholm in 1838, At this job he
worked as a farm hand for $15 a month where he earned
his first saddle after working 6 months straight to pay for
it. He rode bareback into Carstairs, caught the train into
Calgary, walked over to Riley-McCormicks, bought the
saddle and caught the next train back to Carstairs which
was about two hours later. The saddle cost him $75.00
brand new, This was not a regular saddle as Jim loved to
rodeo it of course was a bronc saddle. He arrived back at
Carstairs where he put this saddle on his horse and rode

back to his place of work. Jim took in many rodeos and
made out very well. Wild horse racing was his lucky event
often and to this day he is still known as “Wild Horse Bur-

In 1944 Jim arrived in the Water Valley district wisre

he took up residence as a bachelor on the Morgan Lewis
?lace for four years, While he lived there he broke horses
or a living. He loved driving a team and as a result often
found him driving himself and many of his neighbours to
dances at Water Valley. He often hitched up a four horse
team and occasionally a six horse team.

One of Jim's dear friends which taught him much
about horses was Jappy Rodgers. Jim only lived a couple
of miles from Japé)y s0 often Jappy would bring a colt over
to Jim. Jim would get mounted on this colt and the two of
them would head to Cochrane where they would stop at
‘‘the beverage room'', Then they would mount up and head
back. This procedure resulted in “getting the hump out” of
this colt. Jim would ride him a bit more after that and then
Jappy could “'finish him off"" (finish breaking him.) Jaggy
was a great lover of rodeos which brought a great tie bet-
ween the two of them:.

A couple of summers were spent with Bill Johnson
where they packed with horses for Gulf Oil. They started
out on this job with a bunch of horses which were hardly
halter broke. Jim was in his glory as he loved to see a hor-
se buck, Jim began taking pack trips each summer into the
mountains in 1941 and hasn’t missed a summer since, Er-
nie Sundholm & Bob Patchell were two of the fellows from
this k:rea which took part in these trips helping Jim as
cooks.

Jim worked some for George Oldfield. One outstanding
memory of George was that George always had room in his
barn for your horse and always welcomed a visitors to his
table. George's wife Haddi made the best apple pie in
Water Valley as far as Jim was concerned.

Jim spent some lime also working with Iver Skogg and
Ole Olson at the sawmill. Ole used to say *‘I never look to
see how big the log, I yust look at da bow in dat black hor-
ses neck; and da bigger da bow, da bigger da log.”’ Jim
recalls skidding logs up to his waist in depth,

Elmer Foster and Jim spent many hours working side
by side. They hayed together and logged together, always
with teams of horses. To this day when the two meet the
first of their conversation is spent joshing about how good
their horses worked. A true story that Jim likes to teil
about his times with Elmer was as follows, Elmer had a
daughter which Jim wanted to take out. Jim finally got
permission from Elmer to take her to the dance at Water
Valley. Jim hooked up his team to the democrat and set off
Lo pick her up which happened to be eight miles, then from
there they went on to Water Valley, Eimer's daughter had
to play for the dance so Jim was left to find his own dance
gartners. Al the end of the dance, Jim hitched up his team

ut found he was stuck with an extra passenger, none other
than Elmer. Just a little way from the dance hall one of
Jim's horses decided he didn't like what he was pulling and
wenl about to kicking the front out of the democrat. Elmer
grabbed his daughter, to rescue her, and took her home
himseif. That was the first and last time Jim was ever
allowed to take Elmer's daughter out.

Chtf Jordan and Jim Burton fencing for Lee Salishury, 1944,



Ernle Sundholm with Jim Burton's pack outfit

Jim enjoyed taking his boys along with him even
though they were only about a year and a half. One in-
cident Jim likes to tell was about the time he took Pat with
him on horse back to check the cattle up the plains. Jim
jum some wild horses some of which looked pretty
good. They both took to chasing these horses, Pat on Dad’s
hip, they coralled them all. Jim says that today he wouldn't
dare ride by himself like him and Pat rode that day. I won-
der if Pal remember this,

Lee Salisbury played a great part in Jim's life as a
father-in-law and friend, Lee and Lietha lived not too far
from Jim and Leona on the Grease Creek. Lee was a very
serious fellow and took most things serious. He was loved
by most everyone. Horses weren't Lee's greatest interest
?ndhqim did a lot of work that needed to be done by horses
or him.

Jim recalls a lovely bay team that he used while fen-
cing for Lee.

In 1969 Jim went to Jasper to work as a packer for the
Warden Service and used the Government horses. He

cked up into the mountains into the Warden stations and
ook-out towers, One incident he likes to tell about was as
follows. His job along with several other fellows was to
keep the fellows in this out lying areas comfortable. A
phone call came down from one of the lookout towers that
they needed a power saw so they could cut up some wood
as the fellow wasn't able Lo use the backsaw ve well, the
blades kept breaking. Jim knew what this was all about S0
he sluft it off one one of the other fellows. Fred went about
this chore while Jim and several other fellows found a
place to party, This fellow had to pack the powersaw about
two hours on horseback as he couldn't get there any other
way because of it being too steep. When he arrived the
fellow in the cabin was very pleased to see him and
requested some wood bucked for him. The worker seeing
what had really hag;:lmed told the lookout fellow that he
was terribly sorry but power-saws just didn't work at
that high an altitude an proceeded (o return to the bottom
of the mountain to get back at Burton.

After working in Jasper for several summers Jim
returned to Silver Creek Ranch where he had worked along
with the Rossinghs before going to Jasper. Jim's greal love
for his own horses and his great love to work wi children
found him very happy once again in the Water Valley
district. Jim loves to see a child get on a horses and watch
how happy they feel when they say ““This is the first time
I've been on a horse!”. A present he enjoys taking the
children from the Calgary district which come out to Silver
Creek each week, on hayrides, Jim gets pretty proud when
he waltches those children glow with interest and then after
the ride many children go up and talk to the horses and
love them, Jim always has and always will live for his hor-
ses.

Jim recalls an incident when he was breaking horses.
In his travels he ended up in the Seebe area. Jim's (Farf.ner
and himseif were pretty gungrv and they were “riding the
grub line", His partner stopped at his friends place, 50 his
bachelor friend cooked up some grub. When they sat to the
lable they were faced wilg some exira meat that they never
really planned on, (maggots). Being very hungry and all,
they went about eating. Jim pushed these little creatures
off to the side and tried to eat where it looked not so
populated. His friend just turned his face away from his
mate, folded up his slice of meat and ate. As they left on

eir horses, Jim remarked to his friend how he managed
to eat all those creatures. His friend said, I couldn't be as
rude as you were (o herd them off to the side like that
while Soapy was watching you,

Another incident with this same friend - they were
returning from a hunting trip in the Elk Valley. They had
run out of grub and caught in a snow storm. They stopped
in the evening, tied the horses to the top of some trees. in
snow up to the horses chest. They found 4 erackers in the
pack boxes, so they hung up their sleeping bags out in the
snow and slept the night. In the morning they had coffee
grounds left over in their ginny pot, along with their four



crackers between them. Alvin remarked, as they sat
around the fire, "I wonder what the poor people are having
for breakfast'". To this day, Jim is noted for packing more
grub in his pack boxes than a normal person packs in on a
pack (rip.

:’h‘l’sbmqun mare was considered tough. This was taken four days after |
ad her

After courting Leona Salisbury, they were married in
1951, where they resided on the Grease Creek. They wers
very isolated in this area and relied mostly on Jim’s faith-
ful 30-30 and what little they could grow that didn’t freeze.
They drove out to Silver Creek about once a month for
groceries, where they would often get a ride into Water
Valley with someone who had a car.

Jim enjoyed taking his boys along with him even
though they were only about a year and a half. One in-
cident Jim likes to tell was about the time he took Pat with
him on horseback to check the cattle up the plains. Jim
jumg)ed some wild horses, some of which looked pretty

ood. They both took to chasing these horses, Pat on Dad's

ip, they coralled them all. Jim says that today he wouldn't
dare ride by himself like that and Pat rode that day. T won-
der if Pat remembers this.

Lee Salisbury ‘played a great part in Jim's life as a
father in law and friend. Lee and Lietha lived not too far
from Jim and Leona on the Grease Creek. Lee was a very
seripus fellow and took most things serious. He was loved
by most everyone. Horses weren't Lee's greates interest
?nth im did a lot of work that needed to be done by horses
or him,

Jim recalls a lovely bay team that he used while fen-
cing for Lee.

In 1969 Jim went to Jasper to work as a packer for the
Warden Service. He packed up into the mountains into the
warden stations and look out towers. One incident he likes
to tell was about was as follows. His job along with several
other fellows was to keep the fellows in this out lying areas
comfortable. A phone call came down from one of the look
out towers that they needed a power saw so they could cut
up some wood as the fellow wasn't able to use the bucksaw
very well, the blades kept breaking. Jim knew what this
was all about =0 he sluft it off on one of the other fellows.
Fred went about this chore while Jim and several other
fellows found a place to party. This fellow had to pack the
power saw about two hours on horseback as he couldn't get
there any other way because of it being too steep. When he
arrived the fellow in the cabin was very pleased to see him
and requested some wood bucked for him. The worker
seeing what had really happened told the lookout fellow
that he was terribly sorry but power saws just didn't work
at that high an altitude and proceded to return to the bot-
tom of the mountain to get back at Burton.

After working in Jasper for several months, Jim retur-
ned to Silver Creek Ranch where he had worked along with
the Rossingh’s before going to Jasper. Jim’s great love for
his own horses and his great love to work with children
found him very happy once again in the Water Valle
district. Jim loves to see a child get on a horse and watc
how happy they feel when they say, ‘“This is the first time

I've been on a horse!” At present he enjoys taking the
children from the Calgary district which come out to Silver
Creek each week on hayrides. Jim gets pretty proud when
he watches those children glow with interest and then after
the ride many children go up and talk to the horses and

Ivoe them. Jim always has and always will live for his hor-
ses.

THE ALBERT (BERT) BUTLER

FAMILY
By: Dorothy McArthur

Dad was born in Worchestershire, England one of a
family of seven children three girls and four boys. Dad
came to Canada in 1905 at the age of 18 years followed by
his brothers Bill, Jim, and Geroge, they worked al various
jobs. Dad at railroading, road building, logging, and
freighting - all man sized jobs under adverse conditions.

In 1915 he had enough of this adventure and took up a
homestead on the Dog Pound Creek west of the present
Dartigue Lodge where the John Smiths live now. Pickings
were slim on the homestead in his first year there so he
took a job as a ranch hand on the Virginia Ranch which
was owned at the time by Mrs, French and her son Barton.
Ike and Diane Satchwell live there now.

My Mother, Winnifred (Winnie) May Cook was born in
Birmingham, England, eldest of a family of five girls, she
came to Canada in 1910 at the age of 17 years and lived
with her parents and four sisters in Calgary and worked
until she maried Dad in 1916, In March, 1916 Dad enlisted
in the Medical Corps and served for two and a half years in
World War 1. After the war he returned to Calgary to
ﬁather up his wife and family and returned to their

emestead. Though homesteading had its problems and the
horse and buggy were the only means of fransportation
they still enjoyed the community dances and visits with
their neighbors,

In 1927 we moved from the homestead to a farm north
and west of Bottrel where my brother Leonard now lives,
by then my brother Jim and I were ready to start school.
We attended the Mount Hope School walking 114 miles, this
was quite a new and exciting experience for us after life on
the homestead. Dad served as trustee of the Mount Hope
School for some time.

On the homestead. Len, Mary, Dot and Jim.



From right side: Dad, Mom, and Mom's sister Hilda und & friend,

Our shopping was done at the Bottrel General Store
& Post Office. at this time 1 remember it was owned and
operated by Ollie Tidball. There were 2 events each year
we always looked forward to. The Dg“:;ound Stampede
and Sports Day and the annual istmas concerts

travelling of course with team and sleigh or buggy, we also
took in dances at Water Valley, Dog Pound and Dartigue.
Quite Dad would have a job as floor manager. In

the winter 1 remember taking a foot warmer to help keep
us warm. One event which sticks in my mind young as I
was, a Christmas Concert at Westbrook. In preparing to
start home we discovered the horses had broken the sleigh
tongue, so with our robes and blankets we bedded down for
the night on the school house floor, making our way home
in the morning after repairs had been made.

We milked cows and shipped cream to Cochrane
Creamery. As we got older and were able to help with he
work we t more land and grew wheal, barley, and
oats. We binders drawn with four horses to cut the
crops into bundles, it was then stooked, later to be loaded
on hay racks and hauled to the buildings and stacked,
waiting for the threshing machine, sometime in the winter
to thresh it. The depression ndyears were tough. Dad was
crippled with rheumatism and was just able to get around
on crutches, Jim had to quit school before finishing his
grade eight to help at home. Over the years our family
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gre\lv‘ to eight children, as they say many hands make light
work!

Mother was a member of the Bottrell Busy Beavers
Ladies Club & Dad a member of the Cremona Legion, Af-
ter forty-odd years of farming Mother and Dad retired to
Calgary and my brothers Leonard and Billy took over the
farm. In July 1956 we were saddened by the loss of our
Mother at the age of 63 years.

Jim Butler married
return from World War II, they reside at Springbank,
Calgary, where he is in Real Estate (Butler Agencies).
There children are; Russel, Bradly and Janice, Calgary.
Darlene; is married to Constable Bruce Montgomery of Pt,
Ququtlam, B.C.

Dorothy married Jim McArthur, they farm at Dog
Pound. Their famﬂ{aconsisls of Bette-Ann - married 10
Robert Bosch, they have two children, Karen and Kalvin,
and they live at Water Valley.

Maxine married Barry Herbert - 2 sons Frank and Jeff
completes their family, they make their home at Elkton.

Leonard; married Betty (Croft), Gillis and they live on
our farm, they have four children; Danny and Reg -
Calgary. Eric and Joan at home.

Marjorie; after returning home from doing her time in
the army, married Roland Ritson Bennett, they live at Lynn
Lake Manitoba where they work for Sherrit Gordon Mines,
they have 2 children; Virginia; married to Keith Murihead,
they have one son Peter and live at Lynn Lake.

Linday; also lives at Lynn Lake,

Ethel. married Lorne (Pat) Paterson, their family con-
sists of Douglas and Gregary. Pat passed away and Ethel
and boys now live in Grande Prairie. Douglas is married to
Sandra and works for A.G.T. They have 1 girl, Lorri Ann.

William (Bill); married Glenda Betts, they farm at
Dog Pound, two girls Cheryl and Bernice completes their

family.

Gladys; married Tom Stables and resides al
Springbank, Calgary, they have a contracting business
(Budget Builders), they have 4 children Donald and David
at Cochrane. Deborha and Sharon at home.

Vera: married Charles (Chuck) Holbrook and farm al
Cremona. Their children are; Rod - married Susan Snyder,
they live at Cremona.

Malcom - married Serena Pockar, they live in Calgary.

Kelly lives at home.

Through the years in Calgary, Dad has been an active
member of the Army and Navy Club and the No. I Legion,
he has many dart championships to his credit, he still en-
joys reasonably good health his secret being his walk to the

ion from where he resides at Baker House 230-5th Ave.
E. He has twenty one grandchildren and six greal grand-
children. In April 1978 he was 83 years young!

+ Albert Butler passed away Feb. 1, 1979 at the age of 8
years.

[iad and his dart championship trophy




THE GEORGE BUTLER FAMILY

George and I, Eugene, and our four sons, Ernest,
Gerald, Orville and Harold moved to Water Vallay in July
of 1948 to go into the lumber business, We had made a deal
with Ed Laveck for the timber on his place west of Water
Valley with stumpage of $4.00 . payable after the
lumber was sold. We were ready to start operations that
fall. We had Marine Vandenberg to do most of the logging
and Elmer and Leo Foster did the skidding, The biggest
probiem was hauling the lumber to Water Valley, as the
roads were mostly impassable and we had to corduroy
more mud holes than [ care to recall.

We had contracted all the lumber to Walter May who
had the main store, Post Office and lumber yard for $15.00
mM. Of course the cost of living was not as high then.

ie didn’t stay out there very long as he had a job with
an 0il Co. He started as a rough-neck but soon was a tool-

ush so he and Doreen Bills of Crossfield were married in
930, Orville still of school age, attended Biluma school for
a while but as there was just & supervisor with correspon-
dence lessons, I decided he might as well do them at home
& save him those long rides and he got along quite well,

Harold started his schooling that way and done real
well. We enjoyed the work but the other boys decided they
would rather do other work so we decided to leave the
bush. In the fall of 1952 we went to work for Walter May at
Walter Valley. e worked in the store and 1 did the
books for all the business and locked after the Post Office.
We lived in the house beside the store and were quite hap-
py not to have to contend with those terrible roads.

We took part in all the Community activities and were
both on the Hall Board for several years. George always
had an orchestra and after the Boschs' left they played for
all the dances at Water Valley, Dartique, Morley and some
at Dog Pound.

Gerald married Darlene Jager in 1954. Orville married
Ann Fenn in 1957 and Harold married Louise Fuson in 1963,
We stayed on with Walter until he sold the store and lum-
ber yard in 1963. George decided to retire then so we built a
nice little home jusl east of the lumber yard and fixed a
nice yard and garden. 1 stayed on working at the lumber
vard. We spenl a very enjoyable four years in our new
home then Georl}e passed away in 1967. I still continued in
the lumber yard until my retirement in 1972 and thought
I'd continue to live there but living alone didn't appeal to
me so in 1973 [ sold m{ home and moved to the v View
Logeg% in Crossfield where I still reside and am very happy
to ere.

THE RAMBLINGS OF A ROLLING
STONE

By George Butler 1966

Some months ago [ received an invitation from the
Cremona Green and Gold to write of some of my ex-

iences in the west, Having some time on my hands now
1 will take the opportunity of accepting the invitation.

I should say at the onset that having read of the ex-
periences of some of the pioneers who came to the wesl
years before I did, some even before the turn of the cen-
tury, 1 feel as though I may be tresspassing, as it wasn't
until 1910 that I came to the west, arriving in Winnipeg on
the seventh of March of that year. While at that time there
were some thriving cities, towns and villages throughout
the west, there were a lot of wide spaces and 1 must
admit it was the wide open spaces facinated me, and
being young with no responsibilities 1 resolved to see as
much of the west as possible while I had the opportunity.
That resolve was pretty well accomplished during my first
three or four years in the West. I made several trips across
the lengthwise of the three prairie provinces,

37

There was no unemployment in those days. You could
#o anywhere and be sure that g_l{ou wanted a job you could
get it. All you needed was a willingness to do anything, I
guess | must had the necessary qualifications for 1 worked
at everything from farming to every other known oc-
cupation, I plowed prairie sod in all the prairie provinces
with ever{thing from horses pulling wooden beam walking
plow to steam engines pulling eight and ten bottom plows
in sod and as many as fourteen in stubble. The jobs I liked
best were steam work and threshing on big outfits that
travelled all over the country side.

But to get back to thal first year in the west 1910,
During that summer of that vear I worked in southern
Manitoba, at Cartwright, a little town close to the North
Dakota border. I remained in that district until after the
harvest and then decided to head futher west. In the mean-
time I had been corresponding with a former Ontario
school ¢chum who had come west and was at Edmonton, We
had arranged that I would meet him there, However, I had
heard a lot about Calgary so decided I would stop off there
on the way to Edmonton.

On arriving in Alberta 1 thought it was the most won-
derful country I had ever seen and 1 haven't seen anythin
since to change my mind, and although at that time [ ha
no thought of settling down, I knew that when I did stop
rolling it would be in Alberta. After spending a day or two
in Calgary I went on to Edmonton. The railway between
Caigary and Edmonton did not quite reach Edmonton at
that time. It went to Strathcona and from there the

ssengers where taken by a horse drawn bus over the low
evel bridge and at the foot of the hill on the north side of
the river they were lifted by a cable hoist to the top of the
hill on a fevel with Jasper Avenue. On meeting my iriend
we spent a couple of days looking over the city then
decided we had better get a job. We wenl out on a railway
%ng laying steel from Maclin to Outlook in Saskatchewan.

at job lasted until winter set in, navigation on the greatl
lakes closed and no more steel came through, When the
work shut down the railroad company gave a pass to any
place in Canada to everyone on the job. I suppose this was
50 there would not be a concentration of s¢ many men in
one place. At that time it seemed all roads led to Winnipeg
s0 that is where most of them went including my chum and
1. One day we were having lunch when a man came into
the cafe and as it was pretty well filled, sat at our table
with us. He introduced himself to us as Pete Rogers of
Yorkton, Saskatchewan, A general conversation was
carried on in which he told us he was farming in the
Yorkton area, which by the way, was a very famous oal
growing district, he also said he had a lot of grain to haul
and although he had not come to Winnipeg seeking men if
we wanted the job we could go back with him and have it.
This suited us so the next day we took the train with
him to Yorkton. After many experiences and a cold winter
in Saskatchewan, I then left came again to Alberta.

Before closing | would like to make one observation
based on my travels across the west. I would like to say
that the west was opened up by two types of settlers. There
were, of course, many types of people who came west but I
am referring to those settled on the land. The one type
could hardly be called homeseekers, rtunity seekers
would be a better fitting name. 18 tylﬁe, largely
bachelars, came to the west and seeing what they thought
was a golden oppertunity whereby they could get one hu-
dred and sixty acres of land for ten dollars, built a shack
good enough to crawl into out of the rain, then the idea that
success meant ploughing right up to the door and sowing it
10 wheat to do just that, No doubt they had
dreams of & golden harvest, but alas, they either
overlooked, or didn't know that the elements were nol
always kind to the western settler, so their dreams were
badly shattered one morning when they opened the door to
find their wheat crop frozen black, This was hard to take
and many of them could not take it. Some of them just
walked out, others stayed with it until they got title to their
claims and sold them for whal they could get, then moved



on o seek the foot of the rainbow somewhere else. Still in
all fairness we must admil that even this type of settler
played a part in the opening up of the west.

Then there was the other type of settler, the
homemaker. This was a class of people who never knew
there was such a word as *'Quit”, They came to the west,
many of them with their families, firmly determined to
establish a home, Theﬁo found suitable locations and
proceeded to build that home. Nothing elaborate to start
with but nevertheless built with the idea of permanence
Among the first thing they did was to lay oul a permanent
garden where they grew their own vegetables and in due
time had the usual row of rhubarb and berry buhes. They
planted every tree and bush they could get with the view of
creating a shelter belt. They faced their ups and downs
which sometimes meant battling the oft time merciless
elements. They took the had with the good, their only en-
couragement being the consoling thought that it might be
better next year, Now I would ventrue to say that a survey
of the west from Winnipeg to the mountains would show
that these places are largely still in the family name. Many
of the original settlers have passed on, others having
reached the age of retirement have turned their places
over o the younger generation and retired to the cities or
their local towns where they may spend their rémaining
years living over again in their memory their years of
exeriences on the western prairies. It is to this latter type
of settlers, that we owe so many thanks, for they through
their patience, perserverence and determination have
played the major role in bringing this country to it's present
appsgrance of progress and permanence which we are so
proud.

* George Butler died Dec. 9, 1967,

ROSS CAMERON

A DAY AT SEA

By Ross Cameron, Halifax 1963
Communication Branch H.M.C.S, TerraNova

This article is an attempt to give those of you who have
no concept of Navy life, some idea as how the men that go
down to the sea live, To the ones of you that may think that
life for the much-talked about sailor is soft, spare me a few
moments-and let your imagination run free--. First of all
imagine yourself in something that is approx. two hundred
& sixty-four feet long is inhabited by some 250 people, and
rocks & sways constantly. Imagine that you have been at
sea for, oh let's say ten days. During this time you have
been standing wate that consist four hours on and
eight hours off. Needless to say, you are tired. Just Lo be in
keeping with the rest of our “‘story", let's suppose that you-
yes, you - for you are now at sea, remember, have the first
watch (8:00 p.m. ‘till 12 p.m.J or in Naval time 2000 hours
until 0000 hours. The Naval day consists of 24 hours, star-
ting at 0000 and going right up until 2359, or one minute to
12:00 midnight. Now where were we, oh yes, the first wat-
ch. Therefore, you had what is rather laughingly called a
‘“night in"". This means you were abie to sleep (supposedly)
from 12 until 0630, Now the day begins, the first thing that
the hands hear in the morning. This is rather a rude
awakening and is promptly followed up by a none-to-gentle
shake by the duty petty officer. The conversation at this
time usually consists of loud and varied groans and com-

laints. At 0700 (7:00 a.m.) "Hands to breakfast" is piped.
re is very little time to wait here, because the cooks
close the galley al exactly, and exactly is what [ mean, at
0730. Breakfast is usually eggs, ﬁancakes, beans and
various and sundry cereals etc., backed up by a brew that
bears very little resemblence to coffee; as well astea &
milk. There is usually a few minutes to relax after break-
fast, for a smoke and to talk about the same thing you have
talked about all week. Then a warning of work to come,
“oul pipes”, of course no one moves. About five minutes

later, “hands to cleaning stations” is heard. This is mel
with many varied comments, very few of which would be
repeated in mixed company. However, the ship must be
cleaned right of bow to stern, all must be scrubbed. In good
time, everyone goes to his cleaning station, and the scrub
b:gins. The decks (you call them floors) have to be scrub-
bed with soap and steel wool. The od's (ordinary seamen)
usually get assigned to the task of doing the actual scrub-
bing, while the Ab's and perbaps a leading seaman, mop or
wipe up the scrubbed portions. Of course, prior to scrub-
bing, all the tops of the lockers and all the ventilation
systems have to be dusted down. All this done by 0900 when
“hands carry on with departmental work" is piped. This
means just what it says. All hands report to their various
branches, & are given jobs. These jobs, of course, vary a
great deal with the branch that you may be in. You may be
a stores rate, and spend the day working on lists of what
will be needed when you hit the next port, or a seaman,
and work all day on the upper deck. On the other hand you
may be a communicator and spend the day below the
decks, guarding various circuits or working on books. The
war on the upper decks is constant, By the term the “war”
I refer to the one against rust and corrosion and salt water.
The seaman branches (ie. Bos'ns water rates, and to a cer-
tain extent, radar plotters etc.) are constantly chipping
paint, in order to make way for new paint to be laid down.
This is endless, tiring circle. At no time during the day, is
the sound of paint chippers hitting the decks absent, The
rust which appears aimost overnight must go, Many sailors
feel that this is the eternal battle of man against the sea,
that so many books speak of. Of course, the ship is divided
up into sections, known as '‘part ship', and all the bran-
ches have a part to look after.

Way below decks, the mechanics (or strokers as they
are called) can always be found either tearing apart, or
gumng something back together again. These people have

y far the dirtiest job, caring for the big diesels and tur-
bines that keep the ship moving, but the least of all they
are below decks where it is warm and dry all the time.
Many exercises take place during the day. These may be
done with other Canadian ships, or with American ships, or
in many cases with submarines. Canada, as a member of
Nato takes her place along with other Nations in various
exercises, all designed to make us more ready to defend
our country, should war ever become eminnant. Perhaps
there will be a flag hoist for the signalmen, or a plotting
exercise for the radar plotters, or a concentrated effort to
find and destroy a submarine in mock anti-submarine war-
fare Perhaps there will be a weapon exercise for the gun-
nery people, maybe with aircraft participating for as (air-
surfacel shoots. The list for activities is endless, and
almost incredibly varied. One thing is certain, there is very
seldom a quiet moment at sea.

At 1545 (3:45 p.m. to you) the second favorite pipe of
the day is heard,..'*clear the decks, return gear’. At this,
great ambition is shown, and all equipment is hurridly
stowed. Then to everyones relief, “secure’ is piped. At this
everyone is free to do as he likes, except for the men with
the “first dog watch” which is beginning at secure
Although the working day is ended, now a series of watches
that last all night begins. All parts of the ships are watched
al all limes. So, actually the day never e for a satlor .
Whenever he is al sea, and goes to bed, he knows that he
will most likely be shaken shortly to go stand watch. This
is a never ending cycle that lasts as long as the ship is at
sea. Well, there you are. Now at least you will have some
poor idea of how a day at sea is spent. This is rather a
short description - all the rough weather - the sea sickness -
and the constant feeling of tiredness is hard to describe,
and yet somehow, when the ships pull into a new port, and
the prospects of going ashore and having & good time in a
strange place loom up - ves, somehow it seems worthwhile.
WHAT IS A SAILOR?

After the security of childhood and the insecurity of a
second childhood we find a bunch of good Joes whom we
shall call sailors. They come in assorted sizes, shapes and



states of sobriety. They can be found anywhere, on ships,
in bars, on leave, in love, and almost always in debt, Girls
love them, towns lolerate them, and the government sup-

rts them, A sailor is laziness with a deck of cards,

ravery with a gun, and a protector of the seas with a
playboy magazine. He is the enemy of a turtle, the slyness
of a fox, the brains of an idiot, the stories of a sea captain,
and the sincerety of a liar, the aspirations of a Cassanova,
and when he wants something it is usually week-end liber-
ty. Some of the things he likes are women, girls, females,
dames and the opposite sex. He dislikes writing letters,
wearing uniforms, superior officers, the chow, and getting
up on time. No one else can cram into one pockel a little
biack book, a deck of cards, a bear can opener, and what is
left of last weeks pay. He likes 1o spend some of his time on
girls, some on horses, and the rest foolishly. A sailor is a
magic ereature you can lock him out of your house but not
for long off your mind, might as well give up, He is your
far away from home lover and your one and only
hiearyeyed, good for nothing bundie of worry, but all your
shattered dreams are insignificant when you satlor docks,
comes home and looks at you with those blood shot eyes
and says "“hia honey",

EDDY CARLSON

By Muriel Foster

Eddy Carlson and his father came up from the States
to the Water Valley area. Eddy's father homesteaded 1
mile west and 1= miles south of Water Valley. After he
reached the age to be able to homestead, Eddy
homesteaded a quarter, 2 miles wesl and a '3 mile south of
Water Valley.

After Eddy's father passed away, Eddy was left his
father's homestead. Eddy lived most of his life in the area,
he had a sawmill which he operated by himself. When he
finally got too old to live alone he sold his places and
moved to Didsbury old folks home,

Eddy Carlson was born on Janua
away on August 2, 1978. He lived to
Water Valley's longest residents.

2, 1891 and passed
e age ol 87, one of

THE CARLETON FAMILY
By Ralph Carleton

We lived in Saskatchewan all our lives, but due to the
school situation and the scarcity of neighbors in the far
south-west of that province, we thought of moving. In 1959,
our family took a holiday, and spent a few days visiting the
David McBrides, who had moved to the Cremona district
from Saskatchewan. Having seen the province from Car-
dston to Olds, we started to advertise and correspond, and
after looking at places from Medicine Hat to Dawson Creek
we bought arm which Fred Colwell had farmed from
the early days, and when he retired in 1955 had sold to Art
Howden. Of all the places we saw, we consider Cremona &

district the nicest we could have settled in, both as to
countryside and as to the people, our neighbours.

On May 9th, 1961, we moved here to stay-my wife,
Mary; our three children, Ron, Rose and Nell, and Mary's
mother, Mrs. Pratt, Grannie is a Scot who became
displaced in 1919 when she maried a Canadian soldier and
settled on a homestead near Ravenscrag, Sask. We are her
only near relatives in Canada. She lived in a trailer in our
yard till she entered a nursing home in Vulcan in 1967. She
now is 93, and still has good health,

The Cremona School filled our hopes for the kids preity
well, All of them Matriculated without going more than five
miles from home to attend. In Saskatchewan where we
were, this would have been impossible, So our thanks to

Mr. Cliff Sorenson, the principal, and his staff who put up
with the three of them till Neil graduated in 1971. Ron, the
oldest. finished Gr. 12 in 1967. and Rose in 1970,

Coming from a distret where some of the Government
leases would allow only four cows and their calves on a
quarter section, it was an eye-o| r to see cattle pastured
on 2 or 3 acres each and still leave the grass untouched,
We still marvel at the amount of growth the area supports.
One American is said to have reported that there is more
grass on Alberta's roadsides than in the whole state of
Texas. (I can't verify that, though). The heavy yields of
grain are another satisfying thing about the area. Because
a ({\‘.laner-section isn't quite enough, 1 have generally
worked out, as well as the farm. We keep a few sheep, cat-
tle, chickens, etc,, and have a garden every vear, but |
have worked at gas plants, oil rigs, construction, and other
things to keep things ahead of inflation. Our area provides
a great many opportunities that much of the drier parts of
the Prairies never see, The moisture that falls can be a
drawback at times, as the following poem shows:

HARVEST IN MOUNTAIN VIEW
The oats and barley lie in swaths,
Wet with a hundred showers.

The anxious farmer scans the sky
And grudges passing hours,

At last the barvest smiles again;

A golden sun breaks through,

And combines pace in solemn haste
Beneath a sky of blue.

The poplars drop their &olden leaves,
Dark evergreens peep through,

As all the hills along the creek

Lose summer's verdant hue.

The cattle glean the garnered fields
Free now from pastures bare,

And face the winter fat and sleek
Without a fret or care.

-R.Carleton

The Carieton family

All three of our family attended Bible School after
finishing High School. Ron, the oldest, put in four years
with the Gospel Messengers, a male quartet, playing the
piano. He then took a business course at Red River College
in Winnipeg, and now he, with his wife and baby daughter,
are in France as missionaries. Near the Mediterranean, it
rains in the winter, but ‘at lease we don’t have to shovel it."



Rose is at Three Hills, secretary for the Overseas
Missionary Fellowship.

Neil graduated from Winnipeg Bible College this
sgring. and has been staying at home this year, working in
the distriet,

Mary and ! can't think of a better place 1o have raised
& family, or to spend some more years if God so wills.

Ay Pratt

WILF CARTER
THE YODELLING COWBOY

By: A Wilf Carter Fan

Wilf Carter was born December 18, 1904 at Port Hilford
Nova Scotia, the 6th child of a minister and his wife. It
didn’t take him lonieto make up his mind what he wanted
to do in life. When he was nine vears old, he heard a ren-
dition of “Sleep, My Little One, Sleep'" and he decided right
then and there he wanted to become a cowboy singer. His
ambition appeared doomed to an early failire however,
when Wilf's father, a Presbyterian minister, caught his son
singing on a street corner of the Nova Scotia town, where
he spent his childhood. The teachings of his stern father
permitted little singing in the Carter household, certainly
not the type of songs Wilf enjoyed, tunes he’d picked up
from farmhands and cowboys who strayed through his
hometown. he left home at an early age and tried several
Jobs, forever seeking a better one than the last. His
nomadic life took him from the sawmills in Canada to
Masachusetts then to Boston and finally to Calgary, Alber-
ta where he worked in the grainfields at harvest time.
From there he drifted to Bassano where he worked for a
rancher. It was in that area that he began singing at local
dances, often writing his own songs,

In 1924 Wilf was in Alberta to stay. He went to work for
a ranch and soon fell under the spell of the famed rodeo
champion, Pete Knight, who became Carter’s teacher in
the ways of the west. He became a good ranch-hand and
with Knight, toured the western rodeo circuit. Wilf's
greatest moments occured when he was singing at dances
and parties.

In 1926 he went to a radio station in Calgary to apply
for a audition but was turned down. In 1930 he was hired by
a local radio station to sing every Friday night for their
hoe-down. About this time, a Toronto music publisher was
looking for western singers who wrote their own material,
By, this time, Wilf had already given up ranching for good
in order to really get in to show business. Two of his tunes,
“Twilight on the gPmirie and Dear Old Daddy of Mine"

were published, but as sheet music they did not sell, Wil
disgustedly returned to the west and got a job in the
Canadian Rockies trail-riding for the C.P.R. These trail
rides were annual evenls v:'rnt?: about eight or len cowboys
escorting as many as a hundred dudes on a week-long trip
into the Rockies. One of the dudes, a wealthy American
from New York City became a fan of Carter's and per-
suaded him to come to New York, even assisting Will
financially. The new-found influential friend helped Wilf get
auditions with the radio networks, and after Some
discouraging turn-downs, CBS decided (o hire a cowboy
singer for an early morning show. The show was an imm-
ediate success It was here in New York, that he met and
married his wife, Bobbie in 1934,

In 1937 Will bought a 320 acre ranch near Cremona,
tnow Lynn Reid's). They had two daughters, Sheila &
Carol, When Sheila was seven and Carol was four the
family decided to go back into show biz and so Clinton,
New Jersey became their home. He began touring the
country and his daughters apl;)eared with him in the shows,
singing lap dnncing, and ballet dancing. After practicing
four nights a week for three years the girls were credited
by expert dancing teachers as perfect and they often stole
the show with their ability for a family show, When not on
the road, the Carter family make their home in Winter
Park, Florida. In his years in show business, Wilf Carter
has made several tours across Canada’ appeared al the
Toronlo Exhibition, he toured Australia, has gen heard on
radio and seen on television and has appeared in most of
the 50 states. Wilf has thousands of friends where ever he
Fues. he is a big homely, soft-eyed man with a gentle, wist-
ul expression. It is with keen interest thal we the people of
Cremona & district listen for news of Wilf and look for-
wargd to his visits as he always call§ on the older citizens
who'are his friends. Cremona holds many fond memories
of Wilf during the days of his residence here, and wigh him
many more years of fame and fortune.
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The barn - now on Lynn Reid’s farm.

WILF CARTER

By Wellie Foster 1978

There is a picture and a story of the singer Wilf Carter
in the September Reader's Digest, I knew this man quite
well, he worked as a hired man at & farm out towards Ac-
me. Later on he worked as a hired man for the late Phil
Foal for several years, who lived east of Carstairs. Those
days there used to be Christmas Parties before Christmas
at the country schools, This is where | helieve Carter did
his first singing before the public. Later on when he
became well to do he bought Burnett's farm east of
Cremona. He had his name printed on the roof of the barn
but later had it removed since the public bothered him too
much,

One of Carter's songs was of the mad trapper in the
north who shot to death three policemen and was later shot
to death by the Mounted Police. Carter also produced the
song of the late Pete Knight, cowboy champion of the
waorld. I knew this man and danced with his sister at a dan-
ce at Crossfield many years ago.

I sold a shorthorn bull to the late Phil Foat when Car-
ter worked there. I delivered him in a truck. I had a rope
around his horns, when he came down the shoot, Carter
grahbed the rope, the bull swung his horns and ripped Car-
ter's shirt and underwear, Had the horn gone a little
deeper, Carter might never had sung any more songs. They
dehorned the bull that day. This was in the twenties and
early thirties.

CHARLIE CHAPMAN

Charlie and family lived on a quarter section south of
Bituma school. This quarter was right on the Little Red
Deer River. This place was known in later years as the
Burrell place. )

From here Charlie moved to the Sundholm place and
then to a quarter in the Graham area. This last place was
south-west of where Sam and Betsy Gentry now live. This
man was better known through the area as Scoop Chap-
man.

MR. AND MRS. WILLIAM COATES
SR.

By: Grace Ford (Coates)

My Father, William Richard Coates, was born in Ben-
ton, Wisconsin, 1881. He was of English origin, His people
came from a mining community near Liverpool, England.
In 1901 at seventeen he left the corn fields of Wisconsin and

a

immigrated to Olds, He drilled wells for a time and in 1901
filed on a homestead, nine miles east of Didsbury. In 1903
he married Lila Fisher who came west  with her father,
Jas. Fisher, from Kincardine, Ont. Moving to a homestead
to & log cabin was not easy. The {urniture was the bare
necessities and all they had was a horse and stone boat. To
gel a start my father took cattle on shares from Pat Burns,
This was hauled by wagon team and loaded into freight
cars. Walking behind a team to keep from freezing on the
long hauls left much to be desired.

The share cattle made it sible for Dad to build &
herd and as the years e became an Angus stock-
man. For sometime he bred Belgian horses and these were
used to do the farm work until they were replaced by trac-
tors. He kept sheep for years and found these profitable as
he could sell the wool and lambs each year. Dad and my
brothers sheared the sheep and the wool was tied and
packed into large sacks for shipping. Often they sheared
the sheep around the country for other farmers,

My parents had five sons and two daughters; Billy,
Harry and I were all born at home. When the doctor was
needed, Dad hooked the horses to the stoneboat, rattled
over the prairie and brought Mrs. Reimer, a mid-
wife. She delivered us for a small fee of five dollars. The
twins, Jim and Hazel, were delivered by Dr. Lincoin who
lived northeast on the Morasch farm. Mother seldom had
help after we were born.

I recall the delicious homemade bread, butter and
lemon pies she made. For years Dad had a winter project
in the Fallen Timber area, cutting logs, sawing and hauling
the lumber home to build fences and farm buildings. In
1912 the log cabin was replaced by a new house.

The hungry thirties hit in 1929 and for years a buck was
hard to come by. Grain and cattle prices hit an all time
low. Cows were sold for $30 a head. It was not until the
Second World War that farmers received a reasonable
profit for their produce. Time changed things and slowly
we grew up and left the farm. All the boys continued to
raise stock. Billy, the eldest, married in 1926 and farmed at
Mt. View Hall. Later he moved to Burnside and farmed
there until he retired to Olds in 1948, Harry married in 1933
and farmed at the Fallen Timber until 1941 when he moved
to Wardiow where he and Jack have ranched ever since.

Jim moved to Big Prairie near Cremona in 1931 and
has farmed and ranched there. 1 attended high school in
Didsbury, normalled in Camrose and taught school at Big
Prairie and Huntsliff. In 1933 | married Edward Ford and
moved to Didsbury. Ed bought out his partner, Cecil Ad-
shead, in 1939 and continued as car dealer until his death in
1960. My younger brother, Hally (Pat) leased the oid farm
and lived with my mother after my father’s death in 1955,
Pat was killed in a highway accident in Noy, 1962 and my
mother's death followed in ch, 1963,

THE CALVIN COLEMAN FAMILY

Calvin Coleman was born in Elmwood, Ontario, in 1804,
the youngest child in a family of five. When he was 2 years
old the family moved to Englefeld, Saskatchewan, When
Calvin was 15 years old he quit school and came to Alberta
to visit his cousins, the Reists’, who farmed east of Did-
shury. He arived March 8, 1920 at Didsbury. There was lots
of snow and the Reist's came to pick him up, from the train
with a sleigh and horses. He worked here until fall, when
his folks came out and bought the Haliman place, 6'4 miles
north-west of Carstairs. Calvin returned to Saskatchewan
and worked for two years and then he and his cousin, Ruth
Lewis came west again, this time to stay.

The Colemans’ remained on the Hallman place for
three years, then in 1923 they moved to the Sherman place,
(now Clarence Reids), Stan, Calvin and the folks were the
only ones of the family to stay here. Milton, the eldest son
stayed three miles from Carstairs at the Shriber place, but



came later and worked one half of the land and Calvin the
east half, were here two years and then bought the
Jim Hickey e, now owned by Chuck Holbrook. They
had 3 quarters. There were no buildings at the time so
Calvin and his father built the barn, pump house and the
house, which is still being used. The Colemans decided to
expand and rented the Burnett place, now owned by Bob
Whitlow. James (his father), was living on the Hickey

place now, Calvin left here and rented land further west on
a place called Longs, west of Roy Morks, He was here one
gall s;nd one spring and then rented the land to the Warren
amily.

In 1828 Calvin moved again, this time to the Skinner
place, now owned by Bud McBain, He had this lease for 3
years.
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Calvin Coleman on the Sherman place. 1433 Team “'Kate and Dick’

Calvin and Grace Coleman - Aug. 31, 1930 Left to right- Bill Graham_ Elmer
Relst, Calvin and Grace Ruth Lewis, Peggy Bouck

Calvin Coleman 1941 Team “Bruce & Beauty”
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In the spring of 1930 he met Grace Nettna*,hwho was
living with her grandparents, the Bahms. ey were
married in August of 1930, Calvin bought the Adolph Bahm
homestead, N.W.1g, S, 20, T. 30, R. 4, W. 5. They farmed
here until 1956, when they moved to Jasper for 9 years then
they came to Sundre in 1965 and bought a house in town.
They bought land north of Sundre and spend part of the
time in town and part on the farm. Six children were born
to this couple; )

Clinton - lives in Edmonton - has 4 children.

Ormond - lives in the Yukon - has 2 children

Loleta - married Alex Nyuli - has 6 children and lives
in Kelowna, B.C.

Alice - married Bob Whitlow - farm 3 miles east of
Cremona, have 5 children; Patsy - married Gordon
Kamitomo - lives in Calgary - has 2 boys Jason and Aaron;
Randy - farms at home, Leslie - lives in Calgary; Sandra -
lives in Didshury; Donna Lee - attends Cremona School

Ronald - Jives at Sundre, has 1 son Timmy

Glends - married Keith Schneidmiller - lives in Sundre,
has 1 girl Maxine.

The cld Bahm bhouse, Calvin Colemnan lived here 1935-1950. Vacant since. Ple:
ture taken 1977.

o -

The Calvin Colerman family, 1964. Back: Ormond, Clinton, Ronald. Frout: Glen-
da, Alice, Calvin, Grace and Lolets,



JAMES AND HANNAH COLEMAN

Jumes and Honnah Coleman. Token aboul 1938

One of the last pictures taken of James and Hannah. Han-
nah died on April 13, 1939, at the age of 74, James died
August 3, 1950 at age 89 years, They are both buried in the
Cremona cemetery. They lived where Chuck Holbrook now
lives, they built the house, and barn.

MILTON AND SHIRLEY COLEMAN

Milton Coleman was born in Ontario in 1891 and came
with his family to the Carstairs and Cremona area in 1923,

They bought Hallman place, 64 miles west of Carstairs
and Latau'gttl;ought the Hickey place, now owned by Chuck
Holbrook

Milton farmed the Schreiber place three and one half
miles from Carstairs. On October 25th 1934 he married
Shirley Rigsby, A double wedding tock place in Calgary as
Shirley's sister Audrey, and Albert Bouck were married at
the same time. Shirley and Mill began farming the east

half of Sec. 8, T. 30, R. 4, W. 5. They were here all their
lives. Three children were born to this couple; Viola (Mrs,
Harold Bellamy) - farm north of Cremona (story under
Bellamy). Allan - lives in Cremona. Mae - (Mrs. Dan Fear)
- lives west of Cremona on the home place #nd have 3
children - Harley, Darcy, and Tammy - all attending
Cremona school.

Shirley died March 7, 1972 at age 80 years.

Milton died December 26, 1975 at age 84 years.

STAN AND RUBY COLEMAN

Ruby Seacoy was born in Edmonton in 1911. Her
mother was a nurse and often came down to the Graham
district to visit her daughters and deliver babies. Her
daughters were Mrs. Bill Morgan (Mamie), Mrs. Frilz
Backstrom (Dolly) and Mrs. Cora Sirr. Their father had
been killed by a fallen tree when Ruby was three years old.
A brother was killed later in the First War, at age 21 years.
Ruby moved down to stay when she was 16 years old and
lived with her sister Cora, went to Atkins school for one
and one half years,

Stanley Coleman was born in Elmwood, Ontario in
1900 & moved to Englefeld, Saskatchewan with his parents
in 1907, His Dad came west in 1920, went back to Saskat-
chewan and the family returned to Alberta in 1921. The
men came with the stock by rail car, and 3 car loads of set-
tlers effects. They first came to the Joe Hallman place, six
miles west of Carstairs, Then they bought the Jim Hickey
place (now Chuck Holbrook's) about 1926. There were no
buildings so they stayed at the Sherman house (now old
house on Clarence Reids place). They hauled lumber for
the buildings from the Fred Turnbull mill near Bituma, by
horse and wagon. Duncan Rattray helped build.

Stanley and Ruby were married ebruag' 14, 1931. It
was a beautiful day with no snow, and man the wedding
guests wiped dust from their shoes, the weather was so
mild. They were married by Rev, Ing from Carstairs at a
cost of $6.00. Mrs. Sirr had made the wedding dress of
eggshell colored material, with a long veil, flowers
were the old waxed covered ones, ordered for the T. Eaton
calalogue. They were lily of the valley and roses.

Stan at 22 yeary old.



Stan had been working at the Burnett place (now Bob
Whitlow's) Ruby's mother rented there and Stan boarded
there. They moved in and stayed three years. Then they
moved south of Cremona to the Just piace for one year,
then back to the Nettnay homestead. ugust Nettnay had
let the land go back to the mortgage company, then %erry
Thompson bought it, back to the mortgage company again,
and finally Stan was able to buy it. It was the S,W.14 20, T.
30, R. 4, W. 5. The river quarter, he bought from Bob Sim-

n.
i Bob Blackburn built the house, that still stands there,
After the Lewis family left, Ruby and Stan moved up to
their house. They were there about a year when the house
burned down, they moved back to the old house until a
second house could be moved in. They added to this house
and are still living there. Four boys were born to this
couple; Douglas, Clarence, Orval (who died at six weeks of
a heart problem) and Robert. They have 11 grandchildren,
including a set of twins, and one great grandchild.

Stan recalls hauling hay off the Sherman place, back
west with the rack and horses and coming as far as the
gate on the main road, unloading onto a wagon and box and
taking it home. The mud was so , you couldn’t get
through. - Building the United Missionary Church and
hauling lumber from Elkton. He hel build the Red and
White Store. It was Fisher’s General Stor , he and George
Stevenson put the roof on. There was a big hardware store
on the corner (by Watchorn's). A Mr. Harold Roach built
it, was a hardware and drug store together. This burnt
down in one or two years, and Orton built another building
there. On the other corner (empty lot on main street) was
a garage owned by Gordie Graham. This has been torn
down. There once was a pool room and barber shop where
Frizzell's garage is (now Stratton Plumbing). Stan says,
“What we didn't have, we didn't miss. Would do it over
zlihgain. if everyone else was the same. People were happier

en.'

They would ship J;igs express to Edmonton, they but-
chered them, froze them and wragped them in a gunny
sack. They were worth $1.85 per hundred wt, A fat hog
brought $4.09. On the Just place they had 2,000 bu. of bariey
which was worth 11¢ per bushel.

Ruby made sheets, pillow cases and aprons from
flower sacks, tomatoes were 25¢ a large can, the ladies
went to club meetings one a month at each others house.
She remembers moving back to the west quarter on April
3, a very warm day with no snow. The next day they had a
blizzard, no barn for livestock, only a shed, and so cold the
hens quit laying. Stan played a fiddle for many dances,
while Bill Smith accompanied him with a banjo.

Ruby and Stan still live in their own home, on the
farm. They can be seen at many local auction sales,
visiting with friends and they attend lots of card parties.

Neighbars who put in Stan Coleman’s crop in 17 when he was sick.

THE COLVIN FAMILY
By Sylvia Colvin

Mason Colvin, our forefather, immigrated to Americs
in 1768, and settled in Virginia. he was related to Benjamin
Franklin and President Madison.

Daniel's Colvin's parents, Mr. and Mrs. Robert Colvin,
came lo Canada by covered wagon in 1906 and settled in
the Big Valley district of Alberta. Mrs. Robert Colvin died
in childbirth, August 16, 1908, leaving her oldest daughter,
Mary, to take over, Mary married Tom Russell. They lived
in many parts of Alberta, finally settling in Caroline, where
their son Clare operated the Clare Russell and Sons garage
for many years. Tom's daughter, Emma, and her family
ran the telephone exchange at Caroline, Emma is now
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Dan Colvin with Diamond T truck 1928,



living in Calgary. Tom's son, John, spent quite a few years
around the Water Valley area, later moving to British
Columbia. John is now living in Fort McMurray,

Daniel Q. Colvin, son of Robert Colvin, was born
February 7, 1903. He grew up in the Big Valley district and
married Marjorie Morey, December 16, 1925 at Stettler,
Alberta. They farmed at Big Valley for a few vears where
Frank and Gloria were born.

In December, 1929, Dan and his family moved to the
Hand Hills area of Alberta, farming in the summer and
feeding cattle in the winter. Every weekend the neighbors
wcl)luld come to his place to ski or sleighride down the big
hills,

In May, 1936 he moved to the Water Valley district
where Dan t the N.E.14-12-294-5 and the S.E, 14-13-29-
6-5 which were located by the Little Red Deer River. There
was only a cow trail leading to the house for the last two
miles. His family lived in a tent while the [urniture was
being moved across the river to a small house where a
sheep-herder and his family had lived. As the last load
went in, a twister came along and took the roof off the
house. Marjorie, Frank and Gloria walked the last few
miles to their house. When they reached the river they had
to wade across. There was ice on both sides!

Thal summer they built a log cabin on the south side of
the river. Nobody knew too much about building it, so there
were some pretty big cracks between the logs. Everytime
they had a bath Dan used to say that the draft would blow
the suds off. One of the first things they had to do, was
build a road so that Dan could bring the truck home. For
the first few years the road was so narrow the dual wheels
hung over the edge.

During the Depression in the 1930's it seemed that Dan
was never home, He worked around the clock, hauling
grain, or rails or whatever work he could get with the
truck. They never went without food or clothes. When
World War 11 began, Dan went into the logging business,
selling lumber and mine ties until 1970, The children had &
miles to ride to Bituma School, crossing the Little Red
Deer River many times. They got many duckings when the
ice was going out. They had many good times on the ice in
the winter, with wiener roasts, moccasin dances and
skating. In the summer there was fishing and swimming.

For entertainment all the neighbors would get together
in someone's house, all bringing lunch. Anyone who could

lay an instrument would take a turn, and a good time was
ad by all.

Marjorie Colvin was the oldest of a family of five boys
and two girls, was born in Wisconsin, U.S.A, March 3, 1899,
and passed away August 10, 1954, Dan married Hattie
Byers, April 23, 1960. they lived by the Little Red Deer
River for ten years, working the stump ranch, getting out

Marjarie Colvin 1840 by the log house built by the river

mine ties, and raising a few cattle and pigs. They did alot
of curling at Cremona, capturing many trophies. They
moved to Lumby, British Columbia in the summer of 1970,
where they still reside. They enjoy curling and are still
bringing home prizes. They fish in the wonderful lakes
every t-summer. Many of their friends from Alberta drop in
to visit.

Frank was born September 12, 1926, married Sylvia
Watson Feb, 7, 1954. Sylvia came from London, England in
December, 1946, They reside two miles south of Water
Valley on N.}2-11-29-5-5. They have seven children, two of
whom passed away as infants. Their children, May, Doyle,
the twins - Trudy and Judy, and Ian have attended school
at Water Valley, Cremona and Carstairs,

(A‘Ul weather roads leading 1o Watssns, McNicols, Festers, Oldfields and
owvins

_Gloria was born December 7, 1929, and married Ronnie
Salisbury of Dog Pound on May 1, 1951. They lived in
Alberta for seven years then moved to Ladner, British
Columbia, in 1958, They separated in 1965. They raised five
children, Darrel, Mar{'oire, Linda, Bob and Alfred. They all
lived in Vancouver. Gloria moved to Lumby in 1973. Ronald
passed away at Drayton Valley, Alberta January 17, 1975 at
the age of 43 years,

THE COLWELL FAMILY
By Lloyd Colwell, 1965

In the summer of 1801, my father, who lived on a farm
near Liberty, Nebraska, decided to visit Alberta to see if he
could get land that would be suitable for farming or ran-
ching. Arriving in Calgary in June, he was pleased to find a
growing town of about 4,000 people. Wooden sidewalks had
already been built along both sides of the main street
called Stephen Avenue, and also along Pacific Avenue
which was just north of the railway track. Saddle ponies
and horse hitched to many kinds of vehicles, were tied to
the posts that lined both sides of the dirt streets.

A land agent advised him to go north to Lacombe and
Ponoka. At Ponoka, he met another land seeker, Clarence
Foat, from Oxford, Wisconsin. This jovial and optimistic
stranger had a kind and gentle manner and evident
honesty, which at once commended him to my father. The
two men decided to search for land together, Not pleased
with the bush west of Ponoka, they went to Didsbury and
explored far to the east, cooking over their camp fire, and
sleeping under the democrat at night. Carefully watching
the map, they searched for the survey stakes in the long
grass, and ‘“the lines were run”. A large enough area,
suitable for each man was found, and they drove back
joyfully to Didsbury, only to find that the agent had made a
mistake and the land was already taken. But they were not



discouraged. Mr. Foat said there was probably better land
wesl of Carstairs in the willow brush counfry anyway.
However, he had to explore it alone, as my father's ticket
was about to expire, compelling him to return to the States,

A letter soon came from Mr. Foat saying that he had
chosen some land & would move to Canada next year. My
father and mother both visited Alberta in 1903 just when a
heavy May snowstorm was falling. The drifts were soon
melted by a Chinook, and then Mr. and Mrs. Foat and their
two visitors drove in a wagon over the Crooked Creek
valley. A little west of Percy Bird's present home, they
(ounti the narrowest place in the swollen creek, where they
took off the wagon box, and using it as a bridge, took the
running-gear apart and pulled it across. The wives safely
over, the two horses were led across, the wagon reassem-
bled, and the cheerful part on their way.
Homesteads for my father, Frank and Martin were soon
filed on, and other land chosen. My parents then returned
to Nebraksa.

The family arrived at Carstairs on the afternoon of
December 31, 1903. Soon we were living in a vacant log
house on the west bank of the Dog Poum; about & mile nor-
th of the Town Line. This was the Gibson Place, which is
now owned by Lionel Bird. Charlie Franklin and Sam and
his wife, who had arrived the year before, stayed with us
that winter. My father tried to buy horses but they were toc
high, so he bought oxen. By spring we were located in our
homestead shack where the machine shed now stands. 1
shall always remember the homestead house, completely
covered with tarpaper, it contained three rooms separated
only by white building paper. The inside of the walls and
the ceiling were covered with white paper. Well banked up
with dirt, and having a big heating stove, the house was
very comfortable. My mother put up her lace curtains,

house plants were in the windows. Mr. and Mrs. Clark
Ray and their two small children, Lloyd and Molly, were
some o{l our first visitéoxs.hRe&; u.éghn g!a%Douga edual}o;-d
requently, especially after his ter married Alex
Mathieson who Iiveﬁ in a log house half a mile away.
Gathering around the organ, we sang hymns together, and
then Mr. McDougall would sing alone to us in Cree. Seated
on homemade benches around the glowing stove, we listen-
ed eagerly as he related is experiences with the Indian
tribes, and described how he had hunted the buffaloes with
them at an earlier time,

My mother made many things like soap, vinegar, and
cottage cheese. When the porridge sack was empty, we
und some wheat with a coffee grinder. Every jar was
ed with wild strawberries, raspberries and saskatoons,
mixed with rhubarb. We kids snared fish in Crooked Creek.
watching them swim round and round in a pail as we
carried them home. The spring was in the coulee a quarter
of a mile away. My sister, Minnie, and 1 would hitch our
favourite ox to a stone-boat and haul two barrels of water
every day. Old Buck, having no horns, was big and gentle,
and of a deep red color. We both learned to ride horse.
back, or rather ox-back, on him, sometimes quarrellin
over whose turn it was to ride, while the other led him. I of.
ten fed him handfuls of pea-vine pulled from the stacks of
prairie wool beside the old log barn. The oxen were driven
with lines like horses. Harness had been brought along
from the States. When harnessing an ox, the horse collar
and hames were turned upside down, and the bit was snap-
ped on each side of the halter, If a line or a tug broke, it
was soon fixed with a rope, chain or a piece of old belt. In
the winter the oxen were shod, each shoe being made of
two parts Lo fit the cloven hoof. During the second winter,
enough poplar rails and posts were hauled from the bush,
with these shod cattle, to fince the three homesteads. Ae
the fences were to be three rails high, this required
e:ghleen miles of single rail, besides the posts. Some of the
g)e ox collars and shoes are now in the museum at Red

er.

My father and my brother, Fred, who was fourteen,
broke sod all the summer of 1904, and until late
fall, With four oxen hitched to a John Deere walking

K{lﬁgﬁh, they did about three quarters of an acre a day.
of the work was done for bachelors who were away
working, but anxious to have some ing to show to the
homestead inspector. The clear October weather turned
suddenly cold, with a heavy snow, just before the job on the
Tony homestead was completed. This was about a mile
south of where the old Cremona store was later built.
However, the snow melted, and they returned to finish the
work. My father was filing the ploughshare when Fred.
shivering while hitching up the oxen, suddenly complained,
“Dad, why did you ever come to this country? It has no
roads, or schools, or anything. It is just no good." Looking
up from the ploughshare, my father replied, “I mxg;i not
live to see it, but if you continue to live here, these ngs
will be built, Even the trains may run up this coulee some

Twenty-six years later, one August evening, Fred
drove my father and me to the field that they had broken.
The C.P.R. construction crew were still working, and the
grade was being built almost at the place where the
ploughshare had been sharpened that frosty morning so
many years before. Frank and Martin both worked for ran-
chers who lived alo:g the Dog Pound. At the Stone ranch,
where Martin worked, the horses and cattle grazed far and
wide over the range. Martin, who was seventeen, often
rode long distances keeping track of them. It was these
long rides across the ogen rairie, and the occasional times
when he carried his blankets and slept upon it, that in-
spired the writing of many poems years later.

My father and mother were much concerned because
there was no school near enough for us children to attend,
S0 in August 1906, they moved to Wescott, which was then
called Kansas, so then Minnie and I could go to school.
Fred and Martin stayed on the homestead and batched.
Our first teacher was Mr. McLaughlin. He was an ad-
mirable man who rode four miles every morning from his
homestead. I still have & home-made report card written
by him on foolscap paper and dated June 30, 1909. As the
Ontario curriculum and readers were used in the new
province of Alberta that had so recently been formed, five
“standards” covered the work that is now taken in the first
eight égades. During the winter months Norman le,
Fred Colwell, Walter Bellamy and several other big boys
went to school. On Friday evenings the Literary Society
met and there was a debate and programme,

On the homestead, Martin and Fred were almost ready
to begin breaking sod with their newly acquired horses,
when they were offered a job of hauling to Didsbury
several thousand feet of lumber from a mill on the Little
Red Deer. They decided at once to take the job as the
money would be a good “grub stake’ for the summer.
However, this new work ted problems but careful

lans were made to meet them. The lumber would all be

rought to the farm as soon as possible. Then one man
would start early with a load and stay overnight in Did-
sbury, while the other did the chores at the farm and star-
ted \nfth s‘i:’own lo::lg :;;xl mminbge.mBgut t.ha had ox}ly one
pair o overa e others too thoroughly pat-
ched to be worn in town. When the two brothers met on the
trail, they exchanged overalls, and in this way each man
always drove into lown wearing a good pair of pants. The
lumber was delivered on time and everyone was happy.
With the breaking of more land it became necessary to buy
a threshing machine, The first steam outfit was bought in
1908, and began & series of threshing “runs’’ that con-
tinued for almost twenty years, At first they were very
long, lasting until January, or even February, when the
stooks were often covered with snow. Some of the men
came back W work year after year; they were “the old
dependables’; Chris Jacobson, Oscar Swanson, Ernest
Taudien. Ernest ran the engine fourteen consecutive falls,
Every year was the last time he would steam up “‘the old
kettle”, so he declared, but he returned again and ag:in.
My brother, Frank, began work with the J.I. Case Com-
pany in 1907. As he was an engineer, he spent the following
several years unloading the large steam engines from the



flat cards, and started them on the prairies east of Calgary
and as far south as the American border. These giants,
weighing many tones, pulled as many as fourteen ploughs
in prairie sod. He was asked to go to Argentina, but
refused, preferring to remain in Alberta on sales and
collections and later as manager of the Edmonton branch.

On the farm we always enjoyed the threshing season
even thought the hours were long and the work was hard. It
usually required twelve or fifteen days at home. If we
helped with the dishes, my mother allowed us to square
dance in the kitchen. Ernest Taudien called, and someone
could always play the mouth organ or accordian. In later

ears Ester livened up the steps with her violin. The bunk
use was the scene of comradship, The home-sweet-home
of the crew, After a hard day’s work and a hearty supgr,
the men entered cheerfully, taking their places on the ben-
ches around the sheet-iron stove or lying in the bunks. The
tobacco smoke rose and became more dense, blending to
form a rich aroma, as the evening's entertainment began.
Ermest Taudien played the accordian, there were mouth
organ solos, the humorous wit of Oscar Swanson, the
stories, and the recitations. When the men “hitl the bunks"
and the coal oil lanterns were put out, the firelight still
flickered on the walls. The low cadence of the wind outside
seemed o add to the feeling of comfort within. Soon all was
silence broken only by the deep breathing of the sleeping
men, and the rhythmic snores.

My father’s petition to the Alberta Gov't. had resuited
in the building of the telephone line into Garfield com-
munity in 1909, so he decided to try for a rural mail route
in 1914, Again hitching the ponies to the buggy, he got the
signatures of all the families along the Blood Line. After
much correspondence & letter arrived from Ottawa stating
that the petition was approved and that R.R. 2, would start
in the fail. However, war began that August and the mail
route was postponed indefinitely.

We tried to use the steam engine for ?loughing but it
required too much labour for the hauling of water and coal
or wood, and it was so heavy that it was often stuck in the
mud, so for many years all the field work was done with
horses, Although over sixty of them were on the farm, not
more than twenty-four were ever working at one time. To
relieve the horses of the long trips to Carstairs, a Chevrolet
truck was acquired in the autumn of 1926. There was a
large crop that year and the truck seemed to have solved
the blem of hauling, until a snowstorm and blizzard
blocked the roads. However, the Municipal District loaned
their grader, and with eight of the best horses, Martin and
Fred succeeded in clearing the drifts from the sixteen
miles of road. But the next evening the rising wind and
falling snow again heralded a night of storm. The roads
were again completely blocked, no machinery being
available at the time to move the deep drifs. Farmers
along the Blind Line took down their fences that winter to
allow the sleds to detour through the fields.

As the years went by the increasing difficulty of ob-
taining help for harvesting and threshing induced Martin to
buy the first combine and swather in 1942, At that time it
was very doutful if that kind of machinery could be used at
all in that locality. Many difficulties were encountered at
first, but it proved to be successful. Already the tractors
had taken the place of the horses in the fields, and now the
threshing machine was no longer used. The team and the
saddle pony that remained, empty bunk house, the
municipal snow plough that passed by, all reminded us of
the old methods we had used. Although no members of the
Colwell family now live in the Cremona district, yet our
happiest memories and kindest thoughts will always be
centered there, and no new [riends that we meet in other
places will quite be able to take the place of those we had
there. The oung‘a' men and women are doing an ad-
mirable work with their modern methods and machinery
and, even when many of the oldest friends have passeé
away, we will still feel a close Kinship with the ones who
have taken their places in that locality.
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The old Colwell house.

F.M. COOMBES
By Florence M. Coombes

I came to Canada from England, April 1927, which en-
ded a completely different life. I came as an immigrant,
On the "Ausonia" which was the name of the boat, T met
two men, one was Chris Lashmar, and he in turn, in-
troduced me to a man he knew in England, his name was
Ted Coombes. I met them the first night on board, and we
were nine days aboard ship, we got to feel as if we had
known them always. For Ted and T it was something very
?};eﬁml, it was one of those things that only comes once in a

ifetime.

Time flew too quickly, and we would go our different
ways. | was going on to Windsor, I had two Aunts there,
Ted went “‘West” with Chris, who was coming back to
Canada as a "“Canadian” as he had lived in Canada some
time, T had given Ted my Aunt's address, so he would have
to write first, to give me his news, where he was working,
& so on, Ted was lucky, and got a job one the “E.P. Ran-
ch” west of High River, then the “Prince of Wales Ranch."
1927 Lhe Prince came lo visit the ranch, he was no snob and
rode on the hay wagons with the men, also had a bottle of
beer along with the workers.

Ted and I wrote back and forth for thirteen months, I
had a good job in Windsor, in fact I was getting more
money than Ted was getting on the E.P. But, I was wan-
ting to find out if ours was just one of those Shipboard
romances. So out west I came, 1928. A young women that
also came on the same boat as we, came out west at the
same lime, we met in Toronto, she had worked at Oakville,
We shared a berth, sleeping head to toe, (we washed our
feet every night). We prepared our meals on the train, for
one could do that those days. We spent three days on the
train. Ted and his brother~ were there to meet us in
Calgary. | had heard that one does thi on sea, that one
wouldn't do on land, so I was going to find out. The same
feelings seem to be the same for both of us.

Emma and I soon got jobs on farms, helping the far-
mer's wife, so here goes again a new way of life, my job
was west of High River, Emma’s at Blackie. Ted would
ggss this farm every time he went to the ranch. The ranch

uﬁtnthetr supplies in River, and Ted seemed to be
the -man of the Ranch. So we saw each other quite a
bit, which kept the love flame alive, It was at this farm
that T learned to be a farmers wife, learning the art of
bread-baking, butter-making and canning. My day started
at 5 a.m., and on to about ten p.m. one was glad to get to
bed, for morning came too soon. That summer, 1928, the
lady asked me if I would cook for the stookers in the cook-



car. I didn’t think I would be good enough, but she seemed
to think so. This baking the bread, T wasn't happy about, so I
started in August, for the season seemed to be much
earlier there, so I cooked for the stookers, and then on to
the Threshers, ending about October. So it was a very new
experience, T was told that my pay would be more than the
men, for I had to be up before 4 a.m. and the last to go to
bed. After it was all over, T went to Calgary for a week's
holiday, and then back to the farm for the winter, I was not
too busy, did fancywork for my lady, and for the winter
just twenty-five dollars a month, so 1 staKed on till the
coming June and left, another thirteen months.

Ted and I were married July 13th, 1929, on 13th Ave.,
Calgary, at the first Baptist, and many moons later our
only daughter was born, on our 17th wedding anniversary,
July 13th. After our marriage Ted worked for a few months
at the E.P. I worked for the V.O.N. I was sent to different
homes to help, before and after sickness. I was once sent to
the Inspector’s hone in Banff (R.C.M.P.) I was met at the
station by a “Mountie” to take me to Inspector Ryan's
home. It was a baby sitting job, more or less, there was
another nurse as well, she gave me my orders. 1 was there
a month. | had many different places to go, some very poor
and the rich. One could write a book on them.

Before our first Christmas we decided to get where we
could be together, as we saw hardly one another at all. So,
we pul an ad in the Calgary Herald for work together on a
farm or ranch, The boss of the S.N. Ranch in Claresholm
came lo see us, and we were hired. Ted getting good
references from the E.P. was hired as foreman, and me as
cook. We  were there for several years, Erle was born
while at the S.N. It was at the SN. that we heard of a
small farm thal my husband thought, it would be nice to
have. 1 saw it but was not impressed. 1 was expecting
again and | must confess that it would be nice o be one's
hoss, 50 we left. The boss understood and offered to build
us a small house and Ted to stay on as foreman, we talked
aboul it, but decided to make the move, we were just green
English, and the starting of the big depression. We stayed
al this place for aboul nine years, while there Jim was
born, the night of a terrible storm, no phone, but thanks to
the Home Nursing Cause that I took in Windsor the year
that 1 was there, I told my husband what to do. We were
snowed in for 6 weeks. Those days we did not get the snow
plows out, that was 1937. It was so dry there, many times
we did not have any rain all through the growing season.

We heard of “School lands" being opened so Ted went
to Calgary to find out all about them. Ted found what he
thought would be fine, west of Carstairs, and in trying to
find this place he was told it would be across from people
named Lashmars, we hadn 't heard from Chris for a long
time. Chris had visited us when at the S.N. but somehow
we didn’t keep in touch. So, the name Lashmar, Ted won-
dered if it could be Chris we knew. Chris had said that he
had a brother rancher west of Carstairs, so he thought it
would be the brother George, The first night in trying to
find this place, it was November, the days short, he was in-
vited to spend the night at Lee Boucks. Peggy and her
sister-in-law were alone, for their husbands were away
hunting, so they gave up one of the beds for Ted. But, alas
in the night the men came back, hoping to get in a warm
bed and there was a strange man in it. (It was & big joke,
but not at the time). When Ted found the land, it was next
to the Chris Lashmar we knew, he had married and had
two sons. He had not heard of the school land being opened
up. those days it was open range and I don't think we were
too welcome in taking the free pasture, It was war time,
and was hard to get wire for fencing, We had to break so
many acres a year, the first breaking we could keep, as the
land was broken we just fenced that, and so every vear the
fence would be moved back, but in due time of course it
was all fenced, we got a lease as well, and that was fenced.
We had lots of cattle trouble, bringing cattle from
Claresholm to this country was not a good idea.

We moved here May 1st, 1941, our sons were not too

old, but really good workers for the first six weeks we
stayed at the Lashmars, which was very kind to have us,
We were so busy, for we had to break five acres, which
would be sown to oats for cattle feed. There was a log
house to build, We seemed such greenhorns in the buildin

of this log house, and to make things worse, il rained,
rained and more rain, we couldn't understand it, for we

saw so little of it at Claresholm.

The odd Graham School. Now our cow barn.

Erle and Teddy “'Future cattle buyers"



Erle and Ted started school al Graham, they got to
know the children, Chris and Rita’s firstborn, started
school in the fall so did our boys but stop, in about six
weeks at Graham before the summer holidays, we were
glad of their help, the cows could wander away. | remem-
ber sadly, missin§_ our favourite milk cow, so next morning
Ted went off to find her. He found her but only brought
back the cow bell, she had gol “'Larkspur™. It was a loss
for us for 1 made eigihl pounds of butfer from her every
week. We had a lot of losses those first years

Those days we would get our mail at Mrs. Pawsons
post office which was a general store as well. Those were
the days of '‘rationing’. I'm sure it was an awful worry
and maybe mix-up, We were better off than the folks over-
seas. It was always exciting to ge' mail from England, all
mail was photographed. I was living in England the first
World War, 1T was very close to that, had I not been
married with children, I know myself so well, that |
would have gone back. I always felt so guilty about doing
my bit. I did a lot of knitting to be sent to the soldiers, 1
averaged one pullover, and two pair socks a week for
several years. I was a fast knitter, and would knit a sock a
day. We were thankful that 1945 was the end of War 11, ex-
cept to try and clean up the mess.

Hauling winter wood

Breaking land about 1934, Ted, Mom  Erle Coombes.

Jim and Ted mowing.

Jim. Ted and our hreaking horse - power)

The old wood pite.

1946 was happy for us, as our daughter was born, After
three sons, 1 was amazed to think it possible (o have a wee
lassie, and to think she would be & precious gift on our
seventeenth wedding anmiversary. Also thal year Ted gol a
job as a mail carrier from Cremona to Water Valley, then
to Big Prairie. Tt really helped. Those days 1 would use 100
Ibs. of flour & month. the boys were growing and had to
have more things.

It was good for us to have lols of wood, when we lived
west of Claresholm, to get our firewood meant a trip of
twenty miles each way. and those days we could not afford
coal. We were happy about that, to be able to use all the
wood we needed. We also noticed, that the weather was
also much cooler here, even in the summer months

So the years go on, pretty much the same, land to be
broken, more fencing, until we had the required land

194, Jim, Mom, Rasemary, Dad and Erie. Our Jog house in the backgroand



broken and the years go by, Erle was on his own, went as
an apprentice to Mr. Frizzell in Cremona. Ted Jr. worked
for the C.P.R, for some vears, then to Waler Resources,
and was there some time. Jim married the girl nex!t door,
and in due time became a farmer. Rosemary finished her
education at Olds College, is now married, bul doing office
work for a Calgary School. 1969 our family gave us a sur-
prise Fortieth Wedding Anniversary party, as Rosemary
was born on our anniversary we kept it as her birthday. It
was a lovely day for Ted and I, one that couldn’t be forgot-
ten.

In 1970 Ted and | decided to go to England for a visit. 1
had never been back. Ted went once alone, when his
mother was ill. So when the work was all done that fall, we
went. But it ended in sorrow, as my husband picked up a
bucf over there that Dr.’s couldn’t seem to isolate. Ted wan-
led to come back to Canada so 1 brought him back, to his
own Dr. He never came home again.

I am still on the same place, thanks to the family, T am
able to “Carry On". I am blessed with good health. | love
living in this “God’s Own Country”'. Tam thankiul for god
friends and neighbours, which would help me if needed. We
were Lo buy this school land as it was called, it was not at
al ‘‘Homestead™ price, the Gov'l had a share of whal was
grown for twenty vears, and then we paid a cash price too
I have had many good offers to sell, but as yet T am nol
selling, i1s my home, with its blessed memories, 1978, I'm
wondering if we will have a long winter - "I winter comes,
can spring be far away?"

Aerial view of the E. Coombes firm

CHET CORBETT

Mr. Chet Corbett lived north of Water Valley on Section
11 - Township 30, inthe 1940's. He then moved east of
Water Valley to a cabin he had on Bun Borton's place. He
lived here with his sons. Gordon, Mervin and Norman.
They all attended Water Valley school.

After leaving Water Valley, Chet moved 1o Didsbury to
the old folks home.

THE COWMAN FAMILY IN
ALBERTA

By Mrs. Pearl Bohannon

In 1902, my father, Fred Cowman came {0 Canada to
see the country he had received so much literature about,
It was early fall & while here purchased 4 sections of
land described ag Sections 7, 8 & 9 & 17 in township 30,
Range 3, West of the 5th meridian. While in Calgary a snow
storm cume. He wished he had known they had snows

50

like this before he bought the land, but as the deal was
closed he prepared to move that winter. He sold the farm
in Kansas, packed the household effects, drove the cattle,
horses and sheep to the stock-yards. These logether with
the machinery, lﬁree little dogs and the men, made a train
load bound for Canada.

The rest of the family stayed in Kansas with relatives
until February., The train with settlers effects arrived in
Didsbury early in December. The weather was cold and
several inches of snow lay on the ground. quite different
from Kansas where they migrated {rom.

We settled on the N.W. quarter of section 9, and to
reach our new home drove across country in a big sled. We
crossed the Dog Pound on the ice at Alex Robertson Sr.
place, then south-west to Section 9 where a large granary
was to be our home for two and a half years while im-
proving our land. The first year sixty-eight acres were
broke with a foot burner (walking plow). The first breaking
was seeded to oats and then later to 'I‘urke% Red wheat.
The first year we were here father took up a homestead. It
was the S,W. quarter Section 6, Township 30, Range 3, Wes!
of the 5th Meridian. There were six children in the original
family: the names of the children were: Jack; - he later
moved back to the United States, Julia - (Mrs. William
Moore), Jess - (Mrs, William Bohannon), Robert -, Pear! -
(Mrs. David Bohannon), Grace - (Mrs. Walter Bellamy). In
the first years there were no churches, Services were held
in our shacks and only during summer. Later when homes
were buill we took turns in having the services until the
Garfield school was built. In the ear:g days students from
Eastern Capada sup?lled during the summer months
Later Rev, Black settled in the neighborhood. When Rev.
John McDougall came to visit relatives he also held ser-
vices in the Garfield school. When the Garfield school was
built, Father, like the rest of the neighbourhood men, ser-
ved on the school board at different times. Some of the
early teachers were Mr. Pedley, Mr. J. Reid, and Violet
Hunsperger

When the snow melted off in the spring we used Lo hook
up to the wagon or buggy lo get our provisions, and when
the snow fell we used to le up in the big sled with lots
of warm blankets to travel over the prairie trails. Almost
all settlers rode horseback as it was not as rough riding
over rough trails, and to locate their livestock on t:ﬁe range.
The first few years we had dances and parties in our
shacks or homes. In the summer we had picnics. After the
Garfield school was built, we had box socials, The children
held their Christmas program, the dyoung folks put on a
play. We had dances and parties and literaries in the win-
ter time. In the summer picnics were held with baseball
games, fool races, high jumps, horse racing, sack-racing,
and three-legged races,

When berries were ripe, several neighbors went
together, loaded their wagons with horsefeed, tents,
provisions, guns and about five or six people to each
wagon with pails and sacks. Thus equi we went back
in the hills to the west picking cranberries. We cooked our
meals in the open and after supper sat around the camp
fire, telling stories, playing games and doing stunts. In the
fall we had coyote hunts. Each member had a saddie horse
and gun, We ran coyotes down and shot them on Section
eight which was fenced with eight strands of barbed wire.

During the first few years we shopped and got all our
supplies in Didsbury because we had a better trail that
way. Also the town was larger thus giving a greater selec-
tion. In 1903 the country was all open, no fences, and stock
roamed the prairies, Each rancher had his brand and in
the fall rounded up his cattle. At this time the four year
olds were removed for beef as that was the season the
buyers came out to buy cattle Practically no grain feeding
was done. A few fed hay as they never had the grain to
feed. Steers were shi pe(f up from Texas to graze here, but
had to be returned back to the US.A. to be slaughtered.
The prairie range had wild peas and vetch growing abun-
dantly amongst the grass. All livestock fattened on the
grass and cattle wintered in the open without any other



feed, coming out in good condition in the spring. Our cattle
were all purebred registered Herefords, therefore, until
fences were built, we had to herd them. In the early days
they drove the bulls in to the railway to be shipped to the
Calgary Bull Sale. Later they were hauled in crates to the
railway station, In 1916 Father purchased two polled herd
sires from Mossom Boyd of Prince Alberta, Sask. They
were the first Polled Herefords in Alberta.

Father had one section fenced with eight strands of
barbwire. This was a sheep pasture. The coyotes dug under
the fence and killed so many sheep that in order to reduce
the losses he reduced the flock to what could be carried on
a half section, At night stray dogs came in and raided the
flock in the corral. He then decided to keep only a small
flock that could be kept near the buildings and closed in at
night where they could nol be molested. A small house and
barn were built on Section nine in 1803 and 1904 where we
had first resided. Fire guards were plowed for protection
In the winter of 1904 and 1905 Father built the home on Sec-
tion eight, also a barn. He hired a carpenter 1o help and in
the spring plowed fire guards to protect the buildings as
prairie lires got out of control and every person able to
swing awet sack had to get out and help extinguish it. Fires
destroyed much range for grazing, burnt the willow brush
and Balm of Gilead trees. There were very few poplars in
the early davs. The willows were large enought to make
fence posts for the settlers. In the spring of 1905 and 06,
Father planted the spruce trees in the house yard. These
are the ones growing there now. The other trees were plan-
ted in later years.

Mother passed away March 2nd, 14913

When the telephone line was being installed we had a
cloud burst. The water in Crooked Creek flat was so high
that it floated away many of the unset telephone poles. In
the winter the new barn and other small buildings were
built, they installed a home electric plant. When my sister
Julia Cowman and William Moore were married, he took
over the management of the farm. The land was well im-
proved by 1919 and that summer was dry. The hay crops
were light so Father with Phil Foat and helpers shipped the
haying equipment to Grouard near Lesser Slave Lake.
They put up several hundred lons of hay. That fall they
shipped over 200 head of cattle up to winter as it was con-
sidered more economical to mave the cattle than the hay.
That fall beef was 20" a 1b. and after feeding all winter they
dropped to around 6* per pound. They never lost an animal.
They drove the cattle two miles to water and bedded them
down with hay which in Carstairs was worth $60.00 a ton.
Sheaf oats were worth 25 a bundle. They shipped hay down
and Will hauled it home on & sled to feed the young stock.
In the spring the Mounted Police came in and stopped all
shipments of hay except what they really needed. They
confiscated the rest of the hay and paid $30.00 a ton for il in
the stack.

Father purchased the S.E. quarter of Section 16, Town-
ship 30, Range 3, West of the 5th meridian from Mr. May.
It was his homestead. He also boughl the S.W. quarter of
Section 10, Township 30, Range 3, West of the 5th Meridian.
This was a water right quarter in the eariy days. The men
built a horsedrawn bush cutter to clean the land for
breaking, After breaking the roots were piled by hand.

Father passed away March 27th, 1932.

On the 13th of June, the first year we were in Canada
we had a big snow storm and freezing temperatures. There
was 9 inches of snow on the level. On the last of July, about
11 o'clck we were awakened by & rumbling noise. Shortly a
large hailstone hit the roof. This was followed by a shower
of hail stones so we called to our father and asked *'How do
you like Alberta now?"

In the spring of 1903, when the men were hauling gramn
from Didsbury the ice broke up on the Dog Pound. They
had to come home and get another wagon and unioad half
the grain into il, pul four horses on each load to cress the
stream. They waited a few days before hauling the rest, In
those days we attended local socials and visited our neigh-
bours. Now people travel by car long distances over good
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highways.

THE CROFT FAMILY
By Betty and Peggy

Dad (Reginald) was born in Kent, England in 1888,
Mother (Jessicl was born in Dover, England in 1889 Dad
came 1o Vancouver in 1912 and Mother followed a year
later. they both worked. They were married in 1919, Their
twu sons, Donald and Reginald were born in Vancouver
They returned to England in 1919 where their daughter
Jessie, was born and in early Feb. they came back to
Alberta where dad worked on a dairy farm west of Airdrie.
;;m! where Robert (Bobi, Stanley, Betty and Peggy were
orn

The Croft family. Back row- Sta :
Pexgy y n, Bob, Juck, Don, Reg. Front: Betty, Jessie,

They moved to the Cremona district in 1930 where their
youngest son Jack was born. Dad farmed until moving
west of Water Valley, buying a '; section in 1942, Their
daughter Jessie passed away in 1942. Mother raised grand-
daughter Jessie. They sold their place and moved to Vie-
toria in 1950 where Dad worked as gardener and lree
surgeon. Dad passed away in 1958, Mother came back to



Alberta, staying with daughters Peggy and Betty until
going to the senior citizens home in Crossfield, Mother
passed away in 1968. Don lives in Langley, B.C., he has 3
children. Reg passed away in 1978, he leaves 5 children.
Bob lives in Water Valley, he has 3 children. Stan lives in
Victoria and has one son. Betty Butler lives in Cremona
and has 4 children. Peggy Rodgers lives in Cremona and
has 2 children. Jack hves in Spruce Grove, he has 4
children. Jessie Jr. lives in Spruce Grove, she has 3
children,

BERT CROSTON

Bert Croston lived in the Water Valley area with his
wife, Margarite, (nee Masters). He did some sawmilling,
built corduroy for roads, and enjoyed playing poker with
Squire Juckson in Cremona. He moved aboul wherever his
work took him.

Mr and Mrs. Croston

CARL CROW

By Susan Patchell 1964

Carl Crow was born in Ohio, October 31st, 1855, He
crossed the Plains in 1865 with the Caravan or Wagon
Train. These were drawn by horses, donkeys, and oxen. It
took six to nine months to get to Oregon. The pioneers were
afraid of the Indians and the Indians didn't trust the Pale
Faces. Al night the Caravan would form a circle of
wagons, The cooking was done on camp fires, they used
wood or buffalo chips,

The Crow famif\f settled on the lower Columbus River,
near Portland, Oregon. Portland only had a few buildings
along the river, the rest was a Cedar Swamp. Nearly every
familr used dugout cedar canoes, thal was the only way of
travelling. The men did the hunting. The women had the
hard task of raising the family, sewing, doing the garden
work, and milking the cows. When Carl was around twenty
years old he left the green valley and went to eastern
Oregon, a rolling prairie country. He took with him sheep
and wheat and also horses for field work. The big draw
back to this area was no water. All the settlers hauled
water in big wooden tanks drawn by four horses. One could
look for miles and never see a tree.

Carl Crow married Nettie Booker, so our family began
When Willie and Susan were young there was a cyclone,
which wrecked most of the homes. The people were lucky
in one way, there were few deaths. By now there were six
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children, Willie, Susan, Anna, Ben&, Nellie and Nettie. Once
again Carl Crow got itchy feet and had to see over that fa
away hill, So. into Washington we went, there was plenty of
wood and water. The roads were good in the summer.
When the September rain began il took us kids over an
hour to ride horseback to Palouse City School one mile
away. We were always a healthy family, and didn't mind
this hardship. One day Carl Crow was reading a paper, The
Spokane Review, Carl saw a script on Alberta, Canada. It
was wrilten by a cattleman Bill Graham, Dog Pound, Once
again Carl dreamed of far off places and on July 3rd, 1903,
Carl loaded up the covered wagon with food and bedding,
six chiidren, and we were on our way to Alberta. We also
took two dogs and our saddle pony, Dandy. The going was
slow and the road over the mountains, the Pan Handle of
Idaho, were very bad.

We were climbing a mountain grade, the road being
narrow allowed just a turn out every so far to let a team
pass. One day we got caught between turn outs, our wagon
crowded the bank, the stage came to a stop. One the lower
side of the grade were long stumps of trees, so all the men
built a platform out of poles, large enough for half the
stage to stand on. We inched up and the stage inched down.
If one foot had slipped it was a mile to the bottom. Again
luck was with us. The down grade was steep and so we
blocked the back wheels of the wagon. The horses slid
down on their hind legs. We walked. There was good
fishing in the streams and lots of huckleberries along the
road or trails, Once again we left the foothills and for two
days we crossed the rolling prairie, with no water and only
buffalo chips to cook with g’he second day we camped at
an Alkali Lake, we couldn't use the water, but the lake was
covered with ducks. Bill and I shot a dozen. Then we had to
Cross a river on a ferry boat, the Indians ran the ferry. On-
ce landed, us kiddies climbed the bank, Johnny stepped on
a log between the bank and the ferry, his feet went under,
but good old Bit dug in her feet an pulled him back onto
the bank. By now, two other outfits overtook us on their
way 1o Alberta. [ never saw so many mosquitoes, they bit
day and night, Everyone looked like they had measles. At
last we were at Carston, Alberta. How il rained: mud and
water everywhere. When the sun can up, out came the
mosquitoes again. It rained every day to Carstairs. Willie
and the dogs hunted ducks for food. We arrived in Car-
slairs in 1903.

At last, we started for the homestead, We got as far as
Sandy Mathersons place, camped in his old log cabin while
Willie, Carl Crow and Mr. Sherman buill our log cabin. One
day when the sun was shining and the northwest wind was
blowing, a big smoke appeared. I rushed into Mathersons
house, out rushed everyone. Sandy said, "a prairie fire is
coming this way," Sandy hitched the horses and plow,
burlap sacks were handed out, and ail the hands headed
north to the creek where the hay was stacked. Sandy
plowed a furrow, then we back fired between the stacks
and furrow. By that time over the hill came the blaze just
like a big snake, Along side of the flames, men on hor-
seback dragging wet cow hides and wet sandbags. It was
beautiful to see, also very dangerous. As luck would be,
they beat it out at the furrow and back fire. Many horses
legs were burned badly

On Christmas Eve, it rained hard but we enjoyed a
beef and prairie chicken dinner, Sandy and Mrs. Powell
were our guests. The next day we moved into our log cabin
1904 was here, and on the 17th of April, our baby sister
arrived. Audrey Alberta Crow. There was not even a doc-
tor, but all went well. Time for sprin breaking and to

lant a garden, Also the rain fence was finished around the
all section. Very little to work with. The breaking was
smoothed down with the willow brushes nailed to a log,
Carl seeded from Dandy’s back with a half sack of grain on
the saddle horn, he broadcasted the seed by hand, it
worked fine. Then our neighbors moved on to their
homesteads; Tyson, MeVicar, Kelsey, Reid, Spence and
Morks, Soon the Atkins schoel was built, There were Six
months of school. About 35 pupils from near and far. most



of them rode horse back with others walking. One teacher
for all grades. He did a good job with the 3-r's and a willow
stick. The children used slates with very little paper.

People were going forward slowly - a cheese factory at
Cremona store, and post office with mail twice a week.
Then came the First World War, times picked up. The far-
mers had better machines. even gas lamps and telephones
and a few cars. Then there came a slump through the
twenties and thirties. And once again a second World War.
Prices came up and there was a shortage of food, as our
men overseas had to eat.

Carl Crow left the farm in 1916, He took up barbering
in Calgary and Carstairs, the last shop was in Armstrong,
where he spent about forty years barbering. Willie Crow
also barbered for about twenty years, then he retired at
Grand Forks. B.C., Willie Crow died on March 11, 1953,
Carl Crow died March 29, 1944. Nellie Rinehart at Didsbury
is the only Crow that lives in Alberta. The others live in
B.C. and 1, Susan Crow Patchell look forward to coming
back home once a year. I love old friends and the district
of Cremona.

THE CROWS
By Nellie Rinehart

My father and mother, Carl and Nettie Crow, came of
pioneer stock, both travelled across the United States from
Indiana and Ohio with their folks, somewhere back in the
nineteenth century, Al that time they travelled in covered
wagons which were called “Wagon trains”. There was

ite often a hundred wagons, the reason for this was that
the West was occupied by many Indian tribes. There was
no trouble with Indians when they came, bul they had to
keep a sharp eye with scouts on fast horses. Papa and folks
came across the Oregon Trail to Oregon. Mama settled in
Colorado for awhile, later going to Oregon.

Papa left home at sixteen for California and worked in
the Redwoods and other jobs. One was driving stage coach
over mountain trails, later back to the sheep country in
Oregon, Washington, Montana and Idaho. They travelled in
crews. Papa could shear %0 head of sheep a day with hand
s:]\ears much like large scissors. Their wage was 8 cents a
sheep.

He met Mama in Eastern Oregon He was thirty,
Mama nineteen when they were married. Six of us children
were born in Oregon and one at Bradbourne, North-West
Territories in Canada. In the early summer of 1903 Papa
once more got that far away look of greener pastures in his
eves for he had just read where in the NNW.T. of Canada
one could file on a homestead, 160 acres for $10. We
smaller children were quite delighted but Bill, Susan and
Anna weren't so happy as they were going to very good
schools in Walouse City, Washington. After a few days of
preparation - such as putling the canvas covers over the
oak bows, once more it was a covered wagon, all our
worldly goods stored in the back - feather beds, trunk,
sewing machine, carpenter tools, supplies from Aunt Ef-
fie's garden, Last but not least a grub box made from a
wooden box, there were no cardboard boxes in those days,
Papa made it a tight lid hinged with leather. There were
rope handles in both ends, places for knives and the thin
we used every day in preparing meals. Also a collapsible
sheel iron stove with large oven, where Mama turned out a
pan of baking powder biscuits three times a day.

There was a slight delay in departure. Taken on the
whole they were a pretty good bunch of kids but one
seemed to get inlo more trouble than the rest. Papa had
greased the wagon wheels. Aunt Effie had an only son,
Wilber was his name, but she called him Wibbie for he was
her white-haired boy. He did have blonde curly hair. While
playing under the wagon we took sticks and dug the tar-like
substance from around the hubs. We first dabbed it on each
other's faces, then in our hair. After sixty-eight yvears it's
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hard to say who started it but it could have been me.
Perhaps I sort of envied his nice curly hair for mine was
straight and brown, Anyway in the end all we lacked was
the feathers, We were scrubbed within an inch of our lives,
Mama and Aunt had to resort to coal oil. Aunt Effie said it
was all my fault and the looks she gave me behind Mama's
back would squash a bug. 1 thought she could have been a
little nicer seeing we were leaving.

She did seem a bil nicer the next morning when we
were ready to start for the land of milk and ionev. She
thought we would be attacked by wild Indians or killed by
buffalo. Wibbie took one look at me and ran behind the
house so I couldn’t see him cry. After all we were partners
in crime, Incidentally, T never saw Wibbie again, giae were
then a few months off eight years.

Next morning we were on our way. From the time we
left Washington to Carstairs took six weeks. We went up to
Coeur d'Alene Lake travelling by steam launch which
pulled a scow on which the horses were placed. The scow
took in water and listed to the side. We were all concerned
whether it would upset puliing the launch over as well. The
banks were steep and the water deep but after about %0
miles we reached the place of disembarkment, | rode
behind my brothers on old Dandy, our horse , most of the
way. We were never bored Around each hill was another
view, birds sang, also Papa. He was never so happy as
when he was on the move. We never tired of hearing Papa
sing or recite pvems. When the tent was up at night and a
camp fire going, we would pop corn or make peanut candy.
Mama had brought these along, The three horses were hol
bled and left to graze up early to escape the heat. A hearty
breakfast and on our way again.

At last we came to the U.S. and Canada border. We
crossed near Cardston, saw our first Union Jack. The coun-
try looked no different - sage brush, rocks and hills, Our
first night in Canada was a rough one. The mosquitos were
large and hungry. We made smudges but it didn’t help
much. When we came to Calgary it was indeed a cow town
- most of the streets were d with mud. 1t rained for
several days. After we got to Carstairs the sloughs were
full of ducks, It was hard to keep the tent dry. Papa and
Willie were soon loking for homesteads - most of the
homesteads near the town were taken in 1901-02.

Finally we filed on homesteads, 21 miles west of Car-
stairs, south and east of where Cremona now stands. If
they were disappointed with the country they never said.
We had prairie wool cut for winter, a log shack and barn. a
garden plot plowed, also nine furrows for a fire guard. Our
only neighbors were Mr, Bill Graham and Mr. Atkins, both
ranchers. Mr. Graham proved a lifetime friend. Ouar first
winter was very quiet - no neighbor women. Our Christ-
mas, oo, was very quiet - with Mr. Graham for dinner, and
ever after for the 14 years we were on the homestead he
had either Christmas or New Year’s with us,

On the 17th of April, 1904 T got up early. Brother Ben
and I had planned to explore the coulee for muserat
houses. When 1 came into the kitchen | saw Aunt Anna
holding something wrapped in a piece of grey blanket. She
smiled and said, "Take a lock at your baby sister. She is
our little Canuck. What do you think of her?" I was flab-
bergasted to say the least. 1 said, “Maybe if we dress her
like a white kid she won't look too bad.” I knew how Papa
hated Indians and when I found she wasn't and when
turned out to be a blue-eyed blonde that proved it. Children
in those days didn't know much about the birds and bees.

In a year or so we had many neighbors. OQur first
Christmas concert was at McVicor's with treats and Christ-
mas tree in 1905. I forgot to mention our Christmas of 1903,
We hung our long wool stockings - Ben, | and Nettie. 1 had
my doubts about Santa Claus, but we hung them just in
case. Next morning we were up early, Sure enough our
stockings were lumpy. A knife {or Bennie, a coloring book
for me, and a home-made doll for Nettie. Peanuts, candy,
and best of all a big red apple. Years later Mama told me
some of the gifts she had procured by sending away Royal
Crown s0ap wrappers.



Audrey’s first bed was the old wooden grub box, which
had served also as a wood box. [t now had sturdy legs and
lined with pretty wall paper. The rope handles were still
there for lifting,

McVicors were great le for dancing, with Hugh
playing the fiddle, and that's where we danced till Atkins
school was built. It served for school. church, parties and
dances. The preachers were mostly ones that travelled
from the small towns, We had one preacher T well recall,
Preacher Hays. He had shipﬁzd his oxen and househoid ef-
fects from Oklahoma. He had a little Cherokee Indian
blood. He was quite the old dandy, wore a derby hat sum-
mer and winter. We liked him 0.K. Papa and him used to
have some great argumenis. He made quite & few con-
verts. His followers were known as Haysites. He finally ran
away with Mrs. Mustard, another man's wife. Mrs, Hays
and two youngest daughters went to Didsbury and took in
washing, leaving later to live in B.C.

Mama and one of the oldest girls would work in Car-
stairs each winter for the first few vears. Papa would soon
have a crock full of sour dough, he could without a doubt,
make the best sourdough bread and pancakes, Before we
had a herd of cattle Willie and Papa used to go back to
Montana o shear sheep. In winter they went to Golden,
B.C. to work in the big mills. Papa sharpening the long
€ross cut saws that two men felled the trees with. The win-
ters were cold but not too much snow and the spring used
ta come earlier, we had Chinook winds in spring and fall. I
believe we were the first in that district to grow wheat.
Mama sent to Indian Head, Sask.. for samples of an early
wheat called “'Prelude’”.

Wild fruit grew in abundance. We especially liked
picking cranberries. Papa would drive us back 10 Win-
chells near Lost Lake and set up tenl, We would pick
several large sacks and as they didn't need canning we just
hung them out to freeze. With lots of vegetables from our
garden, prairie chickens, snowshoe rabbits  grouse, and
ducks, we didn't Jack for a good staple diet.

The women all milked a fow cows, selling cream which
brought money for dress gvods. Gingham was around 15 to
20 cents a yard, good shoes $1.50. We kids went barefoot in
summer. The things we had to buy in the grub line were
beans, flour, sugar, coffee, lea, soda, and baking powder
We grew our own beef, pork, turkey, chickens, ducks and
geese. Of course when the crops froze or we gol hailed out
we couldn’t keep things that ﬁid to be grain fed, but we
always had feed for cattle, When it hailed we kids didn't
think it was all that bad. We would hurry and pick up the
stones and make ice cream. A gallon syrup pail surrounded
by stones and salt in an hour or 50 we had ice cream turing
it back and forth by the pail. Every so often the lid had to
be taken off and the frozen cream scraped from the side
and the spoon licked if we weren't caught at it. All in all it
was a pretty good life and the neighors 2ol on pretty well.

The hundred pound flour sacks were used for nearly
everything - pillow slips, five hundred und bags would
make a sheet, dish cloths, diapers. underwear - but the
pioneers were proud so they didn't wear them where they
showed. The houses were heated by a box stove and the kit-
chen range. Green poplar wood was hauled and split, after
it dried it made a very hot fire. We now lived in a larger
log house, Our first stove for COOKing was cast iron with a
hearth where one could warm vour feet The door for the
oven had a guage in so the bread nearly always burned on
that side near the place the wood burned. It had four Jegs,
a dandy place underneath for dogs, cats, wet mitts, and an
occasional kid - warmest place in the house.

Our nearest neighbors were a family by the name of
Pepperdine - 5 green En?ishman. They had hard times un-
til they left after severa years to live in Calgary working
at his trade as book-keeper. They lost a baby while stil] at
the homestead. Mr, Pepperdine made a very nice casket
but' had no lumber for a rough box so the old grub hox
came once more for a sad but yseful urpose, The baby
was laid to rest on the hillside behind the shack in a little
grave lined carefully with peeled poplar poles, We children
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picked wild flowers and placed them on the small mound.
Looking back one wonders how many little graves are on
the homesteads.

Time went on in an even tempo until one day in 1914 a
dark cloud loomed on the horizon, we were at war with
Germany. It was sad to see 50 many voung lads leaving,
some never to return. Everything was changed and it's
never been back to the old way of living,

In 1917 Papa and Mama decided to £0 back to Oregon.
Their family were all married but Ben and Audrey. I was
married to Clarence Rinehart the day they left. Papa took
a course in barbering in Portland, Oregon. He had been
barbering for years on the farm cutting the lad’s hair.
They soon came back to Alberta Papa barbered in Car-
stairs for two years. Then they movc«F to Armstrong, B.C,
where he barbered till he was nearly 83, He died the night
my son Bernal started for overseas with the Air Force,
another war with Germany. After two years | was happy fo
have him home again, Our youngest son, Donald, was in
the Merchant Navy for four years.

Mama passed on lo thal “Beautiful Isle of Somewhere'
al the age of eighty-six. To the present date six of their
children are still living, Willie died last September, 1970
Audrey, our little Canuck, still resides in Armstrong, also
Susie and Anna. Ben, at Pitt Meadow; Nettie in Cascade,
B.C.; Nellie at Didsbury , Alberta. It seems a long time
since we got our mail at Bradbourne, N W.T. The date of
writing this bit is November, 1971

JOHN DAINTRAY

John homesteaded in the Frozen Man's Coulee in the
early twenties. This place is south of Harriet Sturgeons,
John was a bachelor at this time. He served in the Army in
World War 11, and when he returned he was married, his
wife's name is unknown. He then bought a piece of land,
north of Cremona, They lived there for a few years and
then his wife passed away. A few years later he remarried
and moved to Calgary, Alberta,

GEORGE AND LAURA DAY

By Muriel Foster

Sometime after 1904, (reorge and Laura homesteaded a
place west of Silver Creek, which is now owned by Ed
Silbernagel. In the early twenties they moved to a place 1'2

Mrs. Day 88 vears old. 1038,



miles west of Water Valley. George was very active in
many sports. He was a catcher for the Water Valley
baseball team for many years. He also owned a big
threshing machine and did threshing for farmers in the
east country, It is said to have been the biggest outfit in the
country at that time,

Laura was know for her generosity, also for her good
cooking. She made everyone welcome at her home. George
and Laura had no children of their own but took care of
Evelyn Day and George Chapman.

Laura's Mother spent a lof of time with them. She was
totally blind bul she was able to get around real good She
was known by all as “Grandma Day". Herbert Day,
George's brother, lived with them alse from time to time.

George passed away in the early spring of 1845, He was
on his way to the hospital with a ruptured appendix.

Laura lived on this place for a few years, she sold the
place lo Norm Bradly around 1950. But she still spent the
summer months here. Later she moved into a nursing
home in Calgary, where she lived until her death. Norm
Bradley sold this place to Bob Dimmer. Il was then sold to
Stan Leavetl, who is still the owner.

Donald McLoud homesteaded the place George Day

Iaeté:r bought. Donald went to World War [ but never retur-
n

Mr and Mes. George Day and Hobbart Day

FRED DEWHURST

By Jean Eby

Fred was not an old timer but he iived here all his
short life. he was born September 19, 1941 in Calgary, Alta.
Fred was raised and had all of his schooling in Water
Valley. His home was north of Stan Turners which is 1's
miles east of Water Valley,

To get to school, Fred had to walk across the open
fields which was guite a distance, especially in the winter
months, When Fred was fifteen, he quit school and came to
live with us, He stayed with us the next six vears, until he
was married. During these six yvears he worked al guite a
few different jobs. He started at Cremona helping with the
foundations for the Cremona School. Other jobs he had
were with the seismic crews and at oil rigs. He did cat
work for Lee Bouck. also some farm work for Johnnie
Uchitz at Rocky Rapids, Alta.

He logged with Elmer and Leo Foster for a while, west
of Water Valley. Around 1958, Fred and Doug Oldfield
worked for Bob Barclay, cutting fire killed trees for mine
ties. This was in the Highwood area. In March 1962, Fred
started working for the County of Mountain View No, 17,
with road construction crews. He was a ‘cat skinner, and
later drove Euchd earth movers.

Fred Dewhurst & Melvin Eby



In 1966-67 he became foreman of this crew and held this
position until his death in 197].

Fred married Sharon Oldfield, daughter of George and
Hattie Oldfield, on Feb. 24, 1962 in Cremona United Church,
Their reception was held at our home. They had planned
their wedding for December 1961, but Sharon’s mother
became ill and passed away December 29, 1961, After Fred
and Sharon were married they lived in a trailer at Diane
Davies, south of Water Valley. Later they moved a quarter
mile west of Water Valiey,

Fred and Sharop an their wedding day

In July, 1968 they bought a new trailer and moved to
the Cremona Trailer Court, which was owned by Lawrence
Bergeson. Fred passed away of a heart condition on Jan
21, 1971, al the age of 29.

Doug Ofdfieid and Fred Dewhurst

Fred was a real kind fpers;on. he was always willing to
help anyone in need. In fact, the night before he diecf he
was helping people gel their vehicles up the hill south of
Cremona, The roads were real icy that year,

Fred and Sharon had two daughters. Dixie Lee Ann
born September 19, 1963, (her dad’s birthday) and Connje
Lynn - Born Nov. 1. 197 Sharon and the girls moved to
Dawson Creek, B.C. in 1972, where they still reside.

JACK DICKSON

owned the whole quarter but sold out to Jack Brydan. A lot
of school teachers at Water Valley boarde? at Jack
Dickson’s place. He like to dance and never missed a dance
in the area. He had one son, Dale. After Jack’s death, this
place was sold to Chuck Houston as “TARA",

EDWIN DINZEY

Mr. Edwin Dinzey and Isobel and their children - Ed-
win Jr. (Bill), John, Richard, Emily, Rosalie Mae, and Ann
Isobel lived on the W-ia, 11-T30. 5-5. They took an active
part in the activities in the community. Mrs. Dinzey very
faithfully played the organ for the Big Prairie School

lices too, She also gave piano lessons at her home. The
children attended Big Prairie School.

They moved away from Big Prairie district after living
there for a long time. Mr. and Mrs. Dinzey are both
deceased, The friends they made while living in the distriet
will always remember them.

BILL DULONG

Bill Dulong homesteaded a quarter section one and a
half miles north of Water Valley. This quarter was straight
west of Ernie Taudines. Bill sold this land to Angus Me-
Millan and moved to Crossfield, Alberta. This land is
presently owned by Fred Bundschoks.

These three homesteaders Oscar Swanson, Bill Dulong,
and Ernie Taudine cut wood and hauled it up to the Water
Valley School for winter fuel to keep the chikﬁ-en warm,

SOME ANCESTORS OF THE EARLES

By Marjorie Macon Earle

I am goin% to jot down a little history. The Macon's
came from France, during the persecution of the
Huguenots. (1600's) over o England, and they migrated to
America, and settled in one lot in Macon, Georgia. My
great grandfather in Blue Mont, Ky. was a lawyver and his
sons, A.C, and Thomas apprenticed in his office as lawyers,
with Lincoln. My grandfather, was a guest of Lincolns.

My grandfather and grandmother crossed the plains in

lowa, where my mother was born. They continued their
trek when my mother was two years old.

My Aunt Till was born enroute. Coming, out of the So.
Platte river, they stuck in quicksand, when the baby came,

gotl the man off, They were holding a meeting out in front
of the court house, when the man came up and said, “Well,
Mr. Macon, you got me off all right, Shake hands". My
Erandfather looked and said, 'Yes, | Bot you off all right,

ut you are guilty”. I believe that was his last criminal
case,

railroads coming
Grande laid their tracks down Water Street (in front of my
g;andparen

nta Fe, had to take a different route south west of Canon
to the Rio Grande and California. The Suspension bridge is
in the Royal Gorge of the Arkansalsd river 1,052 above sea

I didn't give you any of Grandma Macon’s history, she
was born in London County, West Virginia, Virginia
Megeath. She had a brother James. Of course he fought in



the war between the north and south as Captain in the
Cavalry. He went to Omaha and also had freight teams in
the second gold rush to California and owned all the freight
cars on the U.P. and rented the same to them. When he
died he gave his house and enough money to the Macons
for a boys home like the Father Flanigan home for boys
called, Boystown, in Omaha. One of his ers Sam, was
killed in the war.

My father was from Montreal, his father and four
others came from Philadelphia, Penn. and went to Ottawa
(then known as Byetown), and started the first Bank note
Co., known as the British North American Co. My grand-
father was an engraver. He was planning to branch off
from there and start a business of his own. But one man
had access to the safe, and stole the formula of the green
ink and had it patented under his name, and then when
they woke up to the fact he wanted them to pay for it. They
had law suits over it and took it through the courts here
and also over in England, I believe they threw it out over
there.

Written By Daughter, Pat Wiebe

This is some of my father's ancestry as written by his
sister some years ago, .

My mother, Rachel Starrett, came from Molin near
Londonderry, Ireland to visit her brothers in Toronto who
had come to Canada, "“The Land of Opportunity’.

She returned to Ireland but came back for another visit
- never intending to stay. When the war broke out in 1914 it
wasn'l safe to return on the sea. She had trained in Ireland
for a teacher. Thinking the war would never end she took a
business course in Toronto and worked a little while there,
She followed one brother to Calgary where he set up a tea
and coffee and spice business. Here she graduated from
Calgary Normal School, having had as instructors Mrs.
Fischer and Mr. Hutton who later taught Jack and I. A
school was offered her in Crossfield but she was afraid to
g0 to the country. She married my father in 1917 and lived
awhile in Calgary and later moved to the ranch on Grease
Creek, and later to Cremona,

HENRY M. EARLE 1890-1971
By Jack & Mick

Born in Canon City, Colorado in 1890. His mother died
when the youngest of five children was born. His father
moved to Calgary (N.W.T. at tnat time) with his young
family in Feb. 1905. Harry completed his public school on
ith Ave., in Calgary, and attended St. Mary’s High School -
where they had the best hockey team! The population of
Calgary was about 4000, He herded town milk cows in
Mount Royal area, and also where the General Hospital
now stands,

In 1910 Harry homesteaded west of Cremona where
Harold Creek and Greece Creek join, now owned by George
Dutchik of Cochrane. He chose this sight, !hinkin% it was
similar to the foothills around Denver. However he failed to
realize that it was 1200 miles further north! While summer
grazing was good, it was nearly impossible to grow winter
feed. His neighbors at this time were Bony Thompson, Jack
Fuller, Cyrilg Fuller, Fred Turnbull, and many Stony In-
dians, Bony Thompson was considered one of the best men
with a six-shooter ever seen. Thompson always got his deer
this way. One day he came around the corner of a building
where Jack Garson and some other men were sitting on 5
gallon kerosene cans. Thinking it too good a chance to lose,
Thompson fired his 45 through Garson's can - “Hoot Mon'" -
there was some excitement, One of the hired hands was
named Plum, who later homesteaded the quarter adjoining
Harry which is still known as the Plum quarter.

In 1817 Harry met an Irish girl, Rachel Starrett, in
Calgary, whom he married and took out to the homestead.

Because of the isolation and rough conditions, his bride did
not think much of the place. She related how one time an
Indian came to the door asking for “‘cash, one cash’. She
thought he was saying “kiss’’, and it scared her out of
seven years growth! Later Harry told her that he had lent
him & dollar some time before, and he just wanted another
dollar. They got their mail and supplies at Boltrel,
travelling by saddle horse as there was no access road.

Two boys, Jack and Mick, were born in these years. In
1922 they moved to Cremona area where they found con-
ditions more favorable. Here a daughter, Allison (Pat) was
born. As all farmers of that time, they experienced prices
dropping to rock-bottom - buying cattle at 9/1b. and selling
them for 1 or 2%; or in later years, feeding an animal for a
vear and selling it for $13.00.

Harry built a new home on the farm in 1950, but retired
a year later. He was an avid fisherman, enjoyed gar-
dening, and loved telling stories to children so was called
“Grandpa' by all the neighboring youngsters. The couple
spent their winters in Victoria for 14 years before their
health failed.

Jack became a teacher - taught for 35 years, including
8 years at Vermilion Vocational College, had 7 sons, and is
now retired on a small farm at Vermilion.

Mick stayed home on the farm, bought adjoining !and
and is now in garmership with his son.

Pat attended Calgary Normal School and taught for 8

years in the Didsbury area. She married Jake Wiebe of
Cremona where they are still farming.

The Earle amily, Mick, Pat, Jack, 1926

Earle - Wedding picture. Apeil 1917



MEMORIES OF THE PAST - J. EBY
By Jack Eby

When we moved to the Water Valley area there was
only the school house and the log hall on the west side of
the hall grounds. We used to drive to Big Prairie store to
get our mail and groceries. Of course most of the food was
grown on the farm. Sometimes we would gel our groceries
from Featherstone's store. This store was S.W. of home,
near the Winchell Coulee and also closer to home.

Around 1933, Guy and Howard Gazley came to the area
and built the first store in Water Valley, it was made of
Wane edge slabs and tar paper. Later they built a large log
building with living quarters in the back. Albert Sailor built
another store in 1935. The church was built in 1935, Dad
helped saw the lumber for this. My brothers and I got our
schooling all in Water Valley, except for myself, I took
grade nine at Sunnyslope school, which stood where the
Carstairs Gas Plant now stands. Grade 10 and 11 | took in
Carstairs. I stayed at my Granddad Ebys’ at this time, My
first teacher was Mr, Ben McBain - 1 vear; Winnifred
Smith - § vears; and June Smith - 1 vear; In those days
“R.B. Bennett, Prime Minister of Canada”, used to give a
ten dollar prize to outstanding students. [ was lucky
enought o win this two years in a row and runner up one
year.

To make a few cents in those days as kids, we used to
catch gophers and take them to Bob Laurence who bought
themn to feed his mink and fox, which he raised for their
furs. Around this time Leo Root (not sure of his real
nameJ, came to stay at our place, He tanned hides and
made harness. Some of his Rawhide Harness may still be
around. He later moved his operation to John Nafzigers,
where he built a small cabin made from poplar logs, which
he squared with a broad axe. This cabin is still in use as a
:golhs;xed on the farm, which is now owned by H. Bun-

chok.

As an old friend of the family, a retired railroad man
from Blairmore, Ole Olson, came to live with us around
1941, He used to raise chickens and help with the stock or
any chore he could do. In his younger years he was billed
as tlil:)e "Human Derrick”, as he could hold up a weight of
750 1bs.

In those early years hunting for moose and deer was
very essential. This also meant a short holiday for the men
every fall, as well as getting a meat su;:Ply. Dad used to Lgo
every fall for a week or so. In 1944 Dad and I went up the
Big Red country and stayed in a small cabin, that he and
Guy Gazley had built long before, While there I had the
misfortune of shooting a toe from my right foot. Dad put
black powder from a rifle shell over the wound, wrapped
my foot in brown paper, nailed a piece of board to the heel
of my boot and we stayed another two weeks. only lost
one day of hunting. Another year, Joe Oldfield, Frank
Colvin, Charles Evans and [ went west to the Vanderlinde
to hunt. Just as we got to our campsite the tongue broke on
the sleigh. It took Joe and I a full day hacking out another,
making holes by heating bolts and burning them in the
wood. We had borrowed the sleigh from John Nafziger and
that tongue was still in 12 years later, when he sold out.

I have worked most of the time in the logging business,
for Dad and other mills, cutting logs etc; I also used to go
to the Vulcan area in the early fall to haul grain from com-
bines. Then back to this area to work on threshing
machines.

Around 1946 1 worked for awhile with a fellow from
Water Valley, by the name of Locki Brimms. We worked at
Lake Louise opening up the park roads between Lake
Louise and Jasper. Billy King and Dave Hendry were also
up there at this time,

When the old one room school got too small I helped
build the new two room school, this was in 1948. 1 also
belfed with the new hall where it is toda{v. after the old )
hall burned down in 1942. In the spring of 1948, Joe Oldfield,
Billy King and I decided to ride a raft down the Little Red.
We built the raft with fire killed logs about 3 miles up river

from the bridge west of Water Valley. The river was hli-fh
with the spring run off, so we rode as far as Westward Ho,
east of Sundre. We spent one night on the river bank just
north of Elkton. When we got off the river at Westward Ho,
we hitch hiked into Sundre. it was the first time I was in
Sundre. We then caught a ride to Olds, Didsbury, Carstairs
and finally home.

In those early days baseball was the main sport. There
was a bush league and it was quite exciting at times to
watch these games, There was alot of house rties back
then, also dancing in the hall. Everyone would come, kids
and all. They had a place to lay the kids down to slee
when they got tired. Moonshine was plentiful, some goocr
some bad,

I married Jean (Oldfield) in 1949, we had seven
children, two boys - Melvin and Roger and five girls,
Beverly, Sheree, Barbara, Nadine and Natalie. Melvin
married Christine Stewart of Calgary, they have two bovs
and live in Peace River. Beverly married David Reay, of
Dawson Creek, B.C., thcg have 1 daughter and 1 son,
they live in Dawson Creek, B.C. Sheree married Don Toner
of Calgary, they have two girls and live in Cremona. Bar-
bara married Larry Ottoson from Cochrane, they have one
girl and live at Fort McMurray. Nadine and Natalie are
still at home. Our son Roger, was killed near Canmore in
1971,

Jack Eby,



1949, L-R Menno & Jeannie Eby, Jack & Jean (Wedding day), George and Hal.
tie Oldfield

Hunting trip. Jack Eby, Joe Oldfield, Frank Colvin, and Charles Evans.

After we were married, I built a small portable
sawmill and did quite a bit of custom sawing over the
years as well as my own. I is still my occupation. I spent
about eight summers working for the County on the road
construction between 1959-1967. | have been on the hall
board at different times and helped start the Water Valley
Stampede in 1953. 1 have been Sec.-Treasury all the vears
since. Jim Burton and Joe Oldfield were president and
vice-president in the beginning, Jean started driving the
school bus for the county of Mountain View in March 1965
and does so yet. As the kids live in different parts of Alber-
ta and B.C,, we do alot of travelling and get to see alot of
beautiful country.

Jean and T both enjoy curling and golfing, also our
seven grandchildren. Looking back over the years, who can
forget special events such as, the Dog Pound Stampede,
box socials and of course, the Christmas concerts, root
cellars with their winter supply of fruit and vegetables, (no
deep freezes in those days), cuttinif ice on the Winchell
Lake to fill the ice houses, the big piles of wood, cranberry
wcking when people would get sacks of berries, The

atkins and Rawleigh men with their supplies of most
ev ing needed in the home. Of course, the medical cure
all Linament, goose grease that was used for
everything from water-proofing boots to rubbing on your
chest for colds. The big parcel from Eatons and Simpsons,
skating parties on the river, hockey with willow sticks and
since we mostly rode horses, our endless ly of pucks,
the old swimming holes, smoking moss and eating sour
dock, that broad leaf plant with a reddish tinge and its bit-
ter sweet taste. Also the sulphor and molasses treatment in
tl:,dsprlng. Life may have hard at times but always
good.
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MENNO AND JEANNIE EBY
By Jack and Jean Eby

Menno was born Aug. 22, 1903, at the original
homestead of his fathers. This homestead was west and
south of Carstairs, The Eby family later moved east and
north of the Carstairs Gas Plant. Menno had all of his
schooling at the Sunnyslope school, which stood where the
Carstairs Gas Plant is now.

Jeannie Moser was born Aug. 1, 1908 in N rce,
Idaho, U.S.A. She moved to Canada, to the Crossfield area
with her family in 1921, Menno and Jeannie were married
Jan. 6, 1926 in Calgary. They lived with Menno's parents a
few months before going to Hood River, Oregon. While in

on, Menno worked at a store and did some truck
driving in the areas around Hood River. Their son Jack,
was born while they lived in Oregon.

In 1927 they moved back to Canada to Turner Valley,
Alta. While in Turner Valley, Menno worked on the oil
wells. They had three children while living here, a girl -
Patricia Jean, who only lived 2 months, Eddie was born in
1929, and Roy in 1931. Their last son, Larry, was born in
Didsbury in 1940. They moved to Water Valley in 1932,
Menno bought & quarter of Jand from Mayor Webster (S.E.-
22-29-5-5). This quarter had been homesteaded by Geo.
Bishop in 1908. People by the name of Dunwoody also lived
there. Bob O'Neil and family was living here when Menno
bought it. While waiting for this family to move off, Menno
and Jeannie and family lived at her parents home, which
was across the road (SW-23-29-5-5) This quarter was used
for pasture every summer, because of the good springs and

rass., Moser's homeplace was near Neir, west of

ossfield.

Menne & Jeannia Eby, Marion and Mrs. Moser. 1952,

When the Eby family moved onto their land, it was to a
small log cabin, which was about half way down the quar-
ter. They later moved this cabin to the present building site
where the Cornforth’s now live. The frame house was built
in the early forties. He shingied this house with shingles he
made himself. To make a living Menno drove truck for Joe
Webb in Turner Valley, a few years after tfﬁ moved to
Water Valley. Later he worked for George ompson on
the sawmill. This is where he took logs to be sawed for his
home. Menno later bought a sawmill of his own and did
custom sawing, as well as his own, also he purchased a
shingle mill. To run his mill he used an Allis Chalmers
tractor, also he used this tractor to break land for different
people in the district. During this time Menno also went
east every fall, to the Madden district to run the threshing
machines for Frank McNicol, George Skinner and others,
he did this to make extra money for the winter grub stake.

In the earily fifties, Menno started driving truck for
Walter May. He drove truck until the middle sixties, when
the lumber yard changed hands. He then ran the farm and
raised cattle until retiring.



Menno und Jeannie, Taken at their home in Enderby B C. 30th Wedding An
niversary. Jan. & 1976

Menno always enjoyed the hunting trips every fall back
ta the Greasy Plains and Heifer Lake country. Some of the
men who went along were Frank McNicol and Guy Gazley.
Menno also took his turn on the school and hall committee.
Jeannie was very active in all community affairs. In the
summers she grew beautiful big gardens. Jeannie was an
excellent cook, so many people enjoyed visiting with her to
taste her good cooking and coffee. Their children are all
grown and married. Jack married Jean Oldfield, they had
seven children and live at Water Valley. Roy married Ellen
Haughland from Sask., they have three children and live in
Whitehorse, Yukon. Eddie married Patricia Chauncey,
they had five children. They separated and Eddie is now
remarried and has one child, they live in Edmonton. Larry
married Betty Sherriffs from Grand Valley and they live in
Cochrane

Menno and Jeannie have 15 grandchildren and ten
great-grandchildren living. One granddaughter died shortly
after birth, and one grandson passed away in 1971. Menno
and Jeannie retired to Enderby, B.C. in 1969, where they
still reside. They enjoy fishing, gardening and travelling to
visit family and friends. They also enjoy anyone visiting in
that area to drop in to chat.

HECTOR ELLIOTT AND FAMILY

By Hector Elliott

In 1958, Hector Elliott and family, wanting to live in the
country and do some farming. purchased the quarter sec-
tion north of Lee Bouck’s. After 15 years of weekend far-
ming they buill a new modern house and retired from
steady work. Olive passed away in 1972 and the boys, Clive
and John went away to university to graduate as Wild Life
Biologists - Clive with his Masters degree and John with his
P.HD. Both boys married girls with their Bachelors
degrees in Wild Life Biology.

I began teaching art in Cremona and Westbrook about
1970 to concentrate my teaching in the town of Cremona at
the United Church Hall,

CHARLES EVANS

By Vivian Van Maarion and Charles Evans

Dad was born on November 27, 1892 in a little town
called Walcott, Colorado, U.S.A,
Dad had two sisters and one brother. His brother Tom

was killed by lightning and his mother and father were
divorced when Dad was small. His mother remarried Mr,
McMillan. It was around 1906 that they decided to come hy
covered wagon to Canada. Angus McMillan was Dad’s half
brother and Jessie Thompson was his half sister,

At the age of eighteen years he was around the Water
Valley area and had met our mother Mary Laveck. At this
time he took out a homestead on the river where Engmar
Sundquist lived in later years.

But Dad never proved up on his homestead, so it went
back to the Government. Shortly after his eighteenth bir-
thday he enlisted in the army, Dad was at war for about
four years. Al the end of the war he came back to the
Water Valley area again. He had met our mother before he
had gone to war, and had corresponded with her while he
was away.

On May 7, 1825 our mother and father ran off to get
married in Calgary. Our grandfather, Sam Laveck, was a
good Catholic and was not goinﬁ to let his oldest daughter
marry someone that was not of the Catholic faith. Grand-

father disowned Mom for awhile but soon all was well and
they became close again.

®

13ie

Harriet Stefle Conway,

Charle.



Dad was a real wanderer so we seldom lived more than
a year in one place. Their first child. Charles was born in
September of 1926. Dad was working from job to job. and
while working in Carstairs for awhile in 1929, one might
while they were sleeping their home caughl fire. They
managed (o get their two children oul of the blaze, but
were unable to save any of their clothing or furnishings.

From there they hived in Calgary where there third
child was born. During this time Dad was in the Belcher
Hospital for soldiers. He was nol very well at times. From
Calgary we moved back to Bottrel where their fourth child
was born, then back to Water Valley again

Dad worked at sawmilling in different surrounding
areas. Finally in 1936 he bought an acre of land off Sam
Desjardine and buill a house, it is the house now owned by
Gillespies. Their fifth and sixth children were born at this
house in 1936 and 1939, When we lived at Water Valley,
behind the church, this was our longest stay in one place,
We stayed there about five years. then Dad sold it to Guy
'Ga?el_v It was during this time Dad helped with the new
hal

The old dance hall was just west of the baseball
diamond, when there was a social, everyone went with
their parents, even infant babies. There were bunk-beds in
the girls cloak room where the little one's could sleep.
Everyone enjoyed & good time.

Then one night the hall burnt down, Our Dad and Bun
Bortom were some of the main one's to help built the new
hall. It Is now being made larger by enthusiastic residents
of the community,

Charlie and Mary had six children by 1939. Their first
son Charles married Dorthy Sutherland and lives in Car-
stairs, Their second child, Evelyn, married Maurice Gun-
derson and now lives in Calgary, Their third child, David
married Nora Sutherland and now lives in Calgary, Their
fourth, Vivian, married Jake Van Maarion and presently
live in Crossfield, Their fifth, Ethel, married Wilfred Hoff-
man and now lives in Empress. Their sixth child.

Geraldine marnied Bill Wilson and now lives in Calgary.

Left to rnght. Gertie Laveck, Sam Laveck. Mary Laveck (nee Carlon)

Jim
Laveck, Henry Laveck. Andrew Laveck. Loretta Laveck 1999

(harlie and Mary Evans with 2 ol their grandehildren, Danny and Marge
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1947 Chirlie Evams and Angus MeMillan all brothers

During the mid forty's Dad ran a sawmill that he
operated just south of Glenn MeNicols. Elmer Foster
always called it Punkin Centre. Bul one night the mill
caught fire, so we were on the move again. Glenn McNicol
gave Dad work and we lived at his sawmill for a few vears
Then in 1948 we moved to Airdrie, then after a year, back
1o Water Valley

I can always remember when we were younger our
main food was plain macaroni or plain white navy beans
Our jam was green gage. Mom always canned a lot of wild
fruit. But | guess a lot of people ate the same as we did at
that time. When I think back they were happy times.

Mom always worshipped her mom and dad. Sam and
Harriet Laveck. Sam Laveck and Mr. Haley were some of
the main ones to help build the Catholic Church. Grandpa
owned a fot of land at Water Valley, so he donated land for
the gravevard, the hall and also the baseball diamond. In
those days a dollar was received to make a deal, binding if
vou gave something. All the land right up that side to
Thompson's was his al one time. Grandma and Grandpa
had eighteen children. but there was always room at their
large table for one more

Mom and Dad lived in and around the Water Valley
area until 1952 when they moved to Calgary.

Dad was a commisionar for a number of years at
Curri¢ Barracks. In 1963 he died from lung cancer He is
buried in the field of honour in Calgary. Mom continued
living in her home until she became too ill to care for her-
self. She now resides in the Boyack Nursing Home,



ERNIE FEATHERSTONE

By Jean Eby

Around 1930, Ernie bought a quarter section of land, 1
mile west and 2!, miles south of Water Valley, This place
had earlier been homesteaded by a man named Clarence
Hughes. Ernie opened a store on this place in 1933, he
operated this store about 25 years.

He also owned a sawmill with the Ingram brothers,
which they ran for many years. Mabel Carga was Ernie's
housekeeper and also looked after the store. She was a
sister to the Ingram brothers

Ernie passed away in the sixties. He willed his proper-
ty to Mabel. She later sold it 10 H.
algary, where she still resides.

Scholtz and moved to

-

The Ernie Featherstone Store

OSCAR FELTAS

Oscar Feltas lived west and south of Water Valley on
the same place as Billy Franks. He did carpenter work, He
married Dorothy Hickey. Oscar was injured in a car ac-
cident and passed away in 1958 or 1959,

MILES FIKE

Miles Fike bought a place from Art Cartiledge. This
was the Cartiledge homestead. He lived here for some
time, then sold out to Bortons.

Miles Fike loved to dance and took in al the dances in
the area,
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THE FISHERS

This place where the Fishers' lived is straight south of
Art and Annie Pawsons. This quarter was homesteaded
in the early 1900's by a man by the name of Morgan. The
Fishers bought this place about 1920. Mr. Fisher was killed
in a car accident. Mrs. Fisher was Joe Clark’s daughter -
Joe homesteaded north of Lewis place in 1914, Mrs. Fisher
still resides in Calgary. The Fishers stiil own this same
piece of property,

DAVE FLENN

Flenn’s came out to Alberta from Peterbough, Ontario.
They settled in Caroline, Alla. Flenns than moved 1o Water
Valley. Here they lived on a half section of land 1'» miles
north of Water Valley, owned by George Lashmore Sr.
They lived on this place for about a year. Flenns then
moved out to Walter May's farm where Graham Barnard
now lives. After spending some time there Flenns moved
west again to Water Valley, where they bought some land
from Sam Laveck. They lived here for a few years then
moved back to Caroline They sold this property to Percy
Sirr.

Mr. Flenns name was Dave. His sons were Pat, Basel
and Dave Jr. Both Pal and Basel wenl to war in the second
World War, The girls' name were Eleanor who married
George Benze. Chris who married Adam Leinweber and
Marie

THE CLARENCE FOAT HISTORY

By: Marion Foat Reid

My parents were born in the State of Winconsin in Sept
1854 and 1856, They were married in 1876 and had a family
of five children - three girls and two boys. Father made
two trips to the North West Territories, which later became
Alberta, Canada. His first trip was made in 190, and then
to satisfy himself, he came again in the spring of 1902; - he
was still impressed, so he filed on seven homesteads; one
for himself, one for his oldest son Asa, one for his younges|
son Earl, one for his son-in-law Richard Huber (who had
married my sister Lillian), one for a brother-in-law Fred
Magoon, and two more for neighbor boys. The same year
in November, we left Adams County, Winconsin and came
to this wonderful country by train. Our livestock and fur-
niture were brought in by freight, by my brother Asa Foat
and Fred Magoon. The families were able to get a house to
live in, in Didsbury, while the men built twe 16x30 ft.
granaries to live in, and shelters for the livestock were
built. Our homestead was the N.E. quarter of Section 32,
Township 29, Range 3. There was plenty of snow that win-
ter, and we moved out on the homestead with team and
sleigh, just south of where my son Clarence Reid lived for
25 years. The date was January 22, 1903,

Breaking the land was the first Job, and as the first
Summer Was very wet, we wege always getting stuck in the
mud. All the breaking was done with a large walking plow
and six horses. The willow and poplar bush did nol daunt
my father, as he had cleared a 200 acre farm of hard wood
{mostly oak) in Wisconsin. Neighbors were few and far bet-
ween, the first while, then settlers began moving in. One in-
cident that memories bring back, was when some of our
bachelor neighbors would come on a saddle horse to buy
€ggs from my mother and would bring a cloth flour bag to
carry them in. What did we do”? We wrapped each egg in
paper, packed them in a cardboard box, and tied it with a
string, then put it in the sack! Few of the neighbors who
stayed for many years were the Colwells, Birds,
McLeavys, Cowmans, Grahams, McBains, Atkins, Hubers,



Reids, Hunters and Ottos - naming a few. Others came for
only a few years, and moved on to other regions.

Frost took the crops for several years; there was also
hail to contend with, too, My brothers returned to Wiscon-
sin and married in about 1903, and my sister Cora had
married Homer Jones, so that left only me to help my Dad.
My brothers returned to farm on their own. [ plowed with a
gang plow and five horses;, disced, mowed and raked
prairie wool, drove a bull sweep o stack hay and milked
cows. It was a job the first years to find our milk cows on
the prairie. One never knew in what direction lo go for
them. Our nearest school was Carstairs where | attended
one yvear. Then the Atkins school was built in  1906. It was
located where the County Buildings are now, south-west of
Cremona. 1 rode my saddle horse to school there, and my
first teachers were Mr. McLauchlin, and Joseph Reid.
Later Mr. Edwin Reid taught school there too. Our first
church services were held in the homesteaders’ cabins. A
Presbylerian minister drove a team out from Didsbury.
Later services were held by a student minister in the new
school house. There were not the aclivities in the country in
those days. We skated on the rivers, and had dances oc-
casionally, swam in the Dog Pound Creek, and had com-
munity picnics. In 1805, 1 rode my saddle horse (with a
side-saddle which I still have) for three days, getting a
petition from the new land-owners, to gel a Post Office in
our midst. Having gotten over thirty names, we senl it ta
Ottawa and got the Post Office which was named ““Jack-
ville"”. It was located one mile south of the present Owens
farm. The Englishman and his wife who kept it were, Mr
and Mrs. Jack Heel. 1 cannot remember just when it was
discontinued.Prior 1o the Post Office, the neighborhood
mail was picked up in Carstairs, once a week by a rancher,
Mr. Gentles.

My mother died in 1920, and my aunt, Mrs, Fred
Magoon who then was a widow moved in to keep house for
my father, Father was always for progress, and he enjoyed
driving his Ford car. Of course he drove it like he drove
himself — in a hurry. It was nearly the finish of him a
couple of times, He was always willing and ready to help
the neighbors, and had a host of friends when he died at the
age of 76, in 1934

As for myself, in 1909 | married Edwin Reid, and we
have seven children; three sens and four daughters. and |
still am living in the house I moved into as a bride (with a
few additions, of course) It has been very interesting for
me to have come to a new country where there were no
fences, no roads, few neighbors, and during the 66 years
have had opportunity of seeing the great country develop. 1
am the only one living from the Clarence Foat family and
am in my 78th year
*Marion Reid passed away on Sept. 11, 1975 at the age of 88
years

Marion Reid lived in this bouse continuoasly from Nov. 1902 to Dec. 1974,
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PHIL FOAT

By: Phil Foat 1965

I was born in Little Lake, Wisconsin in 1884, My uncle,
Clarence Foat, came to Alberta in 1901 and homesteaded
the land where he lived until his death. I came in April 1902
and homesteaded the land on which [ now live, ’&re first
summer that I was here I worked for J.C. Robertson, a far-
mer near Didsbury, My wages were $15 per month. Alberta
White, who lived on the farm now owned by Jess Ray, and
1 went to the bush and got out logs that I used to build my
shack. It was 12" X 14", [ drove oxen for Byers, who lived
on the Dave Alfrey farm. The first set of buildings east of
the gas plant on the Carstairs road is on that farm. When I
broke my own land, I use horses and a foot burner. That is
a walking plow that turned one furrow at a time. | broke
about eighty acres that way, In fact, I farmed with horses
until 1928 when T got my first tractor, a McCormick
Deering.

I'm a little bit ahead of my story, so I'll go back to the
early days. In the summer of 1902-03 | worked on the
C.P.R. I was stationed in Crossfield, which at that time
was only a box car. I lived in a small shack with other
workers. In June, 1903, it snowed so much that the train
was held up for several days. I was paid $1.75 day and
board myself. During the winters of 1902 and 193, 1 fed
cattle for Jack Briggs. He lived just east of the West
Hope School. The first cow I ever had was given as part of
my wages by Jack Briggs. At that time there were no fen-
ces, the land was all range. The fail round up started
at Didsbury and went as far south as Cochrane Lakes.
Here the ranchers sorted out their cattle. Cowan, who lived
about two and a half miles north of Big Hill Springs, had
Iwenty-five hundred head of cattle. Bill Harder, was in the
country then and he and | worked for Hickiens and Gentles.
This ranch was on the land now owned by Owens This
place changed hands several times. It was later bought by
a man from Montana by the name of Ford. Bill and I both
worked for him.

After my grandmother died, Bill and T batched in my
shack. Then my mother, Mrs. Magoon and three children
came and lived with us. My present house, without the ad-
dition buill in 1962, was built oppesite Dick Huber's home
(now Don Odell's) by Charlie Stuck. It was made of tar
paper and shiplap. I bought it and moved it to my place
using horses and skids. Mother and her children moved in-
to my new house which had four rooms, two upstairs and
two down

In 1917, T married May White, who had lived with Mr,
and Mrs. Huber for five years. She was one of a large
family left fatherless. Her mother as not able to care for
all of her children. and found a home for May at Hubers.
May, Vera, Charlie, and Glen went o the Garfield School
with a team and cutter in the winter, and a democrat in the
summer. After the others quit school, May rode horseback
to school. When Sydney, our oldest child was about two
years old, Mrs. Clarence Foat, my sunt died and my
mother went to keep house for her brother, Clarence

In the early days dances were held in the old cheese
factory and in the schools. We danced to the music of the
mouth organ. Sometimes | played the mouth organ and sat
facing the wall so that the dancers couldn't make me
Iauﬁ:z. In later years, Barrs and Gazeleys played for dan-
ces held in the cheese factory. In those days taxes were one
dollar and a quarter per acre. The roads were built by the
farmers using horses and scrapers., We worked ouf our
taxes. Earl Foat and I had two scrapers and teams with
which we built the first road over Dog Pound Hill. We went
about one half mile down the creek where we forded it and
then came back to the road.

We marketed our grain at Didsbury as an elevator was
built there before there was one at Carstairs, it took a full
day to make the round trip. I helped build the first
elevator in Carstairs. It was an Alberta Pacific. My left
hand still bears a scar where I hit it with a hatchet while
working there. Uncle Clarence, Dick Huber, and I got our



first threshing machine in 1904, It was a horse power outfit.
Our first job was threshing for B.F. VanDuzee. who owned
the Goetjen place north of Owens. We threshed around the
country all winter and took our pay in any form - old hens,
grain, money - anything that could be had.

One winter in forty below weather Joe Reid was
needing straw very badly. In spite of the cold we threshed
for him. Joe built a house where Marion Reid lives. In 1912,
I was at Bill Bohannon's sale, when sheep were being sold,
Fred Cowman advised me to buy them. I had no money but
Cowman financed the deal. In 1922, 1 got a second bunch of
sheep from Cowman. An old ram in the flock chased my
mother up on the woodpile where she had to stay until she
saw May passing by on horseback. and called to her for
help. We have often laughed over that event.

Byron school was built in 1922. John Burnett and Mrs.
Alexander were on the school board at that time. | bought

years a curling rink was built al Cremona. I slarted to curl
then. I curl only in the sixty-and-over spiel which I enjoy
very much.

In 1959 my boys and | were putting up silage. | was
packing it with the tractor when it upset. I was hit with the
fender resulting in a two and a half month stay in the
hospital. We lost our second boy, Don. when he was five
and a half years old. We now have Sidney, John, and
Harley who are all married and live near us. We have nine
grandchildren and one lﬁreat grandchild, When 1 look
around and see beautiful modern homes. school buses

country was well founded. In my day, if a man was a good
worker, that was all that was necessary. He could make
good if he tried. Now we hear of training for leisure time
What next?

~Phil Foat died Feb, 20. 1968 at the age of 84 years.

Phil and May Fout; Summer of 1563

MAY AND PHILIP FOAT

Submitted by: Mrs. Valerie Foat with close collaberation
with Grandma Foat

In 1902, at age 18, Philip Foat and his uncle, Clarence
Feat arrived in Cal ary from Oxford, Winconsin. Together
they walked to Di bury to look for a homestead. From
Didsbury they were taken around the country with a team
and wagon. Phil decided to take the land by the Dog Pound
Creek. He did not want sandy land (like that in Winconsin)
and there was good pasture and water available. His uncle
went back to Wisconsin for the family and Philip stayed.
He worked for a Mr. Gentiles for $15 a month. He continued
to work out until he did not have to support his homestead
any longer,

May White arrived from Portsmouth, England in 1903
with her parents when she was a year old. They landed in
the United States and the following year moved to Canada,
On November 1, 1912 she arrived in the district, where she
lived with the Huber's. She remembers the date as the
stooks were covered in snow and were nol threshed until
the followins spring. May went to school with Phil's two
brothers and his sister, Vera Magoon (later Hickey) Her
and Vera were very good friends and May saw a lot of
Phil. Also the war was on and there was a shortage of
eligible young men!

In September on 1917, Uncle Dick and Aunt Lily Huber
and Phil's mother topk Phil and May to Carstairs in a
Model A" Ford to the Ministers home. They were married
by Reverend Bradly, then came home. The Huber's wen!
home while May and Phil dined off of trout that Phils hired
man, Bill Lever had caught for their wedding supper. As of
the 24th of September 1978 Grandma Foat has lived 61
Years. In the same house she arrived at as a bride, Phil
and May had four sons, Sidney, Don, John and Harley.
Grandma has ten grandchildren and tw.iy o wreat grand
children. 6 boys and 6 girls,

THE FOAT FAMILY
By: John Foat

Philip Foat married May White in 1917, They raised
four sons, Sydney, Don, John, and Harley.

Sydney married Elenora Snyder in 1940 and they raised
3 boys, Roy, Irvine and Gene and two girls Dwila and Ir-

the farm, Irma Jillain '
Elenora lives at Camﬁbell River, B.C. Second son Don,
died as a child in 1926 the victim of a farm accident.

John was barn in 1924 with a curious nature, that often
got him into trouble for taking things all apart to see what
made them tick. He rode a horse to public school at Bryon
and terrorized the community on his motorcycle as he rode
to high school in the old hall at "Old Cremona’. Upon
completing high school at Carstairs. he started farming
(the Old Bill Harder farm ), at the age of 20. John enjoyed
hunting and fishing and on one of these antelope hunting
trips he met Phyllis Fetter, who became his wife in 1946,
They raised caitle, hogs and a lot of dust, and three
children, David, Melvin and Ruby. David took his schooling
at Cremona, Mount View Bible College and the University
of Calgary. He works as a shift foreman for Home 0il's
Carstairs Plant, He also farms and raises cattle and last
year married Cheryle Brewster and presently lives in

emona,

Melvin also took his schooling at Cremona, at Olds
College and Mnt. View College. He married Gwene
Vollmin, has two children, and farms with his father.
John's daughter Ruby married Leroy Franz, a welder and
millright, presently employed by Syncrude.

John's younger brother, Harley, worked on con-
struction for a number of years and married Fern



Eckstrand, They returned to the farm for a number of
vears and had a famil{ogf two. Tony and Connie. After his
fathers' death Harley took a job as mechanic on the Mica

Dam project and lived at Mica, B.C. till completion of the
roject some seven years later. They now live at
?{evelstoke. B.C, and Harley now works on the Revelstoke
Dam project.
John’s mother is still quite spry at 80 years old and still
lives in her home on the farm.

The Foat lamilies 1956. John, Phyllis holding Ruby, Fern. May and Phil, Ir-
vine, Elenora, Sidney, Roy. Front: David, Melvin, Dwila, Trma and Gene.

T'he Harley Faat family

SIDNEY AND ELENORA FOAT

By Elenora Foat

Sidney was born on the home farm, five miles east of
Cremona, May 15, 1918 and spent all his life in the same
place. He went to the Byron school and one year at Old
Cremona School.

I was born in the Carstairs area, May 30, 1917. T went
to the Jackson school, Took my grade nine at Byron. We
were married December 1, 1939. Spent 37 years on the
same farm east of Cremona, We had five children. They all
got their education in Cremona Roy was married to
Sharon Reimer on June 15, 1964. They had 3 girls and 2
boys. Irvine married Valerie Rayfield on Nov, 13, 1971,
They have 2 girls, Gene married Joan Kramer on February
23, 1974, They have 2 boys. Irma married Allan Jillain
November 17, 1973. Dwila married Lawrence Hertz on
November 20, 1976,

The boys have been farming the home place since
leaving school. Gene took a heavy duty course at Milt Ford
Motors but came back to farm. The girls went to Calgary

€5

where Irma lives. She started working for Calgary Motor
Products Ltd. and is still working there. Dwila started
working for Sun Life Insurance. When they are not on sec.
drilling jobs they live on the home place.

On January 28, 1977 Sidney slipped away with a plastic
anenua lor which is no cause or cure,

CHARLIE FOSTER AND FAMILY

By Muriel Foster

Charlie Foster and his sbeep at Water Valley

Charlie Foster and family moved to Rosemary, Alta. in
1919 from the U.S.A. At Rosemary, the Foster's raised
sheep. In 1926 they bought a ', section of land south and
west of Water Valley from Charlie Salisbury. The Fosters'
moved up here in 1927 by covered wagon, driving their
herd of sheep all the way from Rosemary to Water Valley

Al Waler Valley the Fosters raised sheep, horses and
cattle. Both Harry and Elmer used to go out on sheep
shearing jobs. The Foster family consisted of Eva, Elmer,
Mary and Elizabeth (twins) Harry, Ruth and Anne. Charlie
Foster decided to return to the US.A. and took his
daughters, Ruth and Annie with him in 1934. Charlie Foster
passed away in 1935 in Driggs, Idaho.

Mary Foster married Vernon Cummings, they lived at Dut-
chess, Alberta, then moved to Calgary and later to the
Cremona area. While at Cremona, Vernon passed away.
They have five children, Flo‘%d at Red Deer, Dole in
Calgary. Roy at Seebe, Ray at Cremona (Roy and Ray are
twins) and Velma of Calgalar.

Eva lives at Chewela, Washington. She has a family of
2 boys and a eirl, Elizabeth lives at Long Beach, Califor-
nia. Her children are Wesley, Florence and Delbert, Ruth
lives al Meadow Lake, Sask. and married Carl Olson. An-
nie lives in Oregon, US.A,

Elmer married Fern Miller and has 2 sons, Leo of
Water Valley, Neil of Hanna, and 2 daughters, both of Con-
sort, Kathlene and Mildred (one son, (Clarence - deceased)



Harry married Edith Jordon
and Vera and 2
daughter and son

and has 2 daughters - Betty

sons - Allen and Martin. They have a
deceased, Mary and Dale.

Mildred Foster, Kathlens, Leo. Taken 1943

Elmer Foster worked for years for Charlie and Lee
Salisbury on their ranch, west of Water Valley, He was a
good horseman and broke many horses to drive for people
in the area. He spent a lot of years working in the bush
hauling logs for various sawmills. He now resides at Han-
na, Alberta with his son, Neil.

Leo Foster and Mervin Oldfield. 1945,

Harry Foster and his wife, Edith, still reside on the
land the Fosters bought in 1926. They have a mixed farm
and Harry does saw-milling on his own.

The Fosters are all very musical and spend many
nights playing for dances and house parties in the area.

Elmer Foster. 1977,

HARRY FOSTER FAMILY
By Edith Foster

Joseph and Ferel Jordan were both born in the States,
Ferel in Kansas City, Kansas and Jose‘ph Jordan was born
in Cuba County, Kansas. There they lived until coming 1o
Alberta in 1912. They lived at Queenstown, Alberta for a
while, then moved o Gleichen; My older sister Bertha
(Mrs. Bob Cockerton), of Calgary was then two years old.
My second sister Leitha, (Mrs. Lee Salisbury) of Calgary
was born in Gleichen, My Dad worked as a stone mason,
and was a baseball player there, Two vears later they
moved to Drumheller, where I was born in 1916,

My Dad worked in the coal mine. When I was two, they
homesteaded in what is now know as Water Valley. They
worked for people on a farm south of the Bottrel Store, by
name Mr. Boucher, the old fellow, The Bottrel Store was
then owned by Eph Buchert. My Dad joined the Bottrel ball
team there also, After the war they went to work for Mr.
Frank Coyle, farming, now known as George Shirriffs. In
1920 they moved to our home to be, the homestead, now
known as the Black Forest Ranch, where he cleared
enough land to build a log house, consisting of three rooms,
using an axe and a swede saw. When we were settled down,
Dad did a lot of plastering for many people, building brick
chimneys etc. In the spring of 1923 they finally got their
naturalization papers, so they could prove up on the
homestead. My Dad traded wood and poles to Mr. Jim Van-
ce of Madden for their first team of horses.

Then in the spring of each year he dug trees and
hauled them to Crossfield, where he sold and planted them
for 75* and $1.00 each, and also had to replace any of the
ones that died. Then came the problems of school. There
was the first Bituma school, which Vern Williams, Myrtle
Howard, Anna Cartlidge (Pawson), Lois and Wilma Me-
Nair, Margaret Carlin (McNicol), Una Chapman were the
students. There were school districts then and we were in
{(now known) Water Valley district and not allowed to go to
Bituma. So to the best of my knowledge Mr, Erney Tod-
deen, a return War Veteran, donated enough money to an
organized school board to buy ipment to start a school
in the district. The old Drisco place, now known as Fenn
Farms, was donated also for the purpose of a school My
first teacher was Ada Wright, but a teacher before her was
Miss Dorothy Young. She and her mother lived behind the
school in an attached building. We had at least one teacher
A year,

When I was about eight, our teacher put it to a vote
among the students what we would call our school. So,
some of the girls, Hazel Howard, Evelyn Laveque, Doris
Dunwoody, Lillian Currie and one or two more, figured
Water Valley would be appropriate as every where you
went there was ponds of water. Everyone voted, and that is
the origination of Water Valley.

Matter of fact, there was a boy (Merle Currie), he
was a big kid and used to tease us younger girls, so one
day Evelyn Laveque and myself saw him walking on a
down tree which fell right across a pond of water next to
the west of the school. We, very bravely went out and boun-
ced that tree and kept telling him to fall in the water, and
he really did, believe me, he sure was wet! He sloshed into
school and stood by his desk, when the bell rang, and every
one in the school laughed. Then the teacher sent him home
lo get some dry clothes on. They lived where Bill Nugent
now lives.

We, school kids, had a ball diamond just west of Mrs.
Fred McKinnon's and where their house is, there was an
old broken down barn. A lot of the kids from school used to
play in it. We also had many wonderful Christmas concerts
in the old school, and many dances. The community held
Box Socials and dances for entertainment in the school too.

In about 1928 there was a new school built on a 14 of
land owned by Mr. Sam Laveque. He donated the land for
that purpose, He also donated the land for a mixed
cemetery in Water Valley. I feel that he should be well
remembered for his deep concerns for his community and



fellow man.

When our family moved to the vicinity, now known as
Water Valley, they bought our groceries at Big Prairie
Post Office and store. Which was owned by an elderly gen-
tleman everyone called Uncle Benney. Then they also
traded at Bottrel, as Harry and Daisy Pearson were the
owners later on. Our neighbor & relations were my Grand-
fatlis - Isaac and Grandma Hulda Jordan, homesteaded
just south of Eddy Carlsons homestead, now owned by Mr.

holtz. The Far West Meat Market was owned by le,
namely J.B. Little, which my brother Joe Jordan mhl
when he came back from the 1840-44 war,

There was George & Jessie Thompson and family just
to our north, now owned by Mr. Roy Farren. Mrs. Gladys
Reynoids owns Mr, Charlie and Mrs, Julia Carlson's
homestead, They were Sweedish folk and wonderful neigh-
bors. The Roy Dunwoody family lived where Del Corn-
forth’s now reside. Across the road lo the east from them,
known as Granma and Granpa Dunwoody's when we came
here. Mr. August and Mrs. Ida Koester lived where Mr.
and Mrs. H. Reynold's now lives. Grandma and Grandpa
%s:n lived where Carl Olsen and many others reside
today.

Most everyone has either passed away or moved away
and time and time :fain ple have come and gone.

My Dad had Mr. Hank Frickes sawmill set on his
place, where le from around Crossfield, Madden and
Water Valley worked. Ole Olsen and Fred Gardel cut logs
with an axe and swede saw. Vern Williams worked for Mr.
Hank Fricke, so did Phil Gilson. Ingmar Sundquist had his
first job there when he first came to the country. Glen Mc-
Nicol hauled lumber from that mill out to his place near
Crossfield with 4 head of horses and a sleigh. My sister
Bertha, went to work away from home at Bob Cullings, Me-
Cluskey's and finally in Calgary, where she later married
Bob Cockerton. Leitha went out to Jaroshe’s in Cremona,
where she attended Jackson School, and later met and
married Lee Salisbury of Madden, When I finished Grade 8
in Water Valley school, T worked out at Bob Cullings. I
stayed a while with Margaret and Glen McNicol. 1 worked
out one fall for Ruby and George Bales. In the year 1930,
Harry, my husband now, came up from the States to re-
unite with his family, who bought the place from Charlie
Salisbury in 1927. Mr, Charlie Salisbury bought the Arthur
Gibson homestead, where we now live. We were married in
1934, we stayed on the place for a couple of years.

At one time a real fat Jady, her husband and two
children, lived on Eddy Carlson’s homestead. They were
the Chapman's. Netty was the girl and Norman was the
son. We later learned that Norman was Smith, and ap-
parently was either adopted or whatever, Netty was around
my age. She came down o our place one afternoon, of
course, there was only a cow path along the fence, and an
old partridge had a nest of young, which she had
fﬁfhlened. We could hear her screaching for 5 minutes
before we finally saw her, she was so scared that my Mom
and us kids had to lake her back home. We were very close
neighbors of Frank and Elizabeth Winchells'. Gene spent
many days and evenings with our family. He built a bob
slei&h once and brought it up for us to ride on, He (ﬁuned it
up the hilis with his little black pony he called “midget"

Then Mr. Charlie Foster, his daughters Ruth and Con-
nie, returned to the States, leaving the place to Elmer,
Harry's brother. We rented from Mr. Fred Hambley, who
bought from Eddie Carlson. Then we moved over on
George Watson's, now known as Dolittles, just south of
Glen McNicol's, We were there two years and moved back
on the old place, as George went to the Army. We bought
the place back for the taxes from the Gov't. in 1945 and we
have lived here ever since,

We have four children - Allan - presently living with his
wife Beverly, and their three children. Betty - living in
Calgary with her husband and two children. Martin - and
his wife Heather are living in Calgary. Two children we
were unfortunate to lose, , our first born, Dale, our
second. Both are buried in the Westbrook cemetery.
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During our marriage my husband worked on the farm
for Glen McNicol, out near Crossfield. He worked also for
Glen at his sawmill. Every fall he would go threshing for
our winter groceries. We always had horses, he sometimes
took 2 teams threshing as they paid $20.00 per day for an
extra team. The first year he threshed when he arrived
here, he worked for John Morgan for $4.00 a day. The most
he made was $12.50 per day with his team. They threshed
anywhere from 12 to 15 hours a day. He worked at saw

ills for the large sum of 75* a day. The only thing those
da)’rs. you could buy a week's supply of groceries for $10.00
or §12.00.

The roads we had those days were mere trails, and the
seasons were extremely wet. Our close neighbors were Roy
and Grace Oldfield, George and Hattie Oldfield, Mr. Joe
and Ellen Roberts, Glen and Margaret McNicol, later Dan
and Mary Colvin moved from Big Valley. Oris and Mary
Gunderson moved to the Joe rts place, There were
others like Albert Sailer and Bertha and family lived there,
and also Mr. Jack and Margaret Paul. There were many
happy times had there, by everyone at house parties. A lit-
tle ways from there Jack Mc an lived. We also en-
joyed a few house parties there. Don Tannas owns the
place now. We had many house parties and enjoyed
everyone. We had a few sleigh riding parties, our neighbors
all came and joined in. Our music consisted of a wind up

ramaphone, Later on different ones played instruments.
ene Winchell played his violin many times and my
brother Joe played his guitar.

Incidently, 1 do have five brothers 1 never mentioned
earlier. Joe of Calgary, Willard of Grand Centre, Clifford of
Blackie, Kenneth of Penhold in the Armed Forces and Den-
nis also of Calgary. One sister buried in the Westbrook
cemetery and a baby sister, Inez Irwin, lives in Nanton. We
were all raised on the homestead, now known as the Black
gg;‘ﬁt Ranch, and all of us went to the Water Valley
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But back to our parties and our entertainment, We of-
ten played cards with Hattie and George Oldfield, when it
raineq, you could do little else. The children found many
games to play together. We had a little house built on run-
ners, with a car windshield in it. We drove as far as Old
Dog Pound Hall to dances with horses hitched to this. We
drove four head of horses hitched to a bob sleigh, with a
box on it and everyone around went along. It was like one
big party all together.

Some people got together and decided to build a hall at
Water Valley. Harry, my husband, and my Dad cut logs
and many of the neighbors hauled them to Water Valley
with a team and wagon to help with the first hall. Everyone
that was available donated time and work. It may not
have been perfect but everyone sure enjoyed the dances
and box socials held there and even the Christmas con-
certs, -

Walley Price and Mike Stein brought moving pictures
to the hall. This was sure a treat for a lot of our children.
They really looked forward to them. I'm sure there'll be
others mention Mr. Guy Gazeley who built out first store,
then Walter May took it over and was with us for many
vears. Albert Sailer built the one now owned by McKin-
nons. The Gazeley store has changed hands many times
since it was first built.

We had another store too. We used to trade with my un-
¢le Clarence Hughs - sold his homestead to Mr, Erne
Fetherston, and he started a small store business in an a
dition on the old house. Many people traded there. Mrs.
Mabel Cargo was his partner, as she had a small store
business in Calgary. They were there for a long time or un-
til Mr. Fetherston passed away.

We sawed our own lumber as we traded some cows for
a mill, and when we took lumber up to the store, by the
time it was culled, they called it our top price for lumber
was $6.00 per 1000 bd. feet, the rest was weinedge. Later we
took lumber to Walter May and found that lumber (tops)
was around $10.00 per M bd. ft., but he wouldn't take 2 x 4's
and 1 x 4's were strictly out, So there wasn't much you



could do with them, they were a waste. We traded posts as
well as lumber for groceries.
My husband and I cut and

hauled rails or poles up to
Mr. Fetherston’s for 3

a piece in trade for groceries, We
bought bol and bacon, and Mrs. Cargo would say, take
it home and wash it in vinegar, it will be O.K. 1o eat, and
believe me! in those days it was! We survived lhrougf\ the
depression years with our family. Once my husband was
hauling a load of poles out to Madden and just before he
got to Winchells the load upset, up hill if you please; the
ground was so wel the upper wheels of the wagon just drop-
ped out of sight. Tt wasn't hard to get stuck. Hattie Oldfield
and | took a team hitched to two high wheels of a wagon
and drove to Water Valley for groceries and the mud was
50 bad the team was near exhaustion by the time we got
home. The journey was 14 miles round trip and still is.

Norma, Joe Oldfield’s wife. and Hattie and myself
walked up to Fetherstons to get some potatoes they
promised 10 be there, it was a nice day, and all we could
get was a "can” of spuds each, it was really a big laugh for
us, as it was very unusual for us to see spuds in a can,
When Mr. Fetherston passed away, the land eventually
changed hands many times. We were sure glad when
things gradually began to change. We had sheep that Harry
sheared in the summer, and sold the wool, in the fall we
sold the lambs. The coyotes and lynx got so bad and killed
mos! all our lambs until we had to sell them, We went back
into cattle again. We put up our hay with four head of hor-
ses, a hay sweep and stackers. Most everyone used horse
those days. We broke horses to ride and many limes broke
them to be teams. We traded cows for a sawmill, My
husband and 1 both worked at the mill. We still have it and
often saw lumber we use. We have cattle, some horses and
machinery instead of horses for farming.

We still live in the log house built by my Grandfather
Jordan, fifty two years ago. My Mother passed away twen-
ty-eight years ago. Her funera! was held in the Water

alley School. My Dad passed away seven years ago, al
the age of 86, He was living with Inez and Bob Irwin in
Nanton, Alta.

Our two older children attended the Bituma school,
where they had to ford the river three times both ways, It
was many days a real worry. They went on saddle horse.
The two younger one’s attended Water Valley and Cremona
by schol bus. re was very little in the way of recreation,
so many children made their own. My voungsters built
hand slei&hs, sawed circles off from logs on the wood pile
for wheels for a wagon. The two older ones watched me
can fruit so they in turn made a fire in an old warmin
oven off an old cook stove, gathered old jam, jelly an
peanut butter jars. They canned spruce canes a pine
cones, chick berries and most any thing of the sort, it was
a real pastime for them.

They all enjoyed winter, making snowmen, snow
houses, skating on the creek below the house. Sleigh riding
down the hill to the creek. They're all grown up and live
away from home, but they enjoy coming back weekends,
and Christmas holidays, They've spent many evenings
singing old folks songs and others, and playing their
guitars. Which we really enjoy now, very much. Their
recreations today are so different from ours. We go to
cabaret’s and birthday parties, but we enjoy our children
now, when they come home they go ski-do-ing in the win-
ters, in the summers they all come home to he put up the
crops for fall. We're old enough to retire, but haven't just
decided to do it yet. It would be difficult to be idle after
working so many vears.

BILLY FRANKS

Billy Franks moved to the Water Valley area from
Crossfield, His father was Harry Franks. When he first
moved o the area he lived west of Winchell’s on a quarter
section homesteaded by Grace Oldfield. He married
l;’l%rence Johnson and they had 4 children. They moved to

BILLY FOWLER

Billy came to the Water Valley-Bituma district around
1908, He homesteaded of the S.W.14-19-29-5-5, and Joe
Roberts homesteaded the rest of this land, It is now owned
by Gundersons.

Billy helped to build the Carstairs Hotel around 1910 or
1912. He also was the road maintenance man for quite a
few years. He was a quiel man, and stayed much to him-
self. Later he moved to Vancouver, sometime in the forties.

Billy Fowler

THE FRANKLIN FAMILY

By Lamaude Grant

Charles Willard Franklin, son of Aaron and Sarah, was
born in Miltonvale, Kansas on September 2nd, 1879. He
came to Canada by train with his brother Samuel and
sister-in-law Amand\; and arrived in Didsbury in May of
1903. The snow was deep and Charlie threw away his ox-
fords and wore ankle h‘ijgh shoes for the rest of his life.
While in route they heard about the Frank Slide and by the
reports they received at that time it sounded like half of
the country side had caved in. They wondered if they
should return te Kansas but decided to continue on. They
homesteaded in the Cremona district where their first
home was a tent which they set up after they cleared away
the snow. Charles homestead was one mile north and one
mile east of the present town of Cremona. Sam
homesteaded approximately a half mile father south.

There was an Indian trail running across the homesteads
and the wagon wheel tracks can still be seen today. There
was a creek running through the north side of Charlie's
place and there are still some depressions in the banks on
the north side of the creek from some of the earlier
buildings he built there. Their garent's. sister Maggie and
her husbnad Albert Stauffer and his brother Ed came from
Kansas in December 1904. The Stauffer's homesteaded in
the Big Prairie district, The parents lived with Charlie but
moved to Didsbury in 1907,

Aaron Kiffer Franklin, the father, was born on August
5th 1847 and saw active duty with the 11th Illinois Cavalry
during the Civil War, He was discharged in Memphis, Ten-
nessee on September 30th 1865 at the age of 18 years. He
moved to Nebraska in 1868 where he met and married
Sarah Dunn on March 28th 1872. Sarah was born in Pulaski
County, Kentucky on August 26th 1848 the third eldest of a
family of twelve children. While still a child her parents
moved to Tennesee where they remained until the end of
the Civil War. Her father, William Dunn, was a recuiting
officer for the Northern Army while living in Tennessee
and there was a bounty of one thousand dollars offered for



him dead or alive by the South. When the war was over in
1865 he took his wife and three children, Sarah being the
youngest, to Nebraska by covered wagon and ox-team. The
trip took nearly a year to complete, Aaron & Sarah moved
to Kansas after their wedding and homesteaded there
where their five children were borm. Two of them, Esther
and William died in childhood. They resided in Didsbury
for the rest of their lives. Aaron passed away January 7th,
1933 at the age of 85 years and Sarah on May 13th 1944 atl
the age of 95 years. They had celebrated their 60th wedding
anniversary on March 28th 1932,

Charlie Franklin and his Model T Ford

Charlie married Marie Louise Mack, second daughter
of Mr. and Mrs, Christian Mack, of Didsbury on November
5th 1913 in Didsbury. Marie was born February 27th 1802 at
Clay Center, Nebraska and came to Didsbury with her
family in 1906. She was from a family of six girls and four
boys. One boy died as a baby. She had worked in Red Deer
previous to her marriage where Charlie had also worked as
g carpenter, They lived in various poinls in Alberta and
then returned to Didsbury, living first in east Didsbury and
then on the property later occupied by the United
Missionary Church. Durin% the time she lived in Didsbury
she helped Dr. J. Lester Clark when he delivered babies.
She was also a member of the Evangelical Church choir.
Charlie worked with his brother-in-law Albert Stauffer who
now owned a blacksmith shop in Didsbury. Charlie had one
of the first crystal sets in Didsbury and later made himself
a battery operated radio. The first car he owned was a
Model T. Ford. They had three children all born in Did-
sbury. They were Willard Charles born July 3rd, 1917,
Raymond Dempsey born Jul{ 9th, 1921, and Dorothy
Lamaude born May 17th, 1928. In 1929 they returned to the
homestead to farm. They moved their belongings by team
and wagon. It was muddy and there were few roads. They
lived on the south west corner of the land and brought their
water in wooden barrels by horses and stoneboat from a
spring on the north side. Later & well was dug by pick and
shovel about a quarter of a mile east of the house. To haul
wash water they used to harness their black dog “Bob™ to
a child’s wagon with two cream cans in it. Charlie would
send Bob down to the well and as he got there he alwa
made a wide turn and invaribly tossed the cans out of the
wagon, Willard would fill them with water pulled from the
well in a bucket and Bob would set off by himself to take
them back to the house. Later Bill Moon Sr. and his son
Riley drilled a well in the vard in front of the house and
this had a hand pump.

The boys had started school in Didsbury. After moving
to the farm they attended Elmwood School which was built
in 1922 It was about two and a hall miles to the north west
and they rode horseback to it. Belle, the horse that
Lamaude rode all through school was an Indian pony that
Albert Stauffer had bought from the Indians. When

Lamaude was in grade eight she and Gladys Luft shared
the janitor job and received the grand sum of two dollars
and fifty cents each for a months work, High school was
held in the old cheese factory at old Cremona with grades
nine lo eleven and only one teacher. Willard had Mr.
Springbett and Lamaude had Mr. Robt. L, Reid.

Mail was picked up first at Garfield, then Old Cremona
and later at the new town of Cremona. One big thrill for
Charlie was seeing Haley's Comel in 1910 and he often
talked about it. He was an avid gardner and grew a large
garden each year which people came to see. Marie was a
member of the Women's Institute for many years and her
greatest hobbies were sewing and crocheting., She had a
great love for family and friends. Charlie and Marie spent
the rest of their lives on the homestead with the excepuon
of a short while Charlie spent in Calgary before his death.
Marie died May 29th 1959 at the age of 67 vears and Charlie
died January 11th 1963 at the age of 83 vears.

Willard, the eldest son, resides on the homestead. He
married the former Kathleen “'Kay'' Casebeer of Morrin,
Alberta on June 16th 1945. They have one son Wayne Alan
born March 1st 1952 in Didsbury. He and his wife Marion
have a daughter Jenera Mae born October 21 1975, A
second son Randy Lynn born in 1955 died in infancy.
Willard now works for the County of Mountain View. He
has played drums with a local orchestra since he was 16
years old, playing first with the Owens Bros., then the
Melody Five, the Franklin Orchestra and now with the
Senior C's. Kay plays the accordian and played a number
of years with an orchestra. Willard is 8 member of the Old
Timers Association.

Raymond left the farm in Augusl of 1942 to join the
staff of Maclin Motors in Calgary and has worked for them
continuously since then. He married Florence Baptist of
Didsbury on June 7th 1944, They have three sons all born in
Calgary. Douglas Raymond born October 4th 1952, Rickie
Dempsey born January 4th 1956, and Barry Charles born
January 11th 1960. Doug is married and his wife's name is
Shiela. Florence has worked a number of years for Wood-
wards Dept. Store. Raymond has been a long time member
of the Chinook Chapter of the Historical Society of Alberta
and the Archaeological Society of Alberta.

Lamaude married Lorne Grant of Calgary on May 21st
1949, They lived in Calgary until moving to an acreage in
Springbank in 1968, ey have three children. Dale
Franklin born October 4th 1952, Bradley Lorne born
December 4th 1957, and Sharilyn Marie born July 3rd 1962
on her Uncle Wiliards birthday. Dale and his cousin Doug
were born one hour apart in the same hospital. Lorne ser-
ved with the R.CAF. from 1941 lo 1945, the last three
years were served overseas. Lorne worked for James
Storage Ltd., Canadian Pacific Airlines '‘Repairs” until
it’s closare in 1964 and is now employed with the Calgary
Public School Beard. Lamaude attended Sunday school in
the Cremona United Church and her teacher was Mrs.
Marion Reid. Later she was a member of the C.G.I.T. and
her leaders were Mrs. Lulu Mork and Mrs. Molly Turnbull
This C.G.I.T. group sang with the choir in church on Sun-
days. Lamaude worked for Alberta News for several years
and more recently was a sub for the teacher aides at
Elbow Valley School, She has also been a corr ndent for
the Rocky View News. She is a member of the Chinook
Chapter of the Historical Society of Alberta and the Ar-
chaeological Socielﬁ of Alberta.

I only we who have reached the half century mark had
had the foresight to start these books 25 years ago when
our parents were still alive what stories they could have
told for furture generations to enjoy. It takes so little time
for places to completely change. Jean McLeod and 1 took a
drive & couple of years ago to the site of the Elmwood
school, The only thing that remained was the spruce trees
that lined the north fence. They had grown so tall and were
s0 old and ghostly looking with their dried and broken
branches, the only memorial left of years of watching
children laugh and play tag around them. If only they could
talk--what a tale they could tell,



THE FRIZZELL STORY

mother thought the Christmas meal could be ‘combined
with the wedding {o save expenses. Two children were born
Lo this couple in Oyen, Allan and Shirley. They lived at Sib-
bald, where Biil ograted a4 garage but there was no
hospital there, the closest being at Oven.

On April 17, 1938, on Easter Sunday, the Frizzells
arrived in Cremona. Ed Thrasher brongﬁ?t them up, their
belongings loaded on a transport truck. They all crowded in
the front, with Bill and Hilda each holding a child on their
lap the entire lrip, they were very tired when they arrived.
They also brought a dog and a canary. They first lived in
the Patterson house, which was Jocated on
lot just each of their present location. Everything was dum-
Ee on the ground that night but Bill and Hilda decided to

aul the furniture inside, the next morning there was 4 in-
ches of snow, They were here for a few months and then
moved into the Sam Davis house, where Hilda still lives.
They paid $10.00 per month rent at that time and were told
il they could pay $15.00 per month they could buy the
house, which they did. The hamlet consisted of 3 grocery
stores, a cafe, butcher shop, pool hall, and a couple
garages. The Frizzells had a cow, as did the Ortons and the
Waterstreets. One day the local garage washed parts in oil
and left the oil out back, the cow drank it, bloated and died.

Bill worked for Lake Parsons at the garage (later
Eby'si, then finally moved to the main street where Boyd
May had a garage and they built on. Bill had the first
power plant and strung wires up to the house so Hilda
would have electricity. He later wired the skating rink,
Woodman Hall and gave them free electricity until the
aower came to the hamlet, Bill was in the Navy in the First

forld War, was an early mayor of Cremona and was a
past president of the Cremona Legion in 1949-50,

@ game. He organized many successful ice carnivais which
were very popular for several years. Bill passed away in
June of 1967.

Hilda first taught school for 5 years in the Sibbald areg
before she was married. In 1943 she decided to return to
teaching for a vear to help pay exgcnses s0 Allan could

continue his schooling at Castor and

ome a teacher ajso.
He did bec

ome a teacher but only taught one year at
Bituma, deciding this was not what he wanted he went to
Sundre and worked in the store for Macleod's. Hilda's first
school in the Cremona area was Bituma, and Shirley went
with her, staying in the teacherage week days and retur-

as the top of the hill, then Albert Bouck picked her up at
the boltom. of the hill and took her the rest of the way to the

teach school and continued until June 1962. She taught 23.7
years and has a Life Membership in the Alberta Teachers
Association.
Shirley - married John Klys in 1950 and they live on a

farm west of Carstairs. They have 3 children;

Alice -(Sackett) lives at Slave Lake. They have 1
boy and 1 girl.

Jim - married Gerri Lee Mason - they live on the
farm at Carstairs and have two boys.

Mary Ann - (Sparling) lives in Carstairs and has 2

Allan - married Rena Romyn, they have 4 children and
live at Whitecourt where they have a Tom Boy Store,
Margaret - (MacLean) is teaching at the coast.
Dona - (Lambert) is nursing aide in the Royal
Alexander in Edmonton.
Bill - is at Whitecourt
Linda - attends school at Whitecourt
Hilda Frizzell was a very active member of the Sewing
Circle, which worked very hard during the war years for
the Red Cross. She was a member of the Ladies Aid and
also taught Explorers -
1

The Cremona Home and School held a social evening in
honer of Mrs. Wm. Frizzell on Tuesday evening, May 29 A
large crowd gathered tg pay tribute to Mrs. Frizzell for her
dedicated service to our community and our children. A
short program consisted of 2 solos by Mrs. Monna Munmn, 2
piano soles by Mrs. Peggy Reid and a comical skit by Mrs.
Gwen Bird and her heipers, Svlvia. Lillian, Jeanetie and
Grant Bird, Warren Good, Rillie Macfarquhar and Mary
Jane Davies. Mr. Taylor was master of ceremonies and
Speeches were made by Mr, Hooper, Mr. Taylor and Mr.
Duncan Macfarquhar. Presentations were: a wristwatch by
Miss Donna Maynes, a bou t of roses by Miss Marjorie
Bird, and a guest book with the names of all present. A
short sin? song led by Mrs. Munn and Miss Dodd was en-
Joyed, followed by an hour of lunch and visiting.

Mrs. Frizzell ably responded to the verbal tribute and
the presentations. She thanked all resent and the Home
and School and said she had enjoyecf teaching all still fe]t it
was the most important profession of all. Mr. Wm, Frizzell
and their 2 children, Allan of Sundre and Mrs. Shirley Klvs
of Carstairs shared the evening with Mrs. Frizzel].

MRS. CECIL FRY

By Mrs. Cecil Fry 1963

I was born in London, England in November, 1889, |
was the youngest of a family of eight girls, My father must
have been very disappointed not having a son but if he was
he never spoke of it. We alj received our edueation in Lon-

members either married or started careers of their own.
The memories of our large family gatherings are very
pleasant to look back to.

In the early 1900 England seemed to have a wave of
travel fever. Some folks choose Australia, some South
Africa, and many had their mind focused on Canada and
its many opportunities which were greatly advertised.
Many of my triends had visited this interesting country,
and several had chosen to make Canada their home. I had
often expressed my wish to travel and in 1912, I had a
golden opportunity. Some friends of mine had business to
attend to in Canada and invited me to go with them to
Alberta. That trip <Eael'gved veriointersting indeed. While
here T met M.H.B. il Fry who bad come from Kingston
on the Thames River in England, in 1901. Later that same
Year we were married, and started life together on a small



farm near Bottrel. We planned to take a trip back to
England together after we were settled. After living in a
large city all my life the small farm was hard to i:t used
to. I certainly had a lot of things to learn. My first batch of
bread was terrible. The dog wouldn't even try it, but with
practice and patience it wasn't long before 1 could make
bread, butter, cure , can meat, raise chicken, look af-
ter a garden, and [ even learned to milk cows, My first
lesson in mjﬁd.n%estill stands out clearly in my memory.
Mr, Fry had to be away for a day or so, and T was sure
that I could handle the chorse. I had always seen pictures
of dairy maids in white uniforms, so I thought I'd better
wear a while dress for tne job. Looking very business like
out I went with a white dress and sun bonnet to match. I
picked up the stool and sat down to milk, The cow was st-
anding in an open corral. She must have thought she saw a
ghost because she kicked the stool, the bucket and me over
in the dirt, then bolted out in the pasture. T was 100 nervous
to go after her and I dreaded having to try again. By the
time Mr. Fry came home he nearly had a dry cow. In the
years that followed I mastered the art and could milk ten
or a dozen cows if needed,

My next undertaking was to learn to drive the horses.
We needed groceries one day, so when Mr. Fry got the hor-
ses out I clumbed into the buggy and expected him to get in
with me. He let me drive through the gate then shul it, and
said “‘So long" "“Aren't you coming?"’ 1 asked. “‘No, you'll
be all right, you have the guiet old mare,” He replied. In
those days it was all open range without fences. I had to
cross a school section with a wagon trail to follow, About
half way through I met a pack of coyotes. The old mare
picked up her ears and I wondered what she would do. I ex-
pected them to suround me so 1 kept looking over my
shoulder and must have gulled on the one line for suddenly
I realized that I was off the trail and on the brink of a steep
drog. I pulled the horses’ reins so sharply I nearly upset
the buggy. I got back on the trail. The coyotes had all disap-
peared. T was nervous all the way there and home again.

In 1914, Jack, our first baby was born. I went to the
hospital in Cochrane in a little two wheel cart. It was really
a private home as it held only four patients. Il was bitter
cold. Jack was three weeks old before 1 ventured out on the
trail to return home. 1 heard that a patient had been
brou%“ in by car from our district so T jum at the
possibility of getting home. The matron asked Dr. Park
and he came to me and said, ''Do you realize Mrs. Fry thal
it is 40 below?" *‘Yes”, 1 said. "Wellc{ou go at your own
risk, you understand” he replied. And so it was [ left the
hospital with hot water bottles around me, blankets, and
the matron's fur coat. Somewhere down inside of all this
was a wee squirming baby. We only covered a very few
miles when the car radiator froze up. I sat in the open top
car while the driver went to the neares! farm house for
more water. A bitter wind was blowing and I was thankful
when we were on our way again, When we reached the
Pound bridge the car skidded and went over the bank, nose
down into a deep snow bank. 1 wanted to take my bundle
and walk to the nearest farm house but the driver per-
suaded me to wail until heip came, The matron had phoned
from the hospital to say that I had left and you can imagine
Mr. Fry pacing the floor and wondering where in the world
I was, Little did he know what fun I was having! When |
finally reached home our little log shack looked like a
palace to me. I was a little shaky but none the worse for
my trip.

When our second child Gwen, was born 1 decided that [
wouldn't go to Cochrane again so Dr. Park came out to the
farm. It was the 14th of June and it snowed that day,

World War 1 had been on since 1914 and due to the very
heavy casualties they were calling for men before con-
scription was compulsory. Mr. Fry felt it was his duty to
g0, 5o he enlisted in 1816 and served two and one half years
on the active service in France, the Liberal Government
was in power and I was allowed $45 per month for myself
and the two children to live on. Out of this I rented a house
in Banff where we lived until Mr. Fry returned, I received

Al

two cabll:‘grams from France while he was gone. The first
was to inform me that he had been gassed in 1917, The
second to say that he was badly wounded. It's very hard to
describe a n’s reaction when vou receive one of these
cables, All letters were censored and they were not allowed
to write much. Casualties were so heavy that all the
hospitals in France were full Mr. Fla' was put on a
hospital shop and sent over to England.

: Many of these
ships were sunk by the Germans, but the ship that he was
on made it through, His wounds had healed and he was

ready o go back to France on active duty when the Ar-
mistice was si%r:sed. It was a day of joy and sorrow for the
Fry family as his father was buried Nov. 11, 1918. Mr. Fry
returned from overseas in 1918. We went farming again.
We bought the Bert Allet farm southwest of Cremona,
where Blen Laing now lives. We farmed there from 1919
until 1848. During those years we saw many, many changes
in_the Cremona district including grain elevators, the
railway, stores, churches, community hall, telephone of-
fice, Post Oifice, garages, and a beautiful modern school,
etc. Things are certainly different from the days when the
farmers left home at 5 a.m. for Carstairs with their hogs
and grain with the team of horses in poor roads.

Many a time I helped Mr. Fry load up and saw him off
in the dark winter mornings, then milked 10 or 12 cows and
separated the milk and fed the pigs and calves before get-
ting the ‘\:oungsters off to school. Like so many other farm
wives, | had my share of stacking bundles, picking roots off
breaking and stooking. I think that if I had my pick the
only job that I really disliked was picking roots.

We had three more children during our time on the
farm. Don, Joyce, and Gladys. Gladys, poor little soul, had
a leakage of the heart and passed away in her 14th year.
Mr. Fry was an active member of the school board for
many years, Jack, Gwen and Joyce all received their
education at Atkins school and went to high school at old
Cremona High School and the new Cremonz High School
respectively, Gwen won the first Bennet medal at Atkins
schoo! for general school proficiency.In the early vears on
the farm we had very little in the way of entertainment,
We had a gramaphone but one can get very tired of a
limited number of records. We were the first in the district
to get a large radio set. How our neighbours used to enjoy
coming to hear it. I think that our favorite program was
the old time music Friday nights from C.F.C.N. Calgary. T
would send notes by the children when they left for school
to the different parents and even with short notice, they
would all be there Friday nights. They'd all bring along
something to help out with the lunch and after chores were
done we'd roll up the carpet and move out the furniture
and we'd all have a wonderful evening. I can still picutre
Mr. Charlie Reid standing up in one corner and calling off
the re dances. The years pass so ?uickly when one is
busy and interested in their family and friends.

In 1948 we decided to take life cosier and find a spot to
our liking in B.C. We had an auction sale, rented the farm
and bought a house trailer. It was in the month of May, and
when we reached the Okanogan Valley all the fruit trees
were in bloom-a beautiful scene. We came to a spot on the
Jake named ‘‘Naramata', with & lovely house for sale. It
had huge maple trees, fruit trees, and a large lawn and a
magnificent view of the lake. We feel in love with the place
and bought it. Mr. Fry bought a boat and was able to get in
a little of his favorite sport, fishing. Shortly after the
Naramata Youth Training School went up between us and
the lake and shut out our view of the lake. By 1952, Mr, Fry
and I were alone. Jack had his own farm near Cremona
before we left, Gwen had married Douglas Bird of Gar-
field, Don went in for Radio and Television work and
received his diploma in U.S.A. Joyce trained at the Rol_z'al
Jubilee Hospital at Victoria and received her R.N. Mr, Fry
began failing in health. The effects of the gas during the
war were beginning to be more and more evident. He never
said much about it but I could tell. By October of 1853, he
had to be taken to the Penticton Hospital, Joyce specialized
with him, but in spite of all that could be done he passed



away Nov, 6, 1953

I stayed in Naramata until 1955, but the big house and
grounds were too much for me to keep up. T sold the house,
and bought a smaller house in Penticton with a smaller
lawn and garden and flower beds and a few fruit trees, |
enjoy working with them and I'm very proud of my little
home. My family is widely scattered. Don is an electrician
with the West Kootenay Power and Light Co. at Oliver. he
s married and has four children. Joyce married Gordon
Ayre. an entromologist, who works at the Research
Laboratory at Belleville, Ontario - they have two children,
[ have nine grandchildren, Donald Bird, my oldest grand-
child, has been in the Royal Canadian Navy, stationed at
Halifax for the past four years. Marjorie Bird, my oldest
grand-daughter, is in her third year of training at the
General Hospital in Calgary. The others are not old enough
‘\J'gl lo definitely choose what careers to follow. I'd like to

remembered to all my old friends around Cremona and
would like to extend a warm invitation to any of them to
please pay me a call if you're in B.C. this summer,

" Mrs. Grace Fry passed away on October 19th 1977 in Pen-
licton at age 87 vears,

JACK FRY

By Pearl Stone

Jack Fry, a bachelor farmer living & few miles west of
Cremona, has a very interesting hobby - growing plants of
unusual size and beauly. Years ago when he lived at home
with his parents, his father tried growing tomatoes. The en-
tire crop, if there was one, could have been bought at the
store for fifty cents, so the venture was not too profitable
or rewarding. Jack decided to Iry growing tomatoes and so
ordered seeds from Bowden and started plants in January,
These were babied along until about haying time when he
thought they might make it, bul & strong wind came and
nearly destroyed the plants. He decided that if he could
keep them growing past the first week in September, that
he would have tomatoes. It was then that he decided to put
up a plastic hut to protect his plants. This first hot house
was eight by twenty feet, It was designed to keep the wind
and cold from his plants and it worked. The interior was
very hot and humid and, on a warm day, most people
wouldn’t even enter it It was much like & car sitting in the
sun with the windows closed. Jack had nine plants that first
year which produced five short of six hundred tomatoes,
not counting the smallest ones.

The following spring he built another hot house quite a
lot larger than the first. It was really the better one as it
faced north and south so that the early morning and late
afternoon sun could shine on it. By exgeriememation. he
found that best of all would be one wit the narrow ends
facing north-west and south-east which would have a
minimum of wall area toward the cold winds and still get
the benefit of the heat.

Since the north gets very little heat, black plastic was
used on that end. This absorbed the heat which rose,
causing a constant circulation of air in the daytime. Double
walls are best - with a dead air space which may be one to
four inches in width. The inside plastic wall needn't be of
heavy material as there is no strain on it. By the first week
in November, little cracks and holes come in the plastic
and the interior becomes cold. At this time, the snow
doesn't slide off as readily as in the spring when the plastic
is tight. The plastic may be overlapped as the heat of the
sun prenetrates four layers as easily as one, The sun is the
sole source of heat in these greenhouses.

Planting may be done long before
time. Repair work is done in February and planting begins
in March. One night, Jack remembers that the tem-
perature went down to about zero but, although in the mor-
ning he could see his beath in the plastic huts, the plants

dgau'den planting
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were unharmed. Wind.is the worst enemy that he has.
Then, 100, snow can be z problem. In the spring, it must be
brushed off the lower edges to start it sliding. The snow
that piles up must be shovelled away so that it does not
prevent the sun shining into the huts. As well as lomatoes,
Jack grows radishes, lettuce, and rhubarb and some bed-
ding out plants. He has roses, sweet pease, squash, pum-
pkins, peppers, tobacco, cucumbers and anything else that
Ezmnls a challenge. This year he grew Chinese cucum-
rs, These are “‘no burp” cucumbers, small in diameter
but reach a length of twenty inches. Relatively new in this
country, few know how to use them. They are of finer tex-
ture and have fewer seeds than the traditional cucumbers.

Jack grew pumpkins last year, the largest being fifty-
four inches in circumference.” He grew lobacco which at-
lained a height of over seven feet, Temperature in his
greenhouses reaches one hundred and twenty degrees,
which was a high as his thermometer recorded, so it might
have been more. The tomatoes produce abundantly. Many
were given to his neighbors, many preserved for his own
use, and a few were sold. Some tobacco was donated to the
Lions Club Sale. he tried peanuts and watermellon but they
did not do very well in his soil. Corn planted inside
matured and was all over by haying time. The corn plan-
ted outside never did reach maturity, He doesn't grow it
anymore - it is too easy.

The sweel peas reached a height of ten feet and more
and produced hugh blossoms until late in the fall. The zuc-
cini squash also produced well. The marrows and Jack-0O-
Lantern pumpkin bore two crops on the same vines. Cross
fertilization is necessary. Jack has help with this as oe-
casionally a big bumble bee gets in, It seems to love these
flowers and sometimes spends the night curled up in a
blossom and is ready to begin work early in the morning
The honey bee doesn't bother with these blooms. In 1974,
his largest squash was a Mammoth Hungarian variety.
They grow larger than any other. The largest thal Jack
grew weighed one hundred len pounds. This was donated to
the Lions Coub Sale and brougﬁ? over fifteen dollars when
auctioned. The secret of the warmth in the hot houses is
that the earth acts like a storage battery which releases
heat slowly at night into still air. Condensation is very
heavy on cold days but dries u very quickly when the sun
comes oul. It is no problem. P’:mts Erow as much or more
during the night as they do during the day. If this is taken
into consideration Lhe two extra weeks gained in the spring,
and the two weeks gained in the fall, and the faet it is
always warmer inside than out, nearly anything offered by
the seed catalogues can be grown. This is without any heat
excepl that provided by the sun.

Jack Fry holding up part of 5 Burdock plant grown in one of the Jocal gardons,
the summer of 1978, The plant is u biannual and was one of the horbs used for
medical purposes by the [ndions [t completes this height of growth in one
year.



He has an unigque watering system. A stock pump is
placed twenly feet in the air on the windmill tower. It is en-
cased so that it never freezes. he pumps water into his
house and into vats which enable him to water the garden
three hundred feet distance. The windmill does the pum-
ping. The wind also supplies energy produced by the wind.
Thiz is changed by a converter from thirty-two volls to one
hundred ten volts which provides power to run the T.V. He
has an auxillary plant that can be used when necessary. It
is impossible, without writing a book, to tell the many in-
teresting things that Jack does. One of his ac
complishments was moving the log house in which he lives
It was moved as a complete unit 1o its present location.

THE FYTEN FAMILY
By Lynn Whittle

The thirties were difficult years for peopie living on the
prairies. At Swalwell, Alberta, the Fyten family were en-
countering their share of problems. y raised sheep and
cattle as well as &ram crops. Due to the drought their
pasture was poor. If they could sell the cattle, they would
have enough grass to pasture the sheep - but cattle prices
were foo low to make it worthwhile. After much con-
sideration, Mr. Fyten decided that, if his sons would Lake
the cattle to grass for the summer they would be able te
keep the herd.

Therefore, in May of 1931, George, Dennis and Wilbert
trailed the small herd into the west country. Al fifteen,
Wilbert found this undertaking quite an adventure. Their
summers’ supplies were to be tran ed with a team and
wagon, As well, each boy had a saddle horse. The boys took
the herd to the vicinity of James River where they
remained for the summer. That fall they returned home
with the herd, but Wilbert had become attached to the
“bush country'” and determined to return. Their fathers’
death shortly thereafter delayed this return, for he had to
help with the farm work al Swalwell. However, in 1939 he
did return when he and his brother George went on a hun-
ting trip west of Sundre.

On their journey they came to 4 small sawmill, The
owner of the sawmill was trying to sell his business, so he
asked the brothers if they were interested in purchasing
the sawmill. They went back to Swalwell to discuss the

; decided it was a good one, and returned to buy
the mill,

While he was in the Sundre area, Wilbert met Janet
(Gochee. They were married November 17, 1944 and had
their first child, Lynn, in November 1945,

The business venture at Coal Camp was proving sue-
cessful, so the brothers decided to buy another sawmill. In
1946, Wilbert and his family moved five miles west and one
mile south of the community of Fallen Timber to operate
the new sawmill.

Each winter the mill became operational with a crew
of about twenly men. Some people came directly to the mill
to buy their lumber. The mill also employved lruckers to
transport the lumber, Lumber was hauled to various Hut-
terite Colonies, the Swalwell area, and Calgary. When lum-
ber sales were scarce, Wilbert and Frank Herbert hauled
lumber to Montana.

Trucking lumber from the Fallen Timber mill proved
difficult for there were few roads, and the existing ones
were not good. Consequently, Wilbert began building roads
in the area in the late forties. The Range Line Road be-
tween the county and the local improvement district was
the only access to the north. Many times it was impassable
because Bear Valley was so boggy. So, with two small cats
- one equipped with an eight-foot bulldozer, a pull-type
grader and & three-yard scraper, Wilbert and the crew
began road work. They improved many hills on the Range
Line Road and put corduroy in the bogs. As well, they im-
proved the road from the Range Line east towards Elkton.
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Some of the corduroy they put in these two roads is still
there. From the community of Fallen Timber to Bergen
there was no road, only a trail. Al times, it was said, you
could bog a horse down on this trail. A road was badly
needed, so the crew began to build it. There again, the bogs
were filled with corduroy to make a passable road, The
road-building crews continued their work throughout the
early fifties .

In 1948, Janet and Wilbert had another daughter,
Katherine. With children who were reaching school age,
Wilbert and Janet decided that they must move from their
small log house near the sawmill. So, in 1950 they began
construction of a new home and farm near the Falien Tim-
ber River. The family moved into their new home just in
time to celebrate Christmas, 1951. The children began their
school days in the one-room Fallen Timber School.

The new home had a lighting plant, which made it one
of the few homes in the community to have electricity, This
plant was not very reliable and was difficult to maintain,
so Wilbert began trying to get Calgary Power lo bring elec-
tricity to the area. He became president of the Fallen Tim-
ber Rural Electric Association in 1952, a position he
retained until his death in 1969. As president of this
organization, he and the secretary, Ollie Clark, were in-
strumental in having power brought into the Fallen Timber
and Bergen areas in 1954

In the mid-fifties, Wilbert and George closed down
their sawmill west of Fallen Timber. Now Wilbert devoted
his full time to raising cattle and sheep, Janet and Wilbert
now had five children. Joy was born in 1952, Gay in 1954
and Mary in 1957. Meanwhile, Janel decided to enter the
business world. In 1956, she opened a dress shop in Sundre.
She operated the shop until 1961 when she closed down. The
building was rented to the Bank of Montreal for a few
years until they bought the lot and built a new building,

In 1961, a sixth child was born to Wilbert and Janet. Af-
ter 50 many years and so mani girls it was difficult for
them to believe that they finally had their son — Harvey,

The one-room school the older girls had attended was
now closed, and the children were being bussed to Cremona
School. Janet encouraged the girls to participate in school
sports and attended the majority of the games in which the
girls look part. As well, she was an active participanl of
the Cremona and District Educational Association.

November 17, 1969 was the twenty-fifth wedding an-
niversary of Janet and Wilbert's marriage, Blitz and Frank
Herbert also celebrated their silver wedding anniversary
that November, so the two couples planned a holiday to
celebrate the event, In Mexico, they decided to go on a
fishing trip. While they were at sea, a storm developed.
The poorly maintained boat fell apart, and there were no
lifeboats or jackets on the vessel. Blilz survived, but
Frank, Wilbert and Janet died November 23 near San
Felipe. Mexico.

There were still four children living at home, so the
two eldest daughters came home to care for their sisters
and brother. With the help and understanding of their Un-
cle George the family worked together to keep the farm
their parents had worked so hard o acquire.

At present, Lynn and Ken Whittle and children, and
Harvey bive on that farm, Kathy married Bill Handziuk
and they moved to Ottawa. Later they returned to Calgary
and began raising their family which consists of two sons.
Joy married Larry Gano and they and their two daughters
live on a farm three miles south of Cremona. Gay also
married 8 local farmer, David Hughes. They also have two
daughters. Mary is presently employed at the Sundre
School and Harvey is completing Grade twelve at Cremona
School.



BURR AND IVY GANO 1895-1978

By Mrs. Ivy Gano

Burr was born in Iowa, the son of Ellis and Cena Gano.
One of 8 children - 7 boys and one girl. His mother passed
away when the youngest was 3 years old. His father very
discontent when left alone, trave led around with 8 children
and finally ended up at Anselmo, Alta. in the Peace River
country on a homestead,

Ivy Gano was born in Midland, Michigan, one of &
children born to Clayton and Vie Hawley, 7 girls and one
boy. We moved to Sandpoint, Idaho in 197 | came to
Vulcan, Alta. to work for my sister Mrs. Chas. Short in 1915
on a farm, where we milkeJ cows, made butter and cheese,
and bread and a big garden for a family of 5 and 6 besides
hired help in spring and threshers in fall.

In the fall of 1917 Burr Gano came to work in the har-
vest for my brother-in-law, and stayed on there to work on
the farm. We were married in Vulean, Alta, on July
17. 1918, Finished the harvest work there and came to the
Madden district (then Sampsonton) to the harves! there

born March 1, 1925, Lloyd born

Bernard joined the U.§ Navy al the age of 17 years
upon returning he cowboyed a couple of Years. Married
May Smith, had 2 children, a boy and a girl, and finally
settled in the Anahim Lake, B.C. country to the hunters
Guide business, Also take in summer vacationers.

Allon worked with Pop until married to Lorna
VanHaaiten so Alton took over the farm and we moved (o 8
dacres just south of Cremona, where Burr drove a school
bus and worked for the county at road work until he
retired, We sold the 8 acres to Mike Whitlow where he now
lives. We moved into our home in Cremana in 1858. So we
have been here 20 years. Burr is now 83 vears and Ivy 78
years,

Burr and lvy Gano, 1912,
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We celebrated our 50th Anniversary at Old Dog Pound
hall in 1968 with many friends and relatives - g lovely time,
and on July 15th, 1978 we celebrated our 60th Anniversary
in the new Cremona Hall with a wonderful crowd of friends
and realtives, a wonderful day to remeber. Open house and
dancing and fun.

Lioyd Gano was born in Nov. 18, 1933, snow 3 feet
deep. 1 stayed in Crossfield at Mrs. Cummings. Lloyd was
Yery much for machinery and more interested in trucks
than school, and as soon as old enough started driving big
trucks and soon went into long range trucking for himself
from Edmonton Dist. He married Stephanie Shulhan and
they had four children - 2 boys and 2 girls. They moved to
Penticton B.C, and bought a home there. Got badly hurt in
a lruck accident 5 years ago, leg badly crushed and now
works in the woods ‘with a 0g loader, out of Penticton. He
belongs to the flying club and flies home sometimes. We
have 3 fine sons we are very proud of their families and en-

oy them all so much. We went through years of hard times

ut in those horse and by y days nearly every one was in
the same fix. Worked hard for a living, made our own fun
in the old school houses and at neighbors. Had our ups and
downs but ironed them out with patience. We now travel to

see our sons and families, and relatives in the sum-
mertime, Burr curls in winter and we try to get to all the
card parties once a week in the district. We get out and en-
joy ourselves among friends as much as possible,

Burr and Tvv Gang, &oth Annjversary 1978

MAJOR GOW

Major Gow lived on a gua
Valley, 1'; miles north an Ty
did some farming and owned



THE BILL GRAHAM FAMILY
By Audrey Rigsby

William and Jean Graham came from Annan, Scotland
in 1914 with their children, Thomas Jr., William Jr., and
Margaret (Peggy) and infant son Robert, who died shortly
after their arrival. It was hoped the Alberta climate would
be more healthy for young Bill who suffered from
pneumonia in the damp Scottish air.

They bought land in the Big Prairie area in the 1920's,
where their youngest daughter Frances was born. Bill Sr,
was a butcher in the old country and his trade was useful
in his community.

Jean died in 1927. Bill Sr. remained on the home place
until his death in 1955, Tom married Nellie Duffy, and
children - Jack, Myrtle, Bob, Pat, Donald and Jerry. Bill
married Gladys Parkhurst. Gladys had 3 girls Lois, Cleo,
and Audrey. Peggy married Leland Bouck. Peg and Lee
had six children - Jean, Leona, Jim, Bill, Roy and Robert.
Frances followed her sisters example and married Lee's
brother, Weston, they had four daughters - Phyllis, Evelyn,
Marjorie and Beverly. Tom and Bill still reside in the Big
Prairie community.

Log Garage
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THOMAS GRAHAM

By Mac Graham

Thomas Graham came to Canada from Scotland in
1905, to the Sunnyslope district of Alberta. He farmed with
Frank and Tom Nelson for a few vears. Then he went to
the Columbia River area of B.C. 1o work for a lumber com-
pany.

In 1909 he returned to Scotland, after filing on the
N.W.i4, Sec, 16, Twp. 30, R 5, W 5th. The following year he
married my mother, bringinf her to Canada to his
homestead. This is where they lived out their lives, except
for a few years in the Sunnyslope district, My brother,
George, and I were born here and Norman arrived several
vears later. I now live on the same guarter section with my
wife, Phyllis.

Al one time my father also owned the NW. !, Sec, 9,
Twp. 30, R 5, W 5th. and the SW.t,, Sec. 14, Twp, 30, R 5.
W 5th. Thomas Graham was Secretary-Treasurer of the
Local School District from the beginning, in 1913, con-
tinuing in this capacity for many years. The Graham
School District was named after him.

They celebrated their 50th Wedding Anniversary, May
27, 1960,

Mother passed away July 4, 1967 and Father passed
away April 25, 1968.

TOM GRAHAM

Williem and Jean Graham came to the Big Prairie
district in March, 1914 with their family Tom, Bill and
Peggy. Tom was 9 years old. Frances was born later, They
lived at several places in the next few years, in a square
log house, (now on W. Hunter's land), then 1914 - 1918 while
Mr. Snowdon went to war they lived at his place. Then at
their Uncle Tom’s at Acme. They, then moved to Bachelors
place (now A. Pawson) to & log house. Then lived * miles
north on the Oxford place, they lived there for some years.
Uncle Bennie (as known to everyone) had the Big Prairie
P.0. at that time.

The first school Tom altended was the Rawthwell
thouse), '» mile east of where Graham school was later
built. He attended three or four summers as there was no
school in the winter months. The first teacher was Mr.
Longsdale, a minister. He attended Big Prairie school for 2
or 3 vears, to grade 6. Mrs, Bellamy was Tom’s first
teacher at Big Prairie. Then Mr. Reid rode a black horse
out and taught. He always carried oats for his horse and
also his own lunch, One day he lost both lunches and
remarked, he didn’t mind losing his lunch but wished he
hadn't lost the oats for his horse. The Grahams either
walked or rode a horse to school. Some of the pupils at the
Graham school were; Una and Mary Chapman, 2
Snowdens, 3 Waterstreets, Mac, Geo, Peggy and Tom
Graham, They bought the home place i: section, from
Boulter Reid. There, were no buildings here, all brush, the
house was not square as they couldn’t see out to the road.
The Big Prairie area was full of trees, small, light brush
which they broke using four horses. At 13 years Tom
worked part time for Boulter Reid and his job was o keep
the pigs out of the crop. He worked full time here for about
10 vears. Hilda Whitlow was working in the house. part of
this time also,

While he was working for Boulter Reid he watched
them lay the track for the Cremona Railroad. The track
was in town in December 1931, and was being built by
mostly Frenchmen from Quebec, who wouldn't go to war so
the government sent them west to build railroads, One
mile of track was laid each day. There was a deal from the
government in the early 30°'s where you could hire men for
$5.00 per month and the government would pay $5.00 also,
making a total of $10.00 per month. Many men came out
and worked on this plan. Burkholders had two men, who



helped clear the land. Tom quit at Boulter's to go on his
own and went threshing in the Arrowhead and Calgary
areas, He worked for 15.00 per month and cut 10 acres of
brush at $5.00 per acre at one time. He earned $55.00 which
he spent on wire to fence his quarter, making a two wire
fence, The wire was ordered from the Eatons catalogue
and they had to go to Carstairs to pick it up. This was
usually a 2 day trip. A double box load of wood taken to
Carstaris often brought only $8.00. The Grahams owned one
of the {irst threshing machines in the area. They went from
farm to farm threshing for 3* per bushel (in cash). Boucks
owned a threshing machine and also, Colin Mcfarquhar and
Dunphy.

Tom Graham was married in 1944 to Nellie Duffy, who
already had & family of her own. They remained on the
farm and the children attended Big Prairie school Pat
Duffy taught at Big Prairie also. Some of the Grahams'
neighbors were: Herb Burress and his wife Emma, in
aboul 1940 on the now Standish place. They were city
people and raised chickens and sold eggs. They were there
quite a few years.

The Macnaulties lived on the now Hutcheson place.
They had come up from Colorado. Mr, Macnaultie was
killed when he was hauling a pig in a wagon, with a team
of hores. The pig tried to get out of the box and he lost con-
trol of the team. His wife stayed on the farm for a number

Harvey Hosegood, Tom Graham, Esrl Grace. Griuce Walker deceased Deg
WG Over ' spied - Cremons 1974

Tam Graham, Peggy Bouck. Frances Bouck. 8111 Grakam
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of years. She once had 8 Scotchman (Scotty) for a hired
man. He put the shingles on the house upside down, They
had no family and Mrs. Macmaultie later left the district.

Tom remembers Slim Moorehouse in the early 40's. He
hauled cream to Calgary with an old truck and was stuck
in the mud many times. Slim lived across the road, east
from Grahams, this had previously been owned by a Mr.
Doolittle, and still earlier by a Mr. Wamsley - a half
brother to John Herner. Mr. Wamsley was not there very
long as he had the misfortune to break his leg in an ac-
cident with a rope, hauling trees, The land was in Mrs.
(Dorothy Bennet) Moorehouses' name. They had a few pigs
and a few cattle and a few horses. The first time Tom saw
Slim he was buying horses for fox meat.

Tom lives alone at his farm. He enjoy curling in the
winter and growing flowers in the summer.

WILLIAM GRAHAM

William (Bill) Graham arrived from Winnipeg in a Red
River cart with the MacDougalls'. He homesteaded the
property later owned by Fred Whitlow, and later George
Whitlow. He came about 1900. He bought the place, later
owned by George Duguid, and built the buildings which are
still there. He also bought a section of land from the C.P.R.
at 8350 per acre, later selling his homestead to the
Soldiers’ Settlement Board after the First World War. Shor-
tly after selling his land to George Duguid, Mr. Graham
went lo Salmon Arm, B.C. where he died following an
operation he had shortly after he moved to B.C.

RITA GREEN

Nanton skyways are the home flight-path of the newly
crowned Queen of the Alberta Flying Farmers, Rita Green
accepted the crown and duties of the royal position at the
annual AFF convention hold March 12, 1977 in Lethbridge.
The regal figurehead fills a public relations office. The
nomination generally goes to someone who has been
working in the family oriented organization Rita has ser-
ved as secretary for the past two vears. Husband John has
been a director for two years and was elected as vice
president at the March convention.

Queen Rita will act as hostess at all the chapter fly-ins
tusually held once a month) and will help people gel
acquainted. The Queen helps with the planning for the
Christmas parly, organizing family games and a gift ex-
change for the 526 members. She is expected to plan the
annual convention for the following vear and attend as
many out of province functions as possible to help with the
coronation ceremonies of other chapter Queens in the in-
ternational organization. Queen Rita will represent the
Alberta chapter at the International Flying Farmers con-
vention (o be held August 1-5 in Duluth, Minnesota. Queens
do not necessarily have to hold a pilot's licence. They are
asked to encourage the wives of all the members o ac-
cumulate enough wledge of flying to be able to land a
small aireraflt if the necessity ever occurs.

Queen Rita earned her pilot's licence in 1974, She has
logged about 70 hours flying time but prefers to navigate
with John at the controls, John has logged over 1000 hours
flying time since he became a licenced pilot in 1969 He
depends on Rita to file a flight plan while he gives the
family's single engine Piper Camanche a pre-flight check.

Rita was born and raised in Dog Pound, Alberta, a
community 50 miles northwest of Calgary, Following high
school she trained as a registered nurse at Holy Cross
Hospital in Calgary graduating with a gold medal in
pediatric nursing. Rita worked with crippled children for a



time then joined the staff at the Foothills Public Health
Unit in High River where she was working when she met
John. The Greens moved to Nanton in 1961, to the old Trull
farm northeast of town where they restrict their operation
to grain farming only, Rita is a vital part of the business,
hauling the grain into town. Parents of six children, only
two teenagers, Rodney 14, and Ellen 12 remain at home.

Rita has never hesitated to offer her energies and ser-
vices to community clubs and projects. She served two
vears as a leader of the Explorers, was secretary-treasurer
for the Cubs, secretary for the skating club, and taught a
ladies’ Keep Fit Club. Rila served two years as president
of the High River Assocaition of Registered Nurses, helped
at Blood Donor clinics and served in a first aid capacity at
numerous school functions,

Angie McBain, Margaret Cameron (Mother), Queen Rits, Kathie. AFF Con-
vention at Red Deer.  March 1978.

THE GUNDERSON STORY

By Mary Gunderson

The family of Mr. and Mrs. Peter A. Gunderson, nee
Inga Vrim, immigrated from Norway in the early
1890's to Wallum, North Dakota, where their family of 4,
Alvina, Arla, Irvin and Oris, were born. While the children
were quiet young, the Gunderson’s came to Alberta where
they lived in various districts that included Brooks, Eagle
Hilr and Silver Springs (the outskirts of Calgary) Their
eldest daughter, na (Mrs. R.0. Hauge) widowed, lives
in Calgary and has a family of four. Arla (Mrs. W.C,

Gaudy), also of Calgary, has two children and Irvin

deceased in 1917.
In 1989 Oris Gunderson married MWer.
daughter of Mr. and Mrs, Godfred Helmer of idge,

formerly of Boise, Idaho. Mary came from a family of nine
children, six brothers and two sisters.

To this union ten children were born. Oris also had
three children by a former marriage, Of this marriage,
Eugene Oris, widower, lives at Kinsella, Alta., Mrs. R.
Hyes, (Edna) lives at Lloydminster with her family of 4 -
Karen, Gail, Bardy and Kirby; and Maurice Albert Gun-
derson lives in Calgary with five children - Martin, Joy,
Rita, Penny and Timothy.

To Mary and Oris Gunderson, their eidest child is a
son; Peter Godfred, a heavy duty mechanic who lives in
Calgary. He and his wife, the former Dolores Teena Dob-
ney, have one son Scott. By an earlier marriage Peter had
four children - Wendy Lou, Perry Allen, Michelle Lynn, and
Darrin James. they now live with their mother, Mrs. An-
drew Michaelchuk in Sundre.

Wallace (Wally) Irvin, lives in Calgary and is em-
ployed by Parslow & Denoon. His wife, nee Laurie Bird, is
a school teacher and they have two sons, Joshua Lee and
Jeremy Wallace.

David Allen Vrim, lives on a farm near Cremona and
his wife, nee Pamela Bates, is also a school teacher. They
have a son Daniel Ryan and a daughter, Leah Corrine.

Andrea Susan, Mrs. Steve Hawiuk, lives in Ponoka and
owns and operates a beauty salon. Steve is an accountant.
'{dhe)i' have a son, Kevin Duane, and a daughter, Audra

arie.

OerdMary-Pete.wuly&DachuMmmwbenm:yﬁmmwedm
Water Valley.

Sandra Lee, Mrs. Lloyd Hauer lives in Calgary and is a
nurses aid. They have three children, Tina Rosali, Tamara
Lee, and Farren Lloyd.

William Georﬁ:s (Bill) lives on the home ranch at
Water Valley and a trucking business.

-

.éack McCalum holding Andrea, Oris, Mary holding Sandl, Wally, Pete and
Ve

Rosemary Elaine, Mrs, David Stanley Jones, lives in
Tulsa, Oklahoma. Rosemary is & housewife and David is a
Geophg:icisL Rosemary did drafting before her marriage..
}‘hey ve two sons, Travis Gunderson and Fraser Gun-

erson.



Dave, Oris, Wally, Mary, Pete. and Ingamar Sundguist. Sandi, Rose, and Bill,
Don and Carol

Donald Gordon lives on the home ranch and his wife
Christine, nee Leask, is a nurse in the Sundre hospital.
Carrol Ann, Mrs. Ernest Zacher, lives in Calgary and does
drafting for oil companies. Ernie is assistant manager of
Snappy, a printing firm. They have one son Michael Ian
Roy Lanny, at this time is attending Oklahoma State Tech,
at Okmulgee, Oklahoma and is taking a leather craftsman
course and is interested in Art.

Mr. and Mrs. Oris Gunderson moved from Silver Spnntg:
area to the Water Valley district about 1946, At the time
roads were in no condition for their new Willis truck, so it
was disposed of. When Sandra Lee was putting in an ap-
garance, prematurely, the trip across the Little Red Deer

iver for Dr. Paul and nurse Helen Whitlow and Mrs.
Bosch, needed a team of horses and a wagon with the box
tied down with a chain 1o cross the river safely.

Such times as Oris could be spared from farm work, he
was employed by the government Ge?shymcal Surveyors
and travelled to various places, from Northern Ontario to
the North West Territories, to Inuvik and British Columbia.
His sons Peter and Wally accompanied their father to
several of the locations.

Two very good friends and neighbors of the Gun-
dersons’ were Jack McCulman and Ingamar Sundquist.
The Gunderson children considered Jack as their grandpa
and Oris and Ingamar spent many years together cooking
up north as well as being close friends and neighbors.

Oris Gunderson, Jack McCulman and Dan Calvin sawing wood on the Gun-
derson place.

Stacking hay at Mrs. Sundholm’s - Oris on the stack, Mrs. Sundholm and Pete

78

David, Wally, Billy, Andrea, Sandy, Donnie, Oris, Mary & Roy, Carol,
Rosemary Gunderson. 1964.

Oris Gunderson and Ingamar Sundguist.

After the children reached high school age the Gun-
dersons' moved from the ranch to Cremona as the school
bus era had not arrived. They moved back to
Water Valley in 1959. In 1965 they bought an acreage on the
2A highway on the outskirts of Olds and Oris was employed
by the county for 8 years.

Oris passed away in October 1976 and Mary is still
carrying on in her home in Olds.



DIARY OF HANS HAENER
Hans Haener 1963

My brother and I came to Canada in 1911 - month of
gne on the Empress of Ireland which went down two
pears later by hitting an iceberg. We left the Old Country
AEermany) because my father, who was in the Breweries
and wine business went broke through the fault of our bank
'~ m those years the banks were all owned by private
people. We had a few thousand mark left and decided to go
nada. We got our second class ticket and left the rest
“of the money with our parents, therefore we had to go to
or] ﬁghtnwa'iemmnkeanewstaninlife. We got
organized with clerk in the C.P.A. office in Hamburg
“and he dated our ticket to Canada a week before the Em-
press sailed. We took a boat from Hamburg to Greensby
b as | seasick crossing the channel) then took the
-ty Liverpool. On the boat we were told to go to
. When we landed in Quebec, you had to have $25 to
Canada. All we had left between us was $25, so my
went on deck and showed the $25, came back and
$25 to show it again. That is the way we lan-
immigration train took around 8-10 days to get to
ary. It stopped at every little station. Well, to eat you
sht some bread and sausage, etc. They sold it on the
jorm. Now we were pretty green about the money ex-
ge and got stun%nevery time we changed our money.
those years in Germany we only used gold, silver,
mickels and copper money - no paper money at all,
~ When we got to Calgary, we took a room in the west
end of Calgary - Eight Ave. As we were going to bed and
~opened the blanket, there was a black wave crawling all
gwer the sheel, so we slept on the floor. Next morning we
jed a shack from a German plumber. We got a job with
pick and shovel to dig the basement of the Cecil Hotel. It
around the end of June. We never did any hard work
wre and were very green, so when | swung the pick, [
rays hit the biggest stone and pretty soon my hands
swe so swollen you could not see between the fingers.
There was a little old man working beside me and he said
gst watch him swing that pick, so I watched him. He lifted
the= pick and when he swung it down two inches from the
gravel b:oui’:at backed up a little - you see the
] not see it from the bank, so I got my first
‘experience on how to use & pick and shovel - that is where
zot my start in Calgary. I have the first dollar we earned
et The wages were 20° a hour - 10 hours a day. In those
pears there were no relief - you dug or died. I always tell
the boys, they never tried yet to make a living. The first
ves iuCalga.;’ytheyhadanelectinu I think R.B. Bennett
= running, We went to the Riverside Hotel, and the elec-
Bon boys asked us for whom we were going to vote. They
aid if v;rou vote for us we give you the beer etc. you
want Well, I said, to my brother, this is a grand country,
give you all the free drink. The joke is we were a
few weeks in Canada and were not nationalized yet! In
those days you could get all the whiskey etc. in bars. A
f=liow got shot and they laid him out in a shed behind Eight
Awe:; he had no pa on him and the police wanted people
ook at him to out who he was, He was covered with
2 blanket. The mountie lifted the blanket and you could
see where the bullet went through his hat; that was the fir-
i time [ saw a dead person.
- Well, winter came and we got a job with the freight
sheds C.T.A. loading the freight cars, Most of the fellows
mme from England who worked there and we learned
guite a few words, we could not find in our dictionary.
pon, it cold and be snowing. We had old country
s started oiling ,it%:llobeluwmdﬂ:eyfrme
solid. and got hard as stone. We had no money to buy over-
so we pul sacks around them. To keep warm, we
newspaper around our legsand body and used old
ks for mitts. We onl woﬁdﬁvehwrsada. that

‘made §1 a day, Now we had to pay $15 for the rough lum-
‘ber shacl wiﬂ{tarpapermmd—gsideawehadwbuycoal.
‘Well, it got colder. and we could not affored to heat it all
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night, so we put all the clothes under our blanket to keep
them warm but in the morning the blankets were frozen

under our neses. Those years they heated the cars where
the canned goods were tr with the big belly stove.
To make money we worked in day time in the sheds and in

the night we got the job to head those cars up lo Field and
Saskatoon etc. You punched your time in and punched
when you came back, that gave you 24 hours pay. You
slept on the goodsandwha:them;topred'to
take waterforﬂxe::ﬁine you jumped out and ran for the
engine to get more X

Up in Banff the snow was waist deep and you have to
struggie to get back in the car. Whenever we had 25¢ to
spare on Sunday we went to the Chinaman's restaurant fo
get a meal. In those days, you sat at the counter.
They had all the bread and butter, etc. on it and you helped
yourself. We cleaned that counter off as far as we could
reach. Next Sunday, we went to another restaurant and did
the same. I bet the Chinaman lost money on us. Whenever
a car of candies came in, we had to unload them. There
was always a lot of broken candy packs. These years, they
were packaged in wooden pails because they only threw
them away, We lived that week on candies and frozen bars
ete. It helped to keep the tummy full.

The next summer we got a job on the park with two
teams, $6 per day. We bought the horses, wagon and har-
ness for $8 - on time, and paid for it that season. We made
&ll our expenses by over-hauling a load of tools or sand ete,
for small contractors. Also, on Saturdays, we look con-
tracts digging out cellars with our horses, scraper and
hired two men besides. When the winter came we look a
homestead between Fallen Timber and the Big Red Deer
River, which is called Haener ridge now. We leit Calgary
late in the fall and it took us a to get to Carstairs, We
slept in the hayloft of the liverybarns since we had no
money for hotels. Besides, the old Madden Hotel was full of
bed bugs and lice. We got neverslip shoes put on the horses
feet by Jimmie Johnson, the Carstairs blacksmith. All the
cash we had was $80 between the two of us. We had enough
flour, lard, bacon, powder, beans etc. The first day out of
Carstairs we made it to Old Man McCleavy’s place for din-
ner. That night we camped on the ‘gnce where the
Bellamy's now live. There was a old shed, Met Edwin
Reid’s father, he was teaching school in those days. Next
day we made Big Prairie and stayed on Walkers place. We
had to buy a sled, snow got so deep. We left the next day
with the sled loaded up and left wagon behind. We
made Joe Waterstreets place, stayed over night and got a
lot of good advice from him. Left early, hit a cut bank, the
sied upset and everything went down on the ice on the
river. We loaded up again, We had to cut some timber and
having never usecl an axe before, every time we hit the
tree, the axe flew off the handle. Well, it was 12 midnight
when we pitched our tent on the homestead. We had not
had anything to eat all day. We had to shovel a foot of snow
off the ground to put mﬁhe tent. We put blankets over the
horses, fed them for night, The next morning we went
back to Waterstreets to get some hay we had bought off
him. We had to use the wagon however, since the trail was
too narrow for a hayrack. We had plenty of deer, moose
gnd rabbit meat, Waﬁvfed‘nn mnlter I&lt'hg) tent. We went to

ohnsons sawmill | freighted lum r Bergen to get
gome_lmnberwcoverthemofo!mecabinwewere

Mr. Waterstreet helped us build the cabin. He was ane
of the handiest men we had ever seen, when he had a tool
in his hand. We learned a lol from him on how to make a
living. Our next neighbor’s were the Cogrs who ran hor-
ses and cattle. We were also going into the horse business.
Whensprmgumewewmbrokeandleﬁforcalgszay
with the wagons. It took us 12 days. The horses were
and could only make a few miles in a day, besides the
o e Cimnze. Ty Ta's Iundoe i o/ (hetbics

m ey ‘a laun a
house and we pitched a tent, We got oats and hay from the
farmers of the time, but then had to pay for team licence,



so we had no money to buy grub, so lived on bread, lard
and porridge. We got my thin shovelling gravel and dirt
on it. One night the man looked in our tent, saw us
eating. He said “you no meat, no money, 'till paycheck
comes”, He said *‘Me send boy to Chinatown and get some
meat”, Well, I thought he was joking. We went to work the
next morning with lard sandwiches. The other boys alwalg‘rs
offered us some of their grub but we were too proud to take
it, We came home that ng!:lt to find about $30 worth of grub
in our tent. Boy, did 1 ever have a lot of respect for that
Chinaman, a white man would not have done it. One of
them was a cook and he invited us in e Sunday for a
steak dinner, with Chinese whiskey: boy did we ever enjoy
that meal. If we had offered to pay for it he would have
been offended, In those days they wore their long hair.

Every summer we went out with the teams to make a
grubstake for the winter and bought broodmares and cat-
tle, and in the summer, Jack Cooper, our neighbor looked
after them as well as his own stock. Well, the city team-
sters started raising a fuss saying that we homesteaders
took the jobs from them, so we got fired and went haulinf
gravel from the Pat Burns grave! pit on the McLeod Trail.
I got to help haul the team out and got the day. They had
long bunkhouses and sheds for the horses. You found
Englishmen, Irish, Scots, Yankees and Germans there. You
know those years, Beer Parlors were wide open and you
could get any drink in liquor and beer, On Saturdays all the
boys went uptown and got ught. When they came back to
the pit there was a fight and you could see the stones flying
in every direction, until the police came, and then
everything was quiet!

The land on McLeod Trail where the Big Storm
Brewery is, was Pat Burns land and open for miles, so on
Sundays we took a team and wagon and loaded the hounds,
and went coyote hunting. Another year we freighted the
Sundance oil well out to Didsbury. All the derricks were
filled with timber, Old Taynors oil team and my team. The
cable was out of order, we had to load it on two wagons,
We ran it from one wagon to the other over the tongue and
had to be careful not to drive too slow or too fast. We got
stuck in front of Hosegood’s farm. Took a team to unload
it, pulled the wagons out of the mud, and loaded it up by
hauling in with a team. Well, we had nothing to eat since 5
o'clock in the morning. The boys all chewed tobacco, 5o 1
took & chew of it. Boy! did I get sick, I had to lay on top of
the wagon all the way to Didsbury. We went to the
drugstore and got a bottle of whiskey and took one good
drink and all the misery went out of the tummy. The Indian
trail from Rocky Mountain House to Morley went through
my homestead and we did a lot of trading with them:
traded for buckskins shirts, jackets and chaps and
berries. We had some society clothes, swallow - tailscoats
ete, and traded these to the Indians. I always wondered
what they did with them. The Indians never went into your
house when you were not home, but sat in front of it. They
would not sleep in your house, but slept in your barn when
they stayed over. They all travelled on horseback and used
little hatchets to cut the branches to keep the trail open.
They trailed two ;;)':es behind their horses to keep the furs
and bedding in. They lived on old homesteads west of
Coopers. He got in trouble with the Indians and when night
came he heard an awful noise outside. The Indians tried to
break his door down and lift his hair, but he was lucky and
escaped by the rear window into the darkness. I did not

him again, We lost a cow one fall in a kneehi
mey creek. She was frozen stiff. The Indians asked usgi}}
they could have her and we said yes. They got her out,
skinned her and ate the meat. The Indians never stole
anything off you, you could trust them. One of them his
name was Jonas and I remember, he must have been 80
vears old.

One summer we freighted for the Dutch Colonization
Co, 66 ft. of lumber and 30 tons of material from Beiseker
to Redland. The CN.R. railroad was not built then. We
took hay contracted for the companly, $2 ton, put up 4-
500 tons, the grass was prairie wool made 2 tons an acre,

You cut it, raked it, stacked it with a backpole, four horses
on and slid it, up the shute, After haying we helped them
thresh wheat. War broke out, they got $2-3
bushel and made a fortune. Bought the land for $4-5 an
acre and sold in war time for $60-80.

We later bought the half section of land I am still living
on. It was raw land. We had to pitch our tent and build a
house. That winter, we cut logs and took them to the
sawmill, Freighted the lumber out all winter, started
building a shack and barn and fence around the pasture,

Had to buy feed the first year and put the crop in on shares
o get enol feed. Broke the land with 8 horses, and
cleared the land with axes all winter. No tractors those

years. Went threshing with Colwells steam outfit, milked
cows and fed pigs to get some cash. Frank Moon and I took
a bunch of horses and went out west. Got sick, hardly made
it home. Got Dr. Henderson from Carstairs out. Looked me
over and said broken appendix. Put me in his car and took
me home. Had to make my will because I was in company
with my brother. In the early morning he put me on a<rain
to the Holy Cross Hospital. In less than two hours they
operated and told me if I had waited one day later, I would
have died. Had a tube for nearly two months to drain the
puss out. When I got stronger they let me sit in a chair for
an hour every day. Later they told me to take a walk.

My wife was a nurse there, she came from Swit-
zerland. Her father was a doctor. Well, we got acquainted
and you see I was on my back and could not get away, so |
had to get married to her after I got home. We went with
buggy to Carstairs to get the knot tied. All I had in my
pocket was $5. and I gave it to the preacher. He asked me
for the ring. T reached in my pocket and told him I must
have left the ring at home. The wife got kind of red in the
face, Well, you know we were so poor, 1 could not buy a
ring and never did, and everything went fine anyhow - ring
or no ring. When we came home in the buggy, I had to milk
12 cows, and feed pigs. Boy! that was quite a honeymoon,
Besides, Andy Garson from Cochrane was at my place
looking to buy some horses, so I had to take him over to the
neighbors zlace - the Blackburns. You see, we had only 2
rooms. Mike and Denyse both were born on Mrs. Charlie
Browns place on the Westcott road. Those days it was hard
to get to the Didsbury hospital. Mrs. Brown came from
England and was a trained nurse and midwife. She was a
fine lady.

When the kids were around 1214, my wife got cancer.
I had her in a house in Calgary. They had to take one
breast out, but the cancer went into the blood. They told
me she had only nine months to live. They were the hardest
months in my life. Now began the struggle with
housekeepers, they came and went - too lonesome out on
the farm. But soon Denyse did part of the housekeeping
and Mike helped with the chores, besides having to ride
several miles to school. Well they had to learn the hard
way, so both are able to stay on their own feet. When they
were old enough’ to run the farm, I decided to build a
house in Didsbury. Mike and I built it out of cement blocks,
took all summer, besides he had to put the cropin &
Denyse did the rest of the farm work. Put in plumbing, had
2 rooms in basement with plumbing. Well, everything was
all right as long as I had eno to do so to finish in-
side, but when I ran out of work it was not so hol, Went up
town twice a day and met all the old timers all you heard
was one had a pain and the other had a pain, so 1 got
scared if 1 stayed much longer, 1 might get a pain, So I
went back to the farm. Told Mike he could have house,
and clear title for the work he put in on the farm, So he
went and got started in the contractors business. He sold
the house to an Elevator Grain Co., moved to Yellowknife,
where he has his own construction company, “Haener and
Anderson”. Denyse got a job in the telephone office in
Calgary as cashier. Both took a trip to  England and
Europe where we have friends and relatives. They financed
their own trips. Time goes. I got my first old age pension
cheque and mised the boys a party, Went with Earl
Neilson to Olds and bought the hard stuff. The boys



delivered the chicken supper and had a party in Earl's
home he had in Cremona. We all had a good time, some
drove home, some walked part ways. I put the old
truck in compound and got home all right, slow but sure!
So, | promised them the last old age pension cheque for
beer. Now they are waiting for me to kick the bucket. The
other day I looked them over, and I thought [ may have
to buy some flowers for some of them, and that would be
quite an expense, Well, I am 78 years old now. I am feeding
around 75 head of steers. I put up my own hay and green-
feed around 6 to 7000 bales. I think 1 will last a little
while yet. Well, life is what you make out of it, and I have
been satisfied with mine,

*Hans Haener died August 7, 1973

JAMES HALEY

By: Justeens Simpson

My father and mother, Mr. and Mrs. James Haley
were born al Enterprise, Ontario and were married there
in 1899, Johnie, Justeena and James were born there also.

A few years later they moved to Minot, North Dakota
where they farmed for awhile. Russell, Stanley and Grace
were born there. Around this time Dad heard of land in
Alberta which was being pul up for homesteads, so he
came up in the fall of 1907. I believe, and filed on the quar-
ter section south of Mr. Campbell’s place, now Bob Pat-
chell’s on the road to Water Valley.

In October, 1909 we left Minot to come to Alberta. We
had our household effects, some machinery and livestock,
four horses and four cows to bring with us. Oscar Swanson,
a young man then, wanted to come to Alberta, so he came
in the freight car and looked after the livestock. We came
on the passenger train and arrived a week or so ahead.

Dad got a livery man to drive us ou! from Carstairs in
a democrat over hardly any roads. I remember the flying
ants were terrible on the road out, We came to Buster
Brown’s rplace, He was our uncle. We stayed with him for a
couple of weeks until we could get a place to live. We then
moved to the Davie's place which was one half miie south
of Brown's, which Ted Wiggs now owns.

My dad bought a quarter section from a man in the
States. In 1910 a house was built where it stood until fire
destroyed it in the spring of 1970 - sixty years old. Stan
Haley, his wife, and son live on this “PL«:«- now. It was
home to a lot of people in those years. We started school at
Mount Hope which was a new school. We children mostly
walked to school in the summer but in the winter we rode
on a stone boat with one horse pulling it. It went well on the
level but on the hills we had to get off and back to keep
it from going on the heels of the horses. We did have fun
and were never late for school thanks to our horse, Nell.

We spent many happy hours skating on the Harbottle
Lake which is now owned by Jim Wigg. Great are the
changes during the years, Roads, cars, climate and so on -
- but 1 guess we would not turn the clock back even if we
could, and T often wonder what the next sixtl);syeam will
bring. I have no regrets having lived the last seventy

ears,
l'!Stanley Haley passed away Jan. 13, 1974 at the age of 66

years,
*Grace Haley (Walker) passed away Dec. 7, 1978 at age of
69 years.

JAKE HANSON

Jake Hanson moved up to the Water Valley area from
Montana U.S.A. where he was a sheep herder in the early
20's. He homesteaded a )4 section, 1 mile west and 1%
miles north of Water Valley. In later years he bought a
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Jake Hanson

quarter, that was homesteaded by Sam May. This is the
present Don Truss property.

Jake, then sold of his quarter to Locki Brims. Jake
Hanson was a bachelor. He passed away in Calgary, Alta.

THE HARBOTTLES

“Doc and Mrs, Harbottle came west from Ontario in
1904. He was a doctor but did not practice in the west, but
helped his neighbors in time of need. There were two sons
and one daughter in the family. One son, Ted, went over-
seas in World War L. Jack (the other son), lived in a log
house north of Botirel, with his sister keeping house for
him. He later married a girl from Scotland. They had no
family, Jack died and his wife lived there for some years
and sold. Now owned by Burkes'.

The old Harbottle house,

THE HARDER FAMILY
By: Miriam Taylor

The Otto family, Mary the eldest, came from Kansas
in 1902, Bill Harder came by himself from Michigan in 1903
and worked as a ranch hand until he took 2 homestead, the
iy section where John Foat now lives. Bill Harder and
Mary Otto were married in 1907 and to this union 5 children
were born; Otto, Ray, Miriam, Mar%‘nret and George. All
five children took their elementary schooling at Byron.

In the pioneer &ars Bill was very helpful in bringing
Dr. Laidlaw from Carstairs to the west community. He also
hauled milk to the cheese factory, Mary was very helpiul
in nursing and in general, giving a hand to anyone in need.

The Morley Trail ran through the homeland and the
Stoney Indians travelled through from Hobbema to Morley,
and cam on the Dog Pound Creek. Mary nursed their
sick children many times, They always asked for bread
and tea. This quarter of land was often referred to as the
**Morley'’ quarter.

The Harders lived here until their passing, Bill in 1950
and Mary in 1956,



IRAL HARRIS

Iral Harris and his wife, Daisy,
homesteaded west of Water Valley. He
havled wood and worked for their
neighbors.

He died about 1935 at the age of 33
years. They had one son, Grant.

HAUGES
By: Alvina Hauge

Racin 0. Hauge purchased Mr. and Mrs. Helmer Sun-
dquists Jand, one mile south of Mrs. Pawson’s BiF Prairie
post office, at that time, and one mile north o Bituma
School, on the Little Red Deer River through Mr. Erik

kson west of Cremona (whom we had known for many
years), negotiating the transaction, being Mr. and Mrs.
Sundquist had returned to Sweden.

y husband was employed as Government Weed In-
spector in the summertime and worked on construction
work in the winter.

We did not move to the land then, but Oris Gunderson
and family moved there in 1943 and stayed till they moved
to the Sailor Place.

In the fall, my husband went to White Horse, Yukon
'l'erritm'}\;.e with the Bennett and White Construction Com-
pany, where he met with an accident which proved fatal,
He passed away on November 10, 1943.

We had two daughters and two sons. Only the youngest
son Arne lived on the Jand after having served five and one
half years with the Canadian Forces, one year in Canada,
and four and a half years overseas, He arrived home in
January 1946, and moved to the land in the fall,

In the summer of 1948, Arne worked as Packer on a
horse outfit, with the Government Topographical Sur-
veyors, in northern British Columbia,

Because of back injuries he moved to Caigary in the
winter and into the taxi business for a couple of vears, then
into salesmanship.

He and Peggy
daughter and son.

Arne is still interested in horses. He and his son have
Tennessee Walking horses,

On January 25, 1979, Arne had open heart surgery and
is doing well. :

I supervised the Bituma School the fall of 1947 and win-
ter of 1348, which I found very inleresting. My girls and
boys out there have grown into fine men and women, which
I am happy to have associated with, as well as their paren-
ts and neighbors.

Allen Reid of Cremona, had finished his Teacher
Training Course at Normal School and took charge of the
spring lerm.

A couple of years later I sold the land, moved (o
Calgary and back to nursing,

Have been retired for some years now, only do
needlepoint, cloiser work and quilting.

Campbell married, have a lovely home,

PETE HEIDEBRECHT

As told by Pete Heidebrecht to Muriel Foster

Pete and his family
brothers,
they arrived.

came to Canada with his two
and James. Pete was 17 years old when
The Heidebrechts' first seiftled in Acme,

Alberta. They spent the winter here, then in the spring
moved to Beiseker, Alberta. They spent several years in
this area. Then Pete decided to go to Caliary Tech. school
After attending this schoal he went to work for an uncle up
at Tofield, Alberta.

Wheat sold this year at 90¢ a bushel. The next year
1930, it sold for 40t a bushel and then the next year it was
down lo 25¢ a bushel. Pete then started working for Goet-
jens at threshing time, Pete and his brother Henry, moved
up on the Greasy Plains in 1931. This place that they moved
on to was the Harry Earle Ranch. Pete recalls in 1932 he

ot a job working for Fred Turnbull at the mill, Turnbull
d a contract to supply the lumber for a barn which was
being built on Mr. van Haaften's place, Tom Carlin was
cutting the logs in the bush. His son, Patty, skidded them in
to the log roll ways with horses. From the roll ways Pete's
brother Hem?' hauled the logs to the mill site. Henry used
Fred Turnbull’s team. Fred Turnbull was the sawer, Pete
tailed the edger, Tom Carlin ran the edger when they were
sawing. Mac Turnbull, Fred’s brother, ran the trim saw
and was also the ca ters who built the barn. This lum-
ber was hauled from Turnbull's place to van Haaftens
by teams. Some of the men who Pete recalls having hauled
lumber were - Leo Bosch, Elmer Foster, and Roy Oldfield.
This barn is now located at Anderson Valley Ranch, 2 miles
west of Water Valley. It was moved when Robert and Lin-
da Anderson purchased it.

View of Greasy Plains

The Pete Heidabrecht place on Harold Cresk 1507

The Heidebrecht brothers lived here through the
ession. There was no work and no money. Henry,
Pete's brother, left in 1937 and went to Calgary. Here he
worked for the Post Office. Pete bought a 1931 model T &t
an auction sale in Carstairs. The roads were so bad he



couldn't get this car to his place so he used to leave it at
Fred Turnbull’s place. Pete used fo drive pe’z?le out east
with his car. He drove this car for approximately one year,
then he burned the generator out. So Pete made a Bennett
B out of the body of this car and traded the motor to
Paul Royer for a 30-30 rifle,

Both cattle and horses were raised on the Heidebrecht
place. Pete probably had from 50 to 60 head of horses. His
brand were: as cattle brand and WY as his horse

brand. Pele’s n€arest neighbors were Charlie Salisbury and
family but they only lived here in the summer at first. Ar-
nold Borton homesteaded N.W.7, which later become Obor-
ne's place, and is now owned by Tannas.

Harold Creek Ranger Station 1938

The Harold Creek Ranger Station was very close to Pete's
place, In the years Pete lived here there were 13 ranger
stations here. Some of their names were: Sid Measer,
Henry Fisher, Bill Smith, Jim Walton, Dexter Champion,
Hiram Baker, Arnold Borton, Frank Jones, Chuck Sallows,
Gordon Mathews, Murry Meisster. Fred Loblaw was nere
for a while in later years. He was stationed here as a boun-
ty hunter for hunting wolves and cougars,

A few years after this was closed down as a ranger
station, hunters started staying in it so the Forestry burnt
it down. Pete spent guite a lot of time hunting. Some of the
gis that used to go hunting with him were - Ole Olson,

1 Olson, and Ingma Sundquist. )

Pete recalls one day him and Ole Olson went hunting
deer. This was & terribly cold day. They found the deer
alright, but when they got ready to shool, the gun wouldn’t
fire, so the deer got away. When they got back to Pete’s
they had to thaw out the rifle.

Pete recalls another time when himself and Bill and
Let Measer were going up to look at a trap line on the
Fallen Timber. They stopped for lunch at an open flat
known as Pretty Place. After being here for a few minutes
they saw where a bear had killed a young moose. They

went on about getting their lunch ready to eat when
someone looked up and there was the bear, eating away on
the moose carcass. Pete ran up the bank so he could see
better. Bill decided he would shoot at the bear from where
he was. In running up the bank this put Pete right on the
game trail that the bear used o arrived at the scene. When
the shots started flying by the bear, he decided to get out of
there the way he came in, and as fast as he could. Mean-
while at the lunch spot, Let Measer was laughing so hard
he couldn't see straight. With the bear getfing closer to
Pete, Pete on the path the bear was using, and all the while
Bill shooting it, did make a funny scene. However, when
the bear was finally dropped he was only a few steps from
where Pete stood. There was no way of keeping meat
frozen in those days, so Pete used to can his own meat in
jars, so it would keep.

Pete was never much of a fisherman so didn’t spend
much time fishing, There were some good holes though,
and good fish in both Harold Creek and the Sawdust in
those days.

The house and barn on this place were built out of logs.
Both these buildings still stand today. Since Pete sold out a
new house was built. In 1942 or 43 Pete bought a 1930 Chev
coupe. He kept this for awhile, then after the war in 1949 or
1850, Pete bought a Ford pick up. Then later on he bought a
G.M.C. three quarter ton, this was the last vehicle he
bought while out at Water Valley.

- ol >

Paddy Carlin.

While on this place, Pete pastured cattle for both Scoop
Chapman and Arthur Shantz. He aiso herded and pastured
sheep for Marmaduke Mathews, who lived east of Deer
Sprinis. These sheep were drove from Mathews to
Heidebrecht's. They would get as far as the Little Red
Deer River the first day. There were 16 river crossings bet-
ween Pete Heidebrecht’s place and where Bates live now.

Pete also looked after cattle for Leasks, Williamsons,



1940, Harold Creek cabin

Pete’s place . 1040, Honry Heidebrecht with horse. Pete and his mother stan-
ding with friends.

Watts, and John and Jim Robertson in the dry 30's of 1930-
1935. There cattle were pastured in the forest reserve,

Pete recalls one time there was an election at Water
Valley. Guy Gazely was the returning officer, by 4 in the
afternoon everyone on the votin list had voted. A 100%
turnout, a8 much better response they get today

Pete Heidebrecht had to have an operation in Calgary
in 1953. After this he couldn't do any heavy work, He drove

Pete and his 3 ton trock. 1954,

taxi the year after, and the next year took up construction
work. In 1935 he sold his place on the 'Greasy Plains to
Dave McDougal of Cochrane, who purchased the place
along with horses, cattle and also Pete's brand, for the
sum of $15.00 per acre.

Dave McDougal's daughter and son-in-law, Gwen and
Bill McKendrick now own this property. Pete moved to his
'I:loomer‘s house in Calgary in 1953. He still lives in the same

use,

1857. Carl Olson, Ole Olson, Henry Heidebrecht, Oston Lane (0il editor of the
Herald), Mr. Buchner from Calgary

WILLIAM HENDRY

By: Margaret Croft

William Hendry, wife Anna, two children David and
Margaret, came to the Cremona district in 1941, from Buf-
falo, Alberta, after vacating their farm which was included
within the northern boundary of the Suffieid Experiemental
Army Range.

The following spring the family moved to a farm,
which was originally homesteaded by Samuel Laveque,

The Hendry farm in the late 40's.



situated north of Water Valley. Mr. and Mrs. Hendry far-
med and lived here many years, William retired from far-
ming a few years prior to his death in August 1959, Mrs.
Hendry continued to live in her house on the farm till her
passing in May 1973, The farm land now being rented by,
daughter Margaret and son-in-law Robert,

Son, David joined the Canadian Air Force in 1951,
married Dea Laddo, a teacher, Later David and Dea
moved to Trenton, then Ottawa, Ontario, where they are
presently living. David working for the Department of Sup-
&ly and Services, his wife a parttime teacher in
inguages. They have one son Patrick, attending Univer-
sity.
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Steam engine and water wagon - Cremona ares

Daughter, Margaret married in 1950 to Robert Croft,
son of Reginald and Jessie Croft. They have two sons,
David and Randall. David, the eldest, was married to
Brenda Good of Cremona in 1973, They had two children,
Latricia and Jared. David is emgloy at the Harmatten
Gas-field as a field operator. Randy an apprentice plumber
is employed at Olds.

CHIY oo "'Stoney Creek' Water Valley.

ED AND ANN HEPPER
By Estelle Mutschler

Ed and Ann Hepper, my parents, came to Dog Pound
on Jan. 12, 1931 to operate the newly constructed elevator
for the Midland and Pacific Grain Corpn. The hamiet con-
sisted of the elevator partly constructed, stock vard, and a
C.P.R. freight shed. The living quarters were 2 small

Left to right: Joan, Annette, Kathy, and Estelle,



rooms attached to the office that Ed and Ann, Estelle and
Kathy moved into. In 1932 they built a small house. Which
was quite an improvement from the 2 rooms. By 1933 the
family had grown to 4 girls, adding Annette and Joan. Ann
was busy looking after four young girls.

Our first store was at Symington. One mile north of
Madden, and the post office was at the Cayle ranch, 3 miles
west of Dog Pound. Bruce Hunter was Post Master. Ed
helped Andy Duncan build a combination store and residen-
ce in 1931 and also helped Lake Parsons build a store with
living quarters upstairs in 1932,

Left to right: Estalle, Kathy, Annette, Joan, Ann and Ed. 1975,

Sometime during the thirties the men of the community
went west and cut logs to build a Community hall from
Jack Reeves directions. This was truly a Community Hall,
not only in name. It was free to any organization such as
church, women's meetings, athletic clu , concerts, ete.
The only revenue attained was from political
meetings (Municipal, Provincial and Federal). This paid
the insurance and license. Fuel was donated by the dif-
ferent organizations and individuals. By 1947 some of us
had outgrown the Dog Pound school. (which was 2 miles
from the Siding and we went to on foot) We moved to Fox
Valley, Sask. where we finished our education. We irls all
married farmers. Estelle married Melvin Mutsc er, and
live on a ranch at Manyberries, Alberta. We have 3 girls
and 1 boy, and 6 grandchildren, The girls all married ran-
chers, the boy, Allen is at home. Linda married Barry
Stuber. Debbie married Philip Gazdag. Darlene married
Russel Wegner. All live in the Manyberries district. Kathy
married Jack Smilie and lives on a farm at Madden, Alta,
They have 2 boys and 2 girls, Theresa married Glenn
Geier, and lives on a farm at Keoma, Alta, they have 1
boy. Brad, Doug and Cindy are at home, Annette married
Fred Glass and lives in Red Deer, they have 3 boys and 1

irl. Rodney married Dianna Innocent from Stettler, Alta.
gndney is manager of Midway Implements, Red Deer.
Dale married Carolyn Hockley of Big Valley, Alta. Dale is
Superintendent for Nasce Well Service, Red Deer. Leanne
and Fred Jr. at home

Joan married Robert Rexrath and lives on a ranch 70
miles west of Bakersfield, Calif. U.S.A. They have 3 girls.
Andi is raising Registered Angus show cattle and is active
i udging 4-H animals. Alison shows 4-H
calves, needlework. Abby shows pigs and needlework. None
of the girls are married,

Ed and Ann retired in 1965 to Westward Ho, Alberta
where they have a house and one acre of land and keep
b}xsmy b%ardening and fishing, ete. in one of the beauty spots
0 ria,

MR. AND MRS. ISAAC HERNER
AND FAMILY

By John Herner

Isaac Herner, my father was born in Ontario in 1838.
He spent some years in the USA. bul the offer of
homesteads on the prairies prompted him to return to
Canada. In the fall of 1901 he left his home in Alpha, Min-
nesota and journeyed by train to Alberta. Mother stayed
behind, watching over the children and saw to the fall
threshing. Only one letter came while he was away and
mother was most anxious about his safety, especially since
some of the neighbors foretold gloomily, “You don't need to
look for him, you will never see him again'. Two davs af-
ter this cheery visit, father arrived home, alive. He carried
a walking stick to which he had carefully bound a handful
of tall grain, pulled up by the roots to show the length of
the grain grown in Alberta. He told us that he had filed his
claim on a homestead and bought & quarter of railroad
land besides. Our neighbors insisted that only Eskimos and
Indians lived there, but in the spring of 1902, a freight car
was loaded with our stock, feed, machiner ', household
saoods, father and the dog. One other man from Alpha

red lo acceplt the Canadian challenge and all his
possessions were in a car on the same train. He was Fin-
ney Vanduzee.

Mother and we five children, loaded down with sat-
chels, lunch baskets and blankets took the passenger train,
The children were, Mary 14, Martha 13, Rachel 9, Samuel
4, and John 1’4. We changed trains three times in the next
four day, at Austin, St. Paul and Moose Jaw. Much of the
way the train travelled through heavy snow with men and
snow plows on the track. Finally at 1 a.m. we arrived in
Carstairs, strangers in a cold, dark, strange land. Father's
cousin, A.R. Shantz lived in a small apartment over a store
and our first night in Alberta was spent on his floor wrap-
ped in blankets. The next day we went to the country to
stay with another cousin, Pastor Isreal Shantz of the
Waterloo church, This was the church we would later at-
tend. There were nine in the Shantz household but they
made room for us and almost immediatelv we broke out
with the measles. Soon the Shantz children broke out too as
did some neighbor children who had come over to visit.

Father’s train had been delayed but he arrived safely,
They then unloaded the livestock and brought it to our tem-
porary abode but the furniture and machinery was taken to
the homestead eight miles west of town and left there in
the open on the bald prairie. As soon as possible, work
began on our 14 ft. by 20 ft. shack. Slender spruce poles for
studding, rafters and joists, shiplap siding and one foot
wide boards for the roof with no shingles were used.
Mother went along to help father each day while Mary,
though sick herself took care of us younger children. When
the shack was liveable, although we children were still
quite sick, Mother and Dad moved us in. Rachel sat bet-
ween them on the front seat of the carriage, Mother held
me on her lap and the three children lay well covered in an
improvised bed in the back.

We got wood from small poplar and willow bluffs and
water from nearby sloughs. Mother strained the water
through a cloth to take out the wrigglers, Just before we
came to Alberta and just following our arrival it had
rained, never missing a ni(ghl or day for a period of seven
weeks. The sloughs were full. Now the wet spell was over
and the warm west wind started and soon dried the long,
dead winter grass. We could see two other dwellings much
like our own, and we heard and saw cattle on the great un-
fenced range. Something else we could hear and found
quite frightening were the coyotes.

The country was much different then, For miles and
miles it was a rolling sea of prairie wool, that thick
matted grass that nutured the buffalo. There were lots of
creeks and waterways. There was no brush as we Kknow it
now but trees lining the creeks and rivers. Now that the
grass had dried, the fear of fire arose. If the prairie ever



caught fire, it went like tinder and nothing could stop it. It
made its’ own wind in its' mad rush to devour ev i
in sight. There were no rivers or creeks in this area wide
enough to stop a fire as it flames 30 to 50 feet in the air and
tossed balls of burning grass ahead of itself. Three bi
fires, went this area in our time, The first an
biggest started just below (west of) the old Jackson school,
though of course the school wasn’t there then. We heard
that it finally burned itself out near Drumheller. The
second started three quarters of a mile southeast of
Jackson school and went 10 miles to some new ing
where it stopped. The third fire started half a mile
southeast of our place and did not do much damage as
most people had some fire guards and plowed land then. It
was the first and biggest fire that came through that we
moved into our hosue and the following is an excerpt from
a manuscript written by Rachel Herner Goudie and Titled
“Providential Protection”. The mor:i:;s of the 8th day of
April dawned beautifully; a zepher wind was blowing; the
snow was entirely gone and the thick l]ﬂ-ass was dry. Four
of us children had recovered from illness and how won-
derful to be out.”

Father and mother were working a short distance from
the shack preparing some poles to build a stable, the type
which many of the early settlers had. The walls were made
of two pole frames about three feet apart then filled in
tightly with hay, a flat pole roof and hay piled over that.
Sou cosy doesn't it but horrors! We learned later that
when it rained and then stopped, thal kind of roof still drip-
ped rain for hours after. As the work progressed, a small
sgiral of smoke could be seen away over toward the nor-
thwest, but what of that. It could be from a chimney or
g:rha an Indian tepee where they were having a late

eakfast. Yet before lon%. imagaination to reality and
father remarked, "1 don't like the looks of that”. Nor did
we. Oh, how it widened and worsened as it came nearer.
Many anxious glances were cast in that direction and the
stable work began to loose its' attraction, All of our earthly
possessions were there in just a small area; the horses
stood tied lo the wagon, the box was their manger. The
cows, pigs and chickens shared heaven's blue canopy as
their onli roof, The long grass was literally beneath and all
around the shack. Father’s malignant heart ailment was no
match for the exertion of fire fighting. What were we to
do? With an imploring prayer on lips, mother and four-
teen year old Mary, small for her age, filled the wash
boller and pails with water from little ponds placing them
here and there, and getting some sacks ready to make wet,
A back fire with such inadequate help was utter folly and
prairie sod could not be plowed that early in the spring for
a fire guard. There are no words to describe the awfulness
as over the last hill it came, sending up great billows of
smoke, snapping, crackling, devouring flames licking their
hungry tongues beneath the grass, and hurling large tuits
of it into the air, a burning mass.

Had we moved o these western prairies just to be im-
mediately wiped off the map by this destroying monster?
Was my sister Martha to be burned to death? She was
not able to walk or run from it, and too hastily drive in the
opposite direction would mean to loose all left behind. Stan-
ding in fear and trembling, with breath we watched and
waited. Not a ray of hope in sight for our safety, And then
- Thank God! Could we believe our eyes? Suddenly and
hurriedly, over that same hill a group of men and boys ap-
peared, threshing and slapping with all their might at those
flames. Neither tongue or pen could exfress our relief at
the coming of help with a mighty challenge to held that
monster at bay as it swept by us only a few rods from the
shack. '

The men Rachel mentioned as "'Our Protectors’ were
Finney Vanduzee and his sons, Colonel and Dave. They
proved to be friends in many ways, Father was not at
well; his heart was very bad and his sight was gone in one
eye so a good friend was greatly appreciated.

The Sunnyslope school opened in 1903 and sister Rachel
started then. Samuel started in 1905 and 1 attended from

1907 to 1911. The school was located where the Carstairs
gas plant is now. We went to the Waterloo Church and most
of our entertainment was from either the school or the
church. We also did a lot more visiting among our neigh-
bors than we do now. Strangers knocked at any door and
Zot hospitality, They ate, visited the family and slept in the
barn if the house was too crowded. One day we went cut-
ting wood at what is now Johnny Schultz’s place. A dog
barked so we all went down the big hill to the west to in-
vestigate, This was the first time we knew Joseph Reid
existed. A greal sport for us was watching the hounds
chase coyotes and of course riding our horses and watching
the Range Riders herding their cattle, The herds often
numbered between 1wo hundred and three hundred head.
The riders. then were Alex Robertson, Sr. & Alley Vetter.
They were as tough as leather and had to be. We always
had to go out in the evening and bring in our milk cows
would be mixed in with the range cattle. Mother warned us
not to startle the range cattle as they needed very little
reason to stampede. One evening I rode out a bit too fast
and one calf jumped away from the herd and bawled. The
whole herd turned on me and began to stampede, bawling
and bellowing, tearing up the earth and clashing their
great horns, I turned my horse and somehow outran them.
1 was truly riding for my life for those mean wild cows
could tear a horse o pieces in a short time. Often one of
the cattle would die from disease, old age or from fighting,
and when this happened the riders would drag the carcass
away and always to the same spol. During the night the
other cattle would come to this place and bellow and roar
all the while they were using their great horns and sharp
hooves to tear up the dead animal and a lot of the surroun-

Back row: Steila
Vellor, (Faster), Hazel Crow, Others

ay, half sister of Pearl Stope, Rachel Heener, Claira
unknown.



My sisters Mary and Martha each had a calf but the
calves got out in the range cattle and not being branded, no
one knew whose they were . We asked Alex Robertson and
he said we should check at the Hickling ranch. We went
there and found a huge herd of cattle in the corral. Mary
and Martha climbed up on the fence and all the cattle sta-
mpeded away except two small calves. The girls put their
arms around the calves necks and everyone said that this
identification was better than any brand,

day mother was out walkéz:;; and caught her skirt
on a surveyors stake. This star us checking and we
found that we had built our house three quarters of a mile
from the proper place. In fact, we were within a few feetl of
being on our neighbour's land. We put in those first crops
with an engate seeder with mother driving the horses. We
bought our groceries in Carstairs where they were charged
and paid for once a year. I remember a barrel of apples at

Kelly’s store costing $2.00.

Reinbart, Rachel Herper (Goudie). Sam Herner,

1913 at Didsbury - Mrs. C.C.
J and Lawrence

ohn Herner, Mrs, Wamsloy

Father died January 13th, 1907, the coldest winter we
have ever known. We stood on blankets at his grave with
heated stones to keep our feet from freezing. Father was
buried at Waterloo but first he lay at home for three days,
He was buried in a shroud, the custom then, and mother
prepared him for burial herself. Part of the preparations
involved patting watered carbolic acid on his face to

preserve the color.

The land had become indebted because of father's
health and ultimate death and one day the mortgage holder
came and days to pay up. No child

social assétance existed then. So
she sold the railroad quarter for $10.00 an acre and the

day, shovelling it on and into the
for a man at Fleet, He had two
farms and a lumberyard and among my duties was
driving his livery team. Next I went to Consort and then
Plunkett, Saskatchewan, While I was there the 1918 flu
epidemic hit. Eleven of us in my sister's house were sick
and no one could leave as we were not allowed on the
train because of the quarantine restrictions. All this time I
was sending money home and helping mother. When the flu
epidemic passed, T came back to Alberta and home,

In 1925 1 bought our present farm. I was married to
Maysel Blackburn that same year and we have been here
ever since. In my life I have travelled a Iot of miles by hor-
se and wagon, on horseback, by democrat and by car. I

have seen the change from ox team to airplane. 1 saw
Kathleen Stinson, the first lady pilot, put on a ﬂr'ng
exhibition in Calgary in 1912, When 1 look out at this jand
and think how it was when I first remember it, I can har-
dly believe the changes that have come to it in my life
time. I am sure there are more changes to come and I hope
to see a lot of them,
L

Mother married James Wamslev in 1908. Lawrence
was born in 1911, and went to school at Rugby, as we
were on the Cook place (Pair place) at that time. Then
moved to the Strain place, 3 vears later (now owned by
Garry Thompson), S W, i, of 23. T30, R4, W5 1 put the
first load of grain in the Pioneer elevator in Cremona -
Gien Webb was the agent then, and Fred Colwell put the
first load in the AP, - agent was MeGregor in 1929,

Maysel Herner passed away in 1967. I married Tillie
Cowitz in 1968. We moved to
My cattle brand was:
was:

Didsbury and retired.
T2~ Tight rib, horse brand
4w~ right shoulder.

N, &

The John Herner house in 1978,

ALEXANDER AND MARY
HETTINGER

Alexander Hettinger was born in Windsor, Colorado,
USA. in 1908. Mary was born in Calgary in 1906. They
were married in Calgary on June 22, 1929. They moved to
Mendham, Saskatchewan and farmed for five years, then
on to Hussar, Alberta for nine years of farming. In 1944 the
Hettingers moved to the Cremona district, on the Old
Brown place, five miles south of Cremona, and farmed
there for three years. In 1947 they bought Orten’s out and
ran the busimgs or three years, Mrs. Hettinger worked

managed by Del and Dora,

In 1959 the Cremona Hotel was built and Mrs. Hettinger
worked there for nine months, Many a delicious meal was
served here. Alex worked for the County in 1968, and in
1969 they took over the Hotel Coffee Shop in the Rosebud in

for one year and five months. Y stayed in Did-
sbury week days and were back in Crem
They did camp j

house, which they had bought from Mr, ")
children were born to this couple: Evelyn - born in
Calgary, now married, lives in Vancouver, has no children,
Marvin - in Empress, lives in Carstairs, has 3
children. Ronald - in Calgary, farms at Cremona, has
2 children. Allan - born in Calgary, lives in Calgary, has 2
:ﬁh{llddmn. Donna - born in Calgary, lives in Edmonton, has 1



Mr. Alex Hettinger passed away Dec. 1976 and Mrs.
Hettinger lives in Cremona in her own house, often seen
getting her mail, attending the local bridal showers, taking
a few trips and often visits her daughter in Vancouver,

MATTHEW JAMES HEWITT

By Matt Hewitt 1964

Born in Middlesborough, Yorkshire, England on the
30th, of il 1885. I was the youngest in a family of four. I
had two sisters and one brother Harry. Both of my parents
died in 1893, so in 1894 Harry and I were sent to
Collingwood, Ontario to Wm. Buell and Mrs. James
Douglas. We were both raised by Christian foster parents.
In the ?lpring of 1904, 1 ventured out to Winnipeg. There for
one and one half years I worked in the office of Pitblado
and Grundy, I got itchy feet and started to ramble. 1
worked on the C.N.R. into North Battleford. T went trap-
ping for two winters. I cam with Indians at Mid-

ight Lake, and then went to Meadow Lake, We went each
time by dog sleigh. One night I was tread by timber
wolves. I'll never or‘gﬁt that exﬁirience. In a place called
Jackfish creek, the fish were so thick that you could get all

ou wanted with a pitch fork. 1 saw a four-foot long jack-
ish at the Meota shore. That is the largest one I have ever
seen. While up there I met a half-b that we called Joe.
To my surprise, when [ came to Cremona in 1930 T met Joe
again.

The Land Valley Saskatchewan Co. was opening up the
country west of Saskatoon. The Barr colonists had just
come into that area. I got a job locating settlers. I drove
them out on the Bone Trail on the Goose Lake District with
a team of horses and democrat. I drove as fast as I could
so that the tive settlers would not realize how far
they were from the city. 1 followed the surveyors' trail out
ase¥ar as a ford on the Saskatchewan River, north of Swift
Current and out as far as Alsask.

In the summer of 1905 I lost my job. I decided then that
I wanted a homestead. 1 met a school chum in Saskatoon
and he and I walked seventy-five miles to what was later
named Rosetown. We spotted two quarter sections to file
on, and then speared a ride back to Saskatoon to file on
these locations, which turned out to be four miles north of
Rosetown, During the summer of 1906 I built myself a sod
shack to live in, and began to put in my six months of
work. | purchased six oxen and a No. 2 mm ng
breakermlghtobrak;pﬂﬁrtyacmac to law,
In 1908 I forty acres of oats in full head. Two days and
one night of hot winds burned it all white. It would have
made eighty bushels per acre but now it was of no use for
feed or . This loss meant that I had to go to work. I got
a job in Saskatoon. When working my homestead I hauled
water three miles from the oxen. I used to put three
wooden barrels on the wagon. On a hot day or evening
when I got within a haif mile of the water hole the oxen
started to run. Into the three-foot water hole they went,
There I was! I couldn’t get out until the oxen decided to
move. Flies of all kinds swarmed around me. Sometimes it
was the middle of the night when the oxen started for
home. I sold them after I finished breaking the homestead,

In 1910 a neighbor and myself purchased a forty horse

wer 1.H.C. gas tractor and a threshing machine. We went
g?g until 1912, that was the fall 1 sold my shares in the
machine to a neighbor, sold my homestead and moved to
Chinook, Alberta, There I took up the Massey Harris and
Imperial Oil agencies. In the &;i:&o( 1913 I married Mary
Chapman. In 1914 when i was incorporated 1
became the first mayor. I stayed there until 1922 when far-
mers were leaving their lands and moving out of the coun-
try because of the drought. 1 had been appointed Stipen-
diary magistrate. T worked from Hannah to Alsask
during the fi ing four years. During that time I made
several trips to Richdale to settle trouble with the miners

south of town. Then I worked with the Massey Harris Co,
for three years as a collector from Drumbheller to Alsask to
Em to Cardston till 1924.

at summer I moved my family to Vancouver, feeling
that we would see another part of the world. The job that T
got at the waterfront was not suitable for me, so I got a job
at the Creo-Dit shingle staining mill. T worked until 1928,
During that time I took occasional fishing trips with a
neighbor up the Queen Charlotte Islands. We were fishing
for salmon. In the spring of 1928 I undertook to take to
Barkerville, B.C. a right-hand drive Ford car for a party in
the gold fields, It me two days. They said it was i{)ur
humgred miles to Vancouver. I stayed for a few days at
Quesnel. 1 was promised a job in the gold fields. After I
had been there a short time the Co. went broke so I had to
S;zt out of there, I went to Prince George and got a job on

e boom on the Fraser River. When the snow started to
melt off the mountains, the river rose to such an extent
that it took all the logs down the river. I lost out again! No
work for the summer.

1 said I was going back to Alberta, broke and hungry, 1
took a chance and rode the Blind Baggage wof the C.N.R. to
Edmonton. By chance, I met a man who was going to
Calgary. Lucky again, I got a ride to Calgary. | went to the
Massey Harris Co. and got a job with . After a few
months they wanted me to 80 to their Crossfield Co. to han-
dle their goods. I sent to Vancouver for my family. When
we moved to Crossfield we had four boys and one girl.
Lawrence was home in Vancouver and the other three in
Alberta. | stayed in Crossfield with the Co-op till the spring
of 1931, when C. Ray and I opened the Farmers' Supply
Store in Cremona. I also opened the Imperial Oil agency
with the store at the request of the Imperial Oil Co. In Oc-
tober, 1934, 1 sold out to C.C. Holbrook. I then took over the
telephone switchboard operated by Mrs. Mork. It was very
small at that time. In January 1936 the Alberta Govern-
ment Telephone Co. sold their rural portion to the farmers,
which is now the Cremona Mutual Telephone Co. Ltd.
Having been appointed Sec.-Treasurer T worked with them
until 1959. In October 1938 I built the house that I now
reside in, and had the A.G.T. agency and the agency of the
Alberta Treasury Branch to 1964,

_ My son, Jimmy passed awaghin Nigeria with the Royal
Air Force giunnga;hee last war. Harry, my son, had a faal
accident with a ball in 1929. My wife died in 1854. T am
left with Vivian of Carstairs, Bruce of Cremona and
Lawrence of Trenton, Ontario with the R.C.A.F.

AUTOBIOGRAPHY OF JACK HICKEY
By Jack Hickey 1963

I was born in Oxford, Wisconsin, May 19, 1881. My
brother Jim and I came to Alberta in 1902 with C.J. Foal
who had homesteaded here in 1901. Although he had taken
a homestead he had never seen it, but he knew where it
was, When he returned to Wisconsin after homesteading he
took with him a sample of cats Frown near Didsbury. It
was six feet in height, Jim and I decided that a country
that could produce feed like that was for us. When Mr,
Foal returned to Alberta in the following year, we came
with him. We were welcome in his home, indeed Mrs. Foat
was like a mother to us. I stayed there until I got a job at
the Gentle's ranch, now the Owen’s farm. My wages were
ten dollars a month.

Later I worked for Peter Johnson east of Didsbury on
the Rosebud. I worked there for two years but did not
collect any wages during that time. He then owed me four
hundred dollars. He gave me 10 cows and some biack
angus caives instead of money. My next job was with P.
Burns Co. near Crossfield. I worked there for five years,
My present cattle are decendants of P. Burns cattle, and
are excellent stock. The bulls used this year cost eight and
nine hundred dollars and are registered.



My wife, Vera, whom I married June 14, 1914, is a half
sister to Phil Foat. Phil, Vera, and her brothers Charlie,
and Glen, rode to Atkins School a distance of six miles, but
in spite of this they attended quite regularily winter and
summer.

In the early days dances held in the school were the
chief entertainment. The West Hope School was the scene
of many debates. A large crowd always attended and en-
f'oyed these heated arguments. Of course the coffee and
unch that followed were enjoyed too,

House parties too were popular in those days of long
a%o. There were five daughters and five sons in our family.
They are all liv with the exception of our eldest
daughter, Dorothy. Our children are all married and live in
Alberta. We have thirty-two grandchildren, so there is a
big time when we all get together. In the fate 1920's and in
the dirty thirties I played the slide trombone in the Car-
stairs band. I enjoy music and many evenings were spent
singing around the organ in our home. Of course we now
enjoy television. In 1924 T was chairman of the local school
board. Dog Pound School was built in 1920 and got along
well under the direction of the local board. 1 believe the
ones who attended the rural schools did very well. The
three Bruce Hunter girls became teachers; Ida Porteous
and Rita Cameron became nurses; Kathleen and Molly Mc-
Bain are now home economists; Ben McBain now in the
employ of the government, was a teacher; Mickey McBain
was also a teacher. We have one doctor, Dr. M.I. MacAr-
thur, who also received his elementsry education at D
Pound School. Besides those in the professional world,
other ex-students are a credit to our community, None
have brought shame to the district. We are proud of those
who attended our “Little Red School House''. What a
change has taken place in the country in the past sixty
years! When 1 came there was nothing between Calgary
and Dog Pound. No even fences were to be found. It ap-
Faared lo be a rancers’ paradise with plenty of range land

or stock, Good horses were an asset in those days. Besides

providing trans| tion they were invaluable in caring for
cattie. How well | remember “0ld Bert" my pet horse! It
was a sad day when he had to be shot as he had been
kicked in the stifle. One mean ‘cayus’ won the name *“Pile
Driver”. My brother-in-law, Art Waterman, was sure that
he could stay on his back, however, when Pile Driver
bucked Art landed on his back on the ground. He had to ad-
mit defeat.

Rev. McDougall, the famous ploneer missionary, held
services in the Garfield school. His services were very in-
teresting as he told of his work among the Indians. I never
missed a service if I could help it Later, Rev. J. Rex
Brown drove out from Carstairs, to hold services in the
Wesl Hope School, He was a wonderful man who endeared
himself to all with whom he came in contact. The early
days were good even thought we had many hardships.
There was no electricity, or modern conveniences, Today
in our home we have TV, an automatic washer, a er,
a bathroom, cooking with electricity, and preserving food
by the freezing. I have seen pro s from driving oxen to
Blanes that fly faster than sound. Can the next sixty years

ring as much progress as 1 have seen since 1902

* Jack Hickey passed away Sept. 15, 1970
* Vera Hickey passed away May 7, 1474,

MIKE HICKEY AND FAMILY
Told by Mike Hickey

My father, Jack Hickey, and his brother, Jim came
from Wisconsin in 1902 to Alberta. They had a homestead
(now Charlie Byrt's place), but worked out and herded cat-
tle for Pat Burns Co. at one time, The rest of the family
came up later, Fred, Martin, Edith and Pearl, Lyle never
did come to Canada. Milton came up and stayed on the
homestead with Dad and Jim and the rest went back to the

Verz and Jack Hickey about 1970, Louelia and Frod Hickey.

States. Mother was an immigrant that came up and lived
at the immigrant shed in Didsbury. This was a shed set up
especially for immigrants lodging until settlers had a place
of their own. Her family was Mother (Vera), Charles, Glen,
Fred Magoon.

Mother and Dad were married in 1914 and moved to the
homestead. 10 children were born to this couple;

Dorothy - was married to Angus Walsh and was killed
in an auto accident,

Eileen - married Dan Kabush and lives at Camrose.

Mike - was named after his 2 grandads on his father's
side. Married Lena Bishop on June 20, 1944 at the George
Bales home. Their children - Iris, went to Cremona Schoal,
worked for Ethel Magoon, trained as a nurse was killed in
a car accident Jan, 2, 1970. Stanley - went to Cremona
School, worked for McBrides, Jack Smylie, went to Tech in
Calgary. He was married in 1974 and works for Proctor
Gamble and is maintenance man on the electrical repair
side of the operation. Now lives in Grande Prairie. Waiva -
attended Cremona School, now works for Baker Memorial
Sanitorium in Calgary. Lynn - attended Cremona School
and is home and farms with his Dad. Ruth - also attended
Cremona School, is a cleaning lady and lives in Calgary.

Jack - married Florence Oneil and farms south-east of
Cremona,

Jim - farms at Grand Prairie.

Lyle - has a dairy farm at Rochford, Alberta,

ary - married Arnold Wehb and lives in New Jersey
- is a foreman on high power lines and lives at

Prince rge, B.C,

Vera - married Ira Skogg and lives in Sundre.

Lois - married Calvin Koester, he is a truck driver for
a moving Co. and lives in Calgary.

There are 34 grandchildren and 7 great grandchildren,

Mary, Jack, Mike. Vera, and Lols.



Mike began Bee Farming in 1954 and did the extracting
in the house until a8 new Quonset building was erected in
1972. In April 1978 Lynn and his Dad, Mike Hickey, recor-
ded “Country Style Hymns"'. The music is first put on tape,
then a record stamp is made, then duplicates are made
from the stamp. There are 10 hymns and Lynn plays lead
guitar, his Dad the mandoline. They are accompanied by
other musicians playing the banjo, violin, harmonica, man-
dolin and rhythm guitar. 1,000 records were made. Lynn
expressed his feelings in the words on the jackel of the
record; Church music has always brought joy and hap-
piness to me, and the hymns of an old country church are
what this album is all about. Growing up on a farm in a
small town farming community meant hard work and a Jot
of sweat, but when the days work was done, Dad would
take the guitar from the wall where it hung and from a tat-
tered church hymnal he’d sing. and Mother would hum
along,

It was at that time that strumming and picking became a
way of life. That was our entertainment. Today the
kerosene lamp is displaced but the music remains the
same,

Making ““Country Style Hymns'",

THE HILL FAMILY

Mr. and Mrs, Hill came from Birch Hills, Saskat-
chewan to the Big Prairie district in the early 1940's, to the
N.W. Y - 18-20-45. The family consisted of Harold, Roy
and Lawrence & a talking parrol. There were two married
girls who came a short time later Norma (Mrs. George
Griffin) and Louise (Mrs. Simon McGuire). The Griffins
later moved to - now Thrings land.

Roy and Lawrence went lo Big Prairie School. Harold
had a hearing problem so he did not attend. They were
here a few years then moved to Salmon Arm B.C. and are
now at Armstrong, B.C.

The George Griffins lived on the S.W. 1 Sec. - 29,-30-4-
5. Their family was Marjorie, Sylvia, Vietor, Lance, Ken,
Lyle and Linda. They moved to B.C. also.

The Simon McGujre’s remained in Cremona, their
family was Beatrice and the rest unknown. Evelyn (1
child) was killed in a car accident.

They also moved to B.C,

C.C. HOLBROOK

This stoce was built in 1931 by Turnbull and Hernack. Ran by Matt Hewitt and
Charlie Ray.




Chester Holbrook opened his store Sept. 10, 1934 and
ran it continuously until his death in Dec, 1955.

Some of his clerks were: Beula Coates, Irene Spence,
Jean Brown, Gladys Hamilton, Hazel Parsons (Hof! ),
Chris Leinweber, Irene Whitlow, (Tippe), Hazel Hogg, Lin-
da Simpson, Marie Fairbairn, Phyllis Bouck.

Chester Holbrook’s son Charles (Chuck) took over the
store in Dec. 1955 until July 1964 when it was sold to Ken
and Ann Rose.

Some of the clerks that worked for Chuck were: Mary
Dubois, Claire Fear, Doris Mailer, Theresa Reinier, Dave
Gunderson, Don McLaren, Fern Foat, Dorothy Dombraski,
Florence Grainger.

Ken and Ann Rose ran the store until Sept. 1977, it was
again sold to Ray and Pauline Cummings.

FRANK HOCKSTEP

Frank Hockstep was a forest ranger for a short time.
He first came to the Water Vailey area in 1928-29. He lived
on a quarter section north of Wilderness Park. He con-
structed a one man saw mill on which he sawed jumber
himself. He also did some trapping. Then after he was here
for some time he went into mf:&.

He then decided to move closer to Calgary, so settled in
what is now Forest Lawn about 194445, He moved his mink
business into this area. Rumour is a man by the name of
Flemming had a share in the mink business with him,

HARRY HOWARD

By Muriel Foster

Harry Howard and family moved to the area on a 1
section - 1 mile west of Water Valley. This quarter was
homesteaded by a man named Groves. Harry Howard
bought this quarter from Groves.

Bob Patchell remembers the day Howards came to the
area. They had all their possessions as well as family,
loaded in their vehicle. At this lime there were no roads,
only trails. Mr. Fred Patchell, John Haley and Mr. Haley
were working on the road directly in front of the present
Palchell place this day. As the Howard family crossed this
place in raod they broke an axle in their vehicle.

The Howard children were named Bernice, Edith,
Harold, Myrtle, Hazel, Ruby, Calvin and Lyle. Harold
drowned in a swimming accident in the Little Red Deer
River. Mr. Howard passed away here. Mrs. Howard and
the children lived in the area for quite some time. After
Howards' left Don Liddel lived on this place.

THE EDWARD T. HUNT FAMILY
By Phyllis Hunt (nee Powell)

We came to the Cremona district in 1959, from the
Priddis area, Ted's sister Vera, came with us, Our
children, two girls, Ann and Sharon and three boys, Bill,
Peter, and Phillip attended Westoe and Red Deer Lake
schools. The girls had to go to Calgary to further their
education, then Sharon and the two boys attended
Cremona school.

Ted’s father and mother came with their family, four
girls and three boys, from En&l:rnd in 1910. Ted was a bab,
about six months old. His fa was a farmer in H
fordshire. His mother was a nurse and nursed in the Lon-
don Hospital. It was a hospital that catered to the poorer
people and was kept up by the rich. The Queen (Queen

Victoria) used to visit the children's ward. One brother
died from complications after the first world war. His
father died in 1924. Ted, Vera and their mother carried on
with the farm. They had a hard struggle for a few years.
Mother Hunt passed away in Jan. 1950.

My mother came from Saskatchewan and my Dad
from England. They came to Carstairs when they were fir-
st married. I was born east of Carstairs about three miles.
We moved around a great deal, Dad was overseas in the
first world war. When he came home, my Uncle, who
had a store in Carstairs, wanted Dad to come to Cremona
and look after the store there. That was about 1916, We
were there some months, I don't remember how long. I
remember a few incidents at the store. One was; one early
morning the hired man was coming down the stairs and he
slipped on the top step and came down bumpety-bump all
the way. With his legs spread out and a lamp in his hand
and shaking with laughter. He was quite a fal man and this
made it really funny.

I started school at Atkins but only went a couple of
weeks. Tt turned very cold and my parents felt it was too
far in such cold weather. I rode horseback, on behind with
Gladys Burnett. We moved from the store to a farm, the
Franklin place. My sister and I attended Elmwood school.
It was just a little log building, with planks as desks and
glanks to sit on. Six or seven months later, we moved to

arstairs. Dad opened his tin . In 1918 we moved to the
Sunnyslope district, We attended Sunnyslope school, where
the gas ;Y:nt is now. Dad used to play the violin for dances,
We did have some good times. school concerts, dances and
house parties.

In 1926 we moved to Calgary so we could get further
education. There were five of us, three girls and two boys.
My two brothers were overseas in the Second World War
and one sister, They all came back. My mother died in
Dec, 1935, my Dad, May 1973. Ted and | were married in
1937 and lived on the home place, until we came to
Cremona with our family,

JAMES DANIEL HUNTER

By Margaret Cameron

Father was born in Guelph, Ontario, November 8th,
1872, He came west to homestead in 1895, on the Dog Pound
Creek. Though he and his brother, Bruce, had adjoining
homesteads, they batched together for 13 years. Their
place was known as HU Ranch. Bruce Hunter's
autobiography covers most of their early experiences. Dad
was the cook, he made bread from “starter”, in the pic-
tures we have it looks vexﬂlight and well risen, He was
also known for his “plum duff”, 1 always thought of plum
pudding as a Christmas specialty, but he made it regularly,

Dad took a picture of him and Bruce at the kitchen
table, in their first shack, with a string attached to his little
finger. He took both time and flash exposures this way.
Then he developed the negatives that were glass plates, We
have had pictures developed off some of these plates recen-
tly, and after all these years were clear. The picture of
Dad and Bruce was in a school text book, entitled “*All Sor-
ts of Things", in the pioneer section. The book was printed
in Ontario. This picture was also in a collection of “Pioneer
Pictures” used in some school libraries here in Alberta.
'l‘l'teseT vpiclures have appeared in the last three years, also
onT.V.

Mother's family moved here in 1905 from Sarnia, On-
tario. The Shands owned the land now farmed by Mr. and
Mrs, Doug Rodgers., A number of settlers were cominﬁ);un.
the newcomers started having house parties to meet thei
new . For dancing and entertainment Ben Mec-
Bain played his bagpipes. We have a picture of Gentles
(now owned by the Luft family) taken by Dad with the
string to the k. The church services were held in the
homes, Mr. Wilson was the first Presbyterian minister.



Then a Presbyterian church was built in Carstairs, Rev.
Ferguson as minister. He married Mother and Dad
February 12, 1908, at TarLaire Ranch, Mother's home,

In 1909, my ts moved to Oregon, and Dad held fir-
st class Mechinists papers. He worked at this trade until
1918, then returned to the homestead and lived there until
his sudden death in 1944, Dad was always enumerator, and
scrutineer at election time, and politics in those times were
of great importance, and a hot topic of conversation. I can
remember Mother warning Dad before a dinner party “‘no
politics, Jim". Dad would obey until someone else b t
up the subject, then he was quick on the up take. He also
was census laker, giving him an opportunity to visit old
and new neighbours.

My one daughter remembers very well that there was
absolute silence for the Alberta Wheat Pool news and grain
and cattle prices on CFCN at’noon, and 10 p.m. at that time
any old timers obituary was given. After Dad’s passing,
Mother moved to Carstairs, where she was very active at
the Presbyterian church and Eastern Star the door was
always open to her many friends from the Dog Pound area
and town. The coffee was always on. Mother became sud-
denly ill and passed away in the Didsbury Hospital
February 1964.

The new Wallsce tractor on AR, Cameron farm 1947,

OZZIE JOHNSON

Ozzie Johnson moved up to the Water Valley area from
Bottrel. He bought a quarter of land west ad north of
Bituma school from Reg Croft. Ozzie raised horses while he
lived in this area. He passed away in Calgary on Dec. 8,
1960 at the age of 83 years.

THE KERR FAMILY

Alex, Bessie and Mrs. Kerr owned the S, W.14-4-31-5-5.
Alex marrying P.J. Fair of Fallen Timber.

Picture taken January 1918 Alex, Bessie, and Mrs. Kerr owned the SEw 4315
5. Alex marrying P_J. Fair of Fallen Timber

BILL AND EDITH KING

Mrs. King was born at Mayton, Alta, Mr. King was
born in Wisconsin, U.S.A.

Kings homesteaded a place four miles south of Water
Valley in 1930. Mr. King came out to the homestead and
built a log house on the property., In 1935 he moved his
family out to the homestead. The King family had been
living at Acme, Alta.

Kings lived on the homestead and in 1939 they bought
twenty acres south of Water Valley store from Sam
Laveck. Bill King built a house on this property, from here
the King children went to school at Water Valley school,

Kings were very active in the community. Mr. King
was on both the school boad and the hall boarJ

Bill King owned a truck and hauled groceries for
Waliter May after he bought the Water Valley Store, Mr,
King then sold his truck to Philip Lowen.

Bert King bought the homestead from his folks.

Billie King married Hilda Hardcastle and has three
children Linda, Leslie and Larry. Billie and Hilda reside at
Peers, Alberta. Robert King married Dawn Fear and they
have two girls Shirley and Phyllis. They live at Peers,
Alberta also.

Bessie King married Dave McKenzie , they live at
&og%ound. Alberta. They have three sons Allen, Ross and

ar

Bert married Ann Herinton they have four children
Terry, Jenny, Leslie and Matt.

Harvy married Alice Sharp and they live at Cochrane,
Alta. They have two sons Tim and Rick{.

Brian married Helen Stevens they live at Airdrie, they
have two children Jimmy and Susie.

PAUL AND PAULINE KISH

Kishs' bought a farm at Water Valley from A. Bat-
chelor, Mrs. Kish was a teacher and taught at Water
Valley School. While here they milked cows and sold milk.
They had one son, Murray. The moved to Rimby. They sold
their farm to Geraid and Evelyn Fenn.

AUGUST AND IDA KOESTER
By Ada Taks

s\ls;:;’ 'md Ida Koester with one of their many grandchiidren. Dwila, Taken in
e L]

In May, 1874 August Koester was born in Crete, Illinois.
In September, 1883 Ida Olson was born in St. James, Min-
nesota, U.S.A. August and Ida met and were married the
first of the year, 194 in Oden, Minnesota.

They had two children, Raymond and Carlyle, while
still living in the States. Ray was born in December, 194
and Carl was born November 1906. In March, 1911, Ida and



August and their two sons came to Canada and made their
first home about one mile west of Water Valley which is
now the Reynolds place. While living there they had two
more sons and a daughter, Lawrence was born January,
1909, Albert was born December, 1915 and Ada was born in
1918.

In 1920 Koesters moved east of Water Valley to what is
now Ronnie McKinnon's place. Here their last son was born
June, 1921 and they named him Ralph,

Later they moved one mile south of Water Valley and
lived here the rest of their lives,

August Koester was mainly a mixed farmer and at one
time during the early 20°s he was chairman of the school
board. His son’s say that this was a very important position
for him at the time, Sometime during 1940 August had a
terrrible accident with a mill blade. He was severly cut in
the back. Because of his age at the time which was 68,
many feit his time was up but after pendir%a couple of
months in the hospital August was home to live until the
age of 84 years. August passed away at home December of
1968

Ida Koester was many things to many people. She was
a dressmaker and a nursemaid. Although not trained as a
nurse, Ida helped many people when help was needed, Ida
was an inspiration to many and was loved by all who knew
her. She passed away in November, 1975 at the age of 92
years,

The eldest son of August and Ida was Ray, and
although he could not hear, he was not really handicaﬁged.
Ray worked at home and away from, and everyone knew
him as the man who had to see how things ran. He loved to
take things apart. Ray passed away in August, 1975 at the
age of 71 yrs.

Carl has always lived near the Water Valley district
and he is a sawer and a farm hand. Even now at the age of
72, Carl helps with field work and gives a hand when
needed.-Carl is residing 3 miles south of Cremona.

Lawrence tried his hands at many things and has been
a success with all of them. His home is presently in
Calgary but is still seen around Water Valley much of the
time

Albert is a retired sawmill operator, has made his
home in Louis Creek, B.C. and still resides there,

Ada, the only daughter, resides in Valemount, B.C. at
this time and has done so for several years, Ada is best
known for her great cooking and her beautiful
dressmaking.

Ralph has also made his home in the interior of B.C,
and is kept busy hunting, trapping and fishing.

>

Lawrence and Lois (McNair) Koester.

GEORGE LASHMORE AND FAMILY
By Muriel Foster

George Victor Lashmore was born on February 8th,
18%0 in London, England., The district where they lived was

called Bobels. This district was near Big Ben. George's
father was a police man in the British police force.

George was one of seven children. He had three sisters
Lou, Mabel and the others name is unknown, also three
brothers Alf, Reg and Chris.

The family moved from London to Dorset El;?lud.

When e was born the name was spelled Lashmar
but due to & spe!
became Lashmore,
as Lashmore.

When George Lashmore was 14 years old in 1904 he left
England and came to Canada, to Peterborough, Ontario.
Here he worked for some time and still has relatives living
in this area.

His brother Chris came to Canada in 1923. Chris retur-
ned to England and then returned to Canada in 1927 to set-
tle in the Graham area. Where he lived with his wife and
family till his death in 1966. His wife Rita still resides on
this place. His son Tom lives in this area yet. His other son
David lives in Edmonton, Alberta,

After working at Peterborough for some time George
decided to move west to Alberta where he worked as a ran-
ch hand on the Pat Burns Ranch for approximately two

years,
In 1908 he moved to Drumheller Alberta where he

worked in the coal mines. While here he bt a quarter

section of land west of Drumbheller. It was while he lived at

ing error when he came to Canada it
is was never corrected so stayed on

Drumbheller that George met and married Elsie Lowry at
Carbon, Alberta. Elsie Lowrys family ran a store in
Drumbheller and also owned a farm in the area.

In the meantime George purchased a ranch on the
Fallen Timber from a man by the name of Coo
out the area as

. This
ranch became: known Lash-

more Ranch.

misdmeonlhehutmnnmhwuhmmmewmuxmmmtm-
ter of 1910,

George and Elsie moved from Drumheller to the ranch
on the Fallen Timber for some time then returned to
Drumbheller for a while. Then with their family they retur-
ped to the ranch to live. The Lashmore horse brand was
LA. The cattle brand they owned was . George's
youngest son John now owns these brands.

The Lashmores later purchased a half section of land
one and a half miles north of Water Valley. This land is



now known as the Little Red Estates. George and Elsie
lived here north of Water Valley for about two years then
moved back to the Fallen Timber where they resided the
rest of their lives. On this ranch they raised cattle and hor-
ses.
George and Elsie had a family of four children - two
daughters Ruby and Mary, two sons George and John.

hile on the ranch the Lashmeore’s neighbors were the
Milburnes and Helmers. Fred Turnbull lived seven miles
south but was still a near neighbor. Ole Stolle now owns
this Turnbull place. Bill Jones was located six miles east
which is now the Stein ranch. Glen Webb and family moved

in later and was the nearest neighbors. This Webb place is
now known as the Fallen Timber Ranch,

Murie! and Wayne Lashmore on Dime. About 1947.

Hazel Chartrand on Moonbeam at the ranch in 1982 George Lashmeore Sr., in
background.

Albert Koester on the stacker in 1947,
When the Lashmores came to the area

did their
trading at a store which was known as Uncle Benny's
Store, This later became known as the Big Prairie Store
and Post Office and was owned by Annie Pawson.

Mrs. Milburne was one of Elsie's best friends. Mrs.

Milburne passed away with the flu around 1918. She is
buried on thiidplace. This place was later bought by the

Lashmores and added to the ranch land. Mr. Milburnes
name was Jack. George Lashmore Jr, remembers the
Milburne children, there were three boys Jim, Jack and
Pat and a girl (name unknown). Jim and Jack are now
both deceased,

Other close friends of the Lashmores were Art Water-
street, Louis Zimmerman and Carl Hermason. These were
trappers who hadtrap lines west of the Lashmore ranch.

Later on Hugh Townsend moved to the area on what
now is Wayne Jensons place.

Bill Johnson and family moved to the area first living
on now what is the Fallen ber Ranch, then they moved
to what is known as the Silver Valley Ranch. Then later
bought the Towsend place and resided there till they sold
out to Wayne and Eddy Jenson.

Life in these days was nol easy, in the 30's the Lash-
mores trailed horses to Didsbury and Carstairs to Archie
Boyce's spring auctions to be sold.

George Lashmore Jr. remembers helping trail horses
to these towns for the sales,

George Jr. recalls one time when they were moving
horses from a field to the auction in Didsbury. They just
got the horses near the railway tracks when a train came.
These were broncs that had never seen a train before. The
horses spooked and run across the tracks. The horse
George was riding was also a bush horse and had never
seen a train before. This horse decided he better tollow
the others. No way could George stop him. He crossed the
tracks just in front of the train. George remembers the
engineer shaking his fist at him as the train went by.

The Lashmores drove herds of cattle to Carstairs and
loaded them on box cars where they were hauled to
Calgary to the stock yards.

Elsie Lashmore and the children milked cows for their
own use and to sell cream. They milked as high as 21 cows
in the the summer. Elsie never had to go find her cows-just
start calling them and they would always come.

The Lashmores shipped cream by horse and wagon to
Rod MacFarquhar's place east of Water Valley where the
cream truck would pick it up. This was a long days trip by
horse and wagon. Rod MacFarquhar’s place is now owned
by Stan and Audrey Turner. £

There were no roads at this time only trails and no
bridges. The nearest way had three river crossings.

The second house on the Lashmore ranch was built in
the winter of 1509 and the spring of 1910. This house was
built by a man named Fitzsimins and Percy Blain from



logs obtained on the property.

The house that was or?ginally on the property burnt
down when the big fire went through approximately 1907,

George and Elsie Lashmore never owned a car or
motor vehicle, they never owned a tractor, All work was
done by horse power alone. So through the years they
owned a lot of good horses,

The Lashmores ran a herd of 75 head of cattle on an
average. Horses could have numbered as many as 300 head
as they ran out on the forestry. The well known bucking
horse Golden Rocket was once owned by George Lashmore,

Elsie Lashmore all ways tried to grow a garden but the
frosts came late in the spring and early in the summer so
the gardening was sort of handicapped. But this didn't stop
her from trying.

All the hay on the ranch was put by horse power.
With mowing machines, horse rakes an wagons. This hay
was forked on and off the wagons into stacks to be fed
during the winter,

Later George Lashmore and Albert Koester built an
over shot stacker to stack the hay. This made the job much
easier,

A lot of winter time was put in hunting squirrels. A
squirrels’ hide at that time was worth at an average of 10
to 15 cents each.

George Jr. John and Mary spent much time in the win-
ter gathering up horses for the spring sales in Carstairs
and Didsbury.

Norman Smith and Wayne Stringer spent a lot of time
at the Lashmores as they did a lot of breaking horses here

The Lashmore children can remember when the Stoney
[ndians would stop on their way to Nordegg from Morely,
These Indians would set up a cal"l"ﬁ west of the buildings
and stay approximately a week. They use to hunt in this
area, The famous Joe Fox of Morely would always try out
& bucking horse or two while they were there.

The Lashmore boys used to keep a few wild brones
around just for the cowboys to try out. Harry Knight of
used to Stop and try out the odd one for them.

Elsie Lashmore spent lots of her summer time picking
berries, expecially blue berries and cranberries. Grandma
and the children spent lots of afternoons at the Fallen Tim-
ber fishing. At this ' time there were lots of good fishing
holes and lots of fish. More than once Grandma would take
out the rifle and bring home fresh venison for s f

Muriel can remember when she was small Grandma
would take her up stairs where she always had a large box
of candy where you could pick out the kind you wanted.

Grandma made the best home made bread in the coun-
try and loved to play the organ and sing for anyone or just
for her self.

Grandma loyed her horses and rode everyday. Some of
her favorite horses over the years were Con, Moonbeam,
Bill and Dime.

Grandpa Lashmore made the strongest cup of tea a lot

folks ever drank.

The Lashmore girls Ruby and Mary started school at
the Dristol House, This is the same log house now on Fenn
Farms west of Water Valley store. George and John and
the giris went to school al” Water Valley on the present
location. In later years a larger part was added in 1946,

The Lowrys (Grandma’s parents) after leaving
Drumheller moved to the U.S.A. While down there Mrs.
Lowry passed away. Grampa Lowry then moved to Water
Valley with two of his sons Jess and Frank. Other brothers
and sister moved to various points.Mart Lowry took up a
homestead north of James River. Bill resided at
Drumbheller and worked in the mines later moved to Eck-
ville. He now lives in B.C. May Lowry resides in Spokane
Wash. Bert, Blanche and Theresa lived in B.C.

Bill and Frank took a trip to US.A. Gram Lowry
went with them and decided to stay with May. He passed
away while living there, Jess livedat Water Valley till his
death. Frank lived in the area for some time then moved to
B.C, and back.

John Lashmore and first car

Gary Lashmorg, John Lashmore and Dime on ranch aboul 1945 or 1647,

Ruby and Mary Lashmore in 19%.



Now Frank Lowry lives in the Bowden Senior Citizens
€. Chuck Chartrand first came to the Lashmore ranch
e fall of 1947.

Elsie Lashmore passed away in Calgary Alberta in
1954. This ranch was sold to Wayne and Eddy Jenson

in

before Mr. Lashmores' death in gary, September of
1959.

The Lashmore family carries on as follows.

Ruby married Floyd Nelson, a c ter in Calgary
where they live. They have three daughters Lavina,
Virginia and Roxanne. Virginia married Joe Carson and
lives at Tsawwassen, B.C. They bave three girls Leanna,
Lorena and Dianna.

Lavina and Roxanne both reside at home.

Mary married Chuck Chartrand and lives on a farm
north of Cremona - they have one daughter, Hazel. Hazel
married Joe Zettel and lives at Cochrane Alberta,

John married Mary Regan and had four sons they live
on & farm at Graham. Their son Gary married Laurie
and lives in Calgary they have two sons Keith and John.

Dennis passed away in 1978.

Robert and Kenneth both reside at home.

Geo;%e married Josie Millett and they live at Water
Valley. They had three children Muriel, Wayne and Sheila.
Muriel married Leo Foster and they have three sons Brian,
Brent and Bradley. They all reside at Water Valley, Wayne
married Lila May and they live at Cremona, have
three children Scott, Shannon and Kris. Sheila married Bob
Fournier and lives at Edmonton, Alberta they have two
children Mathew and Jill,
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PATRICK JAMES LAVECK SR.
AND FAMILY

By James Laveck Jr. 1979

Jim Laveck Sr. was born at Enterprize, Ont. in 1804, he
came west with his dad and mom in 1910 to Water Valley to
live. Jim was one of a family of eighteen brothers and
sisters. He married Mary Carlin in 1927. They had three
children - Catherina, Patrick, James and Loretta.
Catherina died in 1928. They lived on a homestead west of
Water Valley, till Mary died in 1944, Jim sold the
homestead in 1944 and bought 80 acres from Jake Hanson
west of Water Valley, then they went to Victoria, B.C. for a
year, where he worked on a sawmill, then came back to
Water Valley till 1948, then they went to Agassis, B.C. with
Angus McMillan for one year. They mo back to Water
Valley to live, Jim’s sister Susie, lived with him till her
passing in 1859. In 1960 he sold the farm, and bought a
house in Dawson Creek, B.C. While at Dawson , he
cooked on oil rigs, and drove pilot cars for wide loads from
Dawson Creek to Alaska border. He lived in Dawson Creek
till Iate 1974, sold out there and moved back to Water
Valley, where he lived with his son and wife, till he passed
away in July, 1976.

ST e

Jim Laveck Jr. was born April 2, 1933, he married
Phyllis Gallot from Maple Creek, Sask. in 1957, we worked
on various farms near Airdrie for the first five years, and
on sawmills in the winter. In 1983 we bought the Thomas
Carlin homestead eleven miles west of Water Valley, where
we still reside. We do some ranching, run a sawmill in the
winter, and run a %l;lest ranch in the summer, Also Jim is a
licenced Guide for big Game hunting, which he does a lot of
hunting every fall.

Loretta married Ken Jordan in 1954, Ken was also from
Water Valley. Ken is in the Air Force, they were stationed



in eastern Canada for several years, then moved (o the Air
Force base at Penhold, Alberta where they now reside.
They had six daughters. Two are now married, two
working, and two at home. Ken will be retiring from the
Air Force soon.

Jim, Jimmy and Loretta in 1948
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Jim Laveck 8. and his brother Andrew,

SUSY LAVECK

By a friend, Mrs. Sturgeon

Susy Laveck was a good hearted, well liked person, one
of a Jarge family. Her folks were wrlr settlers in Water
Valley. I believe even before Water Valley got its’ present
name. Susy was a great berry picker. Always ready to help
when needed. She cooked at Lee Bouck's mill and at Ivor
Skogg and Ole Olson’s mill. She died one night at that mill
camp, heart failure and was buried Feb. 29, 1960.

SAMUEL LAVEQUE AND FAMILY

By Anne Banta

My parents Harriet and Samue! Laveque came from
Bellrock, Ontario in March 1910. And homesteaded 25 miles
west of Carstairs on a quarter section that is now owned
by the Bob Croft family. In what is now known as the
Water Valley district, My mother was the only women the
first few years, later two other women moved near us.
Mrs. Myhill and Mrs, Dewhurst. All the other
homesteaders were batchelors.

Eight children moved from Ontario with them Ed, who
later maried Clara Ronquist. Will who married Ora Burns,
Leo who died at the age of twenty. Jim who later married
Mary Carlin Mary who later married Charley Evans Susie
who died at the age of fifty three. Joe who later married
Joyce Martin, and Kathleen who died at the age of fifteen.
Ten more children were born in the west. Anne who later
married John Banta, Evelyn who married Ernie Sundholm,
the twins - Gertie who is married to John Beilman and
Laura who married Joe Kloberdanz. Amos died at birth.
Henry who married Ann Stang, Andrew who married Rose
Silbernagle and Josephine who married Marvin McLean,
and Eva who died at birth. They had sixty seven grand-
children,

The land in this area was heavily timbered with poplar
and “balm” trees. My dad cleared his land by hand with a
grub-hoe, and broke it all with a walking plow. Which the
pioneers called a Foot-Burner. I remember as a child that
we had fences made of logs. Dad called it a snake fence
(the kind they made back east). Many of the trees still had
the huge roots on them.

My dad hauled his hogs and grain to Carstairs to
market, We had fine horses that had brought from the
East. He would leave at four o'clock in the morning, sell
his produce, buy groceries and arrive home about one
a.m. the following morning, travelling 50 miies in a lumber
wagon.

My dad was the first in our district to grow wheat. It
was Ruby Wheat. I don't know what became of this brand
of wheat, as I've never heard of it since. However, my
dad’s first crop of Ruby wheat ripened and made first
grade wheat. Later on Dad hauled a load of this wheat to



d into flour
our, shorts and

Didsbury to a flour mill. Our wheat was
and Dad returned with a whole load of

bran, also a bag of wheatlets and a bag of pancake flour.
The longer you kept this flour, ithe better bread it made,
and many a bag of flour my folks gave to neighbors who
had none when winter came.

The Lavegue house in 1978

There was no school in this district till about 1920, at
that time they hired a teacher and held school in a vacant
house, I hear it is now owned by people named Fenn, 1
remember it was so cold when we went to school in the win-
ter our shoes would freeze to the floor.

The school was named Water Valley, being the name
chosen Bernice Howard had sent in which had been the
name of her old school in the States. The first real school
house was built in 1928,

In 1928 the Laveque family built a house just across the
road east of the school on a quarter of land they owned, My
dad lived there until his death in 1942 and my Mother until
her death in 1950,

The pioneers who built and lived in log houses were
remarkable people; the salt of the earth. Their worldly
goods were few, but their natural dignity and indomitable
spirit was unbeatable, Nobody ever locked their doors,
everybody was always welcome, this was where western
hospitality originated, Many wonderful people pioneered
this west country of oursand I am proud to say I knes; a
greal many of them.

ARTHUR AND ROSETTA LEWIS

Told By Earl Lewis

Samuel Arthur Lewis was born in Missouri in 1887 and
in 1805 came to Claire, Saskatchewan to homestead.

Rosetta Coleman was born in 1888 in Blanchford Town-
ship, Oxford County, Ontario. She came to Saskatchewan
with her family in 1906 and resided at Englefeld, Rosetta
met Arthur, while she was working in Regina and they
were married Dec. 1, 1909 and began farming at Claire,
Sask. Arthur joined the army in the First World War but
never went overseas. They moved to Alberta in 1920 and
lived across the road from the old Jackson School and
worked for Bert Lucas, a farmer and rancher. were
there two years when Arthur gathered together 20 head of
horses and trailed them back to Sask. by himself. There
was money to be had for this job. They, went back to
Claire, Sask. until 1927. The family came to Alberta again,
to the Huber place, (Odell's), then 1 year at the Boveen
Elace. and then fo the Randoiph place in 1929. They were

er 3 years and then they moved down to the Just place for
one year, They moved again down to the Old Cremona
Store building, (New Cremona had begun) and lived in the
old building until they bought the land across the river,
west of Cremona (now Stan Coleman’s) in 1939.

They were here until 1949 when they had an auction
sale and retired in Didsbury. Arthur and Rosetta were
members of the Cremona Missionary Church and Arthur
aided in many services and Sunday School classes at the
Big Prairie School.

Nine children were born to this coupie; Mrs, Gordon
Sherrick (Lena), Mrs. Abe Neufeld (Ruth), Clifford, Cecile,
Earl, Myrtle, Thelma, Boyd and Goldie.

Earl joined the army in Oct, 1940 - discharged April,
1946. Myrtle joined the Air Force, was stationed at Ottawa.
Earl attended school at Byron and Atkins, and Thelma,
Boyd and Goldie attended Big Prairie School.

Arthur Lewis died December 1, 1959 at age 72 years.
Rosetta died at the Didsbury Auxilary Hospital February 4,
1976, age 88 years after alengthy illness. Clifford died Dec.
7, 1978, age 63 years, as a result of a truck accident. They
are all buried in the Cremona Cemetery.
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Lewls, Ni ifford Lewis, James
Hannah Coleman, with Ceclle and Myrtle Lewis, Rosetta Lewis with
Earl, 1922



ANGELINE CAMERON MCBAIN

My parents are Angus and Margaret Cameron, My
sisters and brothers are; Janet, Rita, Katherine, Jim and
Ross. I have lived in the Cremona district all my life. 1
went to Pound school. One room, grades 1-8. One
teacher and sometimes over thirty s ts, I went to
Cremona High School for three years, then to work in the
Bank of Montreal in Carstairs for $90.00 a month,

In 1955, George McBain and I were married, at a home
weddixf - the same house as mi parents were married in
1929, After we were married, I hel with C.G.L'T. Then
we had two boys, so I left C.G.I.T. for hockey, baseball and
4H. After 4H rdie joined the Cremona Lions. We have
become involved in Youth Exchange. We have had a verg

geal experience hav;ueag Japanese boys visit us. Throug
ey 3

We are acquainted with the group of girls and boys.
They are great people and it has been our pleasure to know

Through Agriculture Student exchange we have a very
wonderful friend in Denmark. I have a pen Eu for more
than thirty years in Australia. Our boys Douglas and John
both completed High School in Cremona, and both have
pilots license and own a 182 Cessna. We belong to Alberta
and International Flying Farmers. This is our greatest fun
thing “flying".

Arthur and Rosetta Lewis 1958,

DON LIDDELL n

Don and Helen Liddell lived in the Water Valley area
for a while. They bought a quarter section 1 mile west of
Water Valley, which was once owned by Harry Howard.
Don did some farming and sawmilling. They had three
children - Eileen, Fred and Joan. From Water Valley they
moved to Red Deer, and now reside in B.C. They sold out
to Bob Smith.

AND MRS. ADAM LUFT

Adam Luft was born in Russia and came to Canada as The McRain house in 1978. Now vacant. Belle (now Stevenson) lives in Pioncer
a baby, with his parents, They came to Calgary. Adam was Apartments.
one of the eldest in ; ‘l;ai;ge f?bnexrﬂy. His fat!‘;er cclliaed when he JACK M CALL N
Was very young an mol remarried. Adam went to MA
school in Calgae'y. He met and married Elizabeth Lust and €
they later moved from Calgary to a farm east of Carstairs, Jack McCallman came from Nova Scotia in the 1920’
then again moved 5 miles north of Cremona (now Alan  When he first got to the area he worked for a man by the

Hahn's). They farmed here for many years and 6 children name of Harder, around Carstairs. Then he came west to
were born to this cmgle
or

g]:: - married Iy larke - lives in Saskatchewan and has

V8.
Herbert - lives in Calgary - has 3 children.
Gladys - married Robert Morse from New Jersey, US. -
live th have 2 children.
Thelma (Sammie) - married Jack Borton of Cremona -
have 3 children,
James - married Ethel Walker - lives in Calgary - has 2
children,

Audrey - married Tom Faulkner from Calgary, live there,
have 2 children,

The Luft's moved 3 miles east of Carstairs in 1962 to a
Guarter section. In 1972 they had an auction sale, sold the
land and retired to Calgary. Adam still rides his bike every
day and remains very active.




the Water Valley area. In 1926 & 1927 he worked for George
Lashmore Sr. at the ranch. After leaving the Lashmore’s
he came to live with the Joe Roberts family by Bituma
school. He lived here with them for a short time,

Jack then took out an agricultural lease on the land
where Tannas now lives. He built a log cabin on their
property and lived there. This log cabin still stands on the
property yet. Jack McCallman raised a few horses and
then took up camp cooking. He worked up north as a cook
on seismograph crews and hunting camps. He passed away
up north in August of 1849, He had one son, Russell who is
also deceased.

THE MACFARQUHARS
By Jean M. Walker
Additions by Duncan MacFarquhar

Colin, Rod, Sandy and Jim MacFarquhar left their
home in Cullicudden, Parish of Resolis, Black Isle,
Scotland in the fall of 1902 for Ballston, Or , USA, via
New York, They brought out with them p and three
purebred border collie for their uncle John McCulloch
who was the first person to bring sheep across the Rockies
to the Ballston district. A brother, George MacFarquhar,
was residing near Ballston and later came north to A1berta
to homestead west of Leduc. They had five daughters, two
of which still live there.

Prior to leaving Scotland, Colin, Rod and Jim served
with the Dunfermline Police Force, in Fifeshire, for one
and a half years. In 1900, they worked with the Bradford
Police Force in England. Colin spent some time working
with the Aberdeen Police Force.

In the fall of 194, Colin, Rod and Sandy came north lo
Canada, where they took out land in the Cremona distriet.
Alberta, at that time, was so well advertised as the coming
place to settle. Land was so easy to get, by means of taking
out a hgmtﬁleggipzzo. the Panaux:a Cianal l:gasof not oplened
yet, an S promote migrat people to
Alberta. The three brothers settled southwest of Cremona
and the reason for this location was due to the land east of
them had all been taken up.

The MacFa ran a bunch of cattle on the
original ranch. At that time, much of the country was open.
Accordi to their brother-in-law, the late A.
Walker, “What a pretty sight it was, when Colin whistied to
the cattle, to see a semicircle of white faces looking out
from amongst the trees and brush!" the Haley
farm and Sandy’s place was a road that ran east and west.
Colin’s cattle were always inclined to be wild, wild enough
that one did not venture out alone for a walk. Instead, one
would walk with someone! The Haley’s when walking to
school at Mount Hope, were always leery of Colin's cattle
and the other cattle that ran in this open area. How thank-
ful they were when the land was fenced!

The MacFarquhars first farmed with a team of horses
and a team of oxen. They would farm early in the day and
late at night, but never in the middle of the day. The flies
were so bad, and what with the heat, the oxen would take
to the bush, hayrack and all!

For many years, the MacFar?uhars ranch was the

ing ofbfeylace for men hauling lumber from the Turn-
bull Mill, before proceeding on. n the phone went in,
many people in the district and west of the ranch s
léy to use the phone. Before the Railway was built to
remona and before the usage of trucks for hauling, Colin
trailed cattle to Carstairs, but always stopped ff at Rat-
trays before going on. Buyers would come to Carstairs to
purchase cattle and Colin trailed them in for this rﬁ:;pose

After arriving here from Oregon, Rod wo for a
time for Bruce and Jim Hunter, Later he was time-keeper
at the Qui%ey Saw Mill northwest of Cochrane. Rod joined
up in the First War and went overseas. Colin and Sandy
sm{ed home and managed the affairs. In 1921, Colin went
on his own and farmed northeast of the home place.
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Rod was a Veteran of the South African War and the
First Great War. In the First Great War he went overseas
with the 89th Battalion; was decorated by the French
government with the Croix de Guerre. He was later com-
missioned and then with the 49th Edmonton
Regiment. In February 1919, Rod married Mrs. Dickinson
of Cochrane. He served on the Water Valley School Board
for a time, and also held the office of Secretary. For years
the teachers of the Water Valley School boarded at the
MacFarquhars. Rod served as the Justice of the Peace un-
til his death in 1938. He was keenly interested in sports
especially ball games. Their son Duncan carried on with
his fathers farm until 1952 when he moved east of
Cremona. In 1951 Duncan married Rosetta Moore - they
have 2 children, Bill and Dorothy.

Sandy went on his own in 1928. He farmed a short
distance from the original MacFargquhar place. He retur-
ned to his native land, where he lived and worked with his
oldest brother John, at Cullicudden until his death in 1945.

Sandy always took a week's tour of the district every
so often, so he could catch up on all the news. He alwa
travelled on horseback. He would travel as far as
McEachen Ranch in the Grand Valley district, then on to
Alex Moore's in Cochrane. It didn’t matter if there was
anyone at home or not, Sandy made himself right at home
by taking the pot off the stove and haviif a cup of tea. He
always made it a point to arrive at the McEachens the day
before New Year's and sttzg‘ for two or three days. On New
Year's Eve, Sandy watched the clock very carefully,
thoroughly enjoying himself, because Flora McEachen
Garson would ring the phone at midnight, to welcome in
the New Year to all the neighbors with phones in the Grand
Valley, After this little ceremony, Flora would serve tea
with all the trimmings. For years, Sandy kept up this
yearly visit to the McEachens and would not miss it for
the world.

When the Moores were living on the Joe Withey piace,
they had a couple visiting them. Hearing a noise in the kit-
chen, the visitor’s husband went throught to see what was
goint on. Seeing a stranger making himself right at home,
by taking the pot off the stove, the visitor hurriedly retur-
ned to 1iv! nﬁlroom to inform Mrs. Moore about the
sll;‘rl er in her kilchen, Next thing heard was “Och! It's
o "V
yCol‘m was always most interested in community af-
fairs. He was road foreman for the Local Improvement
District and was Trustee for the Water Valley School
Board. He was also director of the U.F.A. Colin was
in partnership with Bob Reid with a threshing machine.
Later he bought out Bob Reid’s share of the machine. Not
only being interested in community affairs, Colin was
keenly interested in the Social Credit Politics. He liked
nothing better than to have a good argument. When the
argument got to the stage with Colin crumpling up paper
and throwing it across table, then, one knew, it had
reached the sla‘ie of being a "‘hot one". Colin, a few weeks
before his death, visited Wilderness Park west of Water
Valley. He gave a vivid descrl}mion of ' what it was like six-
ty years ago when it was a village known as Skunk Hollow.

He knew every crook and cranny of the village which was
remarkable. en Colin passed away in 1964, he was
nearing his 89th birthday.

In 1925, a sister of the MacFarquhars, came out to.the
Cremona district, with her husband and two sons. Jean
MacKenzie was to keep house for Colin. This she did for a
period of about fifteen months. But as Colin's place of
abode, was not the easiest or most convenient of places for
a woman to keep house in, the MacKenzies moved down to
stay at Rod’s place. Jean's hushand, Sandy MacKenzie had
been a rd in Scotland, and Canada was an entirely
different way of life. Rod had a buck that was none too
friendly. One day this buck took after Sandy MacKenzie.
He being of a stocky build and with a good size ¢ tion,
hurriedly made a quick retreal between the fence with
about eighteen inches to get through. He was heard to reply
by Duncan, Rod's son, “Och! to think I came all the way
oot to Canada to be chased by a bloomin' buck.™



Ladies at back: 2 teachers from Water Valley and Bituma - Mrs. Lusted and
Miss McKayll, Allister McKenzie, bead - Vie Dewhurst. Man an eod - Osborne
Johnston, Jeft end - Sandy McFarquhar, Alex McKensie, Mrs. McFarquhar,
Mrs, Jean McKenzie, Morgan Lewis, boy - Duncan McFarquhar. 1926

Far back; Bob Patchell, Rhuary Walker. Helen Whillow & Pater.

Dorothy Pat.
chell, Justeena Simpson, Bud McBain, Mr Van Haaften Elizabeth Whitlow,
Jean McBain & Donna, Mrs. McBain,
Haley, Mrs, Van Haaften, Jack McBain, Russoll Haley.

Mrs McFarquhar, Grace Walker, Lila

The MacKenzie's later returned to Scotland.

Bella MacFarquhar, the youngest sister, came out to
keep house for the brothers in 1909. To her just out from
Scotland, the most unusual sight was to see several men
sleeping on the floor in the house. Fortunately, Rod had ex-

lained why these men were there, they were hauling lum-
ger from the Turnbull Mill, One day Bella was on
her way to visit & very good friend, Mrs. George Spence,
when the horse ran away with her.A man came to her
rescue and after checking everything told her to tell Sandy,
“‘check everything carefully and to make sure the hit is in
the horse's mouth.” Bella thanked him. But she never let
on she had saddled up ~ not Sandy, She later married the
late George A. Walker, who came from St. Fergus, Aber-
deenshire, Scotland to homestead in the Dog Pound
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district. Later he entered the Customs Office, Calgary.
Their son, Rhuary resided on the Sandy McFarquhar place
until his death in 1977, Another son, e resides on his
father's homestead, and a daughter Jean teaches in
Calgary.

OLIVER McKAY

Oliver McKay's palernal great-grandfather, Edward

McKay, came from Scotland in the late 1700's. He was em-

{)vloirsehd by the Hudson's Bay Co. in the last store at Fort
a

Oliver's maternal great-grandfather, Frank Whiteford,
worked with the surveyors and also delivered mail from
Battleford to the historic Fort Pitt. Frank Whiteford died in
1918 at 103 years of age. The records in the Horsemen's
Hall of Fame contain the names of Oliver's great-uncles.

Early in the century the McKay family travelled by
covered wagon from Cypress Hills to Lloydminster, a trip
which took about two weeks. They homesteaded about 35
miles north-east of the village in 1913, As there were no
schools in the rural areas at that time they rented a house
in the village for a few years and the 3 McKay children at-
tended school,

Oliver was born in Cypress Hiils. He worked in the but-
cher shop in his spare time. The family moved back to the
homestead and the children's education was limited. Their
nearest rg:idghbors were Indians who spoke no English but
had lea Swedish from a Swedish horse dealer.

Oliver inherited his artistic and creative nature from
his mother. As a child he played with petrified fish, and the
high level plateau at Cypress Hills was then an area oc-
cupied by cattle ranchers. On the lower slopes grew lush
vegetation, high bush blueberries and saskatoons Erew in
abundance. Oliver learned to appreciate and use what
nature provided.

He collects dry diamond willow in the fall and from it
fashions lamtﬁ's birds, animals and other interesting ob-
Jects. From this he also made an unique cane on which a
snake appears to coil. From seasoned (1 year), poplar, bir-
ch and cabl;a}ina. birds and animals are carved. After car-
ving the birds are painted in natural colors. He also uses
animal horns and antlers to make crib boards, plant stands
(which have legs of horns), hat racks and beautiful or-
naments, These are carefully polished and no varnish is
used, except a secret formula to create a beautiful finish.

From leather, Oliver made a western saddle. He has



had many good and bad experiences with tanning hides,
and is always looking for a new method. A braided leather
bridle of his was on display in Scotland. From horsehair,
hackmores and bridles are braided.

Oliver McKay is a veteran of World War II and he and
his wife, Esther, live in the village of Cremona. He
travelled with the Cremona School, by bus, to Ft. Mec-
Murray Tar Sands and with his vast knowledge of nature,
easy wil and stories, was a favorite with all the teenagers.
They have 3 sons and 2 daughters. The eidest girl was
killed in a car accident, Patsy, the youngest, is a graduate
hair stylist and like her father, can braid leather, do bead
work and she also crochets beautifully. Oliver plays the
violin and is interested in anﬁﬂ;les. He can be seen in the
morning walking downtown with "'something' in his hand
an antique of some kind, asking his friends what il is and
then explaining exactly how it works. He is a friendly,
quiel man and alwa}zs has a story or joke to tell and enjoys
‘visiting the town folk.

DIANE McKINNON

Only daughter of Fred and Josephine McKinnon, 1
grew up and received most of my schooling at Water
Valley. In March of 1952, | married David L. Sirr,
youngest son of Mr. and Mrs. Percy Sirr. We had six
children, three boys and three girls: Delbert, Deborah,
Desmond, Duane, and twins Donna and Deanna. | was
widowed in March 1965. In December of 1968, 1 married Ar-
thur W. Davies; we have a daughter Denise. Residing
south of the village Water Valley, the children are growing,
some are on their own. Delbert married Linda Baptist of
Didsbury - they have two daughters, Penny and Christine.
Delbert is ené&l)oyed in pipeline construction, and lives in
Didsbury. Deborah married Donald Wilson of the Big
Prairie district, They have two children, Darcy and Sherry
Dawn. Donald is employed as a policeman with the City of
Calgary where they reside. Desmond lives and is employed
in the Toronto area. Duane is living in Calgary and is em-
E‘l)oyed by Sears. Donna, Deanna and Denise are still at

me completing grade ten and grade four. At present I
am employed with Mountain View Lumber and assistant to
the Postmaster at Water Valley .and Arthur is employed
with F. McKinnon and Sons.

DONALD McKINNON

In 1941 at the age of 4 years, Donnie moved from
Caroline to Water Valley with his parents Fred and Jo
McKinnon, his brother Ralph, sister Dianne and his twin
brother Ronnie. Another brother, Lochlan was born a few
vears later. Donnie received his schooling in Water Valley
and Cremona and worked with his brothers and father in
the timber contracting business under the name of F.
McKinnonland Sonlil.da t loading mine i

Many long, co! ys were spent loa mine props in
the btshy wegt of Water Valley and hauling them to the
mines in Drumheller. Lumber was sawed and fence posts
were cut, peeled, bundled and treated to be sold.

In 1963, Donnie married Marjorie Bird after her
graduation from the Calgary General Hospital School of
Nursing. Marjorie went to work at the Dldshury.ﬁospnal
and Donnie reuted the land and dairy barn from his father-
in-law, Bird, and learned the business of milking
from him. After five years Donnie decided this was the
type of farming he wished to continue on with so he pur-
ciasedhisownberdo(holsleincows. In 1970, he bought a
g\:ner of land west of Carstairs from Art Good and moved

re after building a new dairy barn to house 50 cows the
year round,
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Donnie devotes all his time to breeding, selling and
milking holstein cows, which he has registered under the
farm name of Donalta Farms Ltd, Donnie and Marjorie
have 3 children - Carolyn, Dennis and Mark,all of which
are very active in 4H clubs, hockey, school band, Cub
Scouts, elc.

Donnie has very little time for social activities or
orgamtz;a}ions as he runs his dairy business himself with no
hired help.

FREDERICK McKINNON
By Josephine McKinnon

No one was more proud of his Scottish ane than
Fred. He was born near Aberdeen, Scotland Oct 7,
1908. He moved to Vulean Alberta with his parents where
he farmed for many years. In 1934 he married Miss
Josephine RS:gmdson from Red Deer, who taught for four
years at Cross School, north of Vulcan. When first
married they moved to Caroline and farmed there for
seven years. Four children were born, namely Diane,
Ralph, and the twins Ronald and Donald. Lachlan was born
after they came to Water Valley.

Farming did not have a future and was a very hard lot
in the hungry thirties in Caroline. Fred sold out and moved
to Water Valley where he bought the store, and have been
there since April 1941 - a matter of over 37 years as this
book is being written.

The individual family stories are written separately as
cach has a life of their own, Time takes its’ toll. Fred
passed away suddenly at home June 28, 1978, His wife
along with ph and Ronnie still carry on the business
known as “F, McKinnon & Sons™ in treated fence post
business, farming and of course the Store. There is also a
business in Calgary known as *“McKinnon Coal & Wood".

Fred left his mark on very many people, acquired



countless friends from his business transactions. When he
was younger he had a trucking business and daily took
stock to Calgary for 17 years. He also had a passenger per-
mit, during war years, few people had cars and a day in
town and see a show, when stock was sold was an EVENT

5 Generations of the McKinnon family, Back row: Greal Grandpa - Fred
McKinnon, Grandma, Diane Davies. Front: Delbert Sirr holding daughter Pen-
ny Lynn. Great great Grandpa - Raiph McKinnon Sr Calgary

5 Generations - Back row: Great Grandps McKinnon, Grandma - Diape
gnvles. Froat: Grea! great Grandpa McKinnan, Debbie Lee Wilson and son
Arcy.
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Fred was a member of Crossfield Masonic Lodge,
Calgary Lodge of Perfection, Delta Chapter of Rose Craix,
South Alberta Consestory, Starlight O.E.S., Past Patron
Carstairs 0.E.S, and a Charter member of Cremona Lions
Club. Fred was an ardent sports fan, Aberdeen dans for
Soccer, New York “Yankees” for baseball and of course
football, Calgary Stampeders. Whether they were in first or
last place he always had faith they would eveniually come
to victory.

Liferyin Water Valley had its ups and downs, At one
time Fred thought he would retire but he could find no
place with better weather, what with the famous chinooks
which reach us off and on and the general “‘Clean air’” at-
mosphere, it is one of the most pleasant places we have
found, in which to carry on our own individual life styles.

The store in Waoler Valley 1974

LACHLAN McKINNON

Lachie (Lachian), the youngest attended Water Valley
and Cremona schools. On July 28, 1967 he married Donna,
oldest daughter of Mr. and Mrs. Robert Walroth of
Crossfield. They have one son, Lance, born on January 5,
1978. They presently reside on their farm 24 miles east of
Water Valley, Lachie farms and is also employed by
Canadian Superior Oil Ltd. Lachie belongs to the Crossfield
Masonic Lodge and the Cremona Royal Canadian Legion.

RALPH 0. McKINNON

By Ralph McKinnon

My parents lived on a farm at Caroline when I was
born but in 1941 - they moved to Water Valley and we have
lived there since then. Life was the usyal - school at Water
Valley and Cremona and as soon as I was old enough 1
started driving truck. We have operated trucks, farm, store
and Post Treating Business under the name of F. McKin-
non and Sons, also McKinnon Coal and Wood yard in
Calgary,

I married Elvira Voelzke and we have two children,
Ellen and Robin. Vera is very musical and many have seen
aang' heard her on T.V. singing with the German Ladies

ir.

I have been and still am very busy with fraternal
Lodges, Masons, Scottish Rite and Shriners. I am also a
charter member of the Cremona Lions Club and a charter
member of the Modern Woodmen of Alberta,

Many old timers will be interested to know that I live
on what was known as the Colin Macfarquhar place. We
built our house where we have a view of the Majestic
Rockies and life goes on in clean fresh country air,



RONNIE McKINNON

Ronnie was born February 24, 1938 in Innisfail. He
preceded a twin brother by twenty minutes. He has always
made it known that he is the oldest. Ronnie attended Water
Valley Community School and Cremona school.

Since then we drive trucks, farm, operate a store and
fence-post business under the name of F. McKinnon and
Sons. We also have McKinnon Wood and Coal in Calgary.

On July 3, 1964 he married Shirley Schmick from Car-
stairs, Shirley was born in Innisfail on Januar,
She attended Midway Schol and Carstairs High
is now employed as secretary at Cremona School.

We make our home on family farm two miles east
%t; &gater Valley. Ronnie is 8 member of the Cremona Lions

ub.

We have one child Matthew, who attends Cremona
Schoal.

11, 1941,
hool and

ANGUS McMILLAN AND FAMILY
By Muriel Foster

Angus McMillan’s father homesteaded a 1; section on
the Little Red Deer River south of Bituma school. This
Elace is known to mos! as the Burrell place. He married

Isie Rawleigh and lived 11 miles north of Water Valley,
They had five children, Ray, Roy, Red, Ruby and Refa.

McMillan's moved to Dawson Creek, B.C. They sold
their land north of Water Valley to Alvin Hilker. After they
moved to B.C. Angus passed away. Elsie remarried Hubert
Papke, and lives at Dawson Creek,. The McMillan place is
now owned by Fred Bundschohs.

MR. AND MRS. ROBERT E.
McMULLEN AND FAMILY

By Pearl Blain

Robert Edmund McMullen was born and raised in New
Brunswick. He was a lumberjack in the Maine and New
Rrunswick woods before coming west to homestead in 1909
in Saskatchewan in the Rosetown area. It was here one day
that a cyclone hit his shack, scattering it far and wide as
well as a trunkful of good clothes but leaving him on his
hands and knees on the prawie with only his stove near. He
returned to New Brunswick to marry Bernice Irene Wood
in Jan, 1912 and that spring they came west to live.
Robert's father, mother, brother, two sisters and a brother-
in-law all came with them. They shipped their goods and
travelled by train to the homestead in Saskatchewan. From
there it was horses and wagons and democrat as they came
to Alberta and settled on land about 25 miles south of
where the town of Oyen now is. They lived in & tent the fir-
st summer and the mosquifoes were so bad it was one per-
son's job to keep the smudge pail going for themselves and
the stock. :

After hauling lumber from Alsask, forty miles one way,
for two houses, Robert decided to build a sod house for
himself. It was very comfortable, cool in summer and
warm in winter. They lived in it for about six years before
building another home. A fireguard plowed and kept black
was a necessity around your buildings in those days as we
had one or two prairie fires every year., Everyone went to
fight the fire whether it was near their place or not,
Anyone who wouldn't go wasn't throught very much of.
They plowed and back fired and used wet gunny sacks too
in order to try and stop or turn the fire, but mostly the fire
burnt to the Deer River before they could get it out. 1
can remember Dad tying one outfit of horses {tired out) to
the fence and taking a fresh outfit be gone all night before

they would get back. It was hard to tell the color of the hor-
ses and who the men were, they were so black. The drz
years and the depression came and the dust storms. Dad
Mother decided to move where there wasn't so much wind
and where there was more rain and both being raised in a
bush country, they decided on the Fallen Timber district.
Dad put a granary on wheels, fitted it up to live in and with
four horses pulling it and a saddle horse tied behind he
started out on November 1st, 1937 and arrived with winter
in November 11th. In 1938 after school closed in June,
Mother and the two youngest boys, Donald and Barry,
came up to live here. Raymond came also when that falis’
work was done. My oldest brother Clinton and myself
stayed on the prairie to run the farms with help from
Albert and Archie who were still going to school. Just
before Christmas 1940 we came to join the rest of the
family. With everyone helping we soon had new buildings
up and then the war became very real for us with
Raymond a soldier, sent overseas with Cameron Highlan-
ders and Albert a gunner in the airforce also sent overseas,
and taken prisoner. Archie was & pilot in the air force but
never left Canada. They all came safely home.

Clinton married Georgina Yake in 1944 and they have
lived south of Oyen ever since. They have two daughters,
Dixie and Roxie and four grandchildren. I married Wilfred
Blain in 1945 and we have lived on the S.W. 15, S 32, T30,
R4, W5, since then. We have four children: Sharon - (Mrs.
R.Zaluski), a realtor in Calgary. Merle - in Edmonton, Earl
- at home, works at Sundre and helps farm. Darrell - is in
grade twelve in Cremona High School.

Raymond married Dolores Hayes in 1951 and lived at
Fallen Timber and then moved to Red Deer, They had five
children; Robert, Lee, Laurel, Lorna, and Tim. Lee died
several years ago and Delores died in 1977.
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Rev. Archie McMullen and Marion with thelr team bought at the Arthur Lewis
auction sale 1952

Donald married Betty Reimer in 1950 and they live
Xﬁst of Didsbury, They have three boys, Brian, Scott and

en.

Albert married Alison Bonar from Killam in 1946 and
they live in Red Deer and have seven in their family: Ar-
thur.d Robert (Bob), Marilea, Randy, Rene, Eddie and
David.

Archie married Marion Kirby from Calgary in 1953 and
they have three children; Maureen, John and James, Ar-
chie is at present minister of St. Lukes Anglican Church in
Red Deer.

Barry married Ester Johnson in 1953 and they have
four children; Bruce, Gwen, Kevin and Karen.

Both Dad and Mother were very active and lived on
their farm until they passed away, Dad died in 1965 and
Mother in 1971,

THE McNICOLS

My father, John Brown McNicol came from Scotland
with parents and brothers and sisters in 1858 when he was 8



vears old to Boston, Mass. All worked in Calico Factory.

factory burned they all went to Illinois to farm in
|1870 for 2 years and then al] went to Kansas to homestead
n 1872,

Mother went to Kansas as a girl of 12 with 6 brothers in
1870 from Oakville, Jowa. After the war they went in a
covered Wagon and homesteaded there, Fatt;r and Mother

i 875,

Glen McNicol's outfit in the 1927 Calgary Stampede. These were ""Coach’' hor.
Sés and driver by Burt Boucock of Carstatrs.
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My first school was started at the foot of McNicol Hill
in winter of 1905. Our teacher was Jesse Hayens just a boy
of 18; there was about 20 children going.

There was Haven's, Stone's, Keil’s, Todd’s, Fike's, Me-
Nicols. The school was in a homesteaders house which
belonged to Joe Fike and was on his Jand, They all chipped
in to pay the teacher as there was no school distriet,

Banner School was Started the next year. Proudfoot
was the first teacher. His homestead was 4 miles north of
Sampsonton.

! g' brothers and sisters are all gone and mostly in the
Crossfield Cemetery.

I bought my first Model Tee Car in 1920. It was a 1917
and I figured a dandy. I was at the neighbour’s house and
their hired girl asked me if I would like to drive her home
about 10 miles north-west of Cremona. So on Sunday we
started, it was a rough country trail over many hills. I
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let me out to push. The truck'’s plugs fired on 3, They were
wet and it rained and there was no top on the car. ran
far down hi’'; she crept on the level; refused on the hills.
Out jumped Elsie and slowly we crept to the top. We finally
made home and to top it off Elsie asked me what she owed
me.

I swore then if ever I chose a wife it would be one in
the West Country. )

The Carlin Family came to Alberta in and to Carstairs
in 1917 and homesteaded on N.E, 21-29-5-5 with 1 boy and 3
girls, Marg born on August 8th, 1908. Mrs. Carlin Essed
away in 1928, Mary in 1944; Patrick in 1966; Tom in 1964

and Rose in 1978, The children went to school at Bituma

Smylie and the calf he bought from Glen McNicol which won 1st prize in
Calf Club,

Left: Susie Laveck holding
Carlin. Back: Mary & Jim Laveck, Girl in sweater - Hosa Carlin (Ronquist),
Tom Carlin, Eddie Carlson. 1926

Charles Evans. Lib. Evans, Boy with hat - Patly

and Water Valley. They are all buried in the Carstairs
Cemetery,

I never forgot my vow to marry a girl west of Cremona
so on June 19, 1925 el became my wife. We started
housekeeping 3 miles east of Sampsonton. We farmed and
broke 160 acres with horses on N.W. 1 sec, 3-28-2-5.

We made our home there for the next 8 years then took
homesteading and lived on S.E. 17-29-5-5 and soon started
Saw Milling for 25 years.

We have been here for 46 years and Marg has pushed
our cars up many muddy hills.

We enjoy card parties and bingo's. This has been a
very good country to live in. We intend to live here as long
as possible.

the driver, Bill Caps - the stacker, On land east The bundies
were fed by hand on a straw carrier. Glen cut bands on the bundles and often
received $2 per day. Picture taken sbout 1912
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THE JACK McQUARRIE FAMILY
By Joan Roberts

Jack McQuarrie, his wife Inez and their children; Gor-
don, Joan, Margaret, Dana, Hazel and Bob moved to the
Big Prairie area in May, 1948, It was a very wet Zgring.
they came from Calgary, had to go up through Didsbury
because the bridges were washed out west of Carstairs,
Crossfield and north of Cochrane. We farmed 1, section
with 4 draft horses mostly. Steel wheeled tractor was too
heavy. We stayed on the farm for a year and a half, then
moved into the town of Cremona. where Dad took over the
Alberta Wheat Pool Elevator until the fall of 1951, when he
died of a heart attack in the elevator, Mum and the
younger children stayed on in Cremona until 1953 when she
moved to Bassano. The McQuarries' farmed the S.W, 15,
Sec. 30, T. 30, R. 4, W. 5.

Gardon joined the forces after finishing at Cremona
School. Joan married Lynn Roberts and they now farm at
High Prairie, Alta. Margaret and Hazel left the district al-
ter school in Cremona. Dana married Jerry Duffy and they
lived north-west of Cremona. Bob remained with his
mother and they left the district.

STAN MAILER

In 1928 some Canadian farmers took a trip to Scotland.
Stan Mailer was about to book passage al that time for
himself a trip to Canada. when one of these farmers
walked in and said he was looking for men to take care of
horses in Canada. He hired Stan on the spot.

Stan Mailer, at age 26 years, left Scotland, the 28th of
March, 1928 bound for his job in Edmonton. He sailed on
the Athenian, which later sank in the second World War, It
was full of families, all headed for Canada. There were but-
chers, bakers, farmers and everything you could think of.
The trip cost about $25 and thei were 8 days on the water,
They came to Halifax, then took a train to Edmonton. The
station was a shack in the middle of nowhere and there was
no station master at that time. He took 22 show horses lo
the Edmonton Fair that year, for the Barry Bros. He left
after the fair and worked for a Scotchman named, Han-
dsom Bruce, a farmer, till fall, Stan then left and went
down to London, Ontario and worked, coming back up in
1929 and working on a farm for Tom Murphy at Westcott,
He worked here for 2 years.

It was here he met Doris, Mr. Murphdy’s daughter, and
they were later married, Stan bought land from the C.N. E,
in 1931 - Wiz, 833, T30, R4, W5. There were no buildings so
they lived on the McEwan place across the road for 2
iears. until their house was built. John Jacobson and Stan,

uill a log house using the Jogs they had cut and sawed at
McGavin's Mill. He started cutting brush on the home
place and cut % acres with an axe. They farmed here for
35 years and lived in the same house.

Some of their neighbors in the early years were:
Walter Unger, Henry Reimer, (across the road), Lais
Mcguprter, Bill Dick, Old John Tyner, McGavins, and Per-
cy Fair.

They did most of their shopping at Didsbury driving
with a team and buggy. There was only a trail west of the
river, no road. Veleeta and Bud rode to the Elkton School
on horseback. Stan worked for $25 per month Breaking
cost §5 per acre with a tractor. There were lots of house

rties and dances at all the local school houses. The

cGavins had a band with Bob McGavin - on violin, Iris
Power - on piano, Bill McGavin - on drum. Iris Powers
later married Bill McGregor. Another popular band was;
Bill Smith, Les and Ken Benard and Leonard Wright.

The Mailer's had four children: Veleeta - (Mrs,
Scharf), lives in Calgary - no family ; Eugene (Bud)-
married and lives in Edmonton - has 2 boys and 2 girls;
Jimmy married and lives in B.C. - 3 children; Brenda
(Mrs. Johnston) - lives in Calgary - has no family.
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Stan seld the farm to Mr. DeVissor and is now owned
by M & S Chmilar. He bought a house in Cremona (the
McQuarrie house) and was here about ten years. During
this time he worked for the government as scale man.
Doris passed away in 1969. h ]

Stan has gone back to Scotland six or seven times to
see the rest of his family. On one of these first trips he met
Evelyn, They were married in Calgary in 1971. Stan and
Evelyn have been at their present home, (Jimmy Thom-
pson’s place) for the last 4': years. They have 3': acres, a
comfortable home and a garden spot and are enjoying their
retirement.

MR. AND MRS. A. MATHIESON
By Elizabeth (Mathieson) Simpson

Mrs. Augusta Mathieson, daughter of the Reverend
John McDougall early Methodist in the N.W.T. was born in
1870, She married Alexander Mathieson, a Scot from
Glasgow, and moved to the Cremona district in 1904, where
she resided until 1948, when she moved to Calgary. When
the first Ladies’ Aid was organized my mother was elected

resident. When the First World War was declared the
dies' Aid turned their attention to the war efforts and
Red Cross work, raising funds through bazaars, concerts
and suppers. They also sent many parcels to the district
soldiers overseas. Horse and buggy and riding horseback
were her main modes of transportation. She became a
familiar sight canvassing the district for the Victory Bond
drives riding side-saddle.

In 1918, when the influenza epidemic broke out, Mother
was spared. All her time was spent in nursing her less for-
tunate neighbors. Later Mrs. Mathieson became an active
worker for the Cremona Womens' Institute, serving as
Secretary-Treasurer. Throughout the years, she was
pianist at church services, played for many dances and
taught piano. Two of her neighbors, Mrs, M, McLeavy and
Mrs. Percy Bird, celebrate their birthdays together on the
same date, Aug. 20th. This date was a community occasion
for many years. The Colwell families who were her nearest
neighbors were exceptional people and good friends. My
Mother had two daughters; myself and my sister Agnes. |
was married to Bob Simpson from Carstairs district in
1931. Mother attained the age of 90 years. She passed away
in March, 1961, bringing to an end, an active and useful life
as a goo& neighbor and one who knew the true meaning of

a pioneer.

MRS. ALEX MATHIESON

The Albertan 1960

The oldest living pioneer born in Alberta, Mrs. Alex
Mathieson, will be 90 years young on Saturday, Aug. 20th,
1960. Born in 1870 at Whitefish, north of Edmonton, the
nonagenarian has seen many changes take place - not the
least of which is the length of time spent in travelling from
Cu:;gary to eastern Canada, and the type of transportation

oday by plane Toronto is only hours away, but when
Augusta McDougall left for school in Coburg, Ont., around
about 1880, she trayelled in a covered wagon, part of a
mule train. The journey commenced the first of May and
she reached her destination just in time to commence the
fall term. As there was no school at Morley where he
father, Rev. John McDougall, was missionary to the Stony
Indians, Augusta McDougall was taught by a teacher living
at her home until she left for boarding school.
“‘The only school was for the Indians” recalled Mrs.
Mathieson. And when 1 returned to Morley from the Coburg
school and DeMille College I taught there, I was only 16,



but in those days a leacher's age didn't matter. and there
was no such thing as having a teacher’s certificate. Of all
the subjects given at the school the Indians liked drawing
the best, especially when the young teacher drew animals
and birds. She taught them the ABC's, a little arithmetic
and singing and 1 also told them stories, Among Mrs.
Mathieson's most prized possessions are books written by
her father. Mr. McDougall wrote 13 books in all, 12 of them
accounts of the early days of Alberta and a work of fiction,
"Wa-Pee-Moostooch” (White Buffalo), 4 tale of Lhe Indians
that he knew so well.

After a few years teaching al the Indian school
Augusla went to Cremona where she met and married in
1914 Alex Mathieson, a Scot from Glasgow. Mrs. Mathieson
came to Calgary in 1948 where she lives with her daughter,
Mrs. Agnes Raynes, This week she plans lo celebrate her
birthday with an “open house” Saturday at her home 437
13th Ave. N.E. from 3-6 and 8-10 p.m.

“I've had a birthday party every year since | came 1o
Calgary, and I expect to have a lot more!”

MR. & MRS. MAURICE MAYHILL

By: Lora Smith

Mr. and Mrs. Maurice Mayhill came from England
Their homestead 1 believe, was North !5 of 38, T1-29, 5-5.
Three or more of their children went to the Big Prairie
School. Freda, their eldest daughter, first rode her pony
alone Later George. Rita, Winnie, and Eileen attended
classes there.

When later Mrs. Laura Mayhill lived in Calgary she
continued to help people. 1 can remember her sta 'ln} with
Mr. and Mrs. John Smith and visiting, She also i\a Mrs
Smith read the crystal, She came with Walter and Hildz
Jones to their 50th Wedding Anniversary along with other
friends. While they lived in the district, they too, took part
in the life of the community, and many old friends will
remember all of them. Mrs. Mayhill is now deceased.

MAYS

By: Lila Lashmore

Sam May travelled from Middlesex England, where
he was born, on April 15, 1875 to Ireland. There he mel
Sarah Boyd. Sarah immigrated to Canada in 1899, upon
reaching Toronto she found emtﬁloghmenl as a housekeeper,
which paid eight dollars a month. She saved her money and
sent what she could to Sam in England to help pay his fare
to Canada, When Sam arrived he and ;frah were
married in Toronto on November 29, 1900. They then
decided to travel west to Vancouver, they took up residence
in Burnaby, B.C. Sam worked in the sawmills and was also
a fireman.

Sarah kept her house, milked her cow and raised her
family. She nursed Sam thro a bout of typhoid fever.
This was not easy, especially when her daughter kept
hauling food to the invalid because '"Papa was hungry "'
when he was not supposed to have solid food.

Once aflter Sarah had been ill, Sam and his brother
Fred, decided she needed a holiday. They took her to visit
her friend, Mrs. Conway on Vancouver Island. They would
look after everything! Now Sarah’s cow did not like men
and there was no way she was going to let the men milk
her. So after two days of trying to get near the cow, and
listening to her bawl, ott they went to gel Sarah and bring
her back home. That was the one and only time that Sam
offered to milk the cow.

Lillie, Walter and Fred were born at Burnaby, In 1909,
Sam and Sarah decided to immigrate to New Zealand.
They sold all their pelongings and sailed to England to
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visil their families. Work was scarce in England and
Ireland, so some of their relatives wanted to immigrate
with them. Sam knew they could get work in the mills in
Canada, so back they came, bringing with them Sam’s
brother Ernie, sister Rose and her husband, and also Tom
Boyd, Sarah’s brother. They all found work in the mills and
settled in New Westminster. Bovd was born there on April
40, 1910. Sarah’s health wasn't too good so they decided to
try Alberta

Sam and Tom Boyd came first and took up homesteads
west of Water Valley. Sam homesteaded the place where
Don Truss now lives, and Tom settled on the McCarthy
place. The family arrived in Cremona in March 1912. They
lived on the old Steele (McLean) place, Mick Earle now
owns this place. Dick was born on this place on November
15, 1912. Later they lived in & house at the top of the river
hill west of Water Valley until the house was built on the
homestead.

Sarah and her gister.



Sam spent most of his time working east of Carstairs in

the Rosebud district along

with George Day, George had a

threshing machine, Sam was the water hauler. They star-
ted threshing in the Rosebud district in the fall, working

their way wesl sometimes

they ended up threshing around

Cremona at Christmas time. Many a farmer’s gate posts

were flattened when George didn't
squarely when going through the
Wilfred Simmons, west of

get the engine aimed
gate.Sam also worked for
Carstairs. He raised sheep and

had a large grain farm. Sam met Jake Hanson there, Jake

Ihe shepha

1o Jake. Jake raised
pound sugar bag over
med one day
they chased
worked at the Turnbull sawmalls in the winters,
Sarah stayed home and looked after
helping out by pickin
whatever else was available.
1916 while they lived at the
neighbors were the Conway's
Conway's lived on the quarter west of Fred Bunchocks

her family

Annie was born on January 3

for Simmons. Later Sam sold the homestead
i bees on the homestead. He used a ten
his head for a mask. The bees swar-
and found their way under Jake's mask and
him all the way to Water Valley. Sam also

cranberries, blueberries and

homestead, Sam and Sarah's
whom they knew in B.C.. the

One day while living at Water Valley, Sarah and Mrs. Con-

way decided to
lost between Bottrel and

muech  anxiety later, they
Although, some incidents like

3

did find their way home

B0 shopping in Botfrel. Somehow, they got
i %‘valer Valley. Many hours and

this are best forgotten, Sam

never allowed Sarah to forget this adventure. as he was

always quite willing to tease her about it, The Haley's, Mc

the Carlins

Millans, Winchells, George 'I‘hom?son. Koesters and Jater
also

and Ronquists were
May kids
Jessie
Lavecks

neighbors. The oider
went to Bituma school along with Angus and
McMillan, Vern Williams, Gene Winchell and the

In 1918, Sam and Sarash moved to Cremona to the farm

they had
house which t
the farm and reébuilt it Until

the house wasg
Sarah and their six children

ht from Jim Lobb, They tore down the new
v had built at Water Valley, hauled it out to
rebuilt, Sam,
lived in a sod house on the

farm, Tom Boyd sold his homestead at Water Valley to

Mays had

known in B.C. Af-

ter Tom had sold his homestead, he bought ' section ol
school land, across the road where Brian Whitlow now

lives.

Sam and Sarah’s kids went to school at Mount Hope af-
moving to the farm at Cremona. Their classmates in-
cluded Stan and Grace (Walker) Haley, the Whitlow girls,
(Mary, Hilda and Lila) and the Myroms, (Dinky and
Cecil), They had their times, setting a grass fire which got
away caused some problems, after ihat incident the May's
weren'l allowed to walk with the Myron's, They had to
walk with the Halevs which didn't help much, They put a
dynamite cap under a school wash basin and lit the fuse
The wash basin was never found. They also thought that 3
stick of dynamite under the Mays woodpile might cause
some excitement, which it did and the children were just
picking the last sticks of wood up when Sam and Sarah
drove in the yard, Tying a lariet {0 a baby buggie and giv.
ing one another rides behind the saddle horse was more re-
cess enlertainment. Later Dick and Annie went to Atkins
school and Annie also went to high school in Old Cre
mona.

Sarah was a devoted church member, she was a
memeber of the women's institute and Ladies Aid. Sam
Was a community minded man, he was road boss, member
of the hall board and coach of the baseball team. Sam took
a crew to the bush to log out the lumber for both churches
and the hall. Dan Russell sawed the lumber. Sam
along with Dick May, Matt Hewitt, Mr. Gillies Sr., and one
other man were the charter members of the Cremona
Credit Union. Sam loved baseball, he also loved chewing
tobacco, the more exciting the game the more he chewed
tobaceo. He first managed the Atkins Baseball Team, It
was made up of farm boys, they played their games just
north of George McBain's house. They raised money for
their equipment by staging a stampede. The first stam-
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pedes were held on the old Casebeer farm, Heavy Rands
lived there then, later it was held where Norman Whitlow
lives. Milton Hickey supplied some raunchy black angus
cattle. Many a cowboy had to climb the fence to safety. Af-
ler the team became the Cremona Baseball Team, the boys
went out and shot rabbits and sold them to buy equipment.
Ed Thrasher hauled them to Calgary to sell. Sam lived for
his baseball team, and insisted that his small grand-
daughter June be present at all his games as he was sure
that she was the teams good luck mascot. The team was
hard to beat. Some of the baseball team members over the
years were, Walter May, Fred May, Ed Pratt, Ross
McLeod, Alan Frizzell, Norm Whitlow, Jack Whitlow, Eric
Atkins, Rex Atkins, Vern Farrel, Jim Tronnes, Jack Earle,
Roberl McBain, Bud McBain and Joe Kloberdanz. The
members of his last baseball team as pictured were Otto
Faas, Gordon Reid, George McBain, Mick Earle, Norm
Ecllamy. George Whitlow, Glen Ray, Ken Whitlow and Den
Ty.

Sam died on November 35, 1946 and Sarah made her
home with Dick and his family until her passing in 1958.

Lillie was born on April 12, 1902, after she was grown
she went to work at Hayes dairy farm west of Carstairs.
There she met Alex Sayer, later t were married and
lived on a farm west o Carstairs. Alex and Lillie raised
five children, they are: (John who married Mary Met-
wyler, they have three children, Nancy, Charlotte and
Melvin. John lives on the farm where Lillie and Alex
lived). Richard who married Lillian Mascall, they have two
children (Linda and Robert), Jane who married Clare
Good, three children (Wanda, Myran and
Charlene), Alberta who married Leonard Cressman, they
have four children (Beverly, Donald, Warren and Reta),
Jim who married Leona Hartzler, they have five children,

Lillle, Alox Sayer. Children- Richard, John, Jane, Alberta. Jim Sayer.



(Marjorie, Walter, Norma. Carolyn and Darrel.) Af-
ter Alex's death Lillie moved into Carslairs. she later
married Simon Stalter. Lillian now makes her home at the
Dr. Crystal Manor in Carstairs.

Walter also worked at the Hayes dairy farm, he saved
his money and bought the farm where Graham Barnard
now lives. Walter married Cora Sirr. Walter at one time
owned the store and the lumber yard at Water Valley, so is

uite well known around there. He now lives at Campbell
g{iver. B. C. where he spends many enjoyable hours
fishing. Walter was born on May 24, 1906.

Fred was born on June 1, 1908. He married Daisy in
1960. Fred joined the army and after his discharge worked
for the C.P.R. in Toronto. When he retired, he spent his
time gardening in his home in Toronto and at his cottage
on the lake Fred passed away in 1977.

Boyd was born on April 30, 1910. He married Ethel
Foster. They raised ten children, June married Wallace
Price, they have two boys Darren and Dwayne. June

assed away on January 6, 1979. Jean married Cliff
mecht Margaret (Peg) married Dave Baillie, and they
have two boys, Kevin and Calvin (Gabby). Albert {Toby)
married Glenda Dahr, they have two boys Kelly & Darby
Lila married Wayne Lashmore and they have three child-
ren, Scott, Shannon & Kristan. Barbara married Ed (Woo-
dy) Vader and they have three children, Shane, Travis and
Bebbie Joe, Edie, their younFesl daughter lives and works
in Calgary. Jim works on o1l rigs, but still calls Cremona
home. Harvey married Lynn Mclnnis and they have two
children, Shannon and Bradley, Ron (Dillion) when not
working away lives with Boyd and Ethel in Cremona. Boyd
worked at many different things, he and his brother Fred,
owned the garage where Jim Stratton's Plumbing now is,
he also had a sawmill back west in the Graham district
Boyd worked on the oil wells for a good number of years as
a boiler man. After Tom Boyd retired, Boyd took over the
farm for him. Later, Boyd sold the farm to Roy Brown and
retired to his home in Cremona where he and Ethel still
reside.

Dick was born on November 15, 1912. He married Irene
Foster. 1‘he’y raised five children: Alan married to Joyce
they have four children, Maryanne, Eddie, Maxine and
Ricky. Alan has two other children, Theresa and Tracy.
Larry married Louise VanDougan, they have one son Sam.
Terry, lives in Cremona with Ethel and Boyd May. Patricia
married Gerald Williams, they have three children, Denise.
Sherrie and Troy. Bonnie-Sue still living at home with Irene
and Dick and attending Rimbey High School. Dick lived on
the farm that Sam and Sarah had lived on. He then moved
to Water Valley and took over the store from Walter, he
later moved back to the farm, then he sold the farm to
George McBain and moved to Calgary Dick and Irene now
have retired to Rimbey.

Annie was born on January 3, 1916. She was the baby of
Sam and Sarah's family. Annie married Milton Hickey,
they lived on a farm east of Cremona. Annie and Milton
raised three children: Fred married Mary Zurkowski, and
they have one son Alex. Fred passed away in 1978. Evelyn
married George Cameron and they have two children, Burt
and Suzzanne. Mary married Ben Chernick, they have five
children: Wayne, Danny, Cindy, Eric and Shannon. After
Milton's retirement, George and Evelyn took over the
farm, and Milt and Annie moved to Didsbury where they
now reside.

JOSEPH AND ADELIADE MILLETT

By Muriel Foster and Jean Eby

Joe Millett came to Schburg, Ont. in 1899, He worked
on a farm in this area for a short time then returned to
England. After a short time in England he returned once
more to Canada.

A year after Joe returned to Canada his mother and
sisters moved over here from England settling in the same

area, His brother Henery had came over to Canada a year
earlier on his own

Joe worked on various jobs around this area then
decided to come west. He came west to Manitoba that
spring and worked here till winter then returned to On-
tario,

The next spring he came wesl as far as Saskatchewan
and took up a homestead near Glenavan.

Joe Millett married Adeliade Arton on May 18, 1910 at
Crealman, Saskatchewan. Adeliade Arton was born Dec.
26, 188! in Michigan.

Their first daughter Louise was born at Crealman Sask

They lived here for approximately twa years then they
moved to Summerberry and worked for a Mr. Astor

Their second daughter Pearl was born while they lived
al Summerberry.

The Milletts then moved to Many Island Lake and took
up another homestead.

There son Keith was born here. Keith Millett died at
the early age of one and a half years. He was buried here
on the homestead.

After Joe’s brother Henery died, Joe and family moved
sixteen miles from their homestead to take over Henery's
place at Bowmanton, Alta,

They lived here through the dry vears. In 1920 Josie
was born at Medicine Hat, Alta.

In 1924 the Milletts moved to Langdon, Alta. Joe
worked at Langdon doing all sorts of jobs till 1936,

Eugene Millett was born on August 5, 1934,

In the spring of 1936 the Milletts moved to a quarter
section of land north of Water Valley. They rented this land
from Dr. Allen. This land is presenlly owned by
Beveridges.

From here the family moved to an half section of land one
and a half miles north of Water Valley that was owned by
George Lashmore Sr. They lived here for several years,

The Milletts then purchased a quarter section of land

south west of Water Valley at a tax sale. The Milletts

Joe Miliett, Adeliade Millett and | Adellade’s cousin) Herb Houton

House of the Millett farm southwest of Water Valley. This house burned down
shortly after Adellade sold the place



moved on to this place and resided there til] Joe's death in
July of 1955

This place is presently owned by H and G, Wolffe.
Adeliade lived on the place for a year or so then sold out
and moved to Water Valley. She passed away in the sum-
mer of 1964,

Pearl Millett maried Verne Williams on December 18,
1940. They had three children Myrtle, LaVerne and Jerald,
Myrtle married Don Dewdeny, They live at Cremona and
have three children Rita, Ken and Randy. Rita married
Victor Hehr and has one son Byron. Ken and Randy reside
at home. LaVerne married Jim Strattonand live at Ledue
Alta. They have three children Donna, Susan and Verne.
Jerald married Patsy May and they reside at Black
Diamond. They have three children Denise, Shree and
Troy

Josie married George Lashmore and lives at Water
g‘;lall_fy They have three children Muriel, Wayne and

eila.

Gene Millett married Dianne Leslie and lives in
Calgary. They have two girls Shelly and Cindy.

Louise Miilett died in Jan. 1940

ELMORE & FLORENCE MERCER

By: Jean Eby

Elmore and Florence moved to the Bituma area, and
lived at the Fisher place, south of Art Pawson. They had
two children. Elmer came from Ontario and his wife was
from England The house burned down on this place, so
they moved to Roy Oldfields for a while. Later living at
Burrells.

While in the district he worked at the sawmills, and
helped different ones on their farm. They moved away
from here going to different places in Alberta before
settling in Didsbury, where they still reside in fairly
good health.

JOE MOLINE

By: Muriel Foster

Joe Mcline moved into the Water Valley area in about
1936. He moved to a Place on the town line south of Water
Valley. He knew Bill King as he had worked for Bill for
years at Acme, before either of them moved to Water
Valley. Joe worked hauling water for a steam outfit. He got
injured on a steam tank while doing this job, and was in
the hospital in Calgary for some time. He passed away in
Calgary. This place was then sold to Bob Lawrence, who
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lived there for some time He passed away in 1952 and the
land was bought bi; Al Matat.

Jack Eby s the owner now of Bob Lawrence's caitle
brand WD Al Malat then sold out and Mac Leask owns
this land at the present time.

MR. AND MRS. MOON
By Wilfred Blain

Riley and Elizabeth Moon came 1o the Elkton district
in 1920, Their family was Lida, Margaret, Bill, Martha,
Marcella, Frank, Alley (Allan), Daniel, Vera and Lorraine.

Mr. Moon started ur a blacksmith shop after arriving
here and people came from far and wide o gel machine
work done. They were a very jovial and hospitable family
angs many a trail weary traveller shared their table and
beds.

There being not too many churches around at that
time, Mass was held when ever il was possible at the Moon
home, and people came from thirty or more miles for it.
Saturday morning. Lorraine had catechism for any child-
ren that were able 1o attend

Mr. Moon was an ardent hunter and many mounted
trophy heads of bi;il horn sheep. moose, deer and bear,
graced the walls of their lovely big home.

Mrs. Moon was confined to a wheel chair and bed in
1917 with rheumatism. As there was no voung ones around
there home now, T always saw that she got the first of all
the flowers and leaves that came out in the spring.
Sometimes I took her over a pail of hard water for her
green tea. They had soft water and it makes horrid tasting
green tea. After my visil with her T would go to see Mr.
Moon at his blacksmith shop. 1 had a special old box milk
stool, that sat by Mrs. Moon’s fox terrier dog, Quennie's
box quite often it had a litter of puppies in it. Quennie
never allowed anybody else there but Mr. Moon and I.
While the most interesting hunting and horse stories were
being told, often I had the privilege of turning the blower
on the old coal forge, and Mr. Moon would mavbe have his
back to the forge, but he could tell by the sound of the forge
how fast it should be turned for the different types of iron
that he had in it. You could tell by looking at the iron when
it was time to stop turning. Then pieces for welding were
smoothed off and shaped, and there was some welding
compound powder put on. After they got a certain heat, the
blower was turned then until it got a beautiful blue green
color. When put on the anvil and hammered together the
sparks flew every direction,

Alley Moon married an Elmwood girl. Gertie Woolleen
and they made their home where Bill Borton now lives.
Vera married Clifi Bellamy and they were the Bellamy




grchestra that played for many dances in the Cremona
istrict.

Frank was a cowboy and horse trainer. He worked with
a Professor Berry, who was noted all over North America
for his appearances on horse breaking and also for his
course, Professor Berry's book of horsemanship.

Bill Moon dedicated his life to well drilling and a good

of the wells in this country were drilled by him. Daniel
ost his life in the 1st World War,

Mr. and Mrs. Moon and Lorraine left Elkton in 1924 for
Encinitas California, where they hoped the warm, drier
climate would help Mrs. Moon., When they left for Califor-
nia they left us many keep sakes bul the biggest one of all
was of two families of ten children each, with two different
faiths, living just across the road from each other. always
working and playing together as one big family.

AUTOBIOGRAPHY OF
WILLIAM MOORE

I was born in Northern Ireland on Oclober 6th, 1879,
When 1 became a young man | was studying engineering.
There was a movement of immigration to Canada, [ too
decided to go out fo see the new country and if satisfied,
to make my home there. I set sail aboard a luxury liner of
the Allen Steamship Line. It was seven or eight days before
we landed at Halifax. I went west as far as Winnipeg, but
as everything was dead there, 1T went on to Calgary. The
C.P.R. depot was a very small stone building at the west
end of the present site. Ernie Windom was a rancher on the
Bow River near the present town of Carsland. He hada
contract to furnish meat for the sixteen lo eighteen hun-
dred Indians on the Blackfoot reservation. I got a job
working for him. The Indians butchered the stock and we
supervised the weighing, I worked there for about 18 mon-
ths at $15.00 per month and received my pay in cash. Ten-
ders were asked for a contract to furnish meat for the In-
dians &t Gleichen. Windom did not get the contract so I
worked on the H2 ranch, on which was one of the best her-
ds of horses in Canada. From there I wenl up to the BV
ranch at High River. Stimson was the owner. | worked
there for awhile and then worked on the O Ranch. This
brand was known as the "Circle”, which was on the left
ribs. An unscrupulous fellow who lived near there obtained
the 101 brand and enlarged his own herd at no expense, as
it was simple for him to change the Stimson brand to his
own. However, he was caught and spent 14 years in prison.

After a year the “'Circle’ ranch changed hands, and I
went to Calgary. My two brothers Jim and John, who had
come out from Ireland four years later than 1, established
a daiz in the part of Calgary now known as Riverside.
They delivered milk into town. About this time we bought a
section of land just east of the present airport. We bought it
for $3.25 per acre. The taxes were $30.00 annually. My
brothers sold the dairy and went into the feed business,
which was known as the Anderson Feed Co. I helped in the
business while living on the section. They ke?l this business
until cars began to come, This meant a smaller market for
feed. The buyer went broke

One of my sisters came to Canada at the time my
brothers had the dairy. She decided that she preferred her
homeland and so returned to Ireland. Another sister came
out, married and lived in Calgary for a few years, and then
she and her husband moved to the United States. Another
of my sisters came to Canada married then moved to
Australia. My brother John, was killed by lightening when
we lived east of the airport. While I lived east of the airport
in 1902-03, the rainfall was too plentiful. We had to go to
Calgary for supplies. The river was so high that we drove a
team and wagon as far as the bridge, unhooked the team,
and tied them to a wheel. Then we walked across the
bridge and were ferried to the present site of McLeod, on
seventh avenue. All the Sunnyside region was flooded, as
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was the area up to a block east of the City Hall. which at
that time looked like a bachelor's shack. There were two
livery stables just north of the Hall.

In 1902, a cloud burst flooded the Nose Creek valley
making it impossible to get to Calgary for two weeks. A
livery stable owned by R.C. Thomas stood where the Hud-
son’s Bay store now stands, Mr. Thomas also delivered
coal and wood all over town. The first Calgary Bull sale
was held in that livery stable. The bulls being shipped out
from Ontario. At this time Calgary had stock ardg. which
would accommodate 40) to 5000 head of cattle, One time
the brand inspector went in o inspect the cattle, He
hurriedly came out sa ing that he had decided that they
could be inspected in Winnipeg,

In the winter of 1906-07 I was working in the office of P.
Burns and his partner, Duggan. In those days it was hard
to get meat in the spring as no cattle were fattened during
the winter, The temperature went as low as 61 below and
remained at 45 below for days, many cattle died during the
severe cold even though they had had plenty to eat. Some
of the cattle P. Burns was feeding were butchered to find
our why they were sick, the hind quarters were found to be
partl{ frozen. They were slowly freezing to death. The
Herald gave incorrect temperatures so as not to discourage
the immigrants. Editorials state that although it was cold
in Calgary that it was not felt. That winter was fully as
severe as the winter of 1964-65.

On Jeft - Mra. Julia Cowmnan - 1514-15

Julia Cowman was (raining in the Holy Cross Hospilal
in Calgary in 1911. I met her while I was a patient there.
The Sisters had very strict rules concerning nurses going
out, However there was a lire escape at the back of the
residence, It wasn't hard to persuade Julia to come down
as I stood below to assist her to the ground. After a



pleasant evening at the Grand Theatre | helped her to
reach the fire excape to enter the residence. We were
married in 1918, 1 Ead an opportunity later to tell the
Sisters of the fire escape escapade. They laughingly ad-
mitted that they had known of it all the time.

Julia's father, Fred Cowman, owned four sections of
land west of Carstairs. He was not well. so Julia and [
came out to help him at the ranch. Before leaving Calgary
the section east of the airport was sold for $32.00 per acre,
Mr. Cowman’s homestead was the quarter just east of Jim
Whitlow's land. Later it was sold to Mr. Sherman. Mr. and
Mrs, Cowman lived in a granary for the first vear until
1905 they built a house. He had purebred Herefords - all
registered animals. When Mr. Cowman settled in this area,
there were no fences. Since his cattle were registered he
fenced his land to keep his herd separate from the animals
of the other ranchers. Little land was cultivated so feed
became & problem. Besides a herd of registered cows. we
had young bulls and heifers, and a large flock of sheep. We
fed beef cattle which we drove to Carstairs to be taken to
Calgary. Our bulls were taken to the Calgary Bull Sale the
same way. We sometimes had as many as 20 registered
bulls. Some were taken by train to the Kamloops Bull Sale
in February, the odd time some were taken to the Lacombe
sale later in the spring.

Julia had lived with her father before we were
married. In 1914 her sister, Grace, Mrs. Bellamy died after
giving birth to twins. Julia took the surviving twin to raise.
This was Walter (Buster) Bellamy, In 1918 we were
married we kept Buster with us and raised him as our own
son. He lived with us until he married in 1939 to Jean Tho-
mpson and went on his own. We had one daughter of our
own, Rosetta, who is now Mrs. Duncan MacFarquhar.

In 1919 there was no hay for our cattle. We moved the
breeding stock to Lesser Slave Lake, where we put up hay.
Our herd wintered well. Through the winter hay was ship-
ped by train down to Carstairs, brought out by train and
sleigh to feed the young stock. In the spring the R.C.M.P,

Wm. Moore shoeing horses.

paid $50.00 a ton for the hay we had left and bailed it them-
selves. That winter cattle went into the feedlot at 11 per

und, were fed $30 hay all winter and sold in the Spring
or 3 to 3'2* a pound. Many men went broke after feeding
cattle all winter. Also, this area was a mange area in 1919,
Cattle had to be dipped before they were sold. This lasted 5
o6 years. Mr. Cowman lived with us until he died in Mar-
ch 1932, he had beerei(f)redeceased by his wife in 1913. The
farm was then divided amongst his family.
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Alberta Hereford tour al Moore's 1955,

When Rosetta married in 1851, my wife and I moved to
Calgary. We enjoved living there, After my wife's death in
1962 the Dr, said that T must not live alone, so I returned to
the farm. I have seen many changes in my time. One thing
I regret, is the disappearance of the rural schools, They
were community centres where many good times were en-
joyed. We enjoyed many fine evenings at the Garfield
school, where Busterand Rosetta attended.

*After & short time in the Rockyview Home in Crossfield,
and a number of weeks in the Didsbury Hospital, Mr.
Moore passed away in February 1967 at the age of 87,

RALPH (SLIM) MOOREHOUSE

Article Courtesy of Eben Bremner, Calgary

From Ken Liddell's Column - The Herald.

Mr. Moorehouse, known as “‘Slim" even to this day,
navigated Cal?ary‘s Stampede - gay streets behind 22 hor-
ses and 10 mules, and on repeat performance he operated a
string of 36 Percherons, the first visit, in 1924, the
motive power drew eight wagons. The cargo was 1,222
bushels of Marquis wheat, with the driver happily tossing
small souvenir sacks of the wheat to bystanders. The little
bags were labelled "‘the world’s largest team, world's best
marquis wheat". The whole deal filled the Calgary board of
trade of the day with pride. It issued a brochure

roclaiming Calgary as a ‘‘commercial metropolis, world's

t wheat country and sunshine city of the foothills”.

Just how Mr. Moorehouse got to these parts is not
known, but he lived at both Gleichen and Vulcan. A stret-
ched jet with its thousands of horsepower is the talk of
today, But Mr. Moorehouse was the talk of both com-
munities and a wide area of the countryside for the way he
made the ground shake with his classic hookups. Why he
engaged in such stretched-out safaris is not known,

ecisely. Frank Anderson, the Calgary publisher of
klets on historical subjects, reasons with some logic
that as the era was that of big crops, Mr. Moorehouse
figured the more wheat a man could get to market in short
order, the better off he would be. Mr. Moorehouse not only
drove through the downtown streets as an attraction, but
also made trips to get in shape and get his “‘gees and
haws'' in shape.

After one trip in 1924, The Herald's reporter reported
that when Mr. Moorehouse stopped on Ist St. W. between
Bth and 7th Ave.’s, the leading animals were on 7th Ave.,
facing east. That was the year the Stampede featured the
Johnny J. Jones Midway, of fond memary. For its drawing



card for the crowds, the Capitol Theatre was playing Con-
stance Talmadge in Goldfish. The advertisements indicated
that the movie concerned “five Kings in one picture.”” That
would have been news then, but hardly today when the
commodity seems to come cheaper by the dozen. In his
1924 display of driving, Mr. Moorehouse used 22 horses and
10 mules owned by Glen House, of Gleichen. Mr.
Moorehouse worked all winter to fashion harness for the
outfit he drove the following summer, the 36 head of Per-
cherons, each weighing about 1,600 Ibs. As he moved
through the streets the outfit was flanked by six outriders
to help with brakes on the wagons in the event of emergen-
cy. Their services were not required. On the jogging jour-
ney Mr, Moorehouse guided the teams through four turns
at different intersections. That was the Stampede week the
Strand Theatre was “‘rocked to and fro” by a glay called
Charley’'s Aunt. It was the time when prime rib beef sold
for 22¢ a pound. It was the week when Rubin and Cherry
provided the midway. Mr. Moorehouse, who at one time
worked for the Bar O-N Ranch at Vulcan, seemed to have
left the public eye after his fine performance. Mr, An-

derson traced Mr. Moorehouse’s movements to the Big
Bend country around Revelstoke, where Mr. Moorehouse
worked with a grader, obviously horse-drawn, on the old
and rather infamous Big Bend Highway. His last ap
pearance in Calgary, at least one in which he was in-
terviewed, was in 1965, He came lo visit a friend. At that
time he was 74 years of age and was living at Salmon Arm,
B.C. He said he had a place "“with a horse or two and the
pension”’, that he had not been in good health and that his
memory had slipped.

About 1945 Mr. Moorehouse moved to the Cremona
area. He had 80 acres east of Tom Graham's present
house. The land was previously owned by Mr. Doolittle.
Slim and his wife, Dorothy, (Bennett) and their young
daughter, Joan, were here 3 or 4 years. He made his living
at that time by hauling cream to the creameries. He had a
truck and hauled the cream cans in the back. He seemed to
have left the Cremona area for parts unknown.

*Mr. Moorehouse died at Salmon Arm, B.C. at 80 years of
age Sunday, September 26, 1971.

THE WORLD'’S LONGEST TEAM
By: Ralphene Bolinger

Article from Sept. issue of Calgary Market Journal,

1978. Special thanks to the committee connected with the

gl;ic};gpdcw who have given permission and copyright to
article.
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In 1925 Mr. Chris Bartsch of Gleichen was instrumental
in entering the world record 36 horse team in the Calgary
Stampede, an event which brought fame to Gleichen in
years to follow. It was driven by Slim Moorehouse who had
come to the Vulcan district in 1923 and first worked for Jim
Dew of the Bar O.N. Ranch in the Buffalo Hills. A “Frien-
dly" feud between Moorehouse and a man named Joe Whit-
tam who worked on the next farm led to a contest to see
who could drive the biggest road team. First Slim drove in-
to town with a wagon train of wheat hauled by 12 horses
and this was responded to by Whittam driving out with 16
horses. Not to be outdone Moorehouse drove horses and
had %Ians for a still bigger outfit, if he could “lay hands on
it". By borrowing from his neighbors around Vulcan he
finally drove 20 horses and 10 mules hauling eight wagons
loaded with 1,144 bu. of hard wheat in &e Vulean
elevator. In the 1923 Calgary Stampede, Moorehouse, with
the aid of horses borrowed from Glenn House of Gleichen,
displayed a 32 horse team. Don Briar rode with
Moorehouse as a brakeman and four outriders ac-
companied the outfit on & most successful tour.

Interest was at a geak by this time and spread to the
“stampede’ town of Gleichen. Professor W.L. Carlyle of
the Canadian Percheron Association thought it would be a
wonderful advertisement stunt to get together a 36 horse
team of Percherons and soon convinced his friend, Chris
Bartsch of Gleichen to help him obtain the horses needed
from the Gleichen district, The idea was to have it ready
for the 1925 stampede which was to mark the 50th year
of Calgary's birth. At the same time Chris planned to
display it at the Gleichen Stampede and Potlatch planned
for June 30 and July 1st of 1925,

The world record outfit was made up of 36 Black Per-
cheron horses, each weighing over 1600 pounds, hauling 10
wagons loaded with a total of 1500 bu., of wheat, All new
McCormick wagons and tanks were supplied by the In-
ternational Harvester Co. through their agent, Mr. J.O.
Bogstei and the horses looked splendid in all new harness
supplied by Gleichen’s weli-known harness maker Mr. T.H.
Beach. The horses making up this team were all supplied
by Gleichen district farmers; those owning horses were:
Tom Kelly, 8 head; McHugh Bros. 4 head; Cecil Eaton, 2
head, Chris Bartsch, 14 head; W.D. Trego, 2 head, Leon
Desjardins, 6 head; Bob Jeffers, 6 head and Ed Hansen, 4
head (these were the four horses that jumped the cable
when turns were made), Jim Young also owned 2 horses in
the team. The lead team, Nig and Dude were owned by
Chris Bartsch and an alternative lead team, Mac and
Grogan was owned by Tom Kelly, All horses were shod
with rubber shoes in Calgary: this lessened the noise on the
city streets, A full equli:pped chuck wagon accompanied
the outfit, the 4 Black Percheron horses on this vehicle
being supplied by Mr. Bolinger Sr. Six outriders, suitably
attired for the occasion, rode beside the wagons, Jimmy
Mooney of Arrowwood was the lead outrider mounted on a
white pony; Walter Ward, riding Floyd Sammon's pony
was left outrider; Ted Bartsch, right lead outrider; the
swing team outriders were Slim McDonald and Bill Mc-
Coleman; Don Briar was wagon master and also patrolled
all wagons; Jack Moorehouse (Slim's kid brother) rode in
the last wagon to hand out bags of wheat. Altogether there
were 50 color-matched horses (counting the spare outriders
who went along)that headed out from Gleichen a few days
prior to the Calgary Stampeded of 1925.

The wagons were hauled by means of steel cables
which extended almost the whole length of the team and
over which the horses stepped in proper order if a turn was
made needlessto say this required very special training.
The team, for the purpose of direction, was divided into 2
sections, so arranged that when the lead section had made
part of a turn the second section had pulled straight ahead
for several yards thus keeplglg the string for 10 wagons on
a straight line up to a point of the turn. As prepara for
their appearance in Calgaﬁ' this team was shown at the
Gleichen Stampede and Potlatch held on June 30 and July



1, 1925. It was assembled near Chris Bartsch's place (now
the Jack Wilson home), and from here they began the long
trek to the Calgary Stampede, where it was the featured at-
traction that year. The trip from Gleichen to Calgary took
two days to complete. The 6 outriders accompanied it and
small sacks of wheat, labelled “‘Hauled by the world’s
longest team - world's best Marquis wheat,”" delighted any
parade viewer who was lucky enough to calch a bag as it
was thrown off the wagons, The stunt caused great ex-
citement as Moorehouse gee'd and haw'd the world's
longest team through the streets of Calgary. The team per-
formed magnificently, demonstrating the weeks of training
given them. They took part in the opening parade and were
a popular part of the whole week's performance. The lead
team, Mac and Grogan entered a weight pulling contest
and won it. Al the closing wrformance of the team on
Saturday, July 11, 1925, Mr. W.B. Thorne, president of the
Alberta Percheron Association presented a trophy, given in
recognition of this event, It was received by the assistant
manager, Tom Kelly, as by this time Chris Bartsch had
returned to Gleichen. The inscription of the trophy read:
Presented by the Canadian Percheron Association to the
Gleichen Horse Breeding District in token of appreciation
for the world's longest team, composed of Percheron hor-
ses driven by one man at the Calgary Jubilee Exhibition
and Stampede, July, 1925, The trophy awarded for this
event was eventually given to Slim Moorehouse.

THE ANTON MORK FAMILY

By Lulu Mork

Anton Mork was born in 1870 in Oslo, Norway. He went
to sea as a young man where he changed the family name
from Olson to Mork. In Norway families do not have a con-
stant family name instead if the oldest son is named
William, his family name then becomes Williamson. Since
Ole is a popular name for a boy in Norway on board the
boat there were twenty Olson’s. Thus the name change. An-
ton was a member of the Oslo Police force before
emigrating to a Minnesota logging camp with his wife
Pauline and their first child Harriet, He came to the
Cremona area in 1902 and filed a homestead on what is now
the Jim Lane Honey Farm. In 1904 he took up permanent
residence on the homestead with his family. A second
daughter, Mabel had been born in the U.S.A.

Anton was familiar with log building and he built the
log cabin which housed his family, emp oyinfa pole rafters
and dove tailed corner {oints and using ‘Kop r logs from
the homestead, The cabin is still standing. Anton built
many of the first cabins for other seftlers. In the
homestead cabin the next five children were born. The
Mork children attended the Atkins school which used to
stand where the County shop is now, Mrs. Eleanor
vanHaaften told me that what she enjoyed most about
Harriet Wilson at school was the crochem:dy lace on her slip
and pantaloons. She was one of the smallest girls and the
largest ones twitled her around by holding her under the
armpits so they could admire the lace. The Mork children
were janitors of the Atkins school for many years taking it
in lurns as they grew. Anton worked in the coal mine at
Skunk Hollow, west of Water Valley walking to and fro
daily. At that time he also walked to rstairs for
groceries, carrying them home on his back.

family were avid cranberry pickers and in season
picked many gunny sacks full for their own use and for
sale to buy current necessities. The children derived their
pocket money from the berries they picked, Pauline had the
first local telephone exchange in her home. They added a
two storey lumber addition to the Jog cabin to house the
telephone exchange and to meet the need of their growing
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family. Later the office was moved to Cremona in to the
house now owned by Oliver MacKay. At that time it was
opposile the Post Office at the south end of the street.
Pauline Mork loved shrubs and flowers. She planted lilacs
in front of her house, remembering that in Norway they
grew wild on the hillsides as our willows do here, She ten-
ded with care to her sEoldemglow. bluebells and other plants
and in later years she shares with Roy Mark her lilacs,
honeysuckle and goldenglow across the road from the
homestead, where in season they still bear tribute to her
love of beauty. She crocheted and embroidered with skill
and knitted skeins of wool into sweaters, mitts and socks
for her own family and during the war for the Red Cross.
She suffered a stroke in 1949 and in 1950 was laid to rest in
the Cremona cemetery near her husband who had died in
1935,

The eldest Mork girl, Harriet married Clifford Wilson
and they have now retired to the Senior Citizen's Lodge in
Olds. Formerly they had lived in Calgary and in 1938 they
moved to the original Mork homestead with their four
children, Hazel, Gordon, Reta, and Harold. Their children
attended Atkins school and later Cremona school. Hazel
married Arnold Hogg and they reside north of Cremona on
the Alex Hogg farm, where they farmed and raised two
sons. Ken lives on the farm inthe house his grandparents
used, after his marriage to Linda Summervilie. They have
one daughter, Alan Hogg became a member of the
R.C.M.P. at Regina, Sask. and he and his wife Vivien now
live at Meadow Lake, Sask. Gordon Wilson married Norma
Rigsby, and has continued on the farm west of Cremona in
the Big Prairie area. Of their children, Brian still farms in
the area He married Terry Farciuharson and they have one
daughter. The eldest son, Donald, joined the Calgary City
Police Force and he and his wife, nee Debby Sirr, five in
Calgary with their two children. The only girl Kathleen,
married Neal Lemley and lives in Calgary. Reta, the
second Wilson daughter, married Lorne McMann. They live
at Eckville, have five children, Sharon, Colin, Darlene,
Brian, and Laverne and 4 grandchildren, Harold, the
youngest Wilson, lives at Turner Valley with his wife,
Sylvia. Mae Mork married Jesse Ray and has continued to
live in the area, at first north of the old Garfield store
where Mae planted a windbreak. One Sunday afternoon at
a family picnic Harold Wilson and Gordie Mork aged four
and five, came proudly in to announce to Aunt Mae that
they had cut her some firewood, part of her carefully ten-
ded windbreak.

Mae and Jesse were great horse lovers. They belonged
to the Didsbury Light Horse Association for many years
and enjoyed every outing, very seldom missed a horse
show. They raised and trained many horses including & %
Arab mare named, Rayalta Velvet, the first mare in
Canada to win the Legion of Merit award in the part Arab
class. Mae loved crafts and won many awards for weaving,
and cooking in the Women's Institute handicrafts com-
petitions. She painted many charcoal and watercolor pic-
tures, caned chairs, collected antiques and refinished many
old pieces including her Dad's desk from Norway. One of
her prized possessions is a beaver on a log carved by Grant
McEwan. e had two daughters, Greta now s. Art
Hess of Kamloops and Karen, now Mrs. Douglas Gottfred
of Victoria. Mae and Jesse have 6 grandchildren and 1
great grandchild.

Mabel Mork, the second daughter was married at
seventeen to Cliff Kelsey and they reside on the Kelsey
lace across from where the Mick Earle’s now live. The
ad one son, Irvine, who was born in the original Mor!
homestead cabin and attended Atkins school, Later Mabel
and Cliff were divorced and Mabel married Manley
Truman, returning to live in the U.S.A. where she was
born. She was a skilled roller skater and retained her
youthiul Jooks to the degree that Irvine said during the war
that he won many beers by having fellows guess what
relations she was to him from a picture he carried, Mabel
died in 1947 with lung cancer. Irvine is a jet pilot for T.C.A.
and lives in Weston, Ont. He and his wife Thelma, have

three children.



William Mork, the eldest son (Bill) lived all his life in
the Cremona area. He loved huntin% and often went back
into the hills although he suffered from asthma and was
allergic to animal hair. Once his friends had to fly him
home from a hunting trip to save his life. He worked at
many trades and jobs, at the McBain mill. doing carpenter
work, and for severl years in the N. & J. store in Cremona,
during which time he built a bedroom suite He married

Bertha Bosch and they lived first on the old Haley farm,

-

Mabel Mork and Clff Kelsey's wedding at the Mork rgeldem. Left - right -
Backrow: Bill, Mrs. Kelsey, Charlie & Aggie Reid, Cliff Kelsey and Harriet
Mork, the bride Mabel. Mae. Pauline, and Anton. Front row: Roy. George and
Harold

o

The log cabin bullt by Mork In 1938, The picture was taken in 1947,
Marguret Mork, Sylvia and itle Young.

George Mork in front of the original Jog cabin, The lumber additian had burned
down In the intervening years, 1939
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He was killed in an accident west of Water Valley,
while working on an oil well. Of his three children, Pauline
is married to Andy Michaelchuk, has 5 children and lives in
Sundre. Clifford married Jackie Wigg. They live in
Calgary and have three children. Donna married Ken
Wigg and they live in the Cremona area with two children

oy Mork, the second son was the farmer in the
family. He bought part of the original Mork holdings across
the road from the original homestead. It was & pasture
quarter with thirty acres broke on it and no buildings. He
moved a log cabin he had built from the Graham district,
to his farmstead and undertook as did many young farmers
then, to farm from scratch. At noon he watered his horses
in the slough and sometimes got very wet when they
decided to roll as well as drink. Virgil Burkholder and his
dad drilled his first of four wells. Albert Koester helped
him build a barn in 1941. He cleared his first ten acres with
an axe and then fortunately brushcutter= arrived in the
area. He maried Lulu Young in 1938. The log cabin was
comfortable while the fires were on, but since we burned
wood they went out at night. Often In the winter the water-
pail had a good thickness of ice on it in the morning. Roy
did custom carpenter work in the area as well as mixed
farming. he built and did the finishing of his house, was ac-
tive in the Credit Union, curled a bit and loved to entertain
his friends and relatives. He was a member of the United
Church. He died at sixty-one of a heart attack. His
daughter, Margaret married Lec Kloberdanz, lives in
Grande Prairie and has four chiidren. His son Deryl
married Bea Coon, lives on the family farm and has one
son and three stepsons.

George, the third son attended high school at Old
Cremona then went to Calgary. He married Margaret Pur-
dy and saw active service in World War 2, He had one son
Gordon who was accidentalli drowned in Vancouver,
where, as a sallor his ship docked at Esquimalt, His folks
suffered for months while he was listed as A W O L until
the body surfaced. His 19 year old buddy travelled all day
and all night on sentry duty with Gordy's bedy. His first
words when he arrived exhausted at the George Mork’s
were "' had to bring Gordy home, it's the last thing I can
ever do for him." George is now retired and lives at
Naniamo, B.C.

The youngest Mork, Harold, enlisted in the Calgary
Highlanders at the age of 21. He was overseas until the end
of the war. A scouter for his regiment he was twice repor-
ted missing in action and once hospitalized for shell shock
in England. He married Daisy during the war and returned
home to stay with Bertha and Bill awaiting his wife's
arrival. He couldn’t endure the delay, returned to England
to get Daisy and instead stayed in England until 1977 when
they returned to Canada and now l